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Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: As soon as practicable after this Registration
Statement becomes effective.

If any of the securities being registered on this Form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to
Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933 check the following box:  ¨

If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act,
check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration
statement for the same offering.  ¨

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the following
box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same
offering.  ¨

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following
box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same
offering.  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting
company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer ¨ Accelerated filer ¨

Non-accelerated filer x  (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company ¨

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Title of Each Class of

Securities to be Registered

Proposed
Maximum
Aggregate

Offering Price(1)(2)

Amount of

Registration Fee(3)
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share $180,147,368 $20,933.12

(1) Estimated solely for the purpose of determining the registration fee in accordance with Rule 457(o) of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

(2) Includes shares to be sold upon exercise of the underwriters� option to purchase additional shares. See
�Underwriting.�

(3) The registrant previously paid $17,430 and has paid $3,503.12 in connection with the filing of this amendment.
Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or
disapproved of these securities or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this Prospectus. Any representation
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to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The Registrant hereby amends this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay
its effective date until the Registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this
Registration Statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or until the Registration Statement shall become effective on such dates as the Securities and
Exchange Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.
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The information in this Prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not issue these securities until
the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This Prospectus is
not an offer to sell these securities and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any jurisdiction
where the offer or sale is not permitted.

SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED JANUARY 13, 2015

PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS

7,000,000 Shares

New Media Investment Group Inc.

Common Stock

(Par Value, $0.01 per share)

We are offering 7,000,000 shares of our Common Stock. Our shares of Common Stock were listed on the New York
Stock Exchange (the �NYSE�) under the symbol �NEWM� on February  14, 2014. On January 12, 2015, the closing sales
price for our Common Stock on the NYSE was $22.42 per share. Please see �Market Price Information and Dividends�
on page 34 for more information.

Investing in our Common Stock involves risks. See �Risk Factors� beginning on page 16 to read about certain
factors you should consider before buying our Common Stock.

Per
Share Total

Public Offering Price $ $
Underwriting Discounts(1) $ $
Proceeds, to us (before expenses) $ $
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(1) See �Underwriting� for a description of compensation payable to the underwriters. The underwriters will not
receive any underwriting discount or commission on the sale of shares of our Common Stock made in connection
with this offering to certain of our officers, directors and other related parties.

The underwriters may also exercise their option to purchase up to an additional 1,035,119 shares of our common stock
at the public offering price from us, less the underwriting discounts and commissions payable by us within 30 days
from the date of this Prospectus.

The underwriters expect to deliver the shares of Common Stock against payment on or about                     , 2015.

NEITHER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY STATE SECURITIES
COMMISSION HAS APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED OF THESE SECURITIES OR DETERMINED IF
THIS PROSPECTUS IS TRUTHFUL OR COMPLETE. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS
A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

This Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities.

Citigroup Credit Suisse
The date of this Prospectus is                     , 2015.
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You should rely only on the information contained in this Prospectus or incorporated by reference in this Prospectus
and any free writing prospectus prepared by us or on our behalf that we have referred you to. We and the underwriters
have not authorized anyone to provide you with additional or different information. If anyone provides you with
additional, different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. We take no responsibility for, and can
provide no assurance as to the reliability of, any other information that others may give you. This Prospectus is an
offer to sell only the shares offered hereby, but only under circumstances and in jurisdictions where it is lawful to do
so. We and the underwriters are not making an offer of these securities in any state, country or other jurisdiction where
the offer is not permitted. You should not assume that the information in this Prospectus or incorporated by reference
in this Prospectus or any free writing prospectus is accurate as of any date other than the date of the applicable
document regardless of its time of delivery or the time of any sales of our Common Stock (as defined below). Our
business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows may have changed since the date of the applicable
document.

i
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Presentation of Information

Unless the context otherwise requires, any references in this Prospectus to �we,� �our,� �us� and the �Company� relating to
periods prior to the Restructuring (as defined below) mean GateHouse Media, LLC (formerly known as GateHouse
Media, Inc.) (�GateHouse,� �Predecessor� or �Predecessor Company�) and for periods after the Restructuring mean New
Media Investment Group Inc. (�New Media,� �Successor� or �Successor Company�). All figures included in this Prospectus
are as of September 28, 2014, unless stated otherwise.

ii
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary of certain information contained in this Prospectus may not include all the information that is
important to you. To understand fully and for a more complete description of the terms and conditions of this offering,
you should read this Prospectus in its entirety, as well as the other documents incorporated herein by reference and
the documents to which you are referred. See �Where You Can Find More Information� and �Information
Incorporated by Reference.�

Our Company

We are a company primarily focused on investing in a high quality, diversified portfolio of local media assets and on
growing our audiences, existing online advertising and digital marketing services businesses.

We are one of the largest publishers of locally based print and online media in the United States as measured by
number of daily publications. We operate in 372 markets across 27 states. Our portfolio of products, which includes
450 community publications, 372 related websites, 365 mobile sites, six yellow page directories, and a digital
marketing services business (�Propel�), serves more than 130,000 business advertising accounts and reaches
approximately 14 million people on a weekly basis.

Our print and digital products focus on the local community from both a content, advertising and digital services
standpoint. As a result of our focus on small and midsize markets, we are usually the primary, and sometimes the sole,
provider of comprehensive and in-depth local market news and information in the communities we serve. Our content
is primarily devoted to topics that we believe are highly relevant and of interest to our audiences such as local news
and politics, community and regional events, youth sports, opinion and editorial pages, local schools, obituaries,
police blotters, and wedding and engagement announcements. Our local news content is unique and highly valued by
consumers who live in our markets, and there are limited, and in some cases no competing sources of local content for
our target customers.

More than 83% of our daily newspapers have been published for more than 100 years and 100% have been published
for more than 50 years. We believe that the longevity of our publications demonstrates the value and relevance of the
local information that we provide and has created a strong foundation of reader loyalty as well as a highly recognized
media brand name in each community we serve. We believe our brands are a trusted source for local news and
information by consumers in our market, and a trusted business partner to locally owned and operated businesses.

We also have a locally oriented, �in-market� sales force that gives us direct face to face access to small and medium
sized businesses (�SMBs�) in all of our respective markets, consisting of over 1,000 sales representatives, including 37
dedicated to Propel and 16 third party partnerships. We believe this �in-market� sales presence, combined with our
trusted media brands gives us a distinct advantage with regard to growing into new digital categories (such as digital
marketing services). Digital marketing services businesses are poised to benefit from the rise in internet advertising,
which grew 17% between 2012 and 2013, and 242% between 2005 and 2013, according to the 2014 IAB Internet
Advertising Revenue report.

New Media intends to focus its business strategy on stabilizing its core traditional media business and on building its
digital marketing services business and growing its audiences and online advertising business, leveraging its strong
local brands, its �in-market� sales force and news delivery platforms. We believe this will offset many of the challenges
experienced by our Predecessor Company, GateHouse. With its improved capital structure and digital focus,
combined with its strengths and strategy, we believe that New Media will be able to grow stockholder value.
However, there can be no assurances of this. See �Risk Factors.�
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We intend to create stockholder value through growth in our revenue and cash flow by stablizing our core traditional
media business, expanding Propel, growing our audiences and our online advertising business and
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pursuing strategic acquisitions of high quality local media assets at attractive valuation levels. However, there is no
guarantee that we will be able to accomplish any of these strategic initiatives. A key component of our strategy will be
to acquire and operate traditional local media businesses and transform them from print-centric operations to dynamic
multi-media operations, through our existing online advertising and digital marketing services businesses. We will
also leverage our existing platform to operate these businesses more efficiently. We believe all of these initiatives will
lead to revenue and cash flow growth for New Media and will enable us to pay dividends to our stockholders. We
intend to distribute a substantial portion of our free cash flow as a dividend to stockholders, through a quarterly
dividend, subject to satisfactory financial performance, approval by our board of directors (the �Board of Directors� or
the �Board�) and dividend restrictions in the New Media Credit Agreement (as defined below). The Board of Directors�
determinations regarding dividends will depend on a variety of factors, including the Company�s U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (�GAAP�) net income, free cash flow generated from operations or other sources,
liquidity position and potential alternative uses of cash, such as acquisitions, as well as economic conditions and
expected future financial results.

On October 30, 2014, the Company announced a third quarter 2014 cash dividend of $0.27 per share of common
stock, par value $0.01 per share, of New Media (�New Media Common Stock� or our �Common Stock�). The dividend
was paid on November 20, 2014, to shareholders of record as of the close of business on November 12, 2014.

Our Strengths

High Quality Assets with Leading Local Businesses. Our publications benefit from a long history in the communities
we serve as one of the leading, and often sole, providers of comprehensive and in-depth local content. More than 83%
of our daily newspapers have been published for more than 100 years and 100% have been published for more than 50
years. This has resulted in brand recognition for our publications, reader loyalty and high local audience penetration
rates, which are highly valued by local advertisers. We continue to build on long-standing relationships with local
advertisers and our in-depth knowledge of the consumers in our local markets. We believe our local news content is
unique and highly valued by consumers who live in our markets, and there are limited, and in some cases no
competing sources of local content for our target customers.

Large Locally Focused Sales Force. We have large and well known �in-market� local sales forces in the markets we
serve, consisting of over 1,000 sales representatives, including 37 dedicated to Propel and 16 third party sales
affiliations. Our sales forces are generally among the largest locally oriented media sales forces in their respective
communities. We have long-standing relationships with many local businesses and have the ability to be face to face
with most local businesses due to these unique characteristics we enjoy. We believe our strong brands combined with
our �in-market� presence give us a distinct advantage in selling and growing in the digital services sector given the
complex nature of these products. We also believe that these qualities provide leverage for our sales force to grow
additional future revenue streams in our markets, particularly in the digital sector.

Ability to Acquire and Integrate New Assets. We have created a national platform for consolidating local media
businesses and have demonstrated an ability to successfully identify, acquire and integrate local media asset
acquisitions. We have acquired over $1.7 billion of assets since 2006. We have acquired both traditional newspaper
and directory businesses. We have a scalable infrastructure and platform to leverage for future acquisitions.

Scale Yields Operating Profit Margins and Allows Us to Realize Operating Synergies. We believe we can generate
higher operating profit margins than our publications could achieve on a stand-alone basis by leveraging our
operations and implementing revenue initiatives, especially digital initiatives, across a broader local footprint in a
geographic cluster and by centralizing certain back office production, accounting, administrative and corporate
operations. We also benefit from economies of scale in the purchase of insurance, newsprint and other large strategic

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 11



supplies and equipment. Finally, we have the ability to further leverage our centralized services and buying power to
reduce operating costs when making future strategic accretive acquisitions.
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Local Business Profile Generates Significant Cash Flow. Our local business profile will allow us to generate
significant recurring cash flow due to our diversified revenue base and high operating profit margins and maintain our
low capital expenditure and working capital requirements. As a result of the Restructuring of GateHouse (the
�Restructuring�), which extinguished GateHouse�s obligations under the 2007 Credit Facility (as defined below) and
certain interest rate swaps secured thereunder on November 6, 2013, the confirmation date (the �Confirmation Date�) of
the pre-packaged plan under Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code (the �Plan�), our interest and
debt servicing expenses are significantly lower than GateHouse�s interest and debt servicing expenses. As of
September 28, 2014, our debt structure consists of the New Media Credit Agreement. We currently estimate that we
will have significant free cash flow totaling $50 to $70 million in 2014 which we believe will lead to stockholder
value creation through our investments in organic growth, investments in accretive acquisitions and the return of cash
to stockholders in the form of dividends, subject to approval by our Board of Directors. We further believe the strong
cash flows generated and available to be invested will lead to consistent future dividend growth.

Experienced Management Team. Our senior management team is made up of executives who have an average of
over 20 years of experience in the media industry, including strong traditional and digital media expertise. Our
executive officers have broad industry experience with regard to both growing new digital business lines and
identifying and integrating strategic acquisitions. Our management team also has key strengths in managing wide
geographically disbursed teams, including the sales force, and identifying and centralizing duplicate functions across
businesses leading to reduced core infrastructure costs.

Our Strategy

We intend to create stockholder value through a variety of factors including organic growth driven by our consumer
and SMB strategies, pursuing attractive strategic acquisitions of high quality local media assets, and through the
distribution of a substantial portion of our free cash flow as a dividend. However, there is no guarantee that we will be
able to accomplish any of these strategic initiatives.

A key component of our strategy is to acquire and operate traditional local media businesses and transform them from
print-centric operations to dynamic multi-media operations through our existing online advertising and digital
marketing services businesses. We will also leverage our existing platform to operate these businesses more
efficiently. We believe all of these initiatives will lead to revenue and cash flow growth for New Media and will
enable us to pay dividends to our stockholders. We intend to distribute a substantial portion of our free cash flow as a
dividend to stockholders, through a quarterly dividend, subject to satisfactory financial performance, approval by our
Board of Directors and dividend restrictions in the New Media Credit Agreement. The Board of Directors�
determinations regarding dividends will depend on a variety of factors, including the Company�s GAAP net income,
free cash flow generated from operations or other sources, liquidity position and potential alternative uses of cash,
such as acquisitions, as well as economic conditions and expected future financial results. The key elements of our
strategy include:

Maintain Our Leading Position in the Delivery of Proprietary Local Content in Our Communities. We seek to
maintain our position as a leading provider of unique local content in the markets we serve and to leverage this
position to strengthen our relationships with both readers and local businesses, thereby increasing penetration rates
and market share. A critical aspect of this approach is to continue to provide local content that is not readily obtainable
elsewhere and to be able to deliver that content to our customers across multiple print and digital platforms.

Grow Our New Digital Marketing Services Business. We plan to scale and expand our new recently created digital
marketing services business, Propel. We believe Propel will allow us to sell digital marketing services to SMBs both
in and outside existing New Media markets. The SMB demand for digital service solutions is great and represents a
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approximately 27 million SMBs in the U.S. and, according to a 2014 U.S. Local Media Forecast by BIA/Kelsey,
revenues for digital marketing are expected to grow to $35 billion in 2015, representing a 13.1% growth rate. Owners
of SMBs often lack the resources and expertise to navigate the digital marketing services sector, with 52% of SMBs
not having a website and 90% not having mobile-friendly websites according to a Yodle Small Business Sentiment
Survey in 2013. We believe local SMBs will turn to our trusted local media brands to help them navigate through
developing their digital marketing presence and strategy. We believe our �in-market� sales presence and strong local
brands give us a distinct advantage to being the leading local provider of digital marketing services, through Propel.

Pursue Strategic Accretive Acquisitions. We intend to capitalize on the highly fragmented and distressed local print
industries which have greatly reduced valuation levels. We initially expect to focus our investments primarily in the
local newspaper sector in small to mid-size markets. We believe we have a strong operational platform as well as a
scalable digital marketing services business, Propel. This platform, along with deep industry specific knowledge and
experience that our management team has can be leveraged to reduce costs, stabilize the core business and grow
digital revenues at acquired properties. The size and fragmentation of the addressable print media market place in the
United States, the greatly reduced valuation levels that exist in these industries, and our deep experience make this an
attractive place for our initial consolidation focus and capital allocation. Over the longer term we also believe there
may be opportunity to diversify and acquire these types of assets internationally, as well as other traditional local
media assets such as broadcast TV, out of home advertising (billboards) and radio, in the United States and
internationally. We also believe there may be opportunities to acquire other strong businesses that have local sales
force and SMB customer relationships or digital product companies, both of which could quickly scale for Propel.

Stabilize Our Core Business Operations. We have four primary drivers in our strategic plans to stabilize our core
business operations, including: (i) identifying permanent structural expense reductions in our traditional business cost
infrastructure and re-deploying a portion of those costs toward future growth opportunities, primarily on the digital
side of our business; (ii) accelerating the growth of both our digital audiences and revenues through improvements to
current products, new product development, training, opportunistic changes in hiring to create an employee base with
a more diversified skill set and sharing of best practices; (iii) accelerating our consumer revenue growth through
subscription pricing increases, pay meters for digital content and growth in our overall subscriber base; and
(iv) stabilizing our core print advertising revenues through improvements to pricing, packaging of products for
customers that will produce the best results for them, and more technology and training for sales management and
sales representatives.

The newspaper industry has experienced declining revenue and profitability over the past several years due to, among
other things, advertisers� shift from print to digital media following the consumer shift, and general market conditions.
GateHouse, our Predecessor, was affected by this trend and experienced net losses of $160.8 million during the nine
month period ended September 29, 2013 and $29.8 million during the fiscal year ended December 30, 2012. Total
revenue decreased by 1.9% to $356.2 million for the nine months ended September 29, 2013 and 5.1% to $488.6
million for the year ended December 30, 2012. The Restructuring significantly reduced New Media�s interest expense.
In addition, New Media intends to focus its business strategy on building its digital marketing business and growing
its online advertising business, which we believe will offset some of the challenges experienced by GateHouse. With
its improved capital structure and digital focus, combined with its strengths and strategy and dividend strategy, we
believe that New Media will be able to grow stockholder value. However, there can be no assurance of this. See �Risk
Factors.�

Challenges

We will likely face challenges commonly encountered by recently reorganized entities, including the risk that even
under our improved capital structure, we may not be profitable.
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As a publisher of locally based print and online media, we face a number of additional challenges, including the risks
that:

� the growing shift within the publishing industry from traditional print media to digital forms of publication
may compromise our ability to generate sufficient advertising revenues;

� investments in growing our digital business may not be successful, which could adversely affect our results
of operations;

� our advertising and circulation revenues may decline if we are unable to compete effectively with other
companies in the local media industry; and

� we may not be able to successfully acquire local print media assets at attractive valuations due to a rise in
valuations from a more competitive landscape of acquirors.

For more information about New Media�s risks and challenges, see �Risk Factors.�

Our Manager and Management Agreement

We are managed by FIG LLC (our �Manager�), an affiliate of Fortress (as defined below), pursuant to the terms of a
Management and Advisory Agreement, dated as of November 26, 2013, as amended and restated (the �Management
Agreement�), between us and our Manager. The terms of our Management Agreement are described in more detail
under �Our Manager and Management Agreement� elsewhere in this Prospectus.

Recent Developments

Acquisitions

On December 1, 2014, New Media completed the acquisition of Foster�s Daily Democrat along with other
publications and related assets for $5.4 million in cash, including estimated working capital, from the Foster family.
The publications are located around Dover, NH, and the daily newspaper has a circulation of approximately 12,000.

On January 9, 2015, a wholly owned subsidiary New Media completed the acquisition of certain print and digital
assets from Halifax Media Group, LLC (�Halifax Media�) and the other sellers party to the definitive asset purchase
agreement dated November 20, 2014, as amended on January 9, 2015, with Halifax Media and the other sellers party
thereto, for a purchase price of $280.0 million, including assumed debt, subject to working capital adjustments (the
�Halifax Acquisition�). Halifax Media publishes 36 newspapers, including 24 dailies, and affiliated websites, and has a
total daily circulation of approximately 635,000 and 752,000 on Sunday.

The Company financed the Halifax Acquisition with a combination of cash on hand, debt financing from the proceeds
of incremental loans under the New Media Credit Agreement and the assumption of debt from Halifax Media. The
transaction closed on January 9, 2015.

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 17



For more information regarding the Halifax Acquisition, see New Media�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
January 12, 2015 and incorporated herein by reference.

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement

On November 20, 2014, the New Media Credit Agreement was amended to increase the amount available thereunder
for incremental term loans to facilitate the financing of the Halifax Acquisition.
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Third Amendment to Credit Agreement

On January 9, 2015, the New Media Credit Agreement was amended to provide for additional term loans and
revolving commitments under the Incremental Facility (as defined below) in a combined aggregate principal amount
of $152 million and to make certain amendments to the Revolving Credit Facility (as defined below).

For more information regarding the third amendment to the New Media Credit Agreement, see New Media�s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed on January 12, 2015 and incorporated herein by reference.

Risk Factors

Our business is subject to various risks. For a description of these risks, see the section entitled �Risk Factors� beginning
on page 15, the other information included elsewhere in this Prospectus or incorporated herein by reference.

Corporate Information

Our principal executive offices are located at 1345 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York, 10105. Our
telephone number is 212-479-3160 and our website is http://www.newmediainv.com/. Nothing on our website is
included or incorporated by reference herein.

6
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Corporate Entity Structure

The chart below sets forth our entity structure and that of our direct and indirect subsidiaries. This chart does not
include all of our affiliates and subsidiaries.

7
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The Offering

Common stock we are offering 7,000,000 shares.

Common stock to be issued and outstanding
after this offering

44,466,495 shares (45,501,614 shares if the underwriters exercise their
option to purchase additional shares in full).

Underwriters� option to purchase
additional shares

We have granted the underwriters a 30-day option to purchase up to
1,035,119 additional shares of our Common Stock at the public offering
price, less underwriting discounts and commission.

Use of proceeds We estimate that the net proceeds to us from this offering, after
deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated
offering expenses payable by us and giving effect to the sale of shares of
our Common Stock to certain of our officers and directors and an officer
of our Manager that will not be subject to underwriting discounts or
commissions, will be approximately $155.4 million, assuming a public
offering price of $22.42 per share (the closing sales price of our Common
Stock on the NYSE on January 12, 2015), or $178.5 million if the
underwriters exercise their option to purchase additional shares of
Common Stock in full. We intend to use the proceeds from this offering
for working capital and other general corporate purposes, which may
include potential investments in, and acquisitions of, local media
businesses and assets and the repayment of our senior secured
indebtedness. Presently, we have no agreements with any potential
acquisition parties as to which funding would be required. We have not
yet determined the amount of net proceeds to be used specifically for any
of the foregoing purposes. Accordingly, management will have broad
discretion over the use of the net proceeds to us from this offering and
investors will be relying on the judgment of our management regarding
the application of these proceeds. Pending their use, we plan to invest the
net proceeds to us from this offering in short term, interest bearing
obligations, investment grade instruments, certificates of deposit or direct
or guaranteed obligations of the U.S. government. See �Use of Proceeds.�

Dividend Policy We currently intend to distribute a substantial portion of our free cash
flow as a dividend to stockholders, through a quarterly dividend, subject
to satisfactory financial performance, approval by the Board of Directors
and dividend restrictions in the New Media Credit Agreement. The
Board of Directors� determinations regarding dividends will depend on a
variety of factors, including the Company�s GAAP net income, free cash
flow generated from operations or other sources, liquidity position and
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can be no assurance regarding whether we will pay dividends in the
future. See, for example, �Risk Factors�Risks Related to Our Business�We
may not be able to pay dividends in accordance with our announced
intent or at all.�

Listing Our shares are listed on the NYSE under the symbol �NEWM�.

Risk Factors See �Risk Factors� in this Prospectus for a discussion of factors you should
carefully consider before deciding to invest in our Common Stock.

Tax Considerations See �Certain U.S. Federal Income and Estate Tax Considerations for
Non-U.S. Holders of Our Common Stock� for more information regarding
tax considerations.

Except as otherwise indicated, all information in this Prospectus assumes no exercise by the underwriters of their
option to purchase an additional 1,035,119 shares of Common Stock from us.

The number of shares of our Common Stock that will be outstanding after this offering is based on 37,466,495 shares
of our Common Stock outstanding as of September 28, 2014, which excludes options to purchase 700,000 shares of
our Common Stock, representing 10% of the number of shares being offered by us hereby, that will be granted to an
affiliate of our Manager in connection with this offering and options to purchase 745,062 shares of our Common
Stock granted to an affiliate of our Manager on September 23, 2014, in each case pursuant to our Incentive Plan (as
defined below) and subject to adjustment if the underwriters exercise their option to purchase additional shares of our
Common Stock.

9
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Summary Historical Consolidated and Pro Forma Financial Data

The summary consolidated statement of operations data for New Media for the two months ended December 29, 2013,
for GateHouse for the ten months ended November 6, 2013 (collectively, the �combined year ended December 29,
2013�) and for GateHouse for the year ended December 30, 2012 and the year ended January 1, 2012 and the summary
consolidated balance sheet data for New Media as of December 29, 2013 and for GateHouse as of December 30, 2012
have been derived from the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of New Media and GateHouse, our
Predecessor, included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2013 and
incorporated by reference herein. The summary consolidated balance sheet data for GateHouse as of January 1, 2012
has been derived from GateHouse�s audited financial statements not included in this Prospectus. The summary
financial data as of and for the combined year ended December 29, 2013, ten months ended November 6, 2013 and the
years ended December 30, 2012 and January 1, 2012, have been revised to reflect one of GateHouse�s publications as a
discontinued operation for comparability.

The summary condensed consolidated statement of operations data for New Media for the nine months ended
September 28, 2014 and for GateHouse for the nine months ended September 29, 2013 and the summary condensed
consolidated balance sheet data for New Media as of September 28, 2014 have been derived from the Unaudited
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of New Media and GateHouse, our Predecessor, included in our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 28, 2014 and incorporated by reference herein. The
summary consolidated balance sheet data for GateHouse as of September 29, 2013 has been derived from GateHouse�s
unaudited financial statements not included in this Prospectus.

Operating results for the ten months ended November 6, 2013 included the impact of GateHouse�s emergence from
bankruptcy and adoption of fresh start accounting. As a result of the execution of the restructuring support agreement,
in which GateHouse, the Administrative Agent (as defined below), Newcastle Investment Corp. (�Newcastle�) and other
lenders under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by and among certain affiliates of our Predecessor, the
lenders from time to time party thereto and Cortland Products Corp., as administrative agent (the �Administrative
Agent�), dated February 27, 2007 (the �2007 Credit Facility�) agreed to support the Restructuring pursuant to the
consummation of the Plan, all debt, including derivative liabilities and deferred financing assets, was eliminated. This
resulted in a significant reduction in our interest expense and the elimination of the gain (loss) on derivative
instruments and deferred financing amortization. The adoption of fresh start accounting led to changes in the basis of
our property, plant and equipment and intangible assets that will impact future depreciation and amortization expense
levels. Other significant changes to our financial information include that we expect to become subject to federal and
state income taxation and to pay fees to our Manager (as defined below). The impact of these changes is discussed in
greater detail within the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information section of this Prospectus.
The data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements, Unaudited Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements, related notes and other financial information included in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2013 and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 28, 2014, which are incorporated by reference herein.

The following selected unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the nine months ended
September 28, 2014 and for the year ended December 29, 2013 gives effect to the Pro Forma Transactions (as defined
below) as if the Pro Forma Transactions had occurred or had become effective as of December 31, 2012 (beginning of
our fiscal year 2013). The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of September 28, 2014 gives
effect to the Pro Forma Transactions as if they had occurred on September 28, 2014. The unaudited pro forma
condensed combined financial information excludes the effects of this offering.
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Financial Information,� �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,� New
Media�s historical financial statements and related notes thereto, including Predecessor GateHouse�s historical
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, Local Media�s historical combined financial statements and notes
thereto, The Providence Journal Company�s (�Providence Journal�) historical consolidated financial statements and notes
thereto and Halifax Media�s historical consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, each included elsewhere in
this Prospectus or incorporated by reference herein from our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 29, 2013 and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 28, 2014. In addition, the
historical consolidated financial statements of GateHouse, our Predecessor, are not comparable following its
emergence from Chapter 11 due to the effects of the consummation of the Plan, as well as adjustments for fresh start
accounting. All tables are presented in thousands unless otherwise noted.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been prepared to reflect adjustments to our
historical consolidated financial information that are (i) directly attributable to the Pro Forma Transactions,
(ii) factually supportable and (iii) with respect to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of
operations, expected to have a continuing impact on our results.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information reflects the following (collectively, the �Pro
Forma Transactions� or the �Pro Forma Adjustments�):

� commencing from the date of �regular-way� trading of New Media Common Stock on a major U.S. national
securities exchange (the �Listing�), New Media�s management and incentive fee payable to the Manager by us;

� adoption of fresh start accounting by GateHouse in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification
(�ASC�) Topic 852, �Reorganizations,� (�ASC 852�) upon confirmation of the plan of reorganization;

� cancellation of our Predecessor�s 2007 Credit Facility and related interest rate swaps in exchange for New
Media Common Stock pursuant to the Plan and entry into the GateHouse Credit Facilities (as defined
below);

� impact of Local Media purchase accounting adjustments, in accordance with ASC Topic 805, �Business
Combinations,� as a result of GateHouse consolidation of Local Media Group, Inc. (�Local Media�) beginning
on September 3, 2013 and Newcastle�s contribution of 100% common stock of Local Media Group Holdings
LLC (�Local Media Parent�) (the �Local Media Contribution�) to New Media in exchange for New Media
Common Stock pursuant to the Plan;

� payment of GateHouse Credit Facilities and Local Media Credit Facility (as defined below) in full and
entering into the New Media Credit Agreement; and

� impact of Providence Journal and Halifax Media purchase accounting adjustments, in accordance with ASC
Topic 805, �Business Combinations� (�ASC 805�), and the incremental financing under the New Media Credit
Agreement in connection with these acquisitions.
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Successor Company
Predecessor
Company Combined

Successor
Company Predecessor Company

Nine Months
Ended

September 28,
2014

Nine
Months
Ended

September 28,
2014

Nine Months
Ended

September 29,
2013

Year Ended
December 29,

2013

Two
Months
Ended

December 29,
2013

Ten
Months
Ended

November 6,
2013

Year
Ended

December 30,
2012(2)

Year
Ended

January 1,
2012

Pro
Forma Historical Historical

Pro
Forma Historical Historical Historical Historical

(in thousands,
except per
share data)
Statement of
Operations
Data:
Revenues:
Advertising $ 454,051 $ 275,220 $ 229,569 $ 630,881 $ 63,340 $ 265,078 $ 330,881 $ 357,134
Circulation 239,336 140,274 102,370 310,591 29,525 118,810 131,576 131,879
Commercial
printing and
other 80,653 50,033 24,233 96,974 10,366 29,402 26,097 25,657

Total revenues 774,040 465,527 356,172 1,038,446 103,231 413,290 488,554 514,670
Operating costs
and expenses:
Operating costs 415,752 266,540 200,824 543,657 56,614 232,066 268,222 281,884
Selling, general
and
administrative 273,974 156,241 121,254 355,391 28,749 136,832 145,020 146,295
Depreciation
and
amortization 48,146 30,822 30,383 63,215 6,588 33,409 39,888 42,426
Integration and
reorganization
costs 1,970 1,970 1,380 3,335 1,758 1,577 4,393 5,884
Impairment of
long-lived
assets �  91,599 135,571 �  91,599 �  1,733
Loss (gain) on
sale of assets 1,092 1,074 1,052 1,375 27 1,163 1,238 455
Goodwill and
mastheads
impairment �  �  �  �  �  �  �  385

Operating
income (loss) 33,106 8,880 (90,320) (64,098) 9,495 (83,356) 29,793 35,608
Interest
expense,

23,903 21,845 81,178 32,495 1,798 (871,399) 57,463 58,361
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amortization of
deferred
financing costs,
gain on early
extinguishment
of debt, (gain)
loss on
derivative
instruments,
reorganization
items, net, and
other

Income ( loss)
from continuing
operations
before income
taxes 9,203 (12,965) (171,498) (96,593) 7,697 788,043 (27,670) (22,753) 
Income tax
expense
(benefit) 3,602 1,703 (10,878) (37,816) 491 (197) (207) (1,803) 

Income (loss)
from continuing
operations 5,601 (14,668) (160,620) (58,777) 7,206 788,240 (27,463) (20,950) 
Loss from
discontinued
operations, net
of income taxes N/A �  (1,034) N/A �  (1,034) (2,340) (699) 

Net income
(loss) 5,601 (14,668) (161,654) (58,777) 7,206 787,206 (29,803) (21,649) 
Net loss
attributable to
noncontrolling
interest N/A �  865 N/A �  208 �  �  

Net income
(loss)
attributable to
New Media $ 5,601 $ (14,668) $ (160,789) $ (58,777) $ 7,206 $ 787,414 $ (29,803) $ (21,649) 

Basic net
income (loss)
from continuing
operations
attributable to
New Media per
share $ 0.19 $ (0.49) $ (2.75) $ (1.95) $ 0.24 $ 13.58 $ (0.47) $ (0.36) 
Diluted income
(loss) from

$ 0.18 $ (0.49) $ (2.75) $ (1.95) $ 0.24 $ 13.58 $ (0.47) $ (0.36) 
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continuing
operations
attributable to
New Media per
share
Basic net
income (loss)
attributable to
New Media
common
stockholders
per share $ 0.19 $ (0.49) $ (2.77) $ (1.95) $ 0.24 $ 13.56 $ (0.51) $ (0.37) 
Diluted net
income (loss)
attributable to
New Media
common
stockholders
per share $ 0.18 $ (0.49) $ (2.77) $ (1.95) $ 0.24 $ 13.56 $ (0.51) $ (0.37) 
Other Data:
Adjusted
EBITDA(1) N/A $ 39,864 $ 20,814 N/A $ 16,096 $ 988,265 $ 69,766 $ 80,547
Cash interest
paid N/A $ 10,920 $ 43,400 N/A $ 925 $ 43,606 $ 55,976 $ 58,225
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(1) We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) from continuing operations before income tax expense
(benefit), interest/financing expense, depreciation and amortization and non-cash impairments. Adjusted EBITDA
is not a measurement of financial performance under GAAP and should not be considered in isolation or as an
alternative to income from operations, net income (loss), cash flow from continuing operating activities or any
other measure of performance or liquidity derived in accordance with GAAP. We believe this non-GAAP
measure, as we have defined it, is helpful in identifying trends in our day-to-day performance because the items
excluded have little or no significance in our day-to-day operations. This measure provides an assessment of
controllable expenses and affords management the ability to make decisions which are expected to facilitate
meeting current financial goals as well as achieve optimal financial performance. Adjusted EBITDA provides an
indicator for management to determine if adjustments to current spending decisions are needed.

Adjusted EBITDA provides us with a measure of financial performance, independent of items that are beyond the
control of management in the short-term, such as depreciation and amortization, taxation and interest expense
associated with our capital structure. This metric measures our financial performance based on operational factors that
management can impact in the short-term, namely our cost structure or expenses of the organization. Adjusted
EBITDA is one of the metrics used by senior management and the board of directors to review the financial
performance of our business on a monthly basis.

Not all companies calculate Adjusted EBITDA using the same methods; therefore, the Adjusted EBITDA figures set
forth herein may not be comparable to Adjusted EBITDA reported by other companies. A substantial portion of our
Adjusted EBITDA must be dedicated to the payment of interest on our outstanding indebtedness and to service other
commitments, thereby reducing the funds available to us for other purposes. Accordingly, Adjusted EBITDA does not
represent an amount of funds that is available for management�s discretionary use. See �Management�s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations�Adjusted EBITDA� in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the period ended September 28, 2014, incorporated by reference herein.

(2) The year ended December 30, 2012 included a 53rd week of operations for approximately 60% of the business.

13
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The table below shows the reconciliation of income (loss) from continuing operations to Adjusted EBITDA for the
periods presented:

Successor
Company

Predecessor
Company

Successor
Company Predecessor Company

Nine Months
Ended

September 28,
2014

Nine Months
Ended

September 29,
2013

Two
Months Ended
December 29,

2013

Ten
Months Ended
November 6,

2013

Year Ended
December 30,

2012(3)

Year Ended
January 1,

2012
(in thousands) Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical
Loss (income) from
continuing operations $ (14,668) $ (160,620) $ 7,206 $ 788,240 $ (27,463) $ (20,950) 
Income tax expense
(benefit) 1,703 (10,878) 491 (197) (207) (1,803) 
Loss (gain) on derivative
instruments(1) 51 14 �  14 (1,635) (913) 
Gain on early
extinguishment of debt(2) 9,047 �  �  �  �  �  
Amortization of deferred
financing costs 903 803 171 842 1,255 1,360
Write-off of financing
costs �  �  �  �  �  �  
Interest expense 12,006 69,513 1,640 74,358 57,928 58,309
Impairment of long-lived
assets �  91,599 �  91,599 �  1,733
Depreciation and
amortization 30,822 30,383 6,588 33,409 39,888 42,426
Goodwill and mastheads
impairment �  �  �  �  �  385

Adjusted EBITDA from
continuing operations $ 39,864(a) $ 20,814(b) $ 16,096(c) $ 988,265(d) $ 69,766(e) $ 80,547(f)

(a) Adjusted EBITDA for the nine months ended September 28, 2014 included net expenses of $15,218 related to
non-cash compensation, transaction and project costs, and other expense of $12,174, integration and
reorganization costs of $1,970 and a $1,074 loss on the sale of assets.

(b) Adjusted EBITDA for the nine months ended September 29, 2013 included net expenses of $25,036, related to
non-cash compensation, transaction and project costs, and other expense of $22,604, integration and
reorganization costs of $1,380 and a $1,053 loss on the sale of assets.

Adjusted EBITDA also does not include $123 of EBITDA generated from our discontinued operations.
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(c) Adjusted EBITDA for the two months ended December 29, 2013 included net expenses of $4,828, which are one
time in nature or non-cash compensation. Included in these net expenses of $4,828 are non-cash compensation and
other expenses of $3,043, integration and reorganization costs of $1,758 and a $27 loss on the sale of assets.

(d) Adjusted EBITDA for the ten months ended November 6, 2013 included net income of $(930,229), which are one
time in nature or non-cash compensation. Included in these net expenses of $(930,229) are non-cash compensation
and other expenses of $(932,969), integration and reorganization costs of $1,577 and a $1,163 loss on the sale of
assets.

Adjusted EBITDA also does not include $123 of EBITDA generated from our discontinued operations.

(e) Adjusted EBITDA for the year ended December 30, 2012 included net expenses of $11,264, which are one time in
nature or non-cash compensation. Included in these net expenses of $11,264 are non-cash compensation and other
expenses of $5,378, integration and reorganization costs of $4,393 and a $1,238 loss on the sale of assets.

Adjusted EBITDA also does not include $255 of EBITDA generated from our discontinued operations.

(f) Adjusted EBITDA for the year ended January 1, 2012 included net expenses of $10,565, which are one time in
nature or non-cash compensation. Included in these net expenses of $10,565 are non-cash compensation and other
expenses of $4,226, integration and reorganization costs of $5,884 and a $455 loss on the sale of assets.

Adjusted EBITDA also does not include $432 of EBITDA generated from our discontinued operations.
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(1) Non-cash (gain) loss on derivative instruments is related to interest rate swap agreements which are financing
related and are excluded from Adjusted EBITDA.

(2) Non-cash write-off of deferred financing costs are similar to interest expense and amortization of financing fees
and are excluded from Adjusted EBITDA.

(3) The year ended December 30, 2012 included a 53rd week of operations for approximately 60% of the business.

As of

Successor Company
Predecessor
Company

Successor
Company Predecessor Company

September 28,
2014

September 28,
2014

September 29,
2013

December 29,
2013

December 30,
2012

January 1,
2012

(in thousands) Pro Forma Historical Historical Historical Historical Historical

Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $ 1,044,937 $ 830,045 $ 426,975 $ 689,953 $ 469,766 $ 510,802
Total long-term
obligations, including
current maturities 408,998 237,925 36,341 187,119 1,177,298 1,185,212
Stockholders� equity
(deficit) 487,480 487,480 (902,362) 395,362 (834,159) (805,632) 
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RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following risks and other information in this Prospectus and the documents
incorporated by reference herein, including our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29,
2013, our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the periods ended March 30, 2014, June 29, 2014 and September 28,
2014 and our consolidated financial statements, and the related notes thereto, in evaluating us and our Common
Stock. Any of the following risks could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial
condition or liquidity, in which case, the trading price of our Common Stock could decline and you could lose all or
part of your investment. The risk factors generally have been separated into the following groups: Risks Related to
Our Business, Risks Related to Our Manager, and Risks Related to Our Common Stock.

Risks Related to Our Business

We depend to a great extent on the economies and the demographics of the local communities that we serve, and
we are also susceptible to general economic downturns, which have had, and could continue to have, a material
and adverse impact on our advertising and circulation revenues and on our profitability.

Our advertising revenues and, to a lesser extent, circulation revenues, depend upon a variety of factors specific to the
communities that our publications serve. These factors include, among others, the size and demographic
characteristics of the local population, local economic conditions in general and the economic condition of the retail
segments of the communities that our publications serve. If the local economy, population or prevailing retail
environment of a community we serve experiences a downturn, our publications, revenues and profitability in that
market could be adversely affected. Our advertising revenues are also susceptible to negative trends in the general
economy, like the economic downturn recently experienced, that affect consumer spending. The advertisers in our
newspapers and other publications and related websites are primarily retail businesses that can be significantly
affected by regional or national economic downturns and other developments. Continuing or deepening softness in the
U.S. economy could also significantly affect key advertising revenue categories, such as help wanted, real estate and
automotive.

Uncertainty and adverse changes in the general economic conditions of markets in which we participate may
negatively affect our business.

Current and future conditions in the economy have an inherent degree of uncertainty. As a result, it is difficult to
estimate the level of growth or contraction for the economy as a whole. It is even more difficult to estimate growth or
contraction in various parts, sectors and regions of the economy, including the markets in which we participate.
Adverse changes may occur as a result of weak global economic conditions, rising oil prices, wavering consumer
confidence, unemployment, declines in stock markets, contraction of credit availability, declines in real estate values,
or other factors affecting economic conditions in general. These changes may negatively affect the sales of our
products, increase exposure to losses from bad debts, increase the cost and decrease the availability of financing, or
increase costs associated with publishing and distributing our publications.

Our ability to generate revenues is correlated with the economic conditions of two geographic regions of the United
States.

Our Company primarily generates revenue in two geographic regions: the Northeast and the Midwest. For the nine
months ended September 28, 2014, approximately 38% of our total revenues were generated in two states in the
Northeast: Massachusetts and New York. During the same period, approximately 27% of our total revenues were
generated in two states in the Midwest: Illinois and Ohio. As a result of this geographic concentration, our financial
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market areas. Accordingly, adverse economic developments within these two regions in particular could significantly
affect our consolidated operations and financial results.
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Our indebtedness and any future indebtedness may limit our financial and operating activities and our ability to
incur additional debt to fund future needs or dividends.

As of September 28, 2014, New Media�s outstanding indebtedness consists of a credit agreement, entered into on
June 4, 2014 (the �New Media Credit Agreement�) by and among New Media Holdings II LLC (the �New Media
Borrower�), a wholly owned subsidiary of New Media, New Media Holdings I LLC (�Holdings I�), the lenders party
thereto, RBS Citizens, N.A. and Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC as joint lead arrangers and joint bookrunners,
Credit Suisse AG, Cayman Islands Branch as syndication agent and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania as administration
agent. The New Media Credit Agreement provides for (i) a $200 million senior secured term facility (the �Term Loan
Facility�) and (ii) a $25 million senior secured revolving credit facility, with a $5 million sub-facility for letters of
credit and a $5 million sub-facility for swing loans (the �Revolving Credit Facility�). In addition, the New Media
Borrower may request one or more new commitments for term loans or revolving loans from time to time up to an
aggregate total of $75 million, subject to certain conditions (the �Incremental Facility�). On September 3, 2014, the New
Media Credit Agreement was amended to provide for additional term loans under the Incremental Facility in an
aggregate principal amount of $25 million. On November 20, 2014, the New Media Credit Agreement was further
amended to increase the amount available thereunder for incremental term loans to facilitate the financing of the
Halifax Acquisition. On January 9, 2015, the New Media Credit Agreement was amended to provide for additional
term loans and revolving commitments under the Incremental Facility in a combined aggregate principal amount of
$152 million and to make certain amendments to the Revolving Credit Facility.

This indebtedness and any future indebtedness we incur could:

� require us to dedicate a portion of cash flow from operations to the payment of principal and interest on
indebtedness, including indebtedness we may incur in the future, thereby reducing the funds available for
other purposes, including dividends or other distributions;

� subject us to increased sensitivity to increases in prevailing interest rates;

� place us at a competitive disadvantage to competitors with relatively less debt in economic downturns,
adverse industry conditions or catastrophic external events; or

� reduce our flexibility in planning for or responding to changing business, industry and economic conditions.
In addition, our indebtedness could limit our ability to obtain additional financing on acceptable terms or at all to fund
future acquisitions, working capital, capital expenditures, debt service requirements, general corporate and other
purposes, which would have a material effect on our business and financial condition. Our liquidity needs could vary
significantly and may be affected by general economic conditions, industry trends, performance and many other
factors not within our control.

The New Media Credit Agreement contains covenants that restrict our operations and may inhibit our ability to
grow our business, increase revenues and pay dividends to our stockholders.

The New Media Credit Agreement contains various restrictions, covenants and representations and warranties. If we
fail to comply with any of these covenants or breach these representations or warranties in any material respect, such
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noncompliance would constitute a default under the New Media Credit Agreement (subject to applicable cure
periods), and the lenders could elect to declare all amounts outstanding under the agreements related thereto to be
immediately due and payable and enforce their respective interests against collateral pledged under such agreements.

The covenants and restrictions in the New Media Credit Agreement generally restrict our ability to, among other
things:

� incur or guarantee additional debt;

� make certain investments, loans or acquisitions;
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� transfer or sell assets;

� make distributions on capital stock or redeem or repurchase capital stock;

� create or incur liens;

� enter into transactions with affiliates;

� consolidate, merge or sell all or substantially all of our assets; and

� create restrictions on the payment of dividends or other amounts to us from our restricted subsidiaries.
The restrictions described above may interfere with our ability to obtain new or additional financing or may affect the
manner in which we structure such new or additional financing or engage in other business activities, which may
significantly limit or harm our results of operations, financial condition and liquidity. A default and any resulting
acceleration of obligations could also result in an event of default and declaration of acceleration under our other
existing debt agreements. Such an acceleration of our debt would have a material adverse effect on our liquidity and
our ability to continue as a going concern. A default could also significantly limit our alternatives to refinance both the
debt under which the default occurred and other indebtedness. This limitation may significantly restrict our financing
options during times of either market distress or our financial distress, which are precisely the times when having
financing options is most important. For more information regarding the covenants and requirements discussed above,
see �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations�Liquidity and Capital
Resources�New Media Credit Agreement� in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 28,
2014, incorporated by reference herein.

We may not generate a sufficient amount of cash or generate sufficient funds from operations to fund our
operations, pay dividends or repay our indebtedness.

Our ability to make payments on our indebtedness as required depends on our ability to generate cash flow from
operations in the future. This ability, to a certain extent, is subject to general economic, financial, competitive,
legislative, regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control.

If we do not generate sufficient cash flow from operations to satisfy our debt obligations, including interest payments
and the payment of principal at maturity, we may have to undertake alternative financing plans, such as refinancing or
restructuring our debt, selling assets, reducing or delaying capital investments or seeking to raise additional capital.
We cannot provide assurance that any refinancing would be possible, that any assets could be sold, or, if sold, of the
timeliness and amount of proceeds realized from those sales, that additional financing could be obtained on acceptable
terms, if at all, or that additional financing would be permitted under the terms of our various debt instruments then in
effect. Furthermore, our ability to refinance would depend upon the condition of the finance and credit markets. Our
inability to generate sufficient cash flow to satisfy our debt obligations, or to refinance our obligations on
commercially reasonable terms or on a timely basis, would materially affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

We may not be able to pay dividends in accordance with our announced intent or at all.
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We have announced our intent to distribute a substantial portion of our free cash flow as a dividend to our
stockholders, through a quarterly dividend, subject to satisfactory financial performance, approval by our Board of
Directors and dividend restrictions in the New Media Credit Agreement. The Board of Directors� determinations
regarding dividends will depend on a variety of factors, including the Company�s GAAP net income, free cash flow
generated from operations or other sources, liquidity position and potential alternative uses of cash, such as
acquisitions, as well as economic conditions and expected future financial results. Although we recently paid a third
quarter 2014 cash dividend of $0.27 per share of Common Stock, there can be no guarantee that we will continue to
pay dividends in the future or that this recent dividend is representative of the amount of any future dividends. Our
ability to declare future dividends will depend on our future financial performance, which in turn depends on the
successful implementation of our strategy and on financial, competitive, regulatory, technical and other factors,
general economic conditions, demand and selling prices for
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our products and other factors specific to our industry or specific projects, many of which are beyond our control.
Therefore, our ability to generate free cash flow depends on the performance of our operations and could be limited by
decreases in our profitability or increases in costs, capital expenditures or debt servicing requirements.

Our Predecessor suspended the payments of dividends commencing with the second quarter of 2008. We own
substantially all of our Predecessor�s assets, and our Predecessor experienced revenue and cash flow declines in the
past. In addition, we may acquire additional companies with declining cash flow as part of a strategy aimed at
stabilizing cash flow through expense reduction and digital expansion. If our strategy is not successful, we may not be
able to pay dividends.

As a holding company, we are also dependent on our subsidiaries being able to pay dividends to us. Our subsidiaries
are subject to restrictions on the ability to pay dividends under the various instruments governing their indebtedness. If
our subsidiaries incur additional debt or losses, such additional indebtedness or loss may further impair their ability to
pay dividends or make other distributions to us. In addition, our ability to pay dividends will be substantially affected
by the ability of our subsidiaries to provide cash to us. The ability of our subsidiaries to declare and pay dividends to
us will also be dependent on their cash income and cash available and may be restricted under applicable law or
regulation. Under Delaware law, approval of the board of directors is required to approve any dividend, which may
only be paid out of surplus or net profit for the applicable fiscal year. We may not be able to pay dividends in
accordance with our announced intent or at all.

The collectability of accounts receivable under adverse economic conditions could deteriorate to a greater extent
than provided for in our financial statements and in our projections of future results.

Adverse economic conditions in the United States have increased our exposure to losses resulting from financial
distress, insolvency and the potential bankruptcy of our advertising customers. Our accounts receivable are stated at
net estimated realizable value and our allowance for doubtful accounts has been determined based on several factors,
including receivable agings, significant individual credit risk accounts and historical experience. If such collectability
estimates prove inaccurate, adjustments to future operating results could occur.

Our Predecessor experienced declines in its credit ratings, and filed a voluntary petition to reorganize under
Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, which could adversely affect our ability to obtain new financing to fund
our operations and strategic initiatives or to refinance our existing debt at attractive rates.

During 2008, GateHouse�s credit rating was downgraded to below investment grade by both Standard & Poor�s and
Moody�s Investors Service. GateHouse�s credit rating was further downgraded in 2009 and 2010. Furthermore, on
September 27, 2013, GateHouse filed a voluntary petition to reorganize under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy
Code (and emerged from Chapter 11 protection on November 26, 2013). These downgrades and events may
negatively affect our cost of financing and subject us to more restrictive covenants than those that might otherwise
apply. As a result, our financing options may be limited. Any future downgrades in our credit ratings could further
increase our borrowing costs, subject us to more onerous terms and reduce or eliminate our borrowing flexibility in
the future. Such limitations on our financing options may adversely affect our ability to refinance existing debt and
incur new debt to fund our operations and strategic initiatives.

If there is a significant increase in the price of newsprint or a reduction in the availability of newsprint, our results
of operations and financial condition may suffer.

The basic raw material for our publications is newsprint. We generally maintain only a 45 to 55-day inventory of
newsprint, although our participation in a newsprint-buying consortium has helped ensure adequate supply. An
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inability to obtain an adequate supply of newsprint at a favorable price or at all in the future could have a material
adverse effect on our ability to produce our publications. Historically, the price of newsprint has been volatile,
reaching a high of approximately $826 per metric ton in 2008 and experiencing a low of almost $440 per metric ton in
2002. The average price of newsprint for 2013 was approximately $643 per metric ton.
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Recent and future consolidation of major newsprint suppliers may adversely affect price competition among suppliers.
Significant increases in newsprint costs for properties and periods not covered by our newsprint vendor agreement
could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Our Predecessor experienced declines in advertising revenue, and further declines, which could adversely affect
our results of operations and financial condition, may occur.

Our Predecessor experienced declines in advertising revenue over the past few years, due primarily to the economic
recession and advertisers� shift from print to digital media. Advertising revenue decreased by $26.2 million, or 7.4%,
in the year ended December 30, 2012, as compared to the year ended January 1, 2012. Advertising revenue decreased
by $29.6 million, or 9.0%, in the year ended December 29, 2013, as compared to the year ended December 30, 2012
for total company excluding Local Media. We continue to search for organic growth opportunities, including in our
digital advertising business, and for ways to stabilize print revenue declines through new product launches and
pricing. However, there can be no assurance that our advertising revenue will not continue to decline. Further declines
in advertising revenue could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

We compete with a large number of companies in the local media industry; if we are unable to compete effectively,
our advertising and circulation revenues may decline.

Our business is concentrated in newspapers and other print publications located primarily in small and midsize
markets in the United States. Our revenues primarily consist of advertising and paid circulation. Competition for
advertising revenues and paid circulation comes from direct mail, directories, radio, television, outdoor advertising,
other newspaper publications, the internet and other media. For example, as the use of the internet and mobile devices
has increased, we have lost some classified advertising and subscribers to online advertising businesses and our free
internet sites that contain abbreviated versions of our publications. Competition for advertising revenues is based
largely upon advertiser results, advertising rates, readership, demographics and circulation levels. Competition for
circulation is based largely upon the content of the publication and its price and editorial quality. Our local and
regional competitors vary from market to market and many of our competitors for advertising revenues are larger and
have greater financial and distribution resources than us. We may incur increased costs competing for advertising
expenditures and paid circulation. We may also experience a decline of circulation or print advertising revenue due to
alternative media, such as the internet. If we are not able to compete effectively for advertising expenditures and paid
circulation, our revenues may decline.

We are undertaking strategic process upgrades that could have a material adverse financial impact if unsuccessful.

We are implementing strategic process upgrades of our business. Among other things we are implementing the
standardization and centralization of systems and processes, the outsourcing of certain financial processes and the use
of new software for our circulation, advertising and editorial systems. As a result of ongoing strategic evaluation and
analysis, we have made and will continue to make changes that, if unsuccessful, could have a material adverse
financial impact.

We have invested in growing our digital business, including Propel, but such investments may not be successful,
which could adversely affect our results of operations.

We continue to evaluate our business and how we intend to grow our digital business. Internal resources and effort are
put towards this business and key partnerships have been entered into to assist with our digital business, including
Propel. We continue to believe that our digital businesses, including Propel, offer opportunities for revenue growth to
support and, in some cases, offset the revenue trends we have seen in our print business. There can be no assurances
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being employed will result in generating or increasing digital revenues in amounts necessary to stabilize or offset
trends in print revenues. In addition, we have a limited history of operations in this area and there can be no
assurances that past performance will be indicative of future performance or future trends. If our digital strategy,
including with regard to Propel, is not as successful as we anticipate, our financial condition, results of operations and
ability to pay dividends could be adversely affected.

If we are unable to retain and grow our digital audience and advertiser base, our digital businesses will be
adversely affected.

Given the ever-growing and rapidly changing number of digital media options available on the internet, we may not
be able to increase our online traffic sufficiently and retain or grow a base of frequent visitors to our websites and
applications on mobile devices.

Accordingly, we may not be able to create sufficient advertiser interest in our digital businesses and to maintain or
increase the advertising rates of the inventory on our websites.

In addition, the ever-growing and rapidly changing number of digital media options available on the internet may lead
to technologies and alternatives that we are not able to offer or about which we are not able to advise. Such
circumstances could directly and adversely affect the availability, applicability, marketability and profitability of the
suite of SMB services and the private ad exchange we offer as a significant part of our digital business.

Technological developments and any changes we make to our business strategy may require significant capital
investments. Such investments may be restricted by our current or future credit facilities.

Our business is subject to seasonal and other fluctuations, which affects our revenues and operating results.

Our business is subject to seasonal fluctuations that we expect to continue to be reflected in our operating results in
future periods. Our first fiscal quarter of the year tends to be our weakest quarter because advertising volume is at its
lowest levels following the December holiday season. Correspondingly, our second and fourth fiscal quarters tend to
be our strongest because they include heavy holiday and seasonal advertising. Other factors that affect our quarterly
revenues and operating results may be beyond our control, including changes in the pricing policies of our
competitors, the hiring and retention of key personnel, wage and cost pressures, distribution costs, changes in
newsprint prices and general economic factors.

We could be adversely affected by declining circulation.

Overall daily newspaper circulation, including national and urban newspapers, has declined in recent years. For the
year ended December 30, 2012, our Predecessor�s circulation revenue decreased by $0.3 million, or 0.2%, as compared
to the year ended January 1, 2012. There can be no assurance that our circulation revenue will not decline again in the
future. Our Predecessor was able to maintain its annual circulation revenue from existing operations in recent years
through, among other things, increases in per copy prices. However, there can be no assurance that we will be able to
continue to increase prices to offset any declines in circulation. Further declines in circulation could impair our ability
to maintain or increase our advertising prices, cause purchasers of advertising in our publications to reduce or
discontinue those purchases and discourage potential new advertising customers, all of which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and ability to pay dividends.

The increasing popularity of digital media could also adversely affect circulation of our newspapers, which may
decrease circulation revenue and cause more marked declines in print advertising. If we are not successful in offsetting
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Our Predecessor had a history of losses and we may not be able to maintain profitable operations in the future.

Our Predecessor experienced losses from continuing operations of approximately $27.5 million and $21.0 million in
2012 and 2011, respectively. Our results of operations in the future will depend on many factors, including our ability
to execute our business strategy and realize efficiencies through our clustering strategy. Our failure to achieve
profitability in the future could adversely affect the trading price of our Common Stock and our ability to pay
dividends and raise additional capital for growth.

The value of our intangible assets may become impaired, depending upon future operating results.

As a result of the Restructuring, which was considered a triggering event for the non-amortizable intangibles, our
Predecessor performed a valuation analysis to determine if an impairment existed as of September 29, 2013. The fair
values of our Predecessor�s reporting units for goodwill and newspaper mastheads were estimated using the expected
present value of future cash flows, recent industry transaction multiples and using estimates, judgments and
assumptions that their management believed were appropriate in the circumstances and were consistent with the terms
of the Plan prepared in the context of the Restructuring. The estimates and judgments used in the assessment included
multiples for revenue and EBITDA, the weighted average cost of capital and the terminal growth rate. Given the
Restructuring, our Predecessor determined that discounted cash flows provided the best estimate of the fair value of its
reporting units. The estimated fair value of the Large Daily reporting unit exceeded its carrying value and Step 2 of
the analysis was not necessary. The Small Community reporting unit failed the Step 1 goodwill impairment analysis.
Our Predecessor performed Step 2 of the analysis using consistent assumptions, as discussed above, and determined
an impairment was not present for this reporting unit. The estimated fair value of each reporting unit�s mastheads
exceeded their carrying values, using consistent assumptions as discussed above. The masthead fair value was
estimated using the relief from royalty valuation method. For further information on goodwill and intangible assets see
Note 8 to New Media�s Consolidated Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 29, 2013, incorporated by reference herein, and Note 6 to New Media�s Unaudited Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements, �Goodwill and Intangible Assets� in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended September 28, 2014, incorporated by reference herein.

Due to reductions in our Predecessor�s operating projections during the third quarter in conjunction with the
Restructuring, an impairment charge of $68.6 million was recognized for advertiser relationships within the
Predecessor�s Metro and Small Community reporting units, an impairment charge of $19.1 million was recognized for
subscriber relationships within the Company�s Metro and Small Community reporting units, an impairment charge of
$2.1 million was recognized for customer relationships within the Company�s Metro reporting unit and an impairment
charge of $1.8 million was recognized for trade names and publication rights within the Ventures business unit. See
Note 19 to New Media�s Consolidated Financial Statements, �Fair Value Measurement� in our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2013, incorporated by reference herein, for further information on our
Predecessor�s impairment charge and its effect on the Company�s financial statements.

Given the recent revaluation of assets related to fresh start accounting, there is a relatively small amount of fair value
excess for certain reporting units as of the second quarter 2014 annual impairment test. Specifically the fair value of
the Large Daily Newspapers, Metro Newspapers and Small Community Newspaper reporting units exceeded carrying
value by less than 10%. In addition, the masthead fair value for these groups exceeded carrying value by less than
3%. Considering a relatively low headroom for these reporting units and mastheads and declining same store revenue
and profitability in the newspaper industry over the past several years, these are considered to be at risk for a future
impairment in the event of decline in general economic, market or business conditions or any significant unfavorable
changes in the forecasted cash flows, weighted-average cost of capital and/or market transaction multiples.
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amortizable intangible assets was $104.2 million.
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We are subject to environmental and employee safety and health laws and regulations that could cause us to incur
significant compliance expenditures and liabilities.

Our operations are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations pertaining to the environment, storage tanks
and the management and disposal of wastes at our facilities. Under various environmental laws, a current or previous
owner or operator of real property may be liable for contamination resulting from the release or threatened release of
hazardous or toxic substances or petroleum at that property. Such laws often impose liability on the owner or operator
without regard to fault and the costs of any required investigation or cleanup can be substantial. Although in
connection with certain of our Predecessor�s acquisitions we have rights to indemnification for certain environmental
liabilities, these rights may not be sufficient to reimburse us for all losses that we might incur if a property acquired by
us has environmental contamination.

Our operations are also subject to various employee safety and health laws and regulations, including those pertaining
to occupational injury and illness, employee exposure to hazardous materials and employee complaints.
Environmental and employee safety and health laws tend to be complex, comprehensive and frequently changing. As
a result, we may be involved from time to time in administrative and judicial proceedings and investigations related to
environmental and employee safety and health issues. These proceedings and investigations could result in substantial
costs to us, divert our management�s attention and adversely affect our ability to sell, lease or develop our real
property. Furthermore, if it is determined that we are not in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, or if our
properties are contaminated, it could result in significant liabilities, fines or the suspension or interruption of the
operations of specific printing facilities.

Future events, such as changes in existing laws and regulations, new laws or regulations or the discovery of conditions
not currently known to us, may give rise to additional compliance or remedial costs that could be material.

Sustained increases in costs of employee health and welfare benefits may reduce our profitability. Moreover, our
pension plan obligations are currently underfunded, and we may have to make significant cash contributions to
our plans, which could reduce the cash available for our business.

In recent years, our Predecessor experienced significant increases in the cost of employee medical benefits because of
economic factors beyond its control, including increases in health care costs. At least some of these factors may
continue to put upward pressure on the cost of providing medical benefits. Although we have actively sought to
control increases in these costs, there can be no assurance that we will succeed in limiting cost increases, and
continued upward pressure could reduce the profitability of our businesses.

Our pension and postretirement plans were underfunded by $10.2 million at December 29, 2013. Our pension plan
invests in a variety of equity and debt securities, many of which were affected by the disruptions in the credit and
capital markets in 2009 and 2010. Future volatility and disruption in the stock markets could cause further declines in
the asset values of our pension plans. In addition, a decrease in the discount rate used to determine minimum funding
requirements could result in increased future contributions. If either occurs, we may need to make additional pension
contributions above what is currently estimated, which could reduce the cash available for our businesses.

We may not be able to protect intellectual property rights upon which our business relies and, if we lose intellectual
property protection, our assets may lose value.

Our business depends on our intellectual property, including, but not limited to, our titles, mastheads, content and
services, which we attempt to protect through patents, copyrights, trade laws and contractual restrictions, such as
confidentiality agreements. We believe our proprietary and other intellectual property rights are important to our
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Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary rights, unauthorized third parties may attempt to copy or otherwise
obtain and use our content, services and other intellectual property, and we cannot be certain that the steps we have
taken will prevent any misappropriation or confusion among consumers and merchants, or unauthorized use of these
rights. If we are unable to procure, protect and enforce our intellectual property rights, we may not realize the full
value of these assets, and our business may suffer. If we must litigate to enforce our intellectual property rights or
determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of third parties, such litigation may be costly and divert the
attention of our management from day-to-day operations.

We depend on key personnel and we may not be able to operate or grow our business effectively if we lose the
services of any of our key personnel or are unable to attract qualified personnel in the future.

The success of our business is heavily dependent on our ability to retain our management and other key personnel and
to attract and retain qualified personnel in the future. Competition for senior management personnel is intense and we
may not be able to retain our key personnel. Although our Predecessor entered into employment agreements with
certain of our key personnel, these agreements do not ensure that our key personnel will continue in their present
capacity with us for any particular period of time. We do not have key man insurance for any of our current
management or other key personnel. The loss of any key personnel would require our remaining key personnel to
divert immediate and substantial attention to seeking a replacement. An inability to find a suitable replacement for any
departing executive officer on a timely basis could adversely affect our ability to operate or grow our business.

A shortage of skilled or experienced employees in the media industry, or our inability to retain such employees,
could pose a risk to achieving improved productivity and reducing costs, which could adversely affect our
profitability.

Production and distribution of our various publications requires skilled and experienced employees. A shortage of
such employees, or our inability to retain such employees, could have an adverse impact on our productivity and costs,
our ability to expand, develop and distribute new products and our entry into new markets. The cost of retaining or
hiring such employees could exceed our expectations which could adversely affect our results of operations.

A number of our employees are unionized, and our business and results of operations could be adversely affected if
current or additional labor negotiations or contracts were to further restrict our ability to maximize the efficiency
of our operations.

As of December 30, 2014, we employed approximately 6,132 employees, of whom approximately 923 (or
approximately 15.1%) were represented by 31 unions. 92% of the unionized employees are in four states: Illinois,
Rhode Island, Ohio and Massachusetts and represent 25%, 25%, 22% and 20% of all our union employees,
respectively. Most of our unionized employees work under collective bargaining agreements that expire in 2017.

Although our newspapers have not experienced a union strike in the recent past nor do we anticipate a union strike to
occur, we cannot preclude the possibility that a strike may occur at one or more of our newspapers at some point in the
future. We believe that, in the event of a newspaper strike, we would be able to continue to publish and deliver to
subscribers, which is critical to retaining advertising and circulation revenues, although there can be no assurance of
this.

Our potential inability to successfully execute cost control measures could result in greater than expected total
operating costs.
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We and our Predecessor have implemented general cost control measures, and we expect to continue such cost control
efforts in the future. If we do not achieve expected savings as a result of such measures or if our operating costs
increase as a result of our growth strategy, our total operating costs may be greater than expected. In addition,
reductions in staff and employee benefits could affect our ability to attract and retain key employees.
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We may not realize all of the anticipated benefits of the synergies between our recent or potential future
acquisitions, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our ability to realize the anticipated benefits of the synergies between our recent acquisitions, including our
acquisition of The Providence Journal and the Halifax Acquisition, or potential future acquisitions of assets or
companies will depend, in part, on our ability to scale-up to appropriately integrate the businesses of such acquired
companies with our business. The process of acquiring assets or companies may disrupt our business and may not
result in the full benefits expected. Additionally, we may not be successful in identifying acquisition opportunities,
assessing the value, strengths and weaknesses of these opportunities and consummating acquisitions on acceptable
terms. Furthermore, suitable acquisition opportunities may not even be made available or known to us. In addition,
valuations of potential acquisitions may rise materially, making it economically unfeasible to complete identified
acquisitions. The risks associated with integrating the operations of recent and potential future acquisitions include,
among others:

� uncoordinated market functions;

� unanticipated issues in integrating the operations and personnel of the acquired businesses;

� the incurrence of indebtedness and the assumption of liabilities;

� the incurrence of significant additional capital expenditures, transaction and operating expenses and
non-recurring acquisition-related charges;

� unanticipated adverse impact on our earnings from the amortization or write-off of acquired goodwill and
other intangible assets;

� not retaining key employees, vendors, service providers, readers and customers of the acquired businesses;
and

� the diversion of management�s attention from ongoing business concerns.
If we are unable to successfully implement our acquisition strategy or address the risks associated with integrating the
operations of recent or potential future acquisitions, or if we encounter unforeseen expenses, difficulties,
complications or delays frequently encountered in connection with the integration of acquired entities and the
expansion of operations, our growth and ability to compete may be impaired, we may fail to achieve acquisition
synergies and we may be required to focus resources on integration of operations rather than other profitable areas.
Moreover, the success of any acquisition will depend upon our ability to effectively integrate the acquired assets or
businesses. The acquired assets or businesses may not contribute to our revenues or earnings to any material extent,
and cost savings and synergies we expect at the time of an acquisition may not be realized once the acquisition has
been completed. Furthermore, if we incur indebtedness to finance an acquisition, the acquired business may not be
able to generate sufficient cash flow to service that indebtedness. Unsuitable or unsuccessful acquisitions could
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Our financial results were affected by the adoption of fresh start reporting and may not reflect historical trends.

Pursuant to the Plan (as defined below), we acquired substantially all of the assets of our Predecessor. The
Restructuring resulted in us becoming a new reporting entity and adopting fresh start accounting. As required by fresh
start accounting, our Predecessor�s assets and liabilities were adjusted to measured value, and we recognized certain
assets and liabilities not previously recognized in our Predecessor�s historical consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, our financial condition and results of operations from and after November 26, 2013, the date on which
GateHouse effected the transactions contemplated by the Plan and emerged from Chapter 11 protection (the �Effective
Date�), are not comparable to the financial condition and results of operations reflected in our Predecessor�s historical
consolidated financial statements, including those presented herein.
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Risks Related to Our Manager

We are dependent on our Manager and may not find a suitable replacement if our Manager terminates the
Management Agreement.

We are externally managed by FIG LLC (the �Manager�) pursuant to the management agreement that we entered into
on November 26, 2013, as amended and restated (the �Management Agreement�). Our Manager does not have any prior
experience directly managing our Company or media-related assets. We are completely reliant on our Manager, which
has significant discretion as to the implementation of our operating policies and strategies, to conduct our business.
We are subject to the risk that our Manager will terminate the Management Agreement and that we will not be able to
find a suitable replacement for our Manager in a timely manner, at a reasonable cost or at all. Furthermore, we are
dependent on the services of certain key employees of our Manager whose compensation is partially or entirely
dependent upon the amount of incentive or management compensation earned by our Manager and whose continued
service is not guaranteed, and the loss of such services could adversely affect our operations.

There may be conflicts of interest in our relationship with our Manager, including with respect to corporate
opportunities.

We have entered into a Management Agreement with FIG LLC, an affiliate of Fortress Investment Group LLC
(�Fortress�), pursuant to which our management team will not be required to exclusively dedicate their services to us
and will provide services for other entities affiliated with our Manager.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws provide that if Fortress or any
of their officers, directors or employees acquire knowledge of a potential transaction that could be a corporate
opportunity, they have no duty, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to offer such corporate opportunity to us, our
stockholders or our affiliates. In the event that any of our directors and officers who is also a director, officer or
employee of Fortress acquires knowledge of a corporate opportunity or is offered a corporate opportunity, provided
that this knowledge was not acquired solely in such person�s capacity as a director or officer of the Company and such
person acts in good faith, then to the fullest extent permitted by law such person is deemed to have fully satisfied such
person�s fiduciary duties owed to us and is not liable to us if Fortress, or its affiliates, pursues or acquires the corporate
opportunity or if such person did not present the corporate opportunity to us.

The ability of our Manager and its officers and employees to engage in other business activities, subject to the terms
of our Management Agreement with our Manager, may reduce the amount of time our Manager, its officers or other
employees spend managing us. In addition, we may engage in material transactions with our Manager or another
entity managed by our Manager or one of its affiliates that present an actual, potential or perceived conflict of interest.
It is possible that actual, potential or perceived conflicts could give rise to investor dissatisfaction, litigation or
regulatory enforcement actions. Appropriately dealing with conflicts of interest is complex and difficult, and our
reputation could be damaged if we fail, or appear to fail, to deal appropriately with one or more potential, actual or
perceived conflicts of interest. Regulatory scrutiny of, or litigation in connection with, conflicts of interest could have
a material adverse effect on our reputation, which could materially adversely affect our business in a number of ways,
including causing an inability to raise additional funds, a reluctance of counterparties to do business with us, a
decrease in the prices of our equity securities and a resulting increased risk of litigation and regulatory enforcement
actions.

The management compensation structure that we have agreed to with our Manager, as well as compensation
arrangements that we may enter into with our Manager in the future (in connection with new lines of business or other
activities), may have unintended consequences for us. We have agreed to pay our Manager a management fee that is
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risk-adjusted returns for us. In addition, our Manager may be eligible to receive incentive compensation, which may
incentivize our Manager to invest in high risk investments. In evaluating investments
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and other management strategies, the opportunity to earn incentive compensation may lead our Manager to place
undue emphasis on the maximization of such measures at the expense of other criteria, such as preservation of capital,
in order to achieve higher incentive compensation. Investments with higher yield potential are generally riskier or
more speculative than lower-yielding investments. Moreover, because our Manager receives compensation in the form
of options in connection with the completion of our common equity offerings, our Manager may be incentivized to
cause us to issue additional Common Stock, which could be dilutive to existing stockholders. See �Description of Our
Capital Stock�Corporate Opportunity.�

We may compete with affiliates of our Manager, which could adversely affect our and their results of operations.

Affiliates of our Manager are not restricted in any manner from competing with us. Affiliates of our Manager may
decide to invest in the same types of assets that we invest in. See ��Risks Related to Our Manager�There may be conflicts
of interest in our relationship with our Manager, including with respect to corporate opportunities.�

It would be difficult and costly to terminate our Management Agreement with our Manager.

It would be difficult and costly for us to terminate our Management Agreement with our Manager. The Management
Agreement may only be terminated annually upon (i) the reasonable affirmative vote of a majority of at least
two-thirds of our independent directors, or by a vote of the holders of a simple majority of the outstanding shares of
our Common Stock, that there has been unsatisfactory performance by our Manager that is materially detrimental to
us or (ii) a determination by a simple majority of our independent directors that the management fee payable to our
Manager is not fair, subject to our Manager�s right to prevent such a termination by accepting a mutually acceptable
reduction of fees. Our Manager will be provided 60 days� prior notice of any termination and will be paid a termination
fee equal to the amount of the management fee earned by the Manager during the twelve month period preceding such
termination. In addition, following any termination of the Management Agreement, our Manager may require us to
purchase its right to receive incentive compensation at a price determined as if our assets were sold for their fair
market value (as determined by an appraisal, taking into account, among other things, the expected future value of the
underlying investments) or otherwise we may continue to pay the incentive compensation to our Manager. These
provisions may increase the effective cost to us of terminating the Management Agreement, thereby adversely
affecting our ability to terminate our Manager without cause. In addition, our independent directors may not
vigorously enforce the provisions of our Management Agreement against our Manager. For example, our independent
directors may refrain from terminating our Manager because doing so could result in the loss of key personnel.
Furthermore, we are dependent on our Manager and may not find a suitable replacement if our Manager terminates the
Management Agreement.

Our Manager will not be liable to us for any acts or omissions performed in accordance with the Management
Agreement, including with respect to the performance of our investments.

Pursuant to our Management Agreement, our Manager will not assume any responsibility other than to render the
services called for thereunder in good faith and will not be responsible for any action of our Board in following or
declining to follow its advice or recommendations. Our Manager, its members, managers, officers and employees will
not be liable to us or any of our subsidiaries, to our Board, or our or any subsidiary�s stockholders or partners for any
acts or omissions by our Manager, its members, managers, officers or employees, except by reason of acts constituting
bad faith, willful misconduct, gross negligence or reckless disregard of our Manager�s duties under our Management
Agreement. We shall, to the full extent lawful, reimburse, indemnify and hold our Manager, its members, managers,
officers and employees and each other person, if any, controlling our Manager harmless of and from any and all
expenses, losses, damages, liabilities, demands, charges and claims of any nature whatsoever (including attorneys�
fees) in respect of or arising from any acts or omissions of an indemnified party made in good faith in the performance
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Our Manager�s due diligence of business opportunities or other transactions may not identify all pertinent risks,
which could materially affect our business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations.

Our Manager intends to conduct due diligence with respect to each business opportunity or other transaction it
pursues. It is possible, however, that our Manager�s due diligence processes will not uncover all relevant facts,
particularly with respect to any assets we acquire from third parties. In these cases, our Manager may be given limited
access to information about the business opportunity and will rely on information provided by the target of the
business opportunity. In addition, if business opportunities are scarce, the process for selecting bidders is competitive,
or the timeframe in which we are required to complete diligence is short, our ability to conduct a due diligence
investigation may be limited, and we would be required to make business decisions based upon a less thorough
diligence process than would otherwise be the case. Accordingly, business opportunities and other transactions that
initially appear to be viable may prove not to be over time, due to the limitations of the due diligence process or other
factors.

Risks Related to our Common Stock

There can be no assurance that the market for our stock will provide you with adequate liquidity.

The market price of our common stock may fluctuate widely, depending upon many factors, some of which may be
beyond our control. These factors include, without limitation:

� our business profile and market capitalization may not fit the investment objectives of any stockholder;

� a shift in our investor base;

� our quarterly or annual earnings, or those of other comparable companies;

� actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;

� changes in accounting standards, policies, guidance, interpretations or principles;

� announcements by us or our competitors of significant investments, acquisitions or dispositions;

� the failure of securities analysts to cover our Common Stock;

� changes in earnings estimates by securities analysts or our ability to meet those estimates;

� the operating and stock price performance of other comparable companies;

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 59



� overall market fluctuations; and

� general economic conditions.
Stock markets in general have experienced volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating performance of a
particular company. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the trading price of our Common Stock.
Additionally, these and other external factors have caused and may continue to cause the market price and demand for
our Common Stock to fluctuate, which may limit or prevent investors from readily selling their shares of Common
Stock, and may otherwise negatively affect the liquidity of our common stock

Sales or issuances of shares of our common stock could adversely affect the market price of our Common Stock.

Sales of substantial amounts of shares of our Common Stock in the public market, or the perception that such sales
might occur, could adversely affect the market price of our Common Stock. The issuance of our common stock in
connection with property, portfolio or business acquisitions or the settlement of awards that may be granted under our
Incentive Plan or otherwise could also have an adverse effect on the market price of our Common Stock. See �Shares
Eligible for Future Sale.�

We and our officers and directors have agreed that, for a period of 45 days from the date of this Prospectus, we and
they will not, without the prior written consent of Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and Credit Suisse Securities (USA)
LLC (the �underwriters�), dispose of or hedge any shares or any securities convertible into or
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exchangeable for our Common Stock. The underwriters, in their sole discretion, may release any of the securities
subject to these lock-up agreements at any time, which, in the case of officers and directors, shall be with notice.
Omega, which owns approximately 9.98% of our Common Stock, is not subject to such a lock-up agreement. If the
restrictions under the lock-up agreements are waived or if Omega offers any of the shares it holds for sale, our
Common Stock may become available for sale into the market, subject to applicable law, which could reduce the
market price for our Common Stock.

Failure to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting in accordance with Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act could have a material adverse effect on our business and stock price.

As a public company, we are required to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting in accordance
with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Internal control over financial reporting is complex and may be
revised over time to adapt to changes in our business, or changes in applicable accounting rules. We cannot assure you
that our internal control over financial reporting will be effective in the future or that a material weakness will not be
discovered with respect to a prior period for which we had previously believed that internal controls were effective. If
we are not able to maintain or document effective internal control over financial reporting, our independent registered
public accounting firm will not be able to certify as to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting.
Matters impacting our internal controls may cause us to be unable to report our financial information on a timely
basis, or may cause us to restate previously issued financial information, and thereby subject us to adverse regulatory
consequences, including sanctions or investigations by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the �SEC�), or
violations of applicable stock exchange listing rules. There could also be a negative reaction in the financial markets
due to a loss of investor confidence in us and the reliability of our financial statements. Confidence in the reliability of
our financial statements is also likely to suffer if we or our independent registered public accounting firm reports a
material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. This could materially adversely affect us by, for
example, leading to a decline in our share price and impairing our ability to raise capital, if and when desirable.

If you purchase shares of Common Stock in this offering, you will suffer immediate dilution in the book value of
your shares.

The public offering price is substantially higher than the pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value per share of
our Common Stock based on the total value of our tangible assets less our total liabilities immediately following this
offering.

Therefore, if you purchase shares of our Common Stock in this offering, you will experience immediate and
substantial dilution of $18.43 per share in the price you pay for shares of our Common Stock as compared to its pro
forma as adjusted net tangible book value giving effect to this offering, assuming the issuance and sale of 7,000,000
shares of our Common Stock at the assumed public offering price of $22.42 per share (the closing sales price of our
Common Stock on the NYSE on January 12, 2015). For further information on this calculation, see �Dilution�
elsewhere in this Prospectus.

Your percentage ownership in New Media may be diluted in the future.

We may issue additional equity in order to raise capital or in connection with future acquisitions and strategic
investments, which would dilute investors� percentage ownership in New Media. In addition, your percentage
ownership may be diluted if we issue equity instruments such as debt and equity financing.

Your percentage ownership in New Media may also be diluted in the future as a result of the New Media Warrants (as
defined below). The New Media Warrants collectively represent the right to acquire New Media Common Stock,
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which in the aggregate are equal to 5% of New Media Common Stock as of the Effective Date (calculated prior to
dilution from shares of New Media Common Stock issued pursuant to the Local Media Contribution) at a strike price
of $46.35 calculated based on a total equity value of New Media prior to the Local Media Contribution of $1.2 billion
as of the Effective Date. As a result, New Media Common Stock may be subject to dilution upon the exercise of such
New Media Warrants.
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Furthermore, your percentage ownership in New Media may be diluted in the future because of equity awards that we
expect will be granted to our Manager pursuant to our Management Agreement. Our Board of Directors approved a
Nonqualified Stock Option and Incentive Award Plan (the �Incentive Plan�) which provides for the grant of equity and
equity-based awards, including restricted stock, stock options, stock appreciation rights, performance awards,
restricted stock units, tandem awards and other equity-based and non-equity based awards, in each case to our
Manager, to the directors, officers, employees, service providers, consultants and advisors of our Manager who
perform services for us, and to our directors, officers, employees, service providers, consultants and advisors. Any
future grant would cause further dilution. We have initially reserved 15 million shares of our Common Stock for
issuance under the Incentive Plan; on the first day of each fiscal year beginning during the ten-year term of the
Incentive Plan and in and after calendar year 2015, that number will be increased by a number of shares of our
Common Stock equal to 10% of the number of shares of our Common Stock newly issued by us during the
immediately preceding fiscal year (and, in the case of fiscal year 2014, after the effective date of the Incentive Plan).
For a more detailed description of the Incentive Plan, see �Management�Nonqualified Stock Option and Incentive
Award Plan.�

In connection with this offering, we will issue to an affiliate of our Manager options to purchase shares of our
Common Stock, equal in number to 10% of the number of shares being offered hereby, with an exercise price equal to
the offering price per share paid by the public or other ultimate purchaser. This option will also be granted upon the
successful completion of any future offering of shares of our Common Stock or any shares of preferred stock. In
addition, on September 23, 2014 we granted an affiliate of our Manager options to purchase 745,062 shares of our
Common Stock. Our board of directors may also determine to issue options to the Manager or its affiliates that are not
subject to the Plan, provided that the number of shares underlying any options granted to the Manager in connection
with capital raising efforts would not exceed 10% of the shares sold in such offering and would be subject to NYSE
rules.

Provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws and of
Delaware law may prevent or delay an acquisition of our company, which could decrease the trading price of our
Common Stock.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, amended and restated bylaws and Delaware law contain
provisions that are intended to deter coercive takeover practices and inadequate takeover bids by making such
practices or bids unacceptably expensive to the raider and to encourage prospective acquirers to negotiate with our
Board rather than to attempt a hostile takeover. These provisions provide for:

� a classified board of directors with staggered three-year terms;

� amendment of provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated
bylaws regarding the election of directors, classes of directors, the term of office of directors, the filling of
director vacancies and the resignation and removal of directors only upon the affirmative vote of at least
80% of the then issued and outstanding shares of our capital stock entitled to vote thereon (provided,
however, that for so long as Newcastle and certain other affiliates of Fortress and permitted transferees
(collectively, the �Fortress Stockholders�) beneficially own at least 20% of our issued and outstanding
Common Stock, such provisions may be amended with the affirmative vote of a majority of the voting
interest of stockholders entitled to vote or by a majority of the entire Board of Directors);

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 63



� amendment of provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation regarding corporate
opportunity only upon the affirmative vote of at least 80% of the then issued and outstanding shares of our
Common Stock entitled to vote thereon;

� removal of directors only for cause and only with the affirmative vote of at least 80% of the voting interest
of stockholders entitled to vote in the election of directors (provided, however, that for so long as the
Fortress Stockholders beneficially own at least 20% of our issued and outstanding Common Stock, directors
may be removed with or without cause with the affirmative vote of a majority of the voting interest of
stockholders entitled to vote);
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� our Board to determine the powers, preferences and rights of our preferred stock and to issue such preferred
stock without stockholder approval;

� provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws prevent
stockholders from calling special meetings of our stockholders (provided, however, that for so long as the
Fortress Stockholders beneficially own at least 20% of our issued and outstanding Common Stock, Fortress
Stockholders may call special meetings of our stockholders);

� advance notice requirements applicable to stockholders for director nominations and actions to be taken at
annual meetings;

� a prohibition, in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, stating that no holder of shares of our
Common Stock will have cumulative voting rights in the election of directors, which means that the holders
of majority of the issued and outstanding shares of our Common Stock can elect all the directors standing for
election; and

� action by our stockholders outside a meeting, in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and
our amended and restated bylaws, only by unanimous written consent (provided, however, that for so long as
the Fortress Stockholders beneficially own at least 20% of our issued and outstanding Common Stock, our
stockholders may act without a meeting by written consent of a majority of the voting interest of
stockholders entitled to vote).

Public stockholders who might desire to participate in these types of transactions may not have an opportunity to do
so, even if the transaction is considered favorable to stockholders. These anti-takeover provisions could substantially
impede the ability of public stockholders to benefit from a change in control or a change in our management and
Board and, as a result, may adversely affect the market price of our Common Stock and your ability to realize any
potential change of control premium. See �Description of Our Capital Stock�Anti-Takeover Effects of Delaware Law,
Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaws.�
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements in this Prospectus or incorporated by reference in this Prospectus may constitute forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 that reflect our current views
regarding, among other things, our future growth, results of operations, performance and business prospects and
opportunities, as well as other statements that are other than historical fact. Words such as �anticipate(s),� �expect(s),�
�intend(s),� �plan(s),� �target(s),� �project(s),� �believe(s),� �will,� �aim,� �would,� �seek(s),� �estimate(s)� and similar expressions are
intended to identify such forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are based on management�s current expectations and beliefs and are subject to a number of
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that could lead to actual results materially different from
those described in the forward-looking statements. We can give no assurance that our expectations will be attained.
Our actual results, liquidity and financial condition may differ from the anticipated results, liquidity and financial
condition indicated in these forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are not a guarantee of
future performance and involve risks and uncertainties, and there are certain important factors that could cause our
actual results to differ, possibly materially from expectations or estimates reflected in such forward-looking
statements, including, among others:

� general economic, market and political conditions;

� the potential adverse effects of the Restructuring;

� the risk that we may not realize the anticipated benefits of our acquisition of the Providence Journal or
Halifax Media or potential future acquisitions;

� the availability and cost of capital for future investments;

� our ability to pay dividends;

� our ability to realize the benefits of the Management Agreement;

� the competitive environment in which we operate;

� our ability to grow our digital business and digital audience and advertiser base;

� our ability to recruit and retain key personnel.
Additional factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include, but are not
limited, to the risks identified by us under the heading �Risk Factors� and elsewhere in this Prospectus. Such
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forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they are made. Except to the extent required by law,
we expressly disclaim any obligation to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements
contained or incorporated by reference herein to reflect any change in our expectations with regard thereto or change
in events, conditions or circumstances on which any statement is based.
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CERTAIN U.S. FEDERAL INCOME AND ESTATE TAX CONSIDERATIONS FOR

NON-U.S. HOLDERS OF OUR COMMON STOCK

The following is a discussion of certain U.S. federal income and estate tax considerations generally applicable to the
ownership and disposition of our Common Stock by Non-U.S. Holders. For purposes of this section under the heading
�Certain U.S. Federal Income and Estate Tax Considerations for Non-U.S. Holders of our Common Stock,� a �Non-U.S.
Holder� means a beneficial owner of our Common Stock that is a nonresident alien individual, a foreign corporation, or
any other person that is not subject to U.S. federal income tax on a net income basis in respect of such Common
Stock.

This discussion deals only with Common Stock held as capital assets by Non-U.S. Holders who acquire Common
Stock in this offering. This discussion does not cover all aspects of U.S. federal income taxation that may be relevant
to the purchase, ownership or disposition of our Common Stock by investors in light of their specific facts and
circumstances. In particular, this discussion does not address all of the tax considerations that may be relevant to
persons in special tax situations, including persons that will hold our Common Stock in connection with a U.S. trade
or business or a U.S. permanent establishment, certain former citizens or residents of the United States, and persons
that are a �controlled foreign corporation,� a �passive foreign investment company� or a partnership or other pass-through
entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes, or are otherwise subject to special treatment under the Internal Revenue
Code (the �Code�), or non-U.S. Holders that have held, directly or indirectly, at any time during the five-year period
ending on the date of the disposition, more than 5% of our Common Stock. This section does not address any other
U.S. federal tax considerations (such as gift tax) or any state, local or non-U.S. tax considerations. You should consult
your own tax advisors about the tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposition of our Common Stock
in light of your own particular circumstances, including the tax consequences under state, local, foreign and other tax
laws and the possible effects of any changes in applicable tax laws.

Furthermore, this discussion is based upon on the Code, U.S. Treasury regulations, published administrative
interpretations of the Internal Revenue Service (�IRS�), and judicial decisions, all of which are subject to differing
interpretations or to change, possibly with retroactive effect. We have not sought any ruling from the IRS with respect
to the statements made and the conclusions reached in this discussion, and there can be no assurance that the IRS will
agree with such statements and conclusions.

Dividends

In the event that we make a distribution of cash or property with respect to our Common Stock, any such distributions
generally will constitute dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the extent of our current or accumulated
earnings and profits, as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles. If a distribution exceeds our current and
accumulated earnings and profits, the excess will be treated as a tax-free return of a Non-U.S. Holder�s investment, up
to such Non-U.S. Holder�s tax basis in our Common Stock. Any remaining excess will be treated as capital gain,
subject to the tax treatment described below in ��Sale, Exchange or Other Taxable Disposition of our Common Stock.�

Dividends paid to a Non-U.S. Holder generally will be subject to U.S. federal withholding tax at a 30% rate, or such
lower rate as may be specified by an applicable tax treaty. Even if a Non-U.S. Holder is eligible for a lower treaty rate,
we and other payors will generally be required to withhold at a 30% rate (rather than the lower treaty rate) on dividend
payments to such Non-U.S. Holder, unless:
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� such Non-U.S. Holder has furnished to us or such other payor a valid IRS Form W-8-BEN-E or other
documentary evidence establishing its entitlement to the lower treaty rate with respect to such payments and
neither we nor our paying agent (or other payor) have actual knowledge or reason to know to the contrary,
and

� in the case of actual or constructive dividends, if required by the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act or
any intergovernmental agreement enacted pursuant to that law, such Non-U.S. Holder or any entity
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through which it receives such dividends have provided the withholding agent with certain information with
respect to its or the entity�s direct and indirect U.S. owners, and if such Non-U.S. Holder holds our Common
Stock through a foreign financial institution, such institution has entered into an agreement with the U.S.
government to collect and provide to the U.S. tax authorities information about its accountholders (including
certain investors in such institution or entity) and such Non-U.S. Holder has provided any required
information to such institution.

If a Non-U.S. Holder is eligible for a reduced rate of U.S. federal withholding tax pursuant to an applicable income
tax treaty or otherwise, it may obtain a refund of any excess amounts withheld by timely filing an appropriate claim
for refund with the IRS. Investors are encouraged to consult with their own tax advisors regarding the possible
implications of these withholding requirements on their investment in our Common Stock.

Sale, Exchange or Other Taxable Disposition of our Common Stock

A Non-U.S. Holder generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax with respect to gain recognized on a sale,
exchange or other taxable disposition of our Common Stock unless:

� in the case of an individual, such holder is present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable
year of the sale, exchange or other taxable disposition, and certain other conditions are met, or

� we are or have been a United States real property holding corporation for federal income tax purposes.
In the case of the sale or disposition of our Common Stock on or after January 1, 2017, a Non-U.S. Holder may be
subject to a 30% withholding tax on the gross proceeds of the sale or disposition unless the requirements described in
the last bullet point under ��Dividends� above are satisfied. Investors are encouraged to consult with their own tax
advisors regarding the possible implications of these withholding requirements on their investment in our Common
Stock and the potential for a refund or credit in the case of any withholding tax.

We have not been, are not and do not anticipate becoming a United States real property holding corporation for U.S.
federal income tax purposes.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

We must report annually to the IRS and to each Non-U.S. Holder the amount of dividends paid to such holder and the
tax withheld with respect to such dividends, regardless of whether withholding was required. Copies of the
information returns reporting such dividends and withholding may also be made available to the tax authorities in the
country in which Non-U.S. Holders reside under the provisions of an applicable income tax treaty.

A Non-U.S. Holder may be subject to backup withholding for dividends paid to it unless it certifies under penalty of
perjury that it is a Non-U.S. Holder or otherwise establishes an exemption. Any amounts withheld under the backup
withholding rules may be allowed as a refund or a credit against such Non-U.S. Holder�s U.S. federal income tax
liability provided the required information is timely furnished to the IRS.

U.S. Federal Estate Tax

Any Common Stock held (or deemed held) by an individual Non-U.S. Holder at the time of his or her death will be
included in such Non-U.S. Holder�s gross estate for U.S. federal estate tax purposes, unless an applicable estate tax
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate that the net proceeds to us from this offering, after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions
and estimated offering expenses payable by us and giving effect to the sale of shares of our Common Stock to certain
of our officers and directors and an officer of our Manager that will not be subject to underwriting discounts or
commissions, will be approximately $155.4 million, assuming a public offering price of $22.42 per share (the closing
sales price of our common stock on the NYSE on January 12, 2015), or $178.5 million if the underwriters exercise
their option to purchase additional shares of Common Stock in full. We intend to use the proceeds from this offering
for working capital and other general corporate purposes, which may include potential investments in, and
acquisitions of, local media businesses and assets and the repayment of our senior secured indebtedness. Presently, we
have no agreements with any potential acquisition parties as to which funding would be required. We have not yet
determined the amount of net proceeds to be used specifically for any of the foregoing purposes. Accordingly,
management will have broad discretion over the use of the net proceeds to us from this offering and investors will be
relying on the judgment of our management regarding the application of these proceeds. Pending their use, we plan to
invest the net proceeds to us from this offering in short term, interest bearing obligations, investment grade
instruments, certificates of deposit or direct or guaranteed obligations of the U.S. government.

Our senior secured indebtedness consists of the New Media Credit Agreement which provides for (i) the Term Loan
Facility and (ii) the Revolving Credit Facility. The Term Loan Facility matures on June 4, 2020 and the maturity date
for the Revolving Credit Facility is June 4, 2019. Borrowings under the Term Loan Facility bear interest, at the New
Media Borrower�s option, at a rate equal to either (i) the Eurodollar Rate (as defined in the New Media Credit
Agreement), plus an applicable margin equal to 6.25% per annum (subject to a Eurodollar Rate floor of 1.00%) or
(ii) the Base Rate (as defined in the New Media Credit Agreement), plus an applicable margin equal to 5.25% per
annum (subject to a Base Rate floor of 2.00%). Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility bear interest, at the
New Media Borrower�s option, at a rate equal to either (i) the Eurodollar Rate, plus an applicable margin equal to
5.25% per annum or (ii) the Base Rate, plus an applicable margin equal to 4.25% per annum, with a step down based
on achievement of a certain total leverage ratio. The New Media Borrower currently uses the Eurodollar Rate option.

MARKET PRICE INFORMATION AND DIVIDENDS

Market Price Data

New Media Common Stock trades on the NYSE under the trading symbol �NEWM� since the spin-off from
Newcastle. A �when-issued� trading market for New Media�s Common Stock on the NYSE began on February 4, 2014
and �regular-way� trading of New Media Common Stock began on February 14, 2014. Prior to February 4, 2014, there
was no public market for New Media Common Stock. Set forth in the table below for the periods presented are the
high and low sale prices for New Media Common Stock as reported on the NYSE.

HIGH LOW
Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2014:
First Quarter (since February 4, 2013) $ 15.65 $ 10.35
Second Quarter $ 15.79 $ 12.89
Third Quarter $ 17.95 $ 13.59
Fourth Quarter $ 24.52 $ 15.76

Fiscal Year Ending December 27, 2015
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First Quarter (through January 9, 2015) $24.37 $21.34
From the most recent available Company information, on January 12, 2014 there were approximately 44 holders of
record.
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Dividends

New Media currently intends to distribute a substantial portion our free cash flow as a dividend to stockholders,
through a quarterly dividend, subject to satisfactory financial performance, Board approval and dividend restrictions
in the New Media Credit Agreement. The Board of Directors� determinations regarding dividends will depend on a
variety of factors, including the Company�s GAAP net income, free cash flow generated from operations or other
sources, liquidity position and potential alternative uses of cash, such as acquisitions, as well as economic conditions
and expected future financial results. On July 31, 2014, the Company announced a second quarter 2014 cash dividend
of $0.27 per share of New Media Common Stock. The dividend was paid on August 21, 2014 to shareholders of
record as of the close of business on August 12, 2014. On October 30, 2014, the Company announced a third quarter
2014 cash dividend of $0.27 per share of New Media Common Stock. The dividend was paid on November 20, 2014,
to shareholders of record as of the close of business on November 12, 2014.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth cash and cash equivalents and capitalization of New Media as of September 28, 2014
(i) on an actual basis, (ii) on a pro forma basis to give effect to the Pro Forma Adjustments and (iii) on a pro forma as
adjusted basis to give effect to the Pro Forma Adjustments as well as the sale of 7,000,000 shares of Common Stock
by us in this offering at an assumed public offering price of $22.42 per share (the closing sales price of our Common
Stock on the NYSE on January 12, 2015), after deducting the underwriting discount and estimated offering expenses
payable by us.

This table should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements, Unaudited Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements, related notes and other financial information included in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2013 and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 28, 2014, which are incorporated by reference herein, and with the unaudited pro forma condensed
combined financial information, included herein.

As of September 28, 2014

Actual Pro forma
Pro forma
as adjusted

(in thousands, except share data)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 135,063 $ 21,663 $ 177,065

Debt:
New Media Credit Agreement and assumed debt from acquisitions(1) 232,275 398,875 398,875
Long-term liabilities, including current portion 5,650 10,123 10,123

Total long-term debt, including current portion $ 237,925 $ 408,998 $ 408,998

Stockholders� equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 37,466,495, 37,466,495 and
44,466,495 shares issued and outstanding on an actual, pro forma and
pro forma as adjusted basis, respectively 375 375 445
Additional paid-in-capital 494,109 494,109 649,441
Accumulated other comprehensive income 458 458 458
Accumulated deficit (7,462) (7,462) (7,462) 

Total stockholders� equity 487,480 487,480 642,882

Total capitalization $ 725,405 $ 896,478 $ 1,051,880

(1) The New Media Credit Agreement provides for (i) a $200 million senior secured term facility and (ii) a
$25 million senior secured revolving credit facility, with a $5 million sub-facility for letters of credit and a $5
million sub-facility for swing loans. In addition, the New Media Borrower may request one or more new
commitments for term loans or revolving loans from time to time up to an aggregate total of $75 million subject to
certain conditions. On September 3, 2014, the New Media Credit Agreement was amended to provide for $25
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million in additional term loans under the Incremental Facility. On November 20, 2014, the New Media Credit
Agreement was amended to increase the amount available thereunder for incremental loans. On January 9, 2015,
the New Media Credit Agreement was amended to provide for a combined $152 million in additional term loans
and revolving commitments under the Incremental Facility and to make certain amendments to the Revolving
Credit Facility.
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DILUTION

If you invest in our Common Stock, your ownership interest will be diluted to the extent of the difference between the
public offering price per share of our Common Stock and the pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value per share
of our Common Stock upon consummation of this offering. Net tangible book value per share represents the book
value of our total tangible assets less the book value of our total liabilities divided by the number of shares of
Common Stock then issued and outstanding.

After giving effect to the Pro Forma Adjustments, our net pro forma net tangible book value as of September 28, 2014
would have been approximately $21,693,000 or approximately $0.58 per share, based on 37,466,495 shares of
Common Stock issued and outstanding as of such date.

After giving effect to the Pro Forma Adjustments as well as the sale of 7,000,000 shares of Common Stock by us in
this offering at an assumed public offering price of $22.42 per share (the closing sales price of our Common Stock on
the NYSE on January 12, 2015), our pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value as of September 28, 2014 would
have been approximately $177,095,300, or approximately $3.99 per share. This represents an immediate and
substantial dilution of $18.43 per share to new investors purchasing Common Stock in this offering. The following
table illustrates this dilution per share:

Assumed public offering price per share $ 22.42
Pro forma net tangible book value per share as of September 28, 2014 after giving effect to the
Pro Forma Adjustments but before giving effect this offering $ 0.58
Increase in net tangible book value per share attributable to this offering 3.41

Pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value per share after giving effect to the Pro Forma
Adjustments as well as this offering 3.99

Dilution per share to new investors in this offering $ 18.43

The following table summarizes, as of September 28, 2014 on a pro forma basis for the Pro Forma Adjustments as
well as this offering, the differences between the number of shares of Common Stock received from us in the spin-off
and purchased by investors in our offering that closed on September 23, 2014 and the total price and the average price
per share attributed to existing stockholders� shares of Common Stock and paid by the new investors in this offering,
before deducting the underwriting discounts and estimated offering expenses payable by us, at an assumed public
offering price of $22.42 per share (the closing sales price of our Common Stock on the NYSE on January 12, 2015)

Shares Purchased
Total

Consideration
Average
Price
per
ShareNumber Percent Amount Percent

(in thousands) (in thousands)
Existing stockholders 37,466 84.3% 494,484 75.9% $ 13.20
New investors 7,000 15.7% 156,940 24.1% $ 22.42
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Total 44,466 100.0% 651,424 100.0% 

If the underwriters exercise their option to purchase additional shares of Common Stock in full, the pro forma as
adjusted net tangible book value per share after this offering as of September 28, 2014 would be approximately $4.40
per share and the dilution to new investors per share after this offering would be $18.02 per share.

A $1.00 increase (decrease) in the assumed public offering price of $22.42 per share (the closing sales price of our
Common Stock on the NYSE on January 12, 2015) would increase (decrease) total consideration paid by new
investors and average price per share paid by new investors by $7,000,000 and $1.00 per share, respectively. An
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increase (decrease) of 1.0 million in the number of shares offered by us would increase (decrease) total consideration
paid by new investors and average price per share paid by new investors by $22,420,000 and $0 per share,
respectively.

The pro forma information discussed above is for illustrative and informational purposes only. See �Unaudited Pro
Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information.�
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of September 28, 2014 and the unaudited
pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the nine months ended September 28, 2014 and for the
year ended December 29, 2013 are based on (i) the audited consolidated financial statements of New Media known as
the Successor Company for the two months ended December 29, 2013 and the Predecessor Company for the ten
months ended November 6, 2013 (ii) the unaudited consolidated financial statements of New Media as of and for the
nine months ended September 28, 2014 (iii) the consolidated financial statements of Local Media for the eight months
ended September 2, 2013 (iv) the consolidated financial statements of Providence Journal for the eight months ended
September 2, 2014 and for the year ended December 31, 2013 and (v) the consolidated financial statements of Halifax
Media as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and for the year ended December 31, 2013.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the nine months ended September 28, 2014
and for the year ended December 29, 2013 gives effect to the Pro Forma Transactions as if the Pro Forma
Transactions had occurred or had become effective as of December 31, 2012 (beginning of our fiscal year 2013). The
unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of September 28, 2014 gives effect to the Pro Forma
Transactions as if they had occurred on September 28, 2014. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial
information excludes the effects of this offering.

The pro forma financial information is provided for informational and illustrative purposes only and should be read in
conjunction with �Use of Proceeds,� �Capitalization,� �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations,� New Media�s historical financial statements and related notes thereto, including Predecessor
GateHouse�s historical consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, Local Media�s historical combined financial
statements and notes thereto, Providence Journal�s historical consolidated financial statements and notes thereto and
Halifax Media�s historical consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, each included elsewhere in this
Prospectus or incorporated by reference herein.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been prepared to reflect adjustments to our
historical consolidated financial information that are (i) directly attributable to the Pro Forma Transactions,
(ii) factually supportable and (iii) with respect to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of
operations, expected to have a continuing impact on our results.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information reflects the following Pro Forma Transactions:

� commencing from the date of the Listing, New Media�s management and incentive fee payable to the
Manager by us;

� adoption of fresh start accounting by GateHouse in accordance with ASC 852, upon confirmation of the
Plan;

� cancellation of our Predecessor�s 2007 Credit Facility and related interest rate swaps in exchange for New
Media Common Stock pursuant to the Plan and entry into the two certain Term Loan and Security
Agreements dated November 26, 2013 (the �GateHouse Credit Facilities�);
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� impact of Local Media purchase accounting adjustments, in accordance with ASC 805, as a result of
GateHouse consolidation of Local Media beginning on September 3, 2013 and Newcastle�s contribution of
100% common stock of Local Media Parent to New Media in exchange for New Media Common Stock
pursuant to the Plan;

� payment of GateHouse Credit Facilities and Credit Agreement dated September 3, 2013 (the �Local Media
Credit Facility�) in full and entering into the New Media Credit Agreement; and

� impact of Providence Journal and Halifax Media purchase accounting adjustments, in accordance with ASC
805, and the incremental financing under the New Media Credit Agreement in connection with these
acquisitions.
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The impact of adoption of fresh start accounting, cancellation of Predecessor 2007 Credit Facility, refinancing of
GateHouse Credit Facilities and Local Media Credit Facility and acquisitions of Local Media and Providence Journal
are already reflected in the Company�s historical consolidated balance sheet as of September 28, 2014 and the impact
of adoption of fresh start accounting and acquisition of Local Media are already reflected in the historical consolidated
statement of operations of New Media for the nine months ended September 28, 2014; accordingly, no pro forma
adjustment has been made to these financial statements as the impact of such transactions is included in our respective
historical financial information.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the year ended December 29, 2013
excludes approximately $947.6 million of non-recurring charges that the Company incurred in connection with certain
Pro Forma Transactions, including reorganization gain on the extinguishment of debt, gain on fresh-start accounting
and other reorganization expenses.

Each of the transactions reflected in the adjustments is described in more detail below.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is included for illustrative and informational
purposes only and does not purport to reflect our results of operations or financial condition had the pro forma
transactions occurred at an earlier date. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information also
should not be considered representative of our future financial condition or results of operations.

GateHouse Effects of Plan and Fresh Start and Other Adjustments

New Media had no operations until November 26, 2013, when it assumed control of GateHouse and Local Media.
GateHouse was determined to be the Predecessor to New Media, as the operations of GateHouse comprise
substantially all of the business operations of the combined entities. On September 27, 2013, our Predecessor filed
voluntary petitions for relief under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. On November 6, 2013 (the
�Confirmation Date�) the Bankruptcy Court confirmed the Plan. Our Predecessor effected the transactions contemplated
by the Plan and emerged from Chapter 11 protection on the Effective Date.

Upon confirmation of the Plan by the Bankruptcy Court on November 6, 2013, New Media adopted fresh start
accounting. Under fresh start accounting, a new entity is deemed to have been created for financial reporting purposes
and the Predecessor�s recorded amounts of assets and liabilities were adjusted to reflect their estimated fair values. As
a result of the adoption of fresh start accounting, New Media�s reorganized company post-emergence financial
statements are generally not comparable with the financial statements of the Predecessor prior to November 6, 2013.

The Plan discharged claims and interests against our Predecessor primarily through the (a) issuance of New Media
Common Stock, (b) Newcastle�s contribution of 100% common stock of Local Media Parent to New Media in
exchange for New Media Common Stock, (c) reinstatement of certain claims, and (d) issuance of the New Media
Warrants to the former equity holders in our Predecessor. See Note 3 to New Media�s Consolidated Financial
Statements, �Fresh Start Accounting,� in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2013,
incorporated by reference herein.

On November 26, 2013, GateHouse entered into the Gatehouse Credit Facilities. Pursuant to the Plan, but not a
condition to the effectiveness of the Plan, holders of the 2007 Credit Facility and related interest rate swaps
outstanding debt who elected to receive New Media Common Stock received their pro rata share of the net proceeds.
The net proceeds distributed to these holders totaled $149.0 million. The GateHouse Credit Facilities were
subsequently refinanced on June 4, 2014. See following section �New Media Refinancing Adjustments�.
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On the Effective Date, New Media entered into the Management Agreement pursuant to which the Manager will
manage the operations of New Media. Commencing from the Listing, New Media will pay its Manager a management
fee equal to 1.5% of New Media�s Total Equity (as defined in the Management Agreement) and the Manager is eligible
to receive incentive compensation.
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The effects of the Plan, adoption of fresh start accounting and entry into the GateHouse Credit Facilities and
Management Agreement are collectively referred to as the Restructuring.

The Restructuring transactions are reflected in the audited financial statements of New Media as of the Confirmation
Date and November 26, 2013 for the GateHouse Credit Facilities. As such, the historical consolidated balance sheet
reflects these transactions. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations combines the
Predecessor ten months ended November 6, 2013 and the Successor, New Media, two months ended December 29,
2013. The Successor two months ended December 29, 2013 reflects the effects of the Restructuring. The unaudited
pro forma condensed combined statement of operations gives effect to the Restructuring for the Predecessor period as
if the Restructuring had occurred on December 31, 2012.

The �GateHouse Effects of Plan and Fresh Start and Other Adjustments� column in the unaudited pro forma condensed
combined statement of operations gives effect to the following: (i) the termination of the 2007 Credit Facility and
related interest rate swap and (ii) the revised depreciation and amortization expense due to the revaluation of the
tangible and intangible assets upon the application of fresh start accounting by GateHouse, in accordance with ASC
852. The reorganization gain resulting from the extinguishment of the prepetition debt pursuant to the Plan, gain on
fresh start accounting, and other reorganization expenses were approximately $947.6 million. The reorganization gain
and other reorganization expenses is eliminated in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of
operations as the reorganization gains and expenses are non-recurring. The �GateHouse Effects of Plan and Fresh Start
and Other Adjustments� column also includes the Company�s entry into the GateHouse Credit Facilities and
Management Agreement as, though not directly an element of the Plan, they are components of the overall
restructuring.

For additional information regarding the �GateHouse Effects of Plan and Fresh Start and Other Adjustments,� see the
notes to the pro forma financial information.

Local Media Purchase Accounting and Other Adjustments

On September 3, 2013, Newcastle completed the acquisition of Local Media from News Corp (the �Local Media
Acquisition�). At that time, the Local Media operations were managed by GateHouse, pursuant to a management and
advisory agreement. As a result of this agreement, management determined that Local Media was a variable interest
entity and that GateHouse was the primary beneficiary because it had both the power to direct the activities that most
significantly impact the economic performance of Local Media and it participated in the residual returns of Local
Media that could be significant to Local Media. Because GateHouse was the primary beneficiary, it consolidated
Local Media beginning September 3, 2013.

As part of the Plan, Newcastle agreed to contribute 100% of the stock of Local Media Parent to New Media.
Following the Restructuring, the Company accounted for the consolidation of Local Media under the purchase method
of accounting in accordance with ASC 805 as New Media obtained a controlling financial interest in Local Media.
Accordingly, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed were recorded at their acquisition date fair values. Such
acquisition value was not materially different from the acquisition value allocated upon GateHouse�s consolidation of
Local Media in accordance with ASC 805 on September 3, 2013.

As Local Media was consolidated in GateHouse historical results beginning on September 3, 2013, the pro forma
adjustments are only for the period from December 31, 2012 through September 2, 2013. These adjustments are
included in a separate column labeled as �Local Media Purchase Accounting and Other Adjustments� to reflect the
purchase accounting impact on depreciation, amortization and interest expense as if the purchase accounting occurred
as of December 31, 2012.
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Local Media�s fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in June. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of
operations were created with a year end on the last Sunday in December, which is consistent with the historical
consolidated financial statements of GateHouse. Local Media results from September 3, 2013 are

42

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 85



Table of Contents

included in the historical GateHouse results of operations. The historical results of Local Media for the eight months
ended September 2, 2013 were derived by taking the historical results of operations of Local Media for the year ended
June 30, 2013, and subtracting Local Media�s historical results of operations for the six months ended December 30,
2012, and adding the two months of historical results of operations from July 1, 2013 to September 2, 2013.

See Note 4 to New Media�s Consolidated Financial Statements, �Local Media Acquisition,� in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2013, incorporated by reference herein.

To conform the fiscal periods of Local Media�s historical combined financial statements to that of New Media, the
following amounts were excluded from the pro forma financial information. Local Media had revenue of $28,320 and
net income of $1,505 for the two month period from July 1, 2013 to September 2, 2013.

Local Media�s Fiscal Year
Ended

June 30, 2013
Excluded from the

Year Ended
December 29, 2013

Revenues $ 83,345
Income from continuing operations $ 11,913

New Media Refinancing Adjustments

On June 4, 2014, New Media entered the New Media Credit Agreement which provides for (i) the Term Loan Facility
and (ii) the Revolving Credit Facility. The Term Loan Facility matures on June 4, 2020 and the maturity date for the
Revolving Credit Facility is June 4, 2019. In addition, New Media may request one or more new commitments for
term loans or revolving loans from time to time up to an aggregate total of $75,000. On September 3, 2014, the New
Media Credit Agreement was amended to provide for $25,000 in additional term loans under the Incremental Facility.
On November 20, 2014, the New Media Credit Agreement was amended to increase the amount available thereunder
for incremental loans. On January 9, 2015, the New Media Credit Agreement was amended to provide for a combined
$152,000 in additional term loans and revolving commitments under the Incremental Facility and to make certain
amendments to the Revolving Credit Facility.

The proceeds of the New Media Credit Agreement, which included a $6,725 original issue discount, were used to
repay in full all amounts outstanding under the GateHouse Credit Facilities, the Local Media Credit Facility and to
pay fees associated with the financing, with the balance going to the Company for general corporate purposes.

One lender under the New Media Credit Agreement was also a lender under the GateHouse Credit Facilities. This
portion of the transaction was accounted for as a modification under ASC Topic 470-50, �Debt Modifications and
Extinguishments� (�ASC 470-50�), as the difference between the present value of the cash flows under the New Media
Credit Agreement and the present value of the cash flows under the GateHouse Credit Facilities was less than 10%.
The unamortized deferred financing costs and original issuance discount balances as of the refinance date pertaining to
this lender�s portion of the GateHouse Credit Facilities will be amortized over the terms of the new facility. The
remaining portion of the GateHouse Credit Facilities and the Local Media Credit Facility debt refinancing constituted
an extinguishment of debt under ASC 470-50, and was accounted for accordingly.
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The refinancing related adjustments are reflected in the unaudited financial statements of New Media as of
September 28, 2014. As such, the historical consolidated balance sheet reflects this transaction. Adjustments to the
statement of operations related to the refinancing are in a separate column titled �New Media Refinancing Adjustments�
to reflect the impact on interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs as if the refinancing occurred as
of December 31, 2012.
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See Note 7 to New Media�s Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, �Indebtedness,� in our Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 28, 2014, incorporated by reference herein.

Providence Journal Purchase Accounting and Other Adjustments

On September 3, 2014, a wholly owned subsidiary of New Media completed its acquisition of the assets of Providence
Journal Company. The �Providence Journal Purchase Accounting and Other Adjustments� column of the pro forma
financial information gives effect to preliminary purchase accounting adjustments in accordance with ASC 805. The
Providence Journal acquisition was financed with $9.0 million of revolving debt that will mature on June 4, 2019,
$25.0 million of additional term debt under the New Media Credit Agreement that will mature on June 4, 2020 and
$13.0 million of cash. The revolving debt has an interest rate of LIBOR plus 5.25% and the additional term debt has
an interest rate of LIBOR (with minimum of 1%), plus 6.25%. Original issue discount of $0.5 million was incurred
related to the consummation of this debt. The purchase price, including estimated working capital, of approximately
$48.7 million was allocated to the fair value of the net assets acquired and any excess value over the tangible and
identifiable intangible assets was recorded as goodwill.

As Providence Journal was consolidated in New Media historical results beginning on September 3, 2014, the
purchase accounting adjustments are therefore already recorded within the column �New Media Historical
September 28, 2014� on the unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet. The unaudited pro forma
condensed combined statements of operations for the year ended December 29, 2013 and for the nine months ended
September 28, 2014 include a separate column for Providence Journal adjustments labeled as �Providence Journal
Purchase Accounting and Other Adjustments.�

The following table summarizes the preliminary allocation of the acquisition value of $48.7 million to the fair value of
Providence Journal�s assets and liabilities and the identified intangible assets based on pro forma values as of
September 28, 2014. The excess of acquisition value over the amounts allocated to the identified intangible assets and
the fair value of tangible assets and liabilities was recorded as goodwill. The purchase price allocations are
preliminary based upon all information available to us at the present time and are subject to working capital and other
adjustments. The value assigned to property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill is preliminary and
subject to the completion of valuations to determine the fair market value of the tangible and intangible assets. The
final calculation of working capital and other adjustments and determination of fair values for tangible and intangible
assets may result in different allocations among the various asset classes from those set forth below and any such
differences could be material. No assurance can be given that the amount recorded as goodwill would be recoverable
as part of the required annual test for goodwill impairment

Current assets $ 10,100
Property, plant and equipment 32,080
Advertiser relationships 1,780
Subscriber relationships 1,510
Customer relationships 1,810
Mastheads 3,700
Goodwill 3,672

Total assets 54,652
Current liabilities 5,966
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Total liabilities 5,966

Net assets $ 48,686

The Company obtained a third party independent valuation to assist in the determination of the fair values of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets. The property, plant and equipment valuation included an analysis of recent
comparable sales and offerings of land parcels in each of the subject�s markets. The estimated
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fair value is supported by the consideration to be paid and was determined using standard generally accepted appraisal
practices and valuation procedures. The valuation firm used the three basic approaches to value: the cost approach
(used for equipment where an active secondary market is not available and building improvements), the direct sales
comparison (market) approach (used for land and equipment where an active secondary market is available) and the
income approach (used for intangible assets). These approaches used are based on the cost to reproduce assets, market
exchanges for comparable assets and the capitalization of income. Useful lives range from 1 to 15 years for personal
property and 4 to 28 years for real property.

The valuation utilized a relief from royalty method, an income approach, to determine the fair value of mastheads.
Key assumptions utilized in this valuation include revenue projections, a royalty rate of 1.5%, a long term growth rate
of 0.0%, a tax rate of 39.2% and a discount rate of 21.5%. The Company valued the following intangible assets using
the income approach, specifically the excess earnings method: subscriber relationships, advertiser relationships and
customer relationships. In determining the fair value of these intangible assets, the excess earnings approach values
the intangible asset at the present value of the incremental after-tax cash flows attributable only to the asset after
deducting contributory asset charges. The incremental after-tax cash flows attributable to the subject intangible asset
are then discounted to their present value. A static pool approach using historical attrition rates was used to estimate
attrition rates of 3.0% to 10.0% for advertiser relationships, subscriber relationships and customer relationships. The
long term growth rate was estimated to be 0.0% and the discount rate was estimated at 22.0%. Amortizable lives range
from 13 to 16 years for subscriber relationships, advertiser relationships and customer relationships, while mastheads
are considered a non-amortizable intangible asset.

Halifax Media Purchase Accounting and Other Adjustments

On November 20, 2014, New Media entered into an agreement to acquire substantially all of the assets of Halifax
Media for approximately $280.0 million, including assumed debt, subject to working capital adjustments. This
transaction closed on January 9, 2015. The �Halifax Media Purchase Accounting and Other Adjustments� column of the
pro forma financial information gives effect to preliminary purchase accounting adjustments in accordance with ASC
805.

The Halifax Media acquisition was financed with a combined $152.0 million of additional term and revolving debt
under the New Media Credit Agreement that will mature on June 4, 2020 and June 4, 2019, respectively, and
$110.0 million of cash. The debt is assumed to have an interest rate of LIBOR (with a minimum of 1%) plus 6.25%.
Original issue discount of $3.4 million was assumed related to the consummation of this debt. The cash purchase price
of approximately $262.0 million will be allocated to the fair value of the net assets acquired and any excess value over
the tangible and identifiable intangible assets will be recorded as goodwill.

The Company obtained a preliminary third party independent valuation to assist in the determination of the fair values
of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. The property, plant and equipment valuation includes an
analysis of recent comparable sales and offerings of land parcels in each of the subject�s markets. The estimated fair
value is supported by the consideration to be paid and was determined using standard generally accepted appraisal
practices and valuation procedures. The valuation firm used the three basic approaches to value: the cost approach
(used for equipment where an active secondary market is not available and building improvements), the direct sales
comparison (market) approach (used for land and equipment where an active secondary market is available) and the
income approach (used for intangible assets). These approaches used are based on the cost to reproduce assets, market
exchanges for comparable assets and the capitalization of income. Useful lives range from 2 to 10 years for personal
property and 11 to 39 years for real property.
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The valuation utilized a relief from royalty method, an income approach, to determine the fair value of mastheads.
Key assumptions utilized in this valuation include revenue projections, a royalty rate of 2.0%, a long term growth rate
of 0.0%, a tax rate of 39.2% and a discount rate of 17.0%. The Company valued the following intangible assets using
the income approach, specifically the excess earnings method: subscriber relationships,
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advertiser relationships and customer relationships. In determining the fair value of these intangible assets, the excess
earnings approach values the intangible asset at the present value of the incremental after-tax cash flows attributable
only to the asset after deducting contributory asset charges. The incremental after-tax cash flows attributable to the
subject intangible asset are then discounted to their present value. A static pool approach using historical attrition rates
was used to estimate attrition rates of 5.0% to 10.0% for advertiser relationships, subscriber relationships and
customer relationships. The long term growth rate was estimated to be 0.0% and the discount rate was estimated at
17.5%. Amortizable lives range from 14 to 17 years for subscriber relationships, advertiser relationships and customer
relationships, while mastheads are considered a non-amortizable intangible asset.

The valuations used in this Prospectus represent current estimates based on data available. However, updates to these
valuations will be completed as of the acquisition date based on the results of asset and liability valuations, as well as
the related calculation of deferred income taxes. The differences between the actual valuations and the current
estimated valuations used in preparing the pro forma financial information may be material and will be reflected in
our future balance sheets and may affect amounts, including depreciation and amortization expense, which we will
recognize in our statement of operations post acquisition. As such, the pro forma financial information may not
accurately represent our post acquisition financial condition or results from operations and any differences may be
material.
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NEW MEDIA INVESTMENT GROUP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statements of Operations

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Year Ended December 29, 2013
New Media
Historical
Two

Months
Ended

December 29,
2013

GateHouse
Predecessor

Ten
Months
Ended

November 6,
2013

GateHouse
Effects of
Plan,
Fresh

Start and
Other

Adjustments

Local
Media

Historical
September 2,

2013

Local
Media

Purchase
Accounting

and
Other

Adjustments

New
Media

Refinancing
Adjustments

Providence
Journal
Historical

December 31,
2013

Providence
Journal
Purchase
Accounting

and
Other

Adjustments

Halifax Media
Historical

December 31,
2013

Halifax Media
Purchase
and

Accounting
and
Other

Adjustments

Pro Forma
Year
Ended

December 29,
2013

Revenues:
Advertising $ 63,340 $ 265,078 $ 52,308 $ 41,015 $ 209,140 $ 630,881
Circulation 29,525 118,810 33,855 34,042 94,359 310,591
Commercial
printing and
other 10,366 29,402 17,372 15,012 24,822 96,974

Total revenues 103,231 413,290 �  103,535 �  �  90,069 �  328,321 �  1,038,446
Operating
costs and
expenses:
Operating
costs 56,614 232,066 93,358 (34,131)(h) 80,024 (32,616)(n) 273,833 (125,491)(q) 543,657
Selling,
general, and
administrative 28,749 136,832 (2,428)(a,f) 34,131(h) 32,616(n) 125,491(q) 355,391
Depreciation
and
amortization 6,588 33,409 (8,058)(b) 5,351 2,195(i) 7,872 (2,202)(o) 10,049 8,011(r) 63,215
Integration and
reorganization
costs 1,758 1,577 3,335
Impairment of
long-lived and
intangible
assets �  91,599 42,268 1,704 135,571
Loss on sale of
assets 27 1,163 185 1,375

Operating
income (loss) 9,495 (83,356) 10,486 (37,442) (2,195) �  2,173 2,202 42,550 (8,011) (64,098) 

1,640 74,358 (73,988)(c) 1,656(j) 12,108(l) 2,382(p) 12,479 526(s) 31,161
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Interest
expense
Amortization
of deferred
financing costs 171 842 (754)(d) 284(j) 56(m) 599
Loss on
derivative
instruments �  14 (14)(e) �  
Other
(income)
expense (13) 1,004 (256) 735
Reorganization
items, net �  (947,617) 947,617(f) �  

Income (loss)
from
continuing
operations
before income
taxes 7,697 788,043 (862,375) (37,442) (4,135) (12,164) 2,429 (180) 30,071 (8,537) (96,593) 
Income tax
expense
(benefit) 491 (197) (26,382)(t) (13,742) (2,535)(t) (4,762)(t) 1,269(t) (389)(t) �  8,431(t) (37,816) 

Income (loss)
from
continuing
operations $ 7,206 $ 788,240 $ (835,993) $ (23,700) $ (1,600) $ (7,402) $ 1,160 $ 209 $ 30,071 $ (16,968) $ (58,777) 

Loss per share:
Basic and
diluted:
Income (loss)
from
continuing
operations $ 0.24 $ (1.95)(g)
Basic
weighted
average shares
outstanding 30,000,000 30,163,750
Diluted
weighted
average shares
outstanding 30,000,000 30,163,750
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NEW MEDIA INVESTMENT GROUP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statements of Operations

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Nine Months Ended September 28, 2014
New Media
Historical
September

28,
2014

New Media
Refinancing
Adjustments

Providence
Journal

September 29,
2014

Providence Journal
Purchase Accounting

and Other
Adjustments

Halifax Media
Historical

September 30, 2014

Halifax Media
Purchase
and

Accounting and
Other Adjustments

Pro Forma
September 28,

2014
Revenues:
Advertising $ 275,220 $ 25,035 $ 153,796 $ 454,051
Circulation 140,274 22,670 76,392 239,336
Commercial
printing and
other 50,033 10,650 19,970 80,653

Total revenues 465,527 �  58,355 �  250,158 �  774,040
Operating costs
and expenses:
Operating costs 266,540 50,829 (19,295)(n) 217,227 (99,549)(q) 415,752
Selling, general,
and
administrative 156,241 (1,111)(a,k) 19,295(n) 99,549(q) 273,974
Depreciation and
amortization 30,822 4,826 (1,046)(o) 8,684 4,860(r) 48,146
Integration and
reorganization
costs 1,970 1,970
Loss on sale of
assets 1,074 18 1,092

Operating
income (loss) 8,880 1,111 2,700 1,046 24,229 (4,860) 33,106
Interest expense 12,006 (175)(l) 1,786(p) 2,404 7,350(s) 23,371
Amortization of
deferred
financing costs 903 (454)(m) 449
Loss on early
extinguishment
of debt 9,047 (9,047)(k) �  
Loss (gain) on
derivative
instruments 51 (51)(m) �  
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Other (income)
expense (162) 245 �  83

(Loss) income
from continuing
operations
before income
taxes (12,965) 10,838 2,455 (740) 21,825 (12,210) 9,203
Income tax
expense
(benefit) 1,703 (2,536)(t) 1,056 (385)(t) �  3,764(t) 3,602

(Loss) income
from continuing
operations $ (14,668) $ 13,374 $ 1,399 $ (355) $ 21,825 $ (15,974) 5,601

(Loss) income
per share:
Basic (Loss)
income from
continuing
operations $ (0.49) $ 0.19(g)
Diluted (Loss)
income from
continuing
operations $ (0.49) $ 0.18(g)
Basic weighted
average shares
outstanding 30,163,750 30,163,750
Diluted
weighted
average shares
outstanding 30,163,750 31,542,099
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GateHouse Effects of Plan, Fresh Start and Other Adjustments

a. Commencing from the Listing, we pay our Manager a management fee equal to 1.5% per annum of Total Equity
calculated and payable monthly in arrears in cash. Total Equity is generally the equity transferred by Newcastle
to the Company upon Listing, plus total net proceeds from any equity capital raised (including through stock
offerings), plus certain capital contributions to subsidiaries, plus the equity value of assets transferred to the
Company prior to or after the date of the Management Agreement, less capital dividends and capital distributions.
In addition to the management fee and commencing from the Listing, our Manager is eligible to receive on a
quarterly basis annual incentive compensation in an amount equal to the product of 25.0% of the dollar amount
by which (a) the adjusted net income of the Company exceeds (b)(i) the weighted daily average Total Equity
(plus cash capital raising costs), multiplied by (ii) a simple interest rate of 10.0% per annum.

This adjustment reflects the impact of the management fee and is calculated based on the pro forma financial
information. For purposes of the pro forma, the equity value of $390.4 million, which is equal to the equity transferred
by Newcastle to the Company upon Listing, is utilized and resulted in a management fee of $5.9 million for the year
ended December 29, 2013. An adjustment of $0.6 million is included for the nine months ended September 28, 2014
to reflect the pro forma impact of the management fee from the beginning of the year to the Listing date, refer to table
below:

Nine months ended
September 28,

2014
Total Equity $ 390,449

Base management fee of 1.5% 4,393
Elimination of historical management fee (3,727)

Management fee adjustment $ 666

The adjusted net loss, which excludes depreciation and amortization and adjusts for cash taxes, was $33.4 million for
the year ended December 29, 2013 resulted in no incentive compensation for the year. The table below sets forth the
calculation of the incentive compensation:

Year ended
December 29,

2013
New Media pro forma net loss $ (58,777) 
Plus: income taxes (37,816) 
Plus: depreciation and amortization 63,215
Less: cash taxes �  
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Adjusted net loss (33,378) 
10% of Total Equity 39,045

Adjusted net income less 10% of Total Equity �  

Incentive compensation at 25% of the excess of adjusted net income over 10% of Total Equity $ �  

No incentive compensation is included in the pro forma statement of operations for the nine months ended
September 28, 2014.

b. This adjustment reflects the adoption of fresh start accounting resulting in the revaluation of the tangible and
intangible assets. The fair value of Predecessor GateHouse�s property, plant and equipment exceeded its carrying
value by approximately $97.5 million and its intangible assets carrying value exceeded its fair value by
approximately $33.3 million. This adjustment eliminates the historical depreciation and amortization expense and
records the incremental ten months of depreciation and amortization based on the
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fair values determined as of the Confirmation Date. Refer to the audited consolidated financial statements of New
Media for the year ended December 29, 2013 for additional information on the useful lives and fair value
disclosures.

The following tables provide the details on the depreciation and amortization adjustments:

Year ended
December 29,

2013
Incremental ten months Successor GateHouse depreciation $ 18,211
Elimination of Predecessor GateHouse depreciation* (13,266) 

Total increase in depreciation adjustment $ 4,945

Year ended
December 29,

2013
Incremental ten months Successor GateHouse amortization $ 5,243
Elimination of Predecessor GateHouse amortization (18,246) 

Total decrease in amortization adjustment $ (13,003)

* Excludes $1.9 million of depreciation expense for Local Media Predecessor included in the column
�GateHouse Predecessor ten months ended November 6, 2013� from date of acquisition (September 3, 2013)
through November 6, 2013. See Note i for depreciation adjustment related to Local Media.

c. The Restructuring provided for substantial changes to our debt structure as of November 26, 2013. This
adjustment eliminates the Predecessor GateHouse interest expense of approximately $74.0 million, excluding
$0.4 million of interest expense for Local Media Predecessor included in the column �GateHouse Predecessor ten
months ended November 6, 2013� from acquisition date (September 3, 2013) through November 6, 2013.

d. The pro forma impact associated with the extinguishment of the 2007 Credit Facility is $0.8 million, which
excludes $0.1 million for Local Media Predecessor included in the column �GateHouse Predecessor ten months
ended November 6, 2013� from acquisition date (September 3, 2013) through November 6, 2013, is eliminated by
this adjustment.

e. The Restructuring of the debt eliminated the derivative instruments that are secured pursuant to the 2007 Credit
Facility. As a result, this adjustment eliminates any gain or loss on these instruments included in the column
�GateHouse Predecessor ten months ended November 6, 2013.�
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f. Reflects the elimination of our bankruptcy-related reorganization expenses of $8.3 million, which were recorded
as a selling, general, and administrative expense, and reorganization items incurred during Chapter 11 of
$947.6 million as follows:

Predecessor
Company

Write-off of predecessor deferred financing fees $ 948
Credit agreement amendment fees 6,790
Bankruptcy fees 11,643
Net gain on reorganization adjustments (722,796)
Net gain on fresh start adjustments (246,243)
Adjustment to the allowed claim for derivative instruments 2,041

Total reorganization items (947,617)

g. Our Predecessor�s equity interests outstanding were cancelled pursuant to the Plan and New Media issued shares
of Common Stock with a par value of $0.01 per share. The number of shares used to compute pro
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forma basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended December 29, 2013 and basic earnings per share for the
nine months ended September 28, 2014 is 30,163,750 which is the number of weighted average shares
outstanding as of September 28, 2014. The diluted shares outstanding of 31,542,099 for nine months ended
September 28, 2014 include the warrants and restricted shares discussed below. The pro forma basic and diluted
loss per share for the year ended December 29, 2013 is estimated to be $1.95 and the pro forma basic and diluted
loss per share for the nine months ended September 28, 2014 are estimated to be $0.19 and $0.18.

Year ended
December 29, 2013

Pro forma net loss $ (58,777) 
New Media Common Stock outstanding 30,164

Pro forma loss per share (amounts in dollars) $ (1.95) 

Nine months ended
September 28,

2014
Pro forma net income $ 5,601
New Media Common Stock outstanding 30,164

Pro forma basic earnings per share
(amounts in dollars) $ 0.19

Nine months ended
September 28,

2014
Pro forma net income $ 5,601
New Media diluted shares outstanding 31,542

Pro forma diluted earnings per share
(amounts in dollars) $ 0.18

For the year ended December 29, 2013, we did not include any potential shares issuable upon exercise of the New
Media Warrants or unvested restricted share grants in the diluted loss per share calculation as their effect would have
been anti-dilutive to the per share calculations. For the nine months ended September 28, 2014, the diluted shares
outstanding include 1,362,479 warrants and 15,870 restricted shares granted. See Note 3 to New Media�s Consolidated
Financial Statements, �Fresh Start Accounting,� in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 29, 2013, incorporated by reference herein.

Local Media Purchase Accounting and Other Adjustments

h. Historical results for Local Media reported operating expense, which includes both operating and selling, Local
Media Purchase Accounting and Other Adjustments general and administrative expenses. This adjustment
allocates expense to both categories to conform to our statement of operations classification.
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i. Upon the acquisition, the purchase price of Local Media was allocated to the fair value of its assets and liabilities.
The fair value of its property, plant and equipment exceeded its carrying value as of the acquisition date by
approximately $9.4 million. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations reflects the
depreciation adjustment based on the fair value. The pro forma adjustment to depreciation expense includes an
increase of $2.2 million for the year ended December 29, 2013. No adjustment was made for amortization
expense as the fair value change was minimal. See Note 4 to New Media�s Consolidated Financial Statements,
�Local Media Acquisition,� in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2013,
incorporated by reference herein.

j. The financing of the Local Media Acquisition included $33.0 million of debt, which matures in September 2018
and has an interest rate of LIBOR, or minimum of 1.00%, plus 6.50%. Financing costs of $1.9 million were
incurred related to this financing and are amortized over the five year term. This adjustment estimates
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the impact of interest expense and the amortization of deferred financing costs for Local Media. Every 1/8 of a
percent change in LIBOR, after the 1.0% minimum is exceeded, would result in a $41,000 change in annual
interest expense.

The following table provides the interest expense and financing fee amortization:

Year ended
December 29,

2013
Interest expense on Local Media financing at 7.50% $ 1,656
Deferred financing fees amortized over 5 years $ 284

New Media Refinancing Adjustments

k. As part of the debt refinancing, $1.8 million of third party fees associated with the modified debt did not meet
capitalization requirements and were expense as incurred during the nine months ended September 28, 2014.
Additionally, a loss of $9.0 million was recognized on the extinguishment of the debt. This adjustment eliminates
the impact of these nonrecurring items.

l. The debt refinancing and entering into the New Media Credit Agreement will result in a net increase to the
interest expense of $12.1 million for the year ended December 29, 2013. This includes the annual amortization of
the additional original issuance discount of $6.7 million from the New Media Credit Agreement as well as
approximately $0.9 million of original issuance discount related to the modification of the GateHouse Credit
Facilities in relation to the lender under both agreements. The $7.6 million of original issue discount will be
amortized over the 6 year term of the New Media Credit Agreement.

For the nine months ended September 28, 2014, the debt refinancing will result in a $0.2 million decrease in interest
expense.

The tables below provide the calculation of the pro forma interest expense:

Year ended
December 29,

2013
Full year interest expense on New Media Term Loan Facility at 7.25% $ 14,500
Full year original issuance discount accretion on New Media Term Loan Facility 1,274
Elimination of GateHouse Credit Facilities and Local Media Credit Facility interest expense (3,666) 

Total increase to interest expense adjustment $ 12,108

Nine months ended
September 28,
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2014
Nine months interest expense on New Media Term Loan Facility at 7.25% $ 10,875
Nine months original issuance discount accretion on New Media Term Loan Facility 956
Elimination of GateHouse Credit Facilities and Local Media Credit Facility interest
expense (12,006) 

Total decrease to interest expense adjustment $ (175) 

Our weighted average interest rate on the New Media Credit Agreement, as a result of the refinancing, was
approximately 7.25% as the Revolving Credit Facility is assumed to be undrawn. A 1/8% increase or decrease in the
weighted average interest rate, including from an increase in LIBOR (excluding the impact of the LIBOR floor),
would increase or decrease interest expense on the New Media Credit Agreement by approximately $0.2 million
annually.

Drawn Rate Weighted Average
Revolving Credit Facility $ �  5.45% �  % 
Term Loan Facility 200,000 7.25% 7.25% 

$ 200,000 7.25%

52

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 104



Table of Contents

m. As a result of the refinancing, the Company had a total of $3.6 million of deferred financing fees related to the
New Media Credit Agreement. These deferred financing fees included arrangement fees, legal and other related
costs. The following table presents the pro forma impact of the deferred financing fees associated with the New
Media Credit Agreement and those associated with the elimination of the GateHouse Credit Facilities and Local
Media Credit Facility.

Year ended
December 29,

2013
Total new deferred financing fees $ 3,593
Amortization period 5-6 years
Full year New Media Credit Agreement deferred financing fees 599
Elimination of GateHouse Credit Facilities and Local Media Credit Facility deferred
financing fees (543) 

Total deferred financing fee adjustment $ 56

Nine months
ended

September 28,
2014

Total new deferred financing fees $ 3,593
Amortization period 5-6 years
Nine months New Media Credit Agreement deferred financing fees 449
Elimination of GateHouse Credit Facilities and Local Media Credit Facility deferred
financing fees (903) 

Total deferred financing fee adjustment $ (454)

As part of the refinancing, the interest rate swap associated with the GateHouse Credit Facilities was terminated. This
adjustment also eliminates the loss associated with this derivative instrument for the nine months ended September 28,
2014.

Providence Journal Purchase Accounting and Other Adjustments

n. Historical results for Providence Journal reported operating expense, which includes both operating and selling,
Providence Journal Purchase Accounting and Other Adjustments general and administrative expenses. This
adjustment allocates expense to both categories to conform to our statement of operations classification.

o. In accordance with ASC 805, the purchase price of Providence Journal was allocated to the fair value of its assets
and liabilities. The fair value of its property, plant and equipment exceeded its carrying value by approximately
$1.9 million and the fair value of its intangible assets exceeded its carrying value by approximately $6.6 million.
This adjustment modifies historical depreciation and amortization expense based on the fair value of property,
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plant and equipment and definite-lived intangible assets. The purchase price allocation is preliminary.

p. The financing of Providence Journal acquisition included $34.0 million of debt, $9.0 million under the revolving
credit facility and $25.0 million of additional term loans under the New Media Credit Agreement (collectively
�Financing of Providence Journal Acquisition�), net of $0.5 million of original issue discount. This adjustment
recognizes the additional interest related to the debt as reflected in the following tables.

Year ended
December 29,

2013
Full year interest expense on Financing of Providence Journal Acquisition at 6.76% $ 2,299
Full year original issuance discount accretion on Financing of Providence Journal Acquisition 83

Total increase to interest expense adjustment $ 2,382
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Nine months ended
September 28,

2014
Nine months interest expense on Financing of Providence Journal Acquisition at
6.76% $ 1,724
Nine months original issuance discount accretion on Financing of Providence Journal
Acquisition 62

Total increase to interest expense adjustment $ 1,786

Our weighted average interest rate on the Financing of Providence Journal Acquisition is estimated to be
approximately 6.76%. A 1/8% increase or decrease in the weighted average interest rate, including from an increase in
LIBOR (excluding the impact of the LIBOR floor), would increase or decrease interest expense on the New Media
Credit Agreement by approximately $0.04 million annually.

Drawn Rate Weighted Average
Revolving Credit Facility $ 9,000 5.41% 1.43% 
Term Loan Facility 25,000 7.25% 5.33% 

$ 34,000 6.76% 

Halifax Media Purchase Accounting and Other Adjustments

q. Historical results for Halifax Media reported operating expense, which includes both operating and selling,
Halifax Media Purchase Accounting and Other Adjustments general and administrative expenses. This
adjustment allocates expense to both categories to conform to our statement of operations classification.

r. In accordance with ASC 805, the estimated purchase price of Halifax Media will be allocated to the fair value of
its assets and liabilities. The fair value of its property, plant and equipment is anticipated to exceed its carrying
value by approximately $36.7 million and the fair value of its intangible assets is anticipated to exceed its
carrying value by approximately $104.0 million based on the current estimate. This adjustment modifies
historical depreciation and amortization expense based on the estimated fair value of property, plant and
equipment and definite-lived intangible assets. The purchase price allocations are preliminary.

s. The financing of the Halifax Media acquisition included $152.0 million of additional loans under the New Media
Credit Agreement, net of $3.4 million of assumed original issue discount and an additional $18.0 million of term
loans were assumed from the seller (collectively �Financing of Halifax Media Acquisition�). This adjustment
recognizes the additional interest related to the debt as reflected in the following tables.

Year ended
December 29,
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2013
Full year interest expense on Financing of Halifax Media Acquisition at 7.25% $ 12,325
Full year original issuance discount accretion on Financing of Halifax Media Acquisition 680
Elimination of historical Halifax Media interest expense (12,479) 

Total decrease to interest expense adjustment $ 526

Nine months ended
September 28,

2014
Nine months interest expense on Financing of Halifax Media Acquisition at 7.25% $ 9,244
Nine months original issuance discount accretion on Financing of Halifax Media
Acquisition 510
Elimination of historical Halifax Media interest expense (2,404) 

Total increase to interest expense adjustment $ 7,350
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Our weighted average interest rate on the Financing of Halifax Media Acquisition is estimated to be approximately
7.25%. A 1/8% increase or decrease in the weighted average interest rate, including from an increase in LIBOR
(excluding the impact of the LIBOR floor), would increase or decrease interest expense on the New Media Credit
Agreement by approximately $0.2 million annually.

Tax Impact on Pro Forma Adjustments

t. This adjustment provides the estimated impact of income tax expense or benefit based on the Company�s
estimated effective tax rate of 39.15%.

The table below provides a calculation of the pro forma income tax expense for New Media for the year ended
December 29, 2013:

New Media historical two months ended December 29, 2013 pre-tax net income $ 7,697
GateHouse Predecessor ten months ended November 6, 2013 pre-tax net income 788,043
Effects of Plan and fresh start and other adjustments (862,375)
Local Media pre acquisition (37,442) 
Local Media adjustments (4,135) 
New Media refinancing adjustments (12,164) 
Providence Journal pre acquisition 2,429
Providence Journal adjustments (180) 
Halifax Media pre acquisition 30,071
Halifax Media adjustments (8,537)

New Media pro forma pre-tax net loss $ (96,593) 
Effective tax rate 39.15% 

Income tax benefit $ (37,816) 

The table below provides a calculation of the pro forma income tax expense for New Media for the nine months ended
September 28, 2014:

New Media historical September 28, 2014 pre-tax net loss $ (12,965)
New Media refinancing adjustments 10,838
Providence Journal pre acquisition 2,455
Providence Journal adjustments (740) 
Halifax Media pre acquisition 21,825
Halifax Media adjustments (12,210) 

New Media pro forma pre-tax net income $ 9,203
Effective tax rate 39.15% 

Income tax expense $ 3,602
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NEW MEDIA INVESTMENT GROUP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet

(In thousands)

As of September 28, 2014

New
Media

Historical
September 28,

2014

Halifax
Media

Historical
September 29,

2014

Halifax
Media

Purchase
Accounting
and Other
Adjustments

Pro
Forma

September 28,
2014

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 135,063 $ 1,261 $ (114,661)(u,v) $ 21,663
Restricted cash 6,477 6,477
Accounts receivable, net 73,303 29,725 103,028
Inventory 11,106 5,516 16,622
Prepaid expenses 7,298 7,298
Other current assets 12,256 3,997 16,253

Total current assets 245,503 40,499 (114,661) 171,341
Property, plant, and equipment, net 290,481 73,935 36,665(w) 401,081
Goodwill 132,476 13,817 33,461(w) 179,754
Intangible assets, net 155,133 26,865 104,035(w) 286,033
Deferred financing costs, net 3,470 1,264 (1,264)(v) 3,470
Other assets 2,982 16,961 (16,685)(v) 3,258

Total assets $ 830,045 $ 173,341 $ 41,551 $ 1,044,937

Liabilities and Stockholders� Equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term liabilities $ 634 $ 634
Current portion of long-term debt 2,250 10,000 $ (8,800)(u,v) 3,450
Accounts payable 8,643 8,643
Accrued expenses 49,578 25,706 75,284
Deferred revenue 36,006 18,113 54,119

Total current liabilities 97,111 53,819 (8,800) 142,130
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt 230,025 47,466 117,934(u,v) 395,425
Long-term liabilities, less current portion 5,016 4,473 9,489
Deferred income taxes 1,703 1,703
Pension and other postretirement benefit
obligations 8,710 8,710
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Total liabilities 342,565 105,758 109,134 557,457

Stockholders� equity:
Common stock 375 375
Additional paid-in capital 494,109 494,109
Accumulated other comprehensive income 458 458
(Accumulated deficit) retained earnings (7,462) 67,583 (67,583)(x) (7,462) 

Total stockholders� equity 487,480 67,583 (67,583) 487,480

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 830,045 $ 173,341 $ 41,551 $ 1,044,937

Halifax Media Purchase Accounting and Other Adjustments

u. The Halifax Media acquisition was financed with a combined $152.0 million of additional term and revolving
debt under the New Media Credit Agreement that will mature on June 4, 2020 and June 4, 2019,
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respectively, and $110.0 million of cash. An interest rate of LIBOR, or minimum of 1%, plus 6.25% and original
issue discount of $3.4 million were assumed related to the consummation of this debt. An additional $18.0
million of term debt was assumed from the seller as part of the transaction. This adjustment recognizes the debt
and cash amounts.

v. This adjustment removes those assets and liabilities that will not be assumed in the Halifax Media acquisition,
including cash, deferred financing costs, assets held for sale and a portion of long term debt.

w. In accordance with ASC 805, the purchase price for Halifax Media will be allocated to the fair value of its assets
and liabilities (including identifiable intangible assets). The value assigned to property, plant and equipment,
goodwill and intangible assets is preliminary and subject to the completion of valuations to determine the fair
market value of the tangible and intangible assets.

x. This adjustment eliminates the historical stockholders� equity as a result of the Halifax Media purchase
accounting.
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OUR MANAGER AND MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

This description is a summary and is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by, the provisions of the Amended and
Restated Management Agreement filed as Exhibit 10.25 to our registration statement on Form S-1.

General

New Media is an externally managed by FIG LLC, an affiliate of Fortress, pursuant to the term of the Management
Agreement.

Management Agreement

On November 26, 2013, we entered into a Management Agreement with our Manager, which provides for the
day-to-day management of our operations. Our Management Agreement requires our Manager to manage our business
affairs subject to the supervision of our Board of Directors.

Our Manager is responsible for, among other things, (i) the purchase and sale of our investments, (ii) the financing of
our investments, and (iii) investment advisory services. Our Manager is responsible for our day-to-day operations and
will perform (or cause to be performed) such services and activities relating to our assets and operations as may be
appropriate, which may include, without limitation, the following:

(i) serving as the Company�s consultant with respect to the periodic review of the investment criteria and
parameters for investments of the Company (�Investments�), borrowings and operations;

(ii) investigation, analysis, valuation and selection of investment opportunities;

(iii) with respect to prospective Investments by the Company and dispositions of Investments, conducting
negotiations with brokers, sellers and purchasers and their respective agents and representatives,
investment bankers and owners of privately and publicly held companies;

(iv) engaging and supervising, on behalf of the Company and at the Company�s expense, independent
contractors that provide services relating to the Investments, including, but not limited to, investment
banking, legal advisory, tax advisory, accounting advisory, securities brokerage, real estate advisory and
brokerage, and other financial and consulting services as the Manager determines from time to time is
advisable;

(v) negotiating on behalf of the Company for the sale, exchange or other disposition of any Investments;

(vi) coordinating and managing operations of any joint venture or co-investment interests held by the
Company and conducting all matters with the joint venture or co-investment partners;
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(vii) providing executive and administrative personnel, office space and office services required in rendering
services to the Company;

(viii) administering the day-to-day operations of the Company and performing and supervising the performance
of such other administrative functions necessary in the management of the Company as may be agreed
upon by the Manager and our Board of Directors, including, without limitation, the collection of revenues
and the payment of the Company�s debts and obligations and maintenance of appropriate computer
services to perform such administrative functions;

(ix) communicating on behalf of the Company with the holders of any equity or debt securities of the
Company as required to satisfy the reporting and other requirements of any governmental bodies or
agencies or trading markets and to maintain effective relations with such holders;

(x) counseling the Company in connection with policy decisions to be made by our Board of Directors;

(xi) evaluating and recommending to our Board of Directors modifications to the hedging strategies in effect
on the date hereof and engaging in hedging activities on behalf of the Company;
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(xii) counseling the Company regarding the maintenance of its exemption from the Investment Company Act
of 1940 (the �Investment Company Act�) and monitoring compliance with the requirements for maintaining
an exemption from the Investment Company Act;

(xiii) assisting the Company in developing criteria that are specifically tailored to the Company�s investment
objectives and making available to the Company its knowledge and experience with respect to its target
assets;

(xiv) representing and making recommendations to the Company in connection with the purchase and finance,
and commitment to purchase and finance, of its target assets, and in connection with the sale and
commitment to sell such assets;

(xv) monitoring the operating performance of the Investments and providing periodic reports with respect
thereto to our Board of Directors, including comparative information with respect to such operating
performance, valuation and budgeted or projected operating results;

(xvi) investing and re-investing any moneys and securities of the Company (including investing in short-term
Investments pending investment in Investments, payment of fees, costs and expenses, or payments of
dividends or distributions to stockholders and partners of the Company) and advising the Company as to
its capital structure and capital raising;

(xvii) causing the Company to retain qualified accountants and legal counsel, as applicable, to assist in
developing appropriate accounting procedures, compliance procedures and testing systems with respect to
financial reporting obligations and to conduct quarterly compliance reviews with respect thereto;

(xviii) causing the Company to qualify to do business in all applicable jurisdictions and to obtain and maintain all
appropriate licenses;

(xix) assisting the Company in complying with all regulatory requirements applicable to the Company in
respect of its business activities, including preparing or causing to be prepared all financial statements
required under applicable regulations and contractual undertakings and all reports and documents required
under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the �Exchange Act�);

(xx) taking all necessary actions to enable the Company to make required tax filings and reports, including
soliciting stockholders for required information to the extent provided by the provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the �Code�);

(xxi) handling and resolving all claims, disputes or controversies (including all litigation, arbitration, settlement
or other proceedings or negotiations) in which the Company may be involved or to which the Company
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may be subject arising out of the Company�s day-to-day operations, subject to such limitations or
parameters as may be imposed from time to time by our Board of Directors;

(xxii) using commercially reasonable efforts to cause expenses incurred by or on behalf of the Company to be
reasonable or customary and within any budgeted parameters or expense guidelines set by our Board of
Directors from time to time;

(xxiii) performing such other services as may be required from time to time for management and other activities
relating to the assets of the Company as our Board of Directors shall reasonably request or the Manager
shall deem appropriate under the particular circumstances; and

(xxiv) using commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Company to comply with all applicable laws.
Indemnification

Pursuant to our Management Agreement, our Manager does not assume any responsibility other than to render the
services called for thereunder in good faith and is not responsible for any action of our Board of Directors in following
or declining to follow its advice or recommendations. Our Manager, its members, managers, officers and employees
are not liable to us or any of our subsidiaries, to our Board of Directors, or our
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or any subsidiary�s stockholders or partners for any acts or omissions by our Manager, its members, managers, officers
or employees, except by reason of acts constituting bad faith, willful misconduct, gross negligence or reckless
disregard of our Manager�s duties under our Management Agreement. We shall, to the full extent lawful, reimburse,
indemnify and hold our Manager, its members, managers, officers and employees and each other person, if any,
controlling our Manager, harmless of and from any and all expenses, losses, damages, liabilities, demands, charges
and claims of any nature whatsoever (including attorneys� fees) in respect of or arising from any acts or omissions of
an indemnified party made in good faith in the performance of our Manager�s duties under our Management
Agreement and not constituting such indemnified party�s bad faith, willful misconduct, gross negligence or reckless
disregard of our Manager�s duties under our Management Agreement.

Our Manager will, to the full extent lawful, reimburse, indemnify and hold us, our stockholders, directors, officers and
employees and each other person, if any, controlling us, harmless of and from any and all expenses, losses, damages,
liabilities, demands, charges and claims of any nature whatsoever (including attorneys� fees) in respect of or arising
from our Manager�s bad faith, willful misconduct, gross negligence or reckless disregard of its duties under our
Management Agreement. Our Manager carries errors and omissions and other customary insurance.

Management Team

Following the commencement of �regular-way� trading of Common Stock on a major U.S. national securities exchange
(the �Listing�) on February 14, 2014, the Manager is responsible for the compensation and benefits of our Chief
Executive Officer. Any increase to our Chief Executive Officer�s compensation and benefits in effect as of the date of
the Management Agreement will either be approved by the Manager or be paid for by the Company.

Devotion of Additional Time; Conflicts of Interest

Our management team is not required to exclusively dedicate their services to us and provides services for other
entities affiliated with our Manager.

In addition, Fortress affiliates are not restricted from pursuing other opportunities that may create conflicts or
competition for us. However, our code of business conduct and ethics prohibits, subject to the terms of our amended
and restated certificate of incorporation, the directors, officers and employees of our Manager from engaging in any
transaction that involves an actual conflict of interest with us. See �Risk Factors�Risks Relating to Our Manager�There
may be conflicts of interest in our relationship with our Manager, including with respect to corporate opportunities�
and �Description of Our Capital Stock�Corporate Opportunity.�

Assignment

Our Manager may generally only assign our Management Agreement with the written approval of a majority of our
independent directors; provided, however, that our Manager may assign our Management Agreement to an entity
whose day-to-day business and operations are managed and supervised by Mr. Wesley R. Edens (the �Principal�),
provided, further, that such transaction is determined at the time not to be an �assignment� for purposes of Section 205
of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated under such act and the
interpretations thereof issued by the SEC. We may not assign our Management Agreement without the prior written
consent of our Manager, except in the case of an assignment to our successor, in which case such successor
organization shall be bound under our Management Agreement and by the terms of such assignment in the same
manner as we are bound under our Management Agreement.

Term; Termination
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below) and will be renewed automatically each year for an additional one-year period unless (i) a majority consisting
of at least two-thirds of our independent directors or a simple majority of the holders of
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outstanding shares of our Common Stock, reasonably agree that there has been unsatisfactory performance that is
materially detrimental to us or (ii) a simple majority of our independent directors agree that the management fee
payable to our Manager is unfair; provided, that we shall not have the right to terminate our Management Agreement
under clause (iii) foregoing if the Manager agrees to continue to provide the services under the Management
Agreement at a fee that our independent directors have determined to be fair.

If we elect not to renew our Management Agreement at the expiration of the original term or any such one-year
extension term as set forth above, our Manager will be provided with 60 days� prior notice of any such termination. In
the event of such termination, we would be required to pay the termination fee described below. We may also
terminate our Management Agreement at any time for cause effective upon sixty (60) days prior written notice of
termination from us to our Manager, in which case no termination fee would be due, for the following reasons:

(i) the willful violation of the Management Agreement by the Manager in its corporate capacity (as
distinguished from the acts of any employees of the Manager which are taken without the complicity of the
Principal) under the Management Agreement;

(ii) our Manager�s fraud, misappropriation of funds, or embezzlement against us; and

(iii) our Manager�s gross negligence of duties under our Management Agreement.
In addition, our Manager may terminate our Management Agreement effective upon sixty (60) days prior written
notice of termination to us in the event that we default in the performance or observance of any material term,
condition or covenant contained in our Management Agreement and such default continues for a period of thirty
(30) days after written notice thereof specifying such default and requesting that the same be remedied in such 30 day
period.

If our Management Agreement is terminated by our Manager upon our breach, we would be required to pay our
Manager the termination fee described below.

Management Fee

We pay our Manager an annual management fee equal to 1.50% per annum of our Total Equity calculated and payable
monthly in arrears in cash. Total Equity is generally the equity transferred by Newcastle on the date on which our
shares trade in the �regular way� market on the NYSE, plus total net proceeds from any equity capital raised (including
through stock offerings), plus certain capital contributions to subsidiaries, plus the equity value of certain assets
contributed to the Company, less capital dividends and capital distributions.

Our Manager computes each installment of the management fee within 15 days after the end of the calendar month
with respect to which such installment is payable.

Incentive Compensation

Our Manager is eligible to receive on a quarterly basis annual incentive compensation in an amount equal to the
product of 25% of the dollar amount by which (a) the adjusted net income of the Company exceeds (b)(i) the weighted
daily average total equity (plus cash capital raising costs), multiplied by (ii) a simple interest rate of 10% per annum.
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�Adjusted net income� means net income (computed in accordance with U.S. GAAP plus depreciation and amortization,
and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships, joint ventures and permanent cash tax savings. Adjusted net
income will be computed on an unconsolidated basis. The computation of adjusted net income may be adjusted at the
direction of the independent directors based on changes in, or certain applications, of GAAP.
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Upon any termination of our Management Agreement by either party, we shall be entitled to purchase our Manager�s
right to receive incentive compensation from our Manager for a cash purchase price equal to the amount that would be
distributed to our Manager if all of our assets were sold for cash at their then current fair market value (taking into
account, among other things, expected future performance of the underlying investments) or otherwise continue to pay
the incentive compensation to the Manager. In addition, if we do not elect to so purchase the Manager�s right to receive
incentive compensation, our Manager will have the right to require us to purchase the same at the price described
above. In either case, such fair market value shall be determined by independent appraisal to be conducted by a
nationally recognized appraisal firm mutually agreed upon by us and our Manager.

Our Board of Directors may request that our Manager accept all or a portion of its incentive compensation in shares of
our Common Stock, and our Manager may elect, in its discretion, to accept such payment in the form of shares,
subject to limitations that may be imposed by the rules of the NYSE or otherwise.

Upon the successful completion of an offering of shares of our Common Stock or any shares of preferred stock, we
will grant our Manager or an affiliate of our Manager options equal to 10% of the number of shares being sold in the
offering (excluding the shares issued to Newcastle or its affiliates in the Local Media Contribution), with an exercise
price equal to the offering price per share paid by the public or other ultimate purchaser. We are granting an affiliate
of our Manager options in connection with this offering.

Reimbursement of Expenses

Because our Manager�s employees perform certain legal, accounting, due diligence tasks and other services that
outside professionals or outside consultants otherwise would perform, following the Listing, our Manager is paid or
reimbursed for the cost of performing such tasks, provided that such costs and reimbursements are no greater than
those which would be paid to outside professionals or consultants on an arm�s-length basis.

We also pay all operating expenses, except those specifically required to be borne by our Manager under our
Management Agreement. Our Manager is responsible for all costs incident to the performance of its duties under the
Management Agreement, including compensation of our Manager�s employees, rent for facilities and other �overhead�
expenses. The expenses required to be paid by us include, but are not limited to, issuance and transaction costs
incident to the acquisition, disposition, operation and financing of our investments, legal and auditing fees and
expenses, the compensation and expenses of our independent directors, the costs associated with the establishment and
maintenance of any credit facilities and other indebtedness of ours (including commitment fees, legal fees, closing
costs, etc.), expenses associated with other securities offerings of ours, the costs of printing and mailing proxies and
reports to our stockholders, costs incurred by employees of our manager for travel on our behalf, costs associated with
any computer software or hardware that is used solely for us, costs to obtain liability insurance to indemnify our
directors and officers and the compensation and expenses of our distribution agent.

Termination Fee

The termination fee is a fee equal to the sum of (1) the amount of the management fee during the 12 months
immediately preceding the date of termination, and (2) the �Incentive Compensation Fair Value Amount,� if such option
is exercised by the Company or the Manager. The Incentive Compensation Fair Value Amount is an amount equal to
the incentive compensation that would be paid to the Manager if our assets were sold for cash at their then current fair
market value (as determined by an appraisal, taking into account, among other things, the expected future value of the
underlying investments).
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NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AND INCENTIVE AWARD PLAN

Nonqualified Stock Option and Incentive Award Plan

We have adopted a Nonqualified Stock Option and Incentive Award Plan (the �Incentive Plan�). The Incentive Plan is
intended to facilitate the use of long-term equity-based awards and incentives for the benefit of non-officer directors,
officers, directors, employees, advisors, service providers, consultants and other personnel of New Media and our
Manager.

A summary of the Incentive Plan is set forth below. This summary does not purport to be complete and is subject to
and qualified in its entirety by the full text of the Incentive Plan, which is filed as Exhibit 10.22 to our registration
statement on Form S-1.

Summary of the Incentive Plan Terms

The Incentive Plan is administered by our Board of Directors and by the Compensation Committee (the �Committee�).
As the administrator of the Incentive Plan, the Committee has the authority to grant awards under the Incentive Plan
and to adopt, alter and repeal such administrative rules, guidelines and practices governing the Incentive Plan as it
deems advisable for the administration of the Incentive Plan. The Committee also has the authority to interpret the
terms and provisions of the Incentive Plan, any award issued under the Incentive Plan and any award agreements
relating thereto, and to otherwise supervise the administration of the Incentive Plan. In particular, the Committee has
the authority to determine the terms and conditions of awards under the Incentive Plan, including, without limitation,
the exercise price, the number of shares of our Common Stock subject to awards, the term of the awards and the
vesting schedule applicable to awards and to waive or amend the terms and conditions of outstanding awards. All
decisions made by the Committee pursuant to the provisions of the Incentive Plan are final, conclusive and binding on
all persons.

The terms of the Incentive Plan provide for the grant of stock options that are not intended to qualify as �incentive
stock options� under Section 422 of the Code, stock appreciation rights (�SARs�), restricted stock, performance awards,
tandem awards and other stock-based and non-stock based awards, in each case to our Manager, to the employees,
officers, directors, consultants, service providers and advisors of our Manager who perform services for us, to our
employees, officers, consultants, service providers and advisors, and to such other persons who the Committee selects
to be participants in the Incentive Plan. Such awards may be granted singly, in tandem, or in combination with each of
the other awards.

We have initially reserved 15,000,000 shares of our Common Stock for issuance under the Incentive Plan on the first
day of each fiscal year beginning during the ten-year term of the Incentive Plan and in and after calendar year 2015,
that number will be increased by a number of shares of our Common Stock equal to 10% of the number of shares of
our Common Stock newly issued by us during the immediately preceding fiscal year (and in the case of fiscal year
2014, after the effective date of the Incentive Plan). The shares of our Common Stock which may be issued pursuant
to an award under the Incentive Plan may be treasury stock, authorized but unissued stock or stock acquired on the
open market to satisfy the requirements of the Incentive Plan. Awards may consist of any combination of such stock,
or, at our election cash. The aggregate number of shares of our Common Stock that may be granted during any
calendar year to any participant who is a �covered employee� for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Code during such
calendar year may not be greater than the number of shares initially reserved for issuance under the Incentive Plan. If
any shares of our Common Stock subject to an award are forfeited, cancelled, exchanged or surrendered or if an award
otherwise terminates or expires without a distribution of shares to the participant, such shares will again be available
for grants under the Incentive Plan. We reserve the right under the Incentive Plan to cancel any stock option with an
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cancellation, and any shares of Common Stock that were subject to such cancelled stock option will again be available
for issuance of stock options under the Incentive Plan, including issuance to the participant who holds such cancelled
stock option and irrespective of whether such issuance would be deemed a repricing of such stock option. We reserve
the right
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under the Incentive Plan to cancel any stock option with an exercise price that equals or exceeds the fair market value
of a share of our Common Stock on the date of such cancellation, and any shares of Common Stock that were subject
to such cancelled stock option will again be available for issuance of stock options under the Incentive Plan, including
issuable to the participant who held such cancelled stock option and irrespective of whether such issuance would be
deemed a repricing of such stock option. The grant of a Tandem Award (as described below) will not reduce the
number of shares of our Common Stock reserved and available for issuance under the Incentive Plan.

Upon the occurrence of any event which affects the shares of our Common Stock in such a way that an adjustment of
outstanding awards is appropriate to prevent the dilution or enlargement of rights under the awards, the Committee
will make appropriate equitable adjustments. The Committee may also provide for other substitutions or adjustments
in its sole discretion, including, without limitation, the cancellation of any outstanding award and payment in cash or
other property in exchange thereof, equal to the excess, if any, of the fair market value of the shares or other property
subject to the award over the exercise price, if any.

We anticipate that we will grant our Manager or an affiliate of our Manager options in connection with our equity
offerings as compensation for our Manager�s role in raising capital for us. In the event that we offer shares of our
Common Stock to the public, we intend to simultaneously grant to our Manager or an affiliate of our Manager a
number of options equal to up to 10% of the aggregate number of shares being issued in such offering at an exercise
price per share equal to the offering price per share, as determined by the Committee. The main purpose of these
options is to provide transaction-specific compensation to the Manager, in a form that aligns our Manager�s interests
with those of our stockholders, for the valuable services it provides in raising capital for us to invest through equity
offerings. We are granting an affiliate of our Manager options in connection with this offering. In each case, the
Incentive Plan provides that such options will be fully vested as of the date of grant and exercisable as to 1/30 of the
shares subject to the option on the first day of each of the 30 calendar months following the date of the grant. The
exercise price of such options may be paid in cash or its equivalent, as determined by the Committee. Payment in
whole or in part may also be made by the following cashless exercise procedures: (i) by withholding from shares of
our Common Stock otherwise issuable upon exercise of such option, (ii) in the form of our unrestricted Common
Stock already owned by our Manager which has a fair market value on the date of surrender equal to the aggregate
option price of our Common Stock as to which such option shall be exercised or (iii) by means of any other cashless
exercise procedure approved by the Committee.

Upon our Manager�s reasonable request, we will either (i) use commercially reasonable efforts to register under the
Securities Act the securities that may be issued and sold under the Incentive Plan or the resale of such securities issued
and sold pursuant to the Incentive Plan or (ii) enter into a registration rights agreement with our Manager on terms to
be mutually agreed upon between us and our Manager.

In addition, the Committee will have the authority to grant such other awards to our Manager as it deems advisable,
provided that no such award may be granted to our Manager in connection with any issuance by us of equity securities
in excess of 10% of the maximum number of equity securities then being issued. Our Board of Directors may also
determine to issue options to the Manager that are not subject to the Incentive Plan, provided that the number of shares
underlying any options granted to the Manager in connection with capital raising efforts would not exceed 10% of the
shares sold in such offering and would be subject to NYSE rules.

In addition, each of the Committee and our Manager will have the authority under the terms of the Incentive Plan to
direct awards of tandem options (�Tandem Awards�) to employees of our Manager who act as officers or perform other
services for us that correspond on a one-to-one basis with the options granted to our Manager, such that exercise by
such employee of the Tandem Awards would result in the corresponding options held by our Manager being
cancelled. As a condition to the grant of Tandem Awards, our Manager will be required to agree that so long as such

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 126



Tandem Awards remain outstanding, our Manager will not exercise any options under any designated Manager
options that relate to the options outstanding under such Tandem Awards. If any Tandem Awards are forfeited, expire
or are cancelled without being exercised, the related options under the designated

64

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 127



Table of Contents

Manager options will again become exercisable in accordance with their terms. The terms and conditions of any
Tandem Awards (e.g., the per-share exercise price, the schedule of vesting, exercisability and delivery, etc.) will be
determined by the Committee or the Manager, as the case may be, in its sole discretion and must be included in an
award agreement, provided, that the term of such Tandem Awards may not be greater than the term of the designated
Manager options to which they relate. As determined by our Manager, in its sole discretion, payment of the exercise
price of such Tandem Awards in whole or in part may be made by the following cashless exercise procedures: (i) by
withholding from shares of our Common Stock otherwise issuable upon exercise of such Tandem Award, (ii) in the
form of our unrestricted Common Stock already owned by the holder of such Tandem Award which has a fair market
value on the date of surrender equal to the aggregate option price of our Common Stock as to which such Tandem
Award shall be exercised or (iii) by means of any other cashless exercise procedure approved by the Committee. All
options granted to our Manager will become fully vested and exercisable upon a �change of control� (as defined in the
Incentive Plan) or a termination of the Manager�s services to us for any reason, and any Tandem Awards will be
governed by the terms and condition set forth in the applicable award agreements, as determined by the Committee or
the Manager, as the case may be.

As a general matter, the Incentive Plan provides that the Committee has the power to determine the number of shares
of our Common Stock covered by options, the exercise price of options, at what time or times each option may be
exercised and, subject to the provisions of the Incentive Plan, the period of time, if any, after death, disability or other
termination of employment during which options may be exercised. Options may become vested and exercisable in
installments, and the exercisability of options may be accelerated by the Committee. To the extent permitted by
applicable law, we may make loans available to the optionee in connection with the exercise of stock options. Such
loans must be evidenced by the delivery of a promissory note and will bear interest and be subject to such other terms
and conditions (including, without limitation, the execution by the optionee of a pledge agreement) as the Committee
may determine. In any event, such loan amount may not exceed the sum of (x) the exercise price less the par value of
the shares of our Common Stock subject to such option then being exercised plus (y) any federal, state or local income
taxes attributable to such exercise.

The Committee may also grant SARs in tandem with all or part of, or completely independent of, a grant of options or
any other award under the Plan. A SAR issued in tandem with an option may be granted at the time of grant of the
related option or at any time during the term of such option. The amount payable in cash and/or shares of our
Common Stock with respect to each SAR will be equal in value to a percentage (including up to 100%) of the amount
by which the fair market value per share of our Common Stock on the exercise date exceeds the fair market value per
share of our Common Stock on the date of grant of the SAR. The applicable percentage will be established by the
Committee. The award agreement under which the SAR is granted may state whether the amount payable is to be paid
wholly in cash, wholly in shares of our Common Stock or in any combination of the foregoing, and if the award
agreement does not state the manner of payment, the Committee will determine such manner of payment at the time of
payment. The amount payable in shares of our Common Stock, if any, is determined with reference to the fair market
value per share of our Common Stock on the date of exercise.

SARs issued in tandem with options shall be exercisable only to the extent that the options to which they relate are
exercisable. Upon exercise of the tandem SAR, and to the extent of such exercise, the participant�s underlying option
shall automatically terminate. Similarly, upon the exercise of the tandem option, and to the extent of such exercise, the
participant�s related SAR will automatically terminate.

The Committee may also grant restricted stock, RSUs, performance awards, tandem awards and other stock and
non-stock-based awards under the Incentive Plan. These awards will be subject to such conditions and restrictions as
the Committee may determine, which may include, without limitation, the achievement of certain performance goals
or continued service with us through a specific period.
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on the fair market value of shares of our Common Stock on the date of grant. Such automatic annual awards, which
will be fully vested on the date of grant, will begin on the first business day after our first annual stockholders� meeting
following December 31, 2014, and will continue to be made on the first business day after each such annual meeting
thereafter during the term of the Incentive Plan. In addition, each new non-officer or non-employee member of our
Board of Directors were granted an initial one-time grant of shares of restricted stock under the Incentive Plan. Such
initial restricted stock grant has a fair market value equal to $75,000 on the date of grant and will vest ratably on each
of the first three anniversaries of the date of grant subject to the holders continued service as a director through the
specified vesting date.

While we intend to grant additional awards under the Incentive Plan to eligible participants, we have not yet
established specific parameters regarding the granting of such future awards under the Incentive Plan. As such, the
benefits or amounts that will be received by or allocated to any participants under the Incentive Plan following
completion of this offering are not currently determinable.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

We pay an annual fee to each independent director equal to $150,000, payable semi-annually. In addition, an annual
fee of $10,000 is paid to the chairs of each of the Audit, Nominating and Corporate Governance and Compensation
committees of the board of directors. Fees to independent directors may be made by issuance of common stock, based
on the value of such common stock at the date of issuance, rather than in cash, provided that any such issuance does
not prevent such director from being determined to be independent and such shares are granted pursuant to a
stockholder-approved plan or the issuance is otherwise exempt from NYSE listing requirements. Each independent
director also (i) received an initial one time grant of shares of restricted stock under the Incentive Plan, the market
value of which was equal to $75,012 on the date of the grant and which will vest ratably on each of the first three
anniversaries of the date of grant, subject to the holder�s continued service as a director through the specified vesting
date and (ii) beginning on the first business day after our first annual stockholders� meeting following December 31,
2014, and on the first business day after each such annual meeting thereafter during the term of the Incentive Plan,
will receive automatic annual awards of shares of common stock in respect of a portion of the annual fee in an amount
to be determined by the Compensation Committee from time to time, based on the fair market value of shares of our
common stock on the date of grant. For additional information on director equity compensation, see
�Management�Nonqualified Stock Option and Incentive Award Plan.� Affiliated directors, however, are not separately
compensated by us. All members of the board of directors are reimbursed for reasonable costs and expenses incurred
in attending meetings of our board of directors.

2014 Director Compensation Table

Name

Fees Earned
or Paid in
Cash ($)(1)

Stock
Awards Total ($)

Wesley R. Edens(2) �  �  �  
Theodore P. Janulis 160,000 75,012 235,012
Michael E. Reed(2) �  �  �  
Kevin M. Sheehan 190,000 75,012 235,012
Laurence Tarica 160,000 75,012 235,012

(1) Amounts in this column reflect the annual cash retainer of $150,000 earned by Mr. Janulis, Mr. Sheehan and
Mr. Tarica in 2014, an additional $10,000 that Mr. Janulis, Mr. Sheehan and Mr. Tarica earned as Chairs of the
Compensation Committee, Audit Committee, and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee,
respectively, and additional director fees of $30,000 paid to Mr. Sheehan in respect of his service in 2013.

(2) Messrs. Edens and Reed are not independent directors and so receive no compensation for services as a director.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

For the purposes of this section only, where context so requires, �GateHouse� refers either to our Predecessor or to
GateHouse Media, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of New Media Investment Group Inc.

In fiscal year 2014, Mr. Reed�s compensation for service as our Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Freiberg�s
compensation for service as our Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer were paid by the Manager
pursuant to the terms of our Management Agreement. Our Management Agreement generally provides that our
Manager is responsible for managing our affairs. Mr. Reed and Mr. Freiberg, in their capacities as employees of our
Manager, devote such portion of their time to our affairs as is necessary to enable us to operate our business. Messrs.
Reed and Freiberg did not receive any compensation from us for serving as our officers. Mr. Davis is compensated by
us for his service as our Chief Operating Officer and as Chief Executive Officer of GateHouse.

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Other than Mr. Davis, our executive officers are not compensated by us and neither our board of directors nor our
Compensation Committee has a role in determining the compensation received by them from our Manager for their
services to us, except for Mr. Edens, solely in his capacity as a principal of the Manager and not as a director. In 2014,
our Compensation Committee generally followed the practices of our Predecessor in 2013 and the terms of Mr. Davis�
existing employment agreement in regard to Mr. Davis� annual compensation.

The following Compensation Discussion and Analysis describes the material elements of compensation for Mr. Davis.
We have a fairly simple executive compensation program as our Manager is primarily responsible for managing our
affairs. Our executive compensation program in 2014 had two key elements: (a) base salary and (b) an annual
incentive in the form of an annual bonus.

We did not hold an annual stockholders meeting in 2014. Our Predecessor�s stockholders approved the fiscal year 2012
executive compensation program at its 2013 Annual Meeting. After considering the results of the vote, the board of
directors concluded that the executive compensation program continued to promote the creation of value for our
stockholders, and therefore made no significant changes to the executive compensation program.

Objectives of Our Compensation Program

The primary objective of our executive compensation program is to attract and retain executives with the requisite
skills and experience to help us achieve our business mission and develop, expand and execute business opportunities
to improve long-term stockholder value.

Key Elements of Our Executive Compensation Program

We seek to achieve the objectives for our executive compensation program through two key compensation elements:

� a base salary; and

� an annual incentive in the form of an annual bonus paid at our Compensation Committee�s discretion, based
on its evaluation of short-term company and individual performance.
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Compensation Setting Process

Role of the Compensation Committee

Our Compensation Committee is primarily responsible for overseeing and annually approving Mr. Davis�
compensation. In 2014, neither the Company nor our Compensation Committee utilized the services of a
compensation consultant in determining Mr. Davis� compensation.

Executive Compensation Program

Base Salary

Mr. Davis is paid a base salary providing him with a guaranteed income stream which does not vary with
performance. Mr. Davis� base salary is reflected in his employment agreement (described below) and was based on his
job responsibilities, leadership and experience and value to, and length of service with, our Company. Mr. Davis� base
salary was increased in February 2014 in recognition of the greater responsibilities he assumed in 2014.

Annual Bonus Incentive

Mr. Davis is entitled to a discretionary annual bonus. The annual bonus incentive is used to ensure that a portion of his
compensation is at risk, and that he has the opportunity to receive a variable amount of compensation based on the
Compensation Committee�s evaluation of his and the Company�s performance. The bonus is payable in our common
stock or cash or a combination thereof, as determined by our Compensation Committee, in its sole discretion.

While the amount, if any, of an annual bonus is determined by our Compensation Committee in its sole discretion, the
Compensation Committee looks at many factors in its decision-making process relating to the amount, if any, of the
annual bonus. The factors generally involve the following:

� Reviewing Company performance. Our Compensation Committee reviews all aspects of financial and
operational performance of the Company, and also assesses Company performance in relation to the
Company�s business direction, as determined by the Compensation Committee, taking into account changing
economic and market environments.

� Individual performance. Our Compensation Committee also evaluates individual performance beyond purely
financial measures, including, generally, one or any combination of the following: (i) exceptional
performance of each individual�s functional responsibilities; (ii) leadership; (iii) creativity; (iv) innovation;
(v) collaboration; (vi) development and implementation of growth initiatives; and (vii) other activities that
are critical to driving long-term value for stockholders.

� Measuring performance. After the end of the fiscal year, our Compensation Committee reviews Company
and individual performance. The Compensation Committee does not apply a rigid set of rules for
determining the relative importance of the factors discussed above. Our Compensation Committee may
emphasize or weight particular factors differently for each fiscal year.
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Our Compensation Committee has not yet determined the discretionary annual cash bonus, if any, it will award
Mr. Davis in respect of 2014. It will do so after considering the above general factors as well Mr. Davis� specific
accomplishments during 2014.

Benefits and Perquisites

Mr. Davis receives benefits and perquisites that are substantially the same as those offered to other employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries, including vacation, sick time, participation in medical, dental and insurance programs,
all in accordance with the terms of such plans and programs in effect from time to time.
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Risk and Compensation Policies

In considering the risks to the Company and its business that may be implied by our compensation plans and
programs, our Compensation Committee considers the design, operation and mix of the plans and programs at all
levels of the Company. Our compensation program is designed to mitigate the potential to reward excessive
risk-taking that may produce short-term results that appear in isolation to be favorable, but that may undermine the
successful execution of our long-term business strategy and erode shareholder value.

2014 Summary Compensation Table

The table below summarizes the total compensation paid or earned by Mr. Davis for the fiscal years 2014, 2013 and
2012, ending December 28, 2014, December 29, 2013 and December 30, 2012, respectively. In keeping with our
disclosure of business, financial and other information of our Predecessor elsewhere in this Prospectus, we have
included information in the table below regarding Mr. Davis� compensation as an executive officer of GateHouse for
2013 and 2012.

Name and Principal Position Year Salary ($) Bonus ($)

Change in
Pension Value

and
Nonqualified
Deferred

Compensation
Earnings 
($)(4) Total ($)

Kirk Davis 2014 494,785 (1) (5) (6)

�Chief Operating Officer 2013 479,001 125,000(2) 0 604,001
2012 461,261 350,000(3) 15,117 826,378

(1) This amount will reflect the bonus amount that was earned in 2014 and paid in 2015. Such amount has not yet
been determined as of the date of the filing of this registration statement and is expected to be determined by our
Compensation Committee on or about March 1, 2015. Once determined, we will disclose it as required under the
rules of the Exchange Act.

(2) This amount reflects the bonus amount that was earned in 2013 and paid in 2014.

(3) This amount reflects the bonus amount earned and paid in 2012.

(4) The amount in this column represents the aggregate change in the actuarial present value of Mr. Davis�
accumulated benefit under the George W. Prescott Publishing Company Pension Plan, which was frozen effective
December 31, 2008.
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(5) Such amount has not yet been determined as of the date of the filing of this registration statement and is expected
to be determined on or about March 1, 2015. Once determined, we will disclose it as required under the rules of
the Exchange Act.

(6) Such amount is not calculable as of the date of the filing of this registration statement and is expected to be
determined on or about March 1, 2015. Once determined, we will disclose it as required under the rules of the
Exchange Act.

Employment Agreement

Mr. Davis has no employment agreement with New Media. Mr. Davis and our Predecessor entered into an
employment agreement, effective as of January 9, 2009, as amended on March 6, 2012.

Pursuant to his employment agreement, which has no guaranteed term of employment or renewal provision, Mr. Davis�
annual base salary shall be reviewed on an annual basis and adjusted upward in the sole discretion of the board of
directors. Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr. Davis also is eligible for an annual bonus, based on the
achievement, as determined by the board of directors in its sole discretion, of certain performance standards agreed to
by Mr. Davis and the board of directors. Such bonus may be paid in such combination of cash and shares of common
stock as determined by the board of directors, in its sole discretion.

Mr. Davis was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of GateHouse on January 14, 2014 and continues to be employed
in that role pursuant to his employment agreement described above.

70

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 137



Table of Contents

No Grants of Plan-Based Awards, No Equity Compensation Granted During 2014, No Outstanding Equity Awards
at Fiscal Year-End and No Options Exercised or Stock Vested During 2014

We did not grant any plan-based awards or equity compensation to Mr. Davis during the fiscal year ending
December 28, 2014. No equity awards were outstanding at the end of fiscal 2014. Mr. Davis did not exercise any
stock options nor was he vested in any stock awards during 2014.

Pension Benefits

The following table sets forth Mr. Davis� retirement benefits under our retirement plans.

Name Plan name
Number of years
credited service (#)

Present value of
accumulated benefit

($)
Payments during
last fiscal year ($)

Kirk Davis Prescott Pension Plan 4.8 $ (1) $ �  

(1) Such amount has not yet been determined as of the date of the filing of this registration statement and is expected
to be determined on or about March 1, 2015. Once determined, we will disclose it as required under the rules of
the Exchange Act.

We maintain one defined benefit plan, the George W. Prescott Publishing Company Pension Plan (the �Prescott
Pension Plan�). The Prescott Pension Plan benefits the employees of the George W. Prescott Publishing Company by
providing funded, tax-qualified benefits up to the limits on compensation and benefits under the Internal Revenue
Code. Benefits under the Prescott Pension Plan are funded by an irrevocable tax-exempt trust. An executive�s benefits
under the Prescott Pension Plan are payable from the assets held by a tax-exempt trust, and are based on earnings up
to a compensation limit under the Internal Revenue Code (which was $230,000 in 2008).

Effective December 31, 2008, the Prescott Pension Plan was amended to freeze benefit accruals and participation. The
terms and conditions below relate solely to Mr. Davis and the other participants in the Prescott Pension Plan.

The �Normal Retirement Benefit� is expressed as an annual single life annuity payable from normal retirement age for
the remainder of his life. The benefit under the Prescott Pension Plan is equal to an amount equal to the sum of (i) and
(ii):

(i) an amount equal to the product of:
(a) 0.5% of Mr. Davis� Average Compensation (as defined below) not in excess of the covered compensation base plus
1% of his Average Compensation in excess of the covered compensation base; and (b) Mr. Davis� years of Accrued
Service (not in excess of 40).

(ii) an amount equal to the product of:
(a) 0.67% of Mr. Davis� Average Compensation; and
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(b) Mr. Davis� years of Accrued Service in excess of 40.

�Average Compensation� means the average of Mr. Davis� highest compensation paid during any five consecutive plan
years of the ten plan years prior to December 31, 2008. �Compensation� means Mr. Davis� total compensation in a plan
year, excluding any bonuses, any overtime payments and employer contributions under the Prescott Pension Plan or
under any other employee benefit plan of an affiliated company. Pay in excess of the Internal Revenue Code
Section 401(a)(17) limit, is not considered. �Accrued Service� is the total number of years prior to January 1, 2009 (June
1, 2009 for IBT Union employees), during which the executive has completed at least 1,000 Hours of Service.
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If Mr. Davis retires after reaching the age of 60 and has completed five years of vesting service, he is entitled to the
benefit amount. However, the benefit amount will be reduced 0.56% for each month his retirement precedes his
reaching the age of 65.

In the event Mr. Davis dies prior to the commencement of benefit payments, his spouse will be eligible for a death
benefit protection. This provides that if Mr. Davis and spouse were married for at least one year prior to his date of
death, then the spouse of Mr. Davis shall receive a survivor annuity which is equal to 50% of the pension Mr. Davis
would have received had he retired on his date of death or age 60, if later, with a joint and 50% survivor annuity
option.

If Mr. Davis dies after payment of his benefit under the Prescott Pension Plan has commenced, the death benefit
payable, if any, shall be determined in accordance with the form in which the benefit was being paid. The pension
benefit under the Prescott Pension Plan is reduced if paid before normal retirement age. The pension benefit is defined
as a single life annuity. Optional annuity forms which are approximately equal in value are also available.

2014 Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation

Mr. Davis was not a participant in and did not make contributions to or withdrawals from any nonqualified deferred
compensation plans during the fiscal year ending December 28, 2014.

Potential Payments Upon Resignation, Termination or Change in Control

The following table estimates the amount of compensation payable to Mr. Davis under his employment agreement in
the event of termination of his employment upon voluntary termination, termination for cause, death, disability,
retirement, involuntary not for cause termination and termination following a change of control. The amounts shown
are estimates assuming that such termination was effective as of December 28, 2014. Mr. Davis is entitled to receive
amounts earned during his term of employment regardless of the manner in which his employment is terminated.
These amounts include accrued but unpaid base salary and accrued and unused vacation pay through the date of such
termination (the �Accrued Benefits�) and are not shown in the table.

Payments Made Upon Termination for Cause or Resignation without Good Reason

If Mr. Davis� employment is terminated by the Company for cause or he voluntarily resigns without �good reason� (as
such terms are defined below), he would not be entitled to any further compensation or benefits other than Accrued
Benefits. Mr. Davis would also forfeit any unvested restricted stock bonuses and, in the case of termination due to an
act of dishonesty committed in connection with our business, he would forfeit all shares subject to any restricted stock
bonuses.

Payments Made Upon Termination without Cause or Termination for Good Reason Unrelated to a Change in Control

If Mr. Davis� employment is terminated by the Company other than for cause or is terminated by Mr. Davis for �good
reason� (as such terms are defined below) unrelated to a change in control, in each case, not within 18 months of the
earlier to occur of the commencement of any discussion with any individual or entity that ultimately results in a
change in control or the occurrence of a change in control transaction (this period is referred to as the �Protection
Period�), then he shall be entitled to:

(a) the Accrued Benefits;
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(b) an amount equal to 12 months current base salary payable in accordance with the Company�s customary payroll
practices;

(c) the annual bonus, including any declared bonus not yet paid;

72

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 141



Table of Contents

(d) continuation of health benefits at the same levels until the earlier of: (i) the time it takes Mr. Davis to become
eligible for benefits from a new employer; or (ii) 12 months from the date of termination; and

(e) the shares subject to any restricted stock bonuses that would have vested on the next anniversary date following the
date of such termination, but in no event less than one-third (1/3) each of the shares underlying any such restricted
stock bonuses.

Payments Made Upon Termination without Cause or Termination for Good Reason following a Change in Control

If Mr. Davis�s employment is terminated by the Company other than for cause or is terminated by him for �good reason�
(as such term is defined below) following a change in control, in each case within the Protection Period, then he shall
be entitled to:

(a) the Accrued Benefits;

(b) an amount equal to 24 Months Base Salary plus Average Monthly Bonus payable in accordance with the
Company�s customary payroll practices;

(c) a pro-rated bonus for the year of termination;

(d) vesting of the portion of the shares of any restricted stock bonuses that are not vested as of the date of termination,
if the date of termination is within 12 months of the change in control;

(e) up to 6 months of outplacement services;

(f) continuation of health benefits at the same levels until the earlier of: (i) the time it takes Mr. Davis to become
eligible for benefits from a new employer; or (ii) 12 months from the date of termination; and

(g) the shares subject to any restricted stock bonuses that would have vested on the next anniversary date following
the date of such termination, but in no event less than one-third (1/3) each of the shares underlying any restricted stock
bonuses, if the date of termination is not within 12 months of the change in control.

Payments Made Upon Resignation, Death or Disability

If Mr. Davis� employment is terminated by reason of voluntary resignation (other than a voluntary termination for
good reason), death or Disability (as defined in his employment agreement), he would not be entitled to receive any
further compensation or benefits other than the Accrued Benefits. If Mr. Davis fails to perform his duties as a result of
Disability or incapacity, he shall continue to receive his Base Salary and all other benefits and all other compensation
unless and until his employment is terminated.

73

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 142



Table of Contents

Potential Payments upon Termination or Change of Control(1)

EVENT

VOLUNTARY TERMINATION, TERMINATION FOR CAUSE OR RESIGNATION WITHOUT
�GOOD REASON�

Total $ 0

DEATH
Life insurance proceeds $ 494,785
Total $ 494,785

DISABILITY
Total $ 0

RETIREMENT
Total $ 0

TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE, TERMINATION FOR �GOOD REASON� UNRELATED TO
A �CHANGE IN CONTROL�

Annual bonus(2) $ 125,000
Cash severance payment(3) $ 494,785
Continued health care benefits $ 9,466
Total $ 629,251

TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE, TERMINATION FOR �GOOD REASON� FOLLOWING A
�CHANGE IN CONTROL�

Annual bonus(4) $ 125,000
Cash severance payment(5) $ 1,539,570
Continued health care benefits $ 9,466
Outplacement $ 9,000
Total $ 1,683,036

(1) This table assumes the specified termination events or change in control occurred on December 28, 2014.

(2) This is the maximum amount based on the previous year�s bonus and is payable only if previously declared.

(3) The �cash severance payment� consists of a monthly payment for 12 months equal to the executive�s monthly base
salary.

(4) This is the maximum amount based on the previous year�s bonus and is subject to pro-ration for the portion of the
year elapsed.
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(5) The �cash severance payment� consists of a monthly payment for 24 months equal to the executive�s monthly base
salary and average monthly bonus (the average of the last three annual cash bonuses divided by 12).

�Cause� is defined as: (a) a conviction of, guilty plea concerning or confession of any felony; (b) any act of dishonesty
in connection with GateHouse�s business; (c) any uncured material breach by Mr. Davis of his employment agreement;
(d) any material breach of any reasonable and lawful rule or directive from GateHouse; (e) the gross or willful neglect
of duties or gross misconduct by Mr. Davis; or (f) the habitual use of drugs or habitual, excessive use of alcohol to the
extent that any of such uses materially interferes with the performance of Mr. Davis� duties under his employment
agreement.

�Good reason� is defined as the occurrence of any one or more of the following at any time during Mr. Davis�
employment without his written consent: (a) the failure to maintain Mr. Davis in the same or better position with
GateHouse which Mr. Davis held immediately prior to a change in control, or the removal of Mr. Davis as a member
of the GateHouse board of directors; (b) a significant adverse change in the nature or scope of Mr. Davis� authorities,
powers, functions, responsibilities or duties immediately prior to the change in control; (c) a reduction in the aggregate
of Mr. Davis� base salary or annual cash bonus; (d) a reduction in
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Mr. Davis� long-term incentive compensation opportunity; (e) the termination or denial of Mr. Davis� rights to
retirement or welfare benefits or a reduction in the scope or value of such benefits (other than any a reduction that is
generally applicable to all employees); (f) any change of Mr. Davis� principal place of employment to a location more
than 50 miles away from his principal place of employment immediately prior to a change in control; (g) any uncured
failure to pay Mr. Davis any compensation when due; (h) the delivery to Mr. Davis of a written notice of the intent to
terminate his employment for any reason, other than cause or disability, regardless of when such termination is
intended to become effective; or (i) any failure by GateHouse to comply with any provision of his employment
agreement.

Mr. Davis� receipt of the payments and benefits outlined above are subject to his execution of a general release of
claims against GateHouse and its affiliates. He also has restrictive covenants in his employment agreement for the
benefit of GateHouse and its affiliates relating to non-competition during the term of employment and for the one year
period following termination of his employment for any reason. Mr. Davis� employment agreement also contains
restrictive covenants relating to non-solicitation of employees, directors, agents, clients, customers, vendors, suppliers
or consultants of GateHouse and its affiliates during the term of employment and for the one year period following
termination of his employment for any reason.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table provides information with respect to the beneficial ownership of our Common Stock as of
January 13, 2015 (except as otherwise noted) by (i) each person who is a beneficial owner of more than 5% of our
outstanding Common Stock, (ii) each of our directors and our named executive officers, and (iii) all directors and
executive officers as a group.

On the Effective Date of the Plan, we were deemed to have issued and distributed 1,362,479 New Media Warrants.
The New Media Warrants collectively represent the right to acquire New Media Common Stock, which in the
aggregate was equal to 5% of New Media Common Stock as of the Effective Date (calculated prior to dilution from
shares of New Media Common Stock issued pursuant to the Local Media Contribution) at a strike price of $46.35
calculated based on a total equity value of New Media prior to the Local Media Contribution of $1.2 billion. Former
equity interests of GateHouse were cancelled under the Plan.

Except as otherwise noted in the footnotes below, each person or entity identified below has sole voting and
investment power with respect to such securities. We have outstanding an aggregate of 37,466,495 shares of Common
Stock as of the date of this Prospectus. The percentage of beneficial ownership of our Common Stock immediately
after this offering is based on shares of our Common Stock issued and outstanding. The table assumes that the
underwriters will not exercise their option to purchase up to 1,035,119 shares of our Common Stock.

Immediately Prior to
this Offering

Immediately After
this Offering

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner(1)

Amount and Nature of
Beneficial
Ownership Percent of Class(2)

Amount and Nature of
Beneficial
Ownership Percent of Class

Wesley R. Edens(3)(6) 1,041,421 2.77% 1,041,421 2.33% 
Michael E. Reed(4) 40,319 *% 40,319 *% 
Kevin M. Sheehan(5)(7) 6,549 *% 6,549 *% 
Theodore P. Janulis(7) 5,290 *% 5,290 *% 
Laurence Tarica(7) 20,290 *% 20,290 *% 
Kirk Davis(8) 1,700 *% 1,700 *% 
Gregory Freiberg 30,769 *% 30,769 *% 
All directors, nominees and executive
officers as a group (7 persons)(9) 1,146,338 3.06% 1,146,338 2.58% 
Omega Advisors, Inc. and its affiliates(10) 3,739,479 9.98% 3,739,479 8.41% 
Shannon River Fund Management LLC(11) 2,000,000 5.34% 2,000,000 4.50% 

* Denotes less than 1%.

(1) The address of all of the officers and directors listed above are in the care of FIG LLC, 1345 Avenue of the
Americas, 46th Floor, New York, New York 10105.

(2)
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Percentages shown assume the exercise by such persons of all options and warrants to acquire shares of our
Common Stock that are exercisable within sixty days after the date of this Prospectus and no exercise by any other
person.

(3) Includes 300,246 shares of New Media Common Stock held by Mr. Edens, 74,872 shares of New Media Common
Stock held by FOE I, which is an affiliate of our Managers, 517,293 shares of New Media Common Stock issuable
upon exercise of the New Media Warrants held by FIF III Liberty Holdings LLC and the option to purchase
149,010 shares of New Media Common Stock granted to FOE I that are vested and exercisable within sixty days
after the date of this Prospectus. Mr. Edens disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares and options to purchase
shares of New Media Common Stock held by FOE I and the shares of New Media Common Stock issuable upon
the exercise of the New Media Warrants held by FIF III Liberty Holdings LLC, except, in each case, to the extent
of his pecuniary interest therein. Does not include 7,219 shares of New Media Common Stock held by a charitable
trust of which Mr. Edens�s spouse is sole trustee, and Mr. Edens disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of
New Media Common Stock held by this charitable trust; does not include 7,219 shares of New Media Common
Stock held by a charitable trust of which Mr. Edens is trustee, and Mr. Edens disclaims beneficial ownership of
these shares of New Media Common Stock.

(4) Includes 9,550 shares of New Media Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the New Media Warrants.

(5) Includes 1,259 shares of New Media Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the New Media Warrants.
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(6) Mr. Edens, as a beneficial owner of FOE I, may be considered to have, together with the other beneficial owners of
FOE I, shared voting and investment power with respect to the shares of New Media Common Stock held by FOE
I.

(7) Includes with respect to each of these individuals the following number of restricted stock grants that vest in three
equal installments on March 14 of each of 2015, 2016 and 2017, subject such individual�s continued service as a
director through each vesting date: Sheehan�5,290; Janulis�5,290 and Tarica�5,290.

(8) Includes 1,700 shares of New Media Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the New Media Warrants.

(9) Certain of our directors and officers may purchase shares in connection with this offering. Excludes any shares of
New Media Common Stock that may be purchased by our directors and officers in connection with this offering.

(10) Based on information set forth in a Form 4 filed by Leon G. Cooperman on June 9, 2014. Includes:
(i) 81,219 shares of New Media Common Stock held by Leon G. Cooperman (the �Reporting Person�);
(ii) 269,086 shares of New Media Common Stock held in the account of the Reporting Person�s spouse,
Toby Cooperman, over which the Reporting Person has investment discretion; (iii) 2,847,017 shares of
New Media Common Stock held in the accounts of private investment entities over which the Reporting
Person has investment discretion; (iv) 83,024 shares of New Media Common Stock held in the account of
the Leon & Toby Cooperman Family Foundation over which the Reporting Person has investment
discretion; (v) 5,414 shares of New Media Common Stock held in the account of the Reporting Person�s
son, Michael S. Cooperman, over which the Reporting Person has investment discretion; and (vi) 453,719
shares of New Media Common Stock held in managed accounts over which the Reporting Person has
investment discretion. The Reporting Person disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of New Media
Common Stock referred to in sections (ii) through (vi) above, except, with regards to (iii) and (vi), to the
extent of his pecuniary interest therein.

(11) Based on information set forth in Schedule 13G, dated September 29, 2014, filed by Shannon River Partners LP
(the �Shannon River Partners Fund�), Shannon River Master Fund, L.P. (the �Shannon River Master Fund�), Doonbeg
Master Fund, L.P. (the �Doonbeg Fund�), Shannon River Fund Management LLC (�SR Management LLC�), Shannon
River Capital Management LLC (�SR Capital Management�), Shannon River Global Management, LLC (�SR Global
Management�), Doonbeg Global Management, LLC (�Doonbeg Management�), and Spencer Waxman, a United
States citizen (�Mr. Waxman�) with respect to 2,000,000 shares of New Media Common Stock, which states that
(i) Shannon River Partners Fund, SR Management LLC, SR Capital Management and Mr. Waxman have shared
voting power and dispositive power over 86,730 shares of New Media Common Stock, (ii) Shannon River Master
Fund, SR Global Management and Mr. Waxman have shared voting and dispositive power over 890,879 shares of
New Media Common Stock and (iii) Doonbeg Fund, Doonbeg Management and Mr. Waxman have shared voting
and dispositive power over 1,022,391 shares of New Media Common Stock.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS,

AFFILIATES AND AFFILIATED ENTITIES

Our Board has adopted written policies and procedures regarding the approval of any �related person transaction,�
which is any transaction or series of transactions in which we or any of our subsidiaries is or are to be a participant,
the amount involved exceeds $120,000, and a �related person� (as defined under SEC rules) has a direct or indirect
material interest. Under the policy, a related person would need to promptly disclose to the legal department any
proposed related person transaction and all material facts about the proposed transaction. The legal department would
then assess and promptly communicate that information to our independent directors. Based on their consideration of
all of the relevant facts and circumstances, our independent directors will decide whether or not to approve such
transaction and will generally approve only those transactions that are in, or are not inconsistent with, the best
interests of New Media, as determined by at least a majority of the independent directors. If we become aware of an
existing related person transaction that has not been pre-approved under this policy, the transaction will be referred to
our independent directors, who will evaluate all options available, including ratification, revision or termination of
such transaction. Our policy requires any director who may be interested in a related person transaction to recuse
himself or herself from any consideration of such related person transaction.

Transactions between the Company and the Manager or any affiliate of the Manager must be approved in advance by
the majority of the independent directors and be determined by such independent directors to be in the best interests of
the Company. If any affiliate transaction involving the acquisition of an asset by the Company from the Manager or an
affiliate of the Manager is not approved in advance by a majority of the independent directors, then the Manager may
be required to repurchase the asset at the purchase price (plus closing costs) to the Company.

As of December 29, 2013, Newcastle beneficially owned approximately 84.6% of the Company�s outstanding common
stock. On February 13, 2014, Newcastle completed the spin-off of the Company. On February 14, 2014, New Media
became a separate, publicly traded company trading on the NYSE under the ticker symbol �NEWM�. As a result of the
spin-off, the fees included in the Management Agreement with the Company�s Manager became effective. As of
September 28, 2014, Fortress and its affiliates owned approximately 1.7% of the Company�s outstanding stock and
approximately 41.1% of the Company�s outstanding warrants.

In addition, the Company�s Chairman, Wesley Edens, is also the Co-Chairman of the board of directors of Fortress.
The Company does not pay Mr. Edens a salary or any other form of compensation.

The Company�s Chief Operating Officer owns an interest in a company, from which the Successor Company and the
Predecessor Company received $92,000, $25,000, $270,000, and $25,000 during the three and nine months ended
September 28, 2014 and September 29, 2013, respectively, for commercial printing services which is included in
commercial printing and other on the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The Company�s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer are employees of Fortress and their salaries are
paid by Fortress.

Management Agreement

On November 26, 2013, we entered into the Management Agreement with our Manager, as amended and restated,
which provides for the day-to-day management of our operations. Our Management Agreement requires our Manager
to manage our business affairs subject to the supervision of our Board. See �Our Manager and Management Agreement�
included elsewhere in this Prospectus.
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GateHouse Management and Advisory Agreement

On November 26, 2013, New Media entered into the GateHouse Management and Advisory Agreement (the
�GateHouse Management Agreement�) with GateHouse, pursuant to which New Media managed the assets and the
day-to-day operations of GateHouse. New Media was responsible for, among other things (i) the purchase and sale of
GateHouse�s investments (ii) the financing of GateHouse�s investments and (iii) investment advisory services. Such
services may have been performed by the Manager.

The GateHouse Management Agreement had an initial three-year term and would have been automatically renewed
for one-year terms thereafter unless terminated by New Media or GateHouse. The GateHouse Management
Agreement would have automatically terminated if the Management Agreement between New Media and the Manager
was terminated.

New Media was (a) entitled to receive a management fee equal to 1.50% per annum of GateHouse�s Total Equity (as
defined in the GateHouse Management Agreement) and (b) eligible to receive incentive compensation based on
GateHouse�s performance. In addition, GateHouse was obligated to reimburse certain expenses incurred by New
Media in connection with the performance of its duties under the GateHouse Management Agreement.

The GateHouse Management Agreement was terminated effective June 4, 2014.

Local Media Management and Advisory Agreement

GateHouse managed the assets of Local Media pursuant to the Local Media Management Agreement. The Local
Media Management Agreement had a two-year term, with automatic renewal for successive two-year periods unless
terminated. While the Local Media Management Agreement was in effect, GateHouse was entitled to receive an
annual management fee of $1.1 million, subject to adjustments (up to a maximum annual management fee of $1.2
million), and an annual incentive compensation fee based on exceeding EBITDA targets of Local Media.

The Local Media Management Agreement was terminated effective June 4, 2014.

Holdings I Management Agreement

On June 4, 2014, the Company entered into a management agreement with Holdings I (as amended and restated, the
�Holdings I Management Agreement�). The Holdings I Management Agreement requires the Company to manage the
business affairs of Holdings I subject to the supervision of the Board of Directors of Holdings I.

The Holdings I Management Agreement has an initial three-year term and will be automatically renewed for one-year
terms thereafter unless terminated by the Holdings I. The Company is (a) entitled to receive from the Holdings I a
management fee and (b) eligible to receive incentive compensation that is based on the performance of Holdings I. In
addition, Holdings I is obligated to reimburse certain expenses incurred by the Company. The Company is also
entitled to receive a termination fee from Holdings I under certain circumstances. These fees eliminate in
consolidation.

Registration Rights Agreement with Omega

New Media entered into a registration rights agreement (the �Omega Registration Rights Agreement�) with Omega
Advisors, Inc. and its affiliates (collectively, �Omega�). Under the terms of the Omega Registration Rights Agreement,
subject to customary exceptions and limitations, New Media will be required to use commercially reasonable efforts

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 151



to file a registration statement (the �Registration Statement�) providing for the registration and sale by Omega of its
New Media Common Stock acquired pursuant to the Plan (the �Registrable Securities�) as soon as reasonably
practicable, but not prior to the earlier of (i) 120 days following the Effective
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Date and (ii) 14 days after the required financials are completed in the ordinary course of business. During the first 12
months following the Listing, subject to customary exceptions and limitations, Omega may request one demand right
with respect to some or all of the Registrable Securities under the Registration Statement (the �Demand Registration�).

Once New Media is eligible to use Form S-3, New Media will be required to use commercially reasonable efforts to
file a resale shelf registration statement providing for the registration and sale on a continuous or delayed basis by
Omega of its Registrable Securities (the �Shelf Registration�), subject to customary exceptions and limitations. Omega
is entitled to initiate up to three offerings or sales with respect to some or all of the Registrable Securities pursuant to
the Shelf Registration.

Omega may only exercise its right to request the Demand Registration and any Shelf Registrations if Registrable
Securities to be sold pursuant to such Registration Statement or Shelf Registration are at least 3% of the
then-outstanding New Media Common Stock. This description is a summary and is subject to, and qualified in its
entirety by, the provisions of the Omega Registration Rights Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our registration
statement on Form S-1.
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DESCRIPTION OF OUR CAPITAL STOCK

The following descriptions are summaries of the material terms of our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation and amended and restated bylaws. These descriptions contain all information which we consider to be
material, but may not contain all of the information that is important to you. To understand them fully, you should
read our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws, copies of which are
filed as Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 to our registration statement on Form S-1.

Please note that, with respect to any of our shares held in book-entry form through The Depository Trust Company or
any other share depositary, the depositary or its nominee will be the sole registered and legal owner of those shares,
and references in this Prospectus to any �stockholder� or �holder� of those shares means only the depositary or its
nominee. Persons who hold beneficial interests in our shares through a depositary will not be registered or legal
owners of those shares and will not be recognized as such for any purpose. For example, only the depositary or its
nominee will be entitled to vote the shares held through it, and any dividends or other distributions to be paid, and
any notices to be given, in respect of those shares will be paid or given only to the depositary or its nominee. Owners
of beneficial interests in those shares will have to look solely to the depositary with respect to any benefits of share
ownership, and any rights they may have with respect to those shares will be governed by the rules of the depositary,
which are subject to change from time to time. We have no responsibility for those rules or their application to any
interests held through the depositary.

Under our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws, our authorized capital
stock consists of:

� 2,000,000,000 shares of Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share; and

� 300,000 preferred shares, par value $0.01 per share.
There are outstanding 37,466,495 shares of our Common Stock and no outstanding shares of preferred stock. The
number of shares of our Common Stock outstanding does not include the shares of Common Stock offered hereby,
options to purchase 700,000 shares of our common stock, representing 10% of the number of shares being offered by
us hereby, that will be granted to an affiliate of our Manager in connection with this offering, and subject to
adjustment if the underwriters exercise their option to purchase additional shares of our common stock or options to
purchase 745,062 shares of our Common Stock granted to an affiliate of our Manager on September 23, 2014.

The following is a description of the material terms of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and
amended and restated bylaws. We refer you to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and
restated bylaws, copies of which have been filed as Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 to our registration statement on Form S-1.

Common Stock

Each holder of Common Stock is entitled to one vote for each share of Common Stock held on all matters submitted
to a vote of stockholders. Except as provided with respect to any other class or series of stock, the holders of our
Common Stock will possess the exclusive right to vote for the election of directors and for all other purposes. Our
amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws do not provide for cumulative
voting in the election of directors, which means that the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Common
Stock can elect all of the directors standing for election, and the holders of the remaining shares are not able to elect
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Subject to any preference rights of holders of any preferred stock that we may issue in the future, holders of our
Common Stock are entitled to receive dividends, if any, declared from time to time by our Board out of legally
available funds. In the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the holders of our Common Stock are
entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining after the payment of liabilities, subject to any rights of holders of our
preferred stock prior to distribution.

Holders of our Common Stock have no preemptive, subscription, redemption or conversion rights.
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Preferred Stock

Our Board has the authority, without action by our stockholders, to issue preferred stock and to fix voting powers for
each class or series of preferred stock, and to provide that any class or series may be subject to redemption, entitled to
receive dividends, entitled to rights upon dissolution, or convertible or exchangeable for shares of any other class or
classes of capital stock. The rights with respect to a series or class of preferred stock may be greater than the rights
attached to our Common Stock. It is not possible to state the actual effect of the issuance of any shares of our
preferred stock on the rights of holders of our Common Stock until our Board determines the specific rights attached
to that preferred stock. The effect of issuing preferred stock could include, among other things, one or more of the
following:

� restricting dividends in respect of our Common Stock;

� diluting the voting power of our Common Stock or providing that holders of preferred stock have the right to
vote on matters as a class;

� impairing the liquidation rights of our Common Stock; or

� delaying or preventing a change of control of us.
Registration Rights Agreement with Omega

New Media entered into the Omega Registration Rights Agreement on the Effective Date. Under the terms of the
Omega Registration Rights Agreement, subject to customary exceptions and limitations, New Media is required to use
commercially reasonable efforts to file the Registration Statement providing for the registration and sale of the
Registrable Securities as soon as reasonably practicable, but not prior to the earlier of (i) 120 days following the
Effective Date and (ii) 14 days after the required financials are completed in the ordinary course of business. During
the first 12 months following the Listing of New Media Common Stock on a major U.S. national securities exchange,
subject to customary exceptions and limitations, Omega may request one Demand Registration.

Once New Media is eligible to use Form S-3, New Media will be required to use commercially reasonable efforts to
file the Shelf Registration, subject to customary exceptions and limitations. Omega is entitled to initiate up to three
offerings or sales with respect to some or all of the Registrable Securities pursuant to the Shelf Registration.

Omega may only exercise its right to request the Demand Registration and any Shelf Registrations if the Registrable
Securities eligible to be sold pursuant to such Registration Statement or Shelf Registration are at least 3% of the
then-outstanding New Media Common Stock. This description is a summary and is subject to, and qualified in its
entirety by, the provisions of the Omega Registration Rights Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our registration
statement on Form S-1.

Anti-Takeover Effects of Delaware Law, Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and
Amended and Restated Bylaws
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The following is a summary of certain provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and
amended and restated bylaws that may be deemed to have an anti-takeover effect and may delay, deter or prevent a
tender offer or takeover attempt that a stockholder might consider to be in its best interest, including those attempts
that might result in a premium over the market price for the shares held by stockholders.

Authorized but Unissued Shares

The authorized but unissued shares of our Common Stock and our preferred stock will be available for future issuance
without obtaining stockholder approval. These additional shares may be utilized for a variety of corporate purposes,
including future public offerings to raise additional capital, corporate acquisitions and
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employee benefit plans. The existence of authorized but unissued shares of our Common Stock and preferred stock
could render more difficult or discourage an attempt to obtain control over us by means of a proxy contest, tender
offer, merger or otherwise.

Delaware Business Combination Statute

We are organized under Delaware law. Some provisions of Delaware law may delay or prevent a transaction that
would cause a change in our control.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation
Law (the �DGCL�), as amended, an anti-takeover law, will not apply to us. In general, this statute prohibits a publicly
held Delaware corporation from engaging in a business combination with an interested stockholder for a period of
three years after the date of the transaction by which that person became an interested stockholder, unless the business
combination is approved in a prescribed manner. For purposes of Section 203, a business combination includes a
merger, asset sale or other transaction resulting in a financial benefit to the interested stockholder, and an interested
stockholder is a person who, together with affiliates and associates, owns, or within three years prior, did own, 15% or
more of voting stock.

Other Provisions of Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaws

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides for a staggered Board consisting of three classes of
directors from and after the date of the first meeting of the Board of New Media following the Listing. Directors of
each class are chosen for three-year terms upon the expiration of their current terms and each year one class of our
directors will be elected by our stockholders. The terms of the first, second and third classes will expire on the dates of
the first, second and third annual meetings of stockholders held after the Listing, respectively. We believe that
classification of our Board will help to assure the continuity and stability of our business strategies and policies as
determined by our Board. Additionally, there is no cumulative voting in the election of directors. This classified board
provision could have the effect of making the replacement of incumbent directors more time consuming and difficult.
At least two annual meetings of stockholders, instead of one, will generally be required to effect a change in a
majority of our Board. Thus, the classified board provision could increase the likelihood that incumbent directors will
retain their positions. The staggered terms of directors may delay, defer or prevent a tender offer or an attempt to
change control of us, even though a tender offer or change in control might be believed by our stockholders to be in
their best interest. In addition, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws
provide that directors may be removed only for cause and only with the affirmative vote of at least 80% of the voting
interest of stockholders entitled to vote.

Pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, shares of our preferred stock may be issued from
time to time, and the Board is authorized to determine and alter all rights, preferences, privileges, qualifications,
limitations and restrictions without limitation. See ��Preferred Stock.�

Ability of our Stockholders to Act

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws do not permit our
stockholders to call special stockholders meetings (provided, however, that for so long as Newcastle and certain other
affiliates of Fortress and permitted transferees (collectively, the �Fortress Stockholders�) beneficially own at least 20%
of our issued and outstanding Common Stock, Fortress Stockholders may call special meetings of our stockholders).
Written notice of any special meeting so called shall be given to each stockholder of record entitled to vote at such
meeting not less than 10 or more than 60 days before the date of such meeting, unless otherwise required by law.
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Under our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws, any action required or
permitted to be taken at a meeting of our stockholders may be taken without a meeting by written consent of a
majority of our stockholders for so long as Fortress Stockholders beneficially own, directly or indirectly, at least 20%
of our issued and outstanding Common Stock. After Fortress Stockholders beneficially own less than 20% of our
issued and outstanding stock, only action by unanimous written consent of our stockholders can be taken without a
meeting.

Our amended and restated bylaws provide that nominations of persons for election to our Board may be made at any
annual meeting of our stockholders, or at any special meeting of our stockholders called for the purpose of electing
directors, (a) by or at the direction of our Board or (b) by any of our stockholders. In addition to any other applicable
requirements, for a nomination to be properly brought by a stockholder, such stockholder must have given timely
notice thereof in proper written form to our Secretary of the Company. To be timely, a stockholder�s notice must be
delivered to or mailed and received at our principal executive offices (a) in the case of an annual meeting of
stockholders, not less than 90 days nor more than 120 days prior to the anniversary date of the immediately preceding
annual meeting of stockholders; provided, however, that in the event that the annual meeting is called for a date that is
not within 30 days before or after such anniversary date, notice by a stockholder in order to be timely must be so
received not later than the close of business on the tenth day following the day on which such notice of the date of the
annual meeting was mailed or such public disclosure of the date of the annual meeting was made, whichever first
occurs; and (b) in the case of a special meeting of our stockholders called for the purpose of electing directors, not
later than the close of business on the tenth day following the day on which notice of the date of the special meeting
was mailed or public disclosure of the date of the special meeting was made, whichever first occurs.

Our amended and restated bylaws provide that no business may be transacted at any annual meeting of our
stockholders, other than business that is either (a) specified in the notice of meeting given by or at the direction of our
Board, (b) otherwise properly brought before the annual meeting by or at the direction of our Board, or (c) otherwise
properly brought by any of our stockholders. In addition to any other applicable requirements, for business to be
properly brought before an annual meeting by a stockholder, such stockholder must have given timely notice thereof
in proper written form to our Secretary. To be timely, a stockholder�s notice must be delivered to or mailed and
received at our principal executive offices not less than 90 days nor more than 120 days prior to the anniversary date
of the immediately preceding annual meeting of stockholders; provided, however, that in the event that the annual
meeting is called for a date that is not within 30 days before or after such anniversary date, notice by a stockholder in
order to be timely must be so received not later than the close of business on the tenth day following the day on which
such notice of the date of the annual meeting was mailed or such public disclosure of the date of the annual meeting
was made, whichever first occurs.

Forum Selection Clause

Under our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware will be
the sole and exclusive forum for (i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on our behalf, (ii) any action asserting
a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any of our directors or officers or our stockholders, (iii) any action
asserting a claim arising pursuant to any provision of the DGCL or our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation or amended and restated bylaws or (iv) any action asserting a claim against the us governed by the
internal affairs doctrine.

Limitations on Liability and Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that our directors will not be personally liable to us or
our stockholders for monetary damages for breach of a fiduciary duty as a director, except to the extent such
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Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws provide that we will
indemnify our directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by law. We are also expressly authorized to
advance certain expenses (including attorneys� fees and disbursements and court costs) to our directors and officers and
carry directors� and officers� insurance providing indemnification for our directors and officers for some liabilities. We
believe that these indemnification provisions and insurance are useful to attract and retain qualified directors and
executive officers.

We have entered into separate indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers. Each
indemnification agreement provides, among other things, for indemnification to the fullest extent permitted by law
and our amended and restated certificate of incorporation against (i) any and all expenses and liabilities, including
judgments, fines, penalties and amounts paid in settlement of any claim with our approval and counsel fees and
disbursements, (ii) any liability pursuant to a loan guarantee, or otherwise, for any of our indebtedness and (iii) any
liabilities incurred as a result of acting on our behalf (as a fiduciary or otherwise) in connection with an employee
benefit plan. The indemnification agreements provide for the advancement or payment of all expenses to the
indemnitee and for reimbursement to us if it is found that such indemnitee is not entitled to such indemnification
under applicable law and our amended and restated certificate of incorporation. These provisions and agreements may
have the practical effect in some cases of eliminating our stockholders� ability to collect monetary damages from our
directors and executive officers.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the �Securities Act�) may
be permitted to directors, officers or persons controlling the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, we have
been informed that, in the opinion of the SEC such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the
Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable.

Corporate Opportunity

Under our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, to the extent permitted by law:

� the Fortress Stockholders have the right to, and have no duty to abstain from, exercising such right to,
engage or invest in the same or similar business as us, do business with any of our clients, customers or
vendors or employ or otherwise engage any of our officers, directors or employees;

� if the Fortress Stockholders or any of their officers, directors or employees acquire knowledge of a potential
transaction that could be a corporate opportunity, they have no duty to offer such corporate opportunity to
us, our stockholders or affiliates;

� we have renounced any interest or expectancy in, or in being offered an opportunity to participate in, such
corporate opportunities; and

� in the event that any of our directors and officers who is also a director, officer or employee of any of the
Fortress Stockholders acquires knowledge of a corporate opportunity or is offered a corporate opportunity,
provided that this knowledge was not acquired solely in such person�s capacity as our director or officer and
such person acted in good faith, then such person is deemed to have fully satisfied such person�s fiduciary
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or if such person did not present the corporate opportunity to us.

Transfer Agent

The registrar and transfer agent for our Common Stock is American Stock Transfer and Trust Company, LLC.

Listing

Our Common Stock is listed on the NYSE under the symbol �NEWM�.
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SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

Upon completion of this offering, we will have outstanding 44,466,495 shares of our Common Stock, assuming
7,000,000 shares are sold in this offering (or 45,501,614 shares if the underwriters exercise their option to purchase
1,035,119 additional shares of Common Stock in full).

All of the 7,000,000 shares of Common Stock sold in this offering (or 8,035,119 shares if the underwriters exercise
their option to purchase additional shares of common stock in full) will be freely transferable without restriction or
further registration under the Securities Act unless such shares are purchased by �affiliates� as that term is defined in
Rule 144 under the Securities Act.

Future sales of substantial amounts of our Common Stock in the public market, including shares issued upon exercise
of outstanding options or warrants, or the anticipation of these sales, could adversely affect market prices prevailing
from time to time and could impair our ability to raise capital through sales of equity securities.

In connection with this offering, we have granted to an affiliate of our Manager an option relating to shares of our
Common Stock, equal in number to 10% of the number of shares being offered by us hereby, and subject to
adjustment if the underwriters� option to purchase additional shares is exercised, at the public offering price of our
shares in this offering (the �Manager Option�). The option shares are not registered in connection with this offering. We
also granted an affiliate of our Manager options to purchase 745,062 shares of our Common Stock in connection with
a previous offering.

Sale of Restricted Securities

The shares of New Media Common Stock are freely transferable, except for shares received by persons who may be
deemed to be New Media �affiliates� under the Securities Act, including any shares issued upon exercise of the Manager
Option, upon exercise of the options to purchase 745,062 shares of our Common Stock granted to an affiliate of our
Manager on September 23, 2014 and the                 shares of our Common Stock sold in this offering to certain of our
officers and directors and an officer of our Manager. Persons who may be deemed to be affiliates of New Media
generally include individuals or entities that control, are controlled by or are under common control with New Media
and may include directors and certain officers or principal stockholders of New Media. New Media affiliates will be
permitted to sell their shares of New Media Common Stock only pursuant to an effective registration statement under
the Securities Act or an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act, such as the exemptions
afforded by Rule 144.

Rule 144

In general, under Rule 144 as currently in effect, a person (or persons whose shares are aggregated), including an
affiliate, who beneficially owns �restricted securities� of a �reporting company� may not sell these securities until the
person has beneficially owned them for at least six months. Thereafter, affiliates may not sell within any three-month
period a number of shares in excess of the greater of: (i) 1% of the then outstanding shares of common stock as shown
by the most recent report or statement published by the issuer; and (ii) the average weekly reported trading volume in
such securities during the four preceding calendar weeks.

Sales under Rule 144 by our affiliates will also be subject to restrictions relating to manner of sale, notice and the
availability of current public information about us and may be affected only through unsolicited brokers� transactions.
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Persons not deemed to be affiliates who have beneficially owned �restricted securities� for at least six months but for
less than one year may sell these securities, provided that current public information about the Company is �available,�
which means that, on the date of sale, we have been subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act for at
least 90 days and are current in our Exchange Act filings. After beneficially owning �restricted securities� for one year,
our non-affiliates may engage in unlimited re-sales of such securities.
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Shares received by our affiliates in the spin-off of the Company, as a result of which each share of Newcastle common
stock outstanding as of a certain time entitled the holder thereof to receive 0.07219481485 shares of New Media
Common Stock (the �Distribution�), or upon exercise of stock options or upon vesting of other equity-linked awards
may be �controlled securities� rather than �restricted securities.� �Controlled securities� are subject to the same volume
limitations as �restricted securities� but are not subject to holding period requirements.

Lock-Up Agreements

We and our directors and executive officers have entered into lock-up agreements with the underwriters prior to the
commencement of this offering pursuant to which each of these persons or entities, with limited exceptions, for a
period of 45 days after the date of this Prospectus, may not, without the prior written consent of the underwriters,
offer, sell, contract to sell, pledge (other than pledges existing on the date of the underwriting agreement) or otherwise
dispose of, directly or indirectly, any shares of our common stock or securities convertible into or exchangeable or
exercisable for any shares of our common stock, enter into a transaction that would have the same effect, or enter into
any swap, hedge or other arrangement that transfers, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of
ownership of our common stock or securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for any shares of our
common stock, whether any of these transactions are to be settled by delivery of our common stock or other securities,
in cash or otherwise, or publicly disclose the intention to make any offer, sale, pledge or disposition, or to enter into
any transaction, swap, hedge or other arrangement.

New Media Warrants

On the Effective Date, the Company was deemed to have issued and distributed 1,362,479 10-year warrants to former
equity holders of GateHouse (the �New Media Warrants�). The New Media Warrants collectively represent the right to
acquire New Media Common Stock, which in the aggregate was equal to 5% of New Media Common Stock as of the
Effective Date (calculated prior to dilution from shares of New Media Common Stock issued pursuant to the Local
Media Contribution) at a strike price per share of $46.35 calculated based on a total equity value of New Media prior
to the Local Media Contribution of $1.2 billion as of the Effective Date. Former equity interests in GateHouse were
cancelled under the Plan. New Media Warrants do not have the benefit of antidilution protections, other than
customary protections including for stock splits and stock dividends. The New Media Warrants expire on
November 26, 2023. This description is a summary and is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by, the provisions of
the Amended and Restated Warrant Agreement filed as Exhibit 10.23 to our registration statement on Form S-1.
Omega, which owns approximately 9.98% of our Common Stock, is not subject to such a lock-up agreement.

Registration Rights Agreement with Omega

New Media entered into the Omega Registration Rights Agreement on the Effective Date. Under the terms of the
Omega Registration Rights Agreement, subject to customary exceptions and limitations, New Media is required to use
commercially reasonable efforts to file the Registration Statement providing for the registration and sale of the
Registrable Securities as soon as reasonably practicable, but not prior to the earlier of (i) 120 days following the
Effective Date and (ii) 14 days after the required financials are completed in the ordinary course of business. During
the first 12 months following the Listing of New Media Common Stock on a major U.S. national securities exchange,
subject to customary exceptions and limitations, Omega may request one Demand Registration.

Once New Media is eligible to use Form S-3, New Media will be required to use commercially reasonable efforts to
file the Shelf Registration, subject to customary exceptions and limitations. Omega is entitled to initiate up to three
offerings or sales with respect to some or all of the Registrable Securities pursuant to the Shelf Registration.
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Omega may only exercise its right to request the Demand Registration and any Shelf Registrations if the Registrable
Securities eligible to be sold pursuant to such Registration Statement or Shelf Registration are at least 3% of the
then-outstanding New Media Common Stock. This description is a summary and is subject to, and qualified in its
entirety by, the provisions of the Omega Registration Rights Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our registration
statement on Form S-1.
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UNDERWRITING

Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC are acting as the underwriters. Subject to the
terms and conditions stated in the underwriting agreement dated                     , 2015, each underwriter named below
has severally agreed to purchase, and we have agreed to sell to that underwriter, the number of shares set forth
opposite the underwriter�s name.

Underwriters
Number of
Shares

Citigroup Global Markets Inc.
Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC

Total
In addition,          shares of our common stock will be purchased directly from us by certain of our officers and
directors and an officer of our Manager at a price of $         per share. The underwriters will not receive any
underwriting discount or fee relating to these shares.

The underwriting agreement provides that the obligations of the underwriters to purchase the shares included in this
offering are subject to approval of legal matters by counsel and to other conditions. The underwriters are obligated to
purchase all the shares (other than those covered by the option to purchase additional shares described below) if they
purchase any of the shares.

Shares sold by the underwriters to the public will initially be offered at the public offering price set forth on the cover
of this Prospectus. Any shares sold by the underwriters to securities dealers may be sold at a discount from the initial
public offering price not to exceed $         per share. If all the shares are not sold at the initial offering price, the
underwriters may change the offering price and the other selling terms. The underwriters have advised us that they do
not intend to make sales to discretionary accounts.

If the underwriters sell more shares than the total number set forth in the table above, we have granted to the
underwriters an option to purchase up to 1,035,119 additional shares of Common Stock exercisable for 30 days from
the date of this Prospectus, at the public offering price less the underwriting discount. To the extent the option is
exercised, each underwriter must purchase a number of additional shares approximately proportionate to that
underwriter�s initial purchase commitment. Any shares issued or sold under the option will be issued and sold on the
same terms and conditions as the other shares that are the subject of this offering.

We, our Manager and our executive officers and directors have agreed that, subject to limited exceptions, for a period
of 45 days from the date of this Prospectus, we and they will not, without the prior written consent of the underwriters,
dispose of or hedge any shares or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for our Common Stock. Specifically,
we and these other persons have agreed not to offer, sell, contract to sell, pledge (other than pledges existing on the
date of the underwriting agreement), grant any option to purchase, make any short sale or otherwise dispose of any
Common Stock, or any options or warrants to purchase any Common Stock, or any securities convertible into,
exchangeable for or that represent the right to receive Common Stock owned directly by us or these other persons or
with respect to which we or such other persons have beneficial ownership. These restrictions expressly preclude
hedging or other transactions designed to, or which reasonably could be expected to, lead to or result in a sale or
disposition of our or such other persons� common stock. The prohibited transactions include any short sale or any
purchase, sale or grant of rights (including without limitation any put or call option) with respect to any of our or such
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other persons� Common Stock or any securities that include, relate to, or derive any significant part of their value from
such Common Stock.

With respect to us, the restrictions described in the paragraph above do not apply to the shares of common stock sold
in this offering or issued (i) upon the exercise of presently outstanding options or upon the exercise of the options
issued to an affiliate of our Manager in connection with the offering contemplated hereby, (ii) in
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connection with financing an acquisition by us or a subsidiary, refinancing of ours or a subsidiary�s outstanding
indebtedness in connection with an acquisition by us or a subsidiary or as consideration for an acquisition by us or a
subsidiary; provided, that such Common Stock issuances shall not exceed, in the aggregate, 15% of our then issued
and outstanding shares; or (iii) in connection with the grant, assignment and exercise of options under, or the issuance
and sale of shares pursuant to, the New Media Investment Group Inc. Nonqualified Stock Option and Incentive Award
Plan, as amended from time to time. We have also agreed not to file a registration statement under the Act registering
offers or sales of shares of Common Stock (or any securities convertible into, exercisable for or exchangeable for
Common Stock) or any interest in shares of Common Stock, except (a) for a registration statement with respect to
shares of Common Stock issuable under the New Media Investment Group Inc. Nonqualified Stock Option and
Incentive Award Plan, as amended from time to time, (b) for a registration statement with respect to shares of
Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of currently outstanding options or upon the exercise of the options issued
to an affiliate of our Manager in connection with the offering contemplated hereby, (c) for a registration statement in
connection with the registration rights agreement, dated November 26, 2013, between us and Omega Advisors, Inc.
and its affiliates or (d) a registration statement in connection with an issuance of Common Stock permissible pursuant
to (ii) above; provided, that in the foregoing clauses (a) and (b), no sales pursuant to such registration statement is
permissible during the 45-day restricted period.

With respect to our directors and executive officers, the restrictions described above do not apply to transfers of
common stock (i) as a bona fide gift, (ii) to any trust for the benefit of such person�s immediate family, (iii) to funds
managed by an affiliate of Fortress, (iv) to an affiliate of such person or to an entity controlled or managed by such
person or its affiliates, (v) as a distribution to limited partners, members, stockholders or equity holders of such
person, (vi) with the prior written consent of the underwriters or (vii) pursuant to pledges existing on the date of the
lock-up agreement, provided that, (a) in each case (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (v) and (vii), the donee, trustee, distributee or
transferee, as applicable, will be subject to the restrictions described in the paragraph above for the remainder of the
restricted period, (b) in each case (i), (ii), (iv) and (v), any transfers do not involve a disposition for value, and in each
case (i) through (vi), (c) such disposition is not required to be reported with the SEC on Form 4 in accordance with
Section 16 of the Exchange Act and (d) such person does not voluntarily effect any public filing or report regarding
such transfers (other than a filing on Form 5 made after the expiration of the 45-day period). The underwriters, in their
sole discretion, may release any of the securities subject to these lock-up agreements at any time without notice.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if (i) during the last 17 days of the 45-day restricted period, we issue an earnings
release or material news or a material event relating to our company occurs; or (ii) prior to the expiration of the 45-day
restricted period, we announce that we will release earnings results during the 16-day period beginning on the last day
of the 45-day restricted period, the restrictions described above shall continue to apply until the expiration of the
18-day period beginning on the issuance of the earnings release or the occurrence of the material news or material
event.

Our shares of Common Stock are listed on the NYSE under the symbol �NEWM�.

The following table shows the underwriting discounts and commissions that we are to pay to the underwriters in
connection with this offering (other than in connection with the sale of shares of our Common Stock in this offering to
certain of our officers and directors and an officer of our Manager, for which no discounts or commissions will be
paid). These amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters� option to purchase
additional shares.

Paid by Us
No Exercise Full Exercise
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In addition, we estimate that the total expenses of this offering payable by us will be approximately $753,456.12. We
will pay the filing fees and up to $35,000 of the expenses (including the fees and disbursements of counsel to the
underwriters) related to obtaining the required approval of certain terms of this offering from FINRA.

In connection with this offering, the underwriters may purchase and sell shares in the open market. Purchases and
sales in the open market may include short sales, purchases to cover short positions, which may include purchases
pursuant to the option to purchase additional shares, and stabilizing purchases.

� Short sales involve secondary market sales by the underwriters of a greater number of shares than they are
required to purchase in this offering.

� �Covered� short sales are sales of shares in an amount up to the number of shares represented by the
underwriters� option to purchase additional shares.

� �Naked� short sales are sales of shares in an amount in excess of the number of shares represented by the
underwriters� option to purchase additional shares.

� Covering transactions involve purchases of shares either pursuant to the option to purchase additional shares
or in the open market after the distribution has been completed in order to cover short positions.

� To close a naked short position, the underwriters must purchase shares in the open market after the
distribution has been completed. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters
are concerned that there may be downward pressure on the price of the shares in the open market after
pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase in this offering.

� To close a covered short position, the underwriters must purchase shares in the open market after the
distribution has been completed or must exercise the option to purchase additional shares. In
determining the source of shares to close the covered short position, the underwriters will consider,
among other things, the price of shares available for purchase in the open market as compared to the
price at which they may purchase shares through the option to purchase additional shares.

� Stabilizing transactions involve bids to purchase shares so long as the stabilizing bids do not exceed a
specified maximum.

The underwriters also may impose a penalty bid. Penalty bids permit the underwriters to reclaim a selling concession
from a syndicate member when the underwriters, in covering short positions or making stabilizing purchases,
repurchase shares originally sold by that syndicate member.

Purchases to cover short positions and stabilizing purchases, as well as other purchases by the underwriters for their
own accounts, may have the effect of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of the shares. They may
also cause the price of the shares to be higher than the price that would otherwise exist in the open market in the
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absence of these transactions. The underwriters may conduct these transactions on the NYSE, in the over-the-counter
market or otherwise. If the underwriters commence any of these transactions, they may discontinue them at any time.

The underwriters and their respective affiliates have, from time to time, performed, and may in the future perform,
investment banking, commercial banking and financial advisory services for us and our affiliates, for which they
received or will receive customary fees and expenses. Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC is a lender under the New
Media Credit Agreement.

We have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act,
or to contribute to payments the underwriters may be required to make because of any of those liabilities.
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Notice to Prospective Investors in the European Economic Area

In relation to each member state of the European Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus Directive
(each, a �Relevant Member State�), with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is
implemented in that Relevant Member State, no offer of shares may be made to the public in that Relevant Member
State other than:

(A) to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive (as defined below);

(B) to fewer than 100 or, if the Relevant Member State has implemented the relevant provision of the 2010 PD
Amending Directive, 150, natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in the
Prospectus Directive), as permitted under the Prospectus Directive, subject to obtaining the prior consent of
the underwriters; or

(C) in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive,
provided that no such offer of shares shall require us or the underwriters to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3
of the Prospectus Directive or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.

Each person in a Relevant Member State (other than a Relevant Member State where there is a Permitted Public
Offer) who initially acquires any shares or to whom any offer is made will be deemed to have represented,
acknowledged and agreed that (A) it is a �qualified investor� within the meaning of the law in that Relevant Member
State implementing Article 2(1)(e) of the Prospectus Directive, and (B) in the case of any shares acquired by it as a
financial intermediary, as that term is used in Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive, the shares acquired by it in the
offering have not been acquired on behalf of, nor have they been acquired with a view to their offer or resale to,
persons in any Relevant Member State other than �qualified investors� as defined in the Prospectus Directive, or in
circumstances in which the prior consent of the has been given to the offer or resale. In the case of any shares being
offered to a financial intermediary as that term is used in Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive, each such financial
intermediary will be deemed to have represented, acknowledged and agreed that the shares acquired by it in the offer
have not been acquired on a nondiscretionary basis on behalf of, nor have they been acquired with a view to their offer
or resale to, persons in circumstances which may give rise to an offer of any shares to the public other than their offer
or resale in a Relevant Member State to qualified investors as so defined or in circumstances in which the prior
consent of has been obtained to each such proposed offer or resale.

This Prospectus has been prepared on the basis that any offer of shares in any Relevant Member State will be made
pursuant to an exemption under the Prospectus Directive from the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of
shares. Accordingly any person making or intending to make an offer in that Relevant Member State of shares which
are the subject of the offering contemplated in this Prospectus may only do so in circumstances in which no obligation
arises for any of the underwriters or us to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive in
relation to such offer. Neither the Company nor the underwriters have authorized, nor do they authorize, the making of
any offer of shares in circumstances in which an obligation arises for the Company or the underwriters to publish a
prospectus for such offer.

For the purpose of the above provisions, the expression �an offer to the public� in relation to any shares in any Relevant
Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the
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offer and the shares to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe the shares, as the same
may be varied in the Relevant Member State by any measure implementing the Prospectus Directive in the Relevant
Member State and the expression �Prospectus Directive� means Directive 2003/71/EC (including the 2010 PD
Amending Directive, to the extent implemented in the Relevant Member States) and includes any relevant
implementing measure in the Relevant Member State and the expression �2010 PD Amending Directive� means
Directive 2010/73/EU.
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Notice to Prospective Investors in the United Kingdom

In the United Kingdom, this Prospectus is being distributed only to, and is directed only at, and any offer subsequently
made may only be directed at persons who are �qualified investors� (as defined in the Prospectus Directive) (i) who
have professional experience in matters relating to investments falling within Article 19(5) of the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005, as amended (the �Order�), and/or (ii) who are high net worth
companies (or persons to whom it may otherwise be lawfully communicated) falling within Article 49(2)(a) to (d) of
the Order (all such persons together being referred to as �relevant persons�). This Prospectus must not be acted on or
relied on in the United Kingdom by persons who are not relevant persons. In the United Kingdom, any investment or
investment activity to which this Prospectus relates is only available to, and will be engaged in with, relevant persons.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Hong Kong

The shares may not be offered or sold in Hong Kong by means of any document other than (i) in circumstances which
do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong
Kong), or (ii) to �professional investors� within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of
Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder, or (iii) in other circumstances which do not result in the document being
a �prospectus� within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong) and no advertisement,
invitation or document relating to the shares may be issued or may be in the possession of any person for the purpose
of issue (in each case whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere), which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to
be accessed or read by, the public in Hong Kong (except if permitted to do so under the laws of Hong Kong) other
than with respect to shares which are or are intended to be disposed of only to persons outside Hong Kong or only to
�professional investors� within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
and any rules made thereunder.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Singapore

This Prospectus has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. Accordingly, this
Prospectus and any other document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or
purchase, of the shares may not be circulated or distributed, nor may the shares be offered or sold, or be made the
subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than
(i) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the
�SFA�), (ii) to a relevant person, or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with the conditions,
specified in Section 275 of the SFA or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other
applicable provision of the SFA.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Australia

No prospectus or other disclosure document (as defined in the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) of Australia (�Corporations
Act�)) in relation to the common stock has been or will be lodged with the Australian Securities & Investments
Commission (�ASIC�). This document has not been lodged with ASIC and is only directed to certain categories of
exempt persons. Accordingly, if you receive this document in Australia:

(a) you confirm and warrant that you are either:
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(i) a �sophisticated investor� under section 708(8)(a) or (b) of the Corporations Act;

(ii) a �sophisticated investor� under section 708(8)(c) or (d) of the Corporations Act and that you have
provided an accountant�s certificate to us which complies with the requirements of section 708(8)(c)(i)
or (ii) of the Corporations Act and related regulations before the offer has been made;

(iii) a person associated with the company under section 708(12) of the Corporations Act; or
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(iv) a �professional investor� within the meaning of section 708(11)(a) or (b) of the Corporations Act, and to
the extent that you are unable to confirm or warrant that you are an exempt sophisticated investor,
associated person or professional investor under the Corporations Act any offer made to you under this
document is void and incapable of acceptance; and

(b) you warrant and agree that you will not offer any of the common stock for resale in Australia within
12 months of that common stock being issued unless any such resale offer is exempt from the requirement to
issue a disclosure document under section 708 of the Corporations Act.
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LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters relating to this offering will be passed upon for the Company by Cleary Gottlieb Steen &
Hamilton LLP, New York, New York. Certain legal matters in connection with this offering will be passed upon for
the underwriters by Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP, New York, New York.

EXPERTS

Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, has audited the consolidated financial statements
and schedule of New Media Investment Group Inc. and subsidiaries (the �Company�) included in the Company�s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 29, 2013, as set forth in their report, which is incorporated by
reference in this Prospectus and elsewhere in the registration statement. The Company�s financial statements and
schedule are incorporated by reference in reliance on Ernst & Young LLP�s report, given on their authority as experts
in accounting and auditing.

Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors, has audited the combined financial statements of Dow Jones Local Media
Group, Inc. at June 30, 2013 and 2012, and for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2013, as set forth
in their report. The Company has included the Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc. financial statements in the
Prospectus and elsewhere in the registration statement in reliance on Ernst & Young LLP�s report, given on their
authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

The consolidated financial statements of The Providence Journal Company as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and
for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2013, have been included herein in reliance upon
the report of KPMG LLP, independent auditors, appearing elsewhere herein, and upon the authority of said firm as
experts in accounting and auditing.

The audited consolidated financial statements of Halifax Media Group, LLC (i) as of and for the nine months ended
September 30, 2014 and (ii) as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and for each for the two years in the period ended
December 31, 2013, have been audited by Baker Tilly Virchow Krause LLP, independent registered public accounting
firm, as set forth in their reports appearing elsewhere herein, and are included in reliance upon such reports given on
the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed a registration statement on Form S-1 to register with the SEC the shares of our Common Stock to be
sold in this offering. This document constitutes a part of that registration statement, together with all amendments,
supplements, schedules and exhibits to the registration statement.

This Prospectus does not contain all of the information in the registration statement. Each statement contained in this
Prospectus as to the contents of any contract, agreement or other document filed as an exhibit to the registration
statement is qualified in its entirety by reference to that exhibit for a more complete description of the matter involved.
We are subject to the information and periodic reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, and we are required to file
annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC.

Our SEC filings, including our registration statement may be read and copied at the SEC�s public reference room at
100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the
public reference room. The SEC maintains a website at http://www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and
registration statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC. New Media
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maintains a website at http://www.newmediainv.com/. The information contained on or accessible through our
website or the SEC�s website shall not be deemed to be a part of this Prospectus or the registration statement of which
this Prospectus forms a part.
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INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The rules of the SEC allow us to incorporate information into this Prospectus by reference. The information
incorporated by reference is considered to be a part of this Prospectus. This Prospectus incorporates by reference the
documents listed below:

� our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 29, 2013;

� our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the periods ended March 30, 2014, June 29, 2014 and
September 28, 2014; and

� our Current Reports on Form 8-K, filed on February 7, 2014, June 5, 2014, July 23, 2014, September 3,
2014, November 28, 2014 and January 12, 2015 (excluding information under Item 2.02 and Item 9.01).

Any statement made in this Prospectus or in a document incorporated by reference into this Prospectus will be deemed
to be modified or superseded for purposes of this Prospectus to the extent that a statement contained in this Prospectus
modifies or supersedes that statement. Any statement so modified or superseded will not be deemed, except as so
modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Prospectus.

You can obtain any of the filings incorporated by reference into this Prospectus through us or from the SEC through
the SEC�s website at http://www.sec.gov. We will provide, without charge, to each person, including any beneficial
owner, to whom a copy of this Prospectus is delivered, upon written or oral request of such person, a copy of any or
all of the reports and documents referred to above which have been or may be incorporated by reference into this
Prospectus. You should direct requests for those documents to:

New Media Investment Group Inc.

1345 Avenue of the Americas

New York, New York, 10105

Attn: Investor Relations

Tel.: (212) 479-3160

Our reports and documents incorporated by reference into this Prospectus may also be found in the �Investors� section
of our website at http://www.newmediainv.com. Our website and the information contained in it or connected to it
shall not be deemed to be incorporated into this Prospectus or any registration statement of which it forms a part.

95

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 181



Table of Contents

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Combined Financial Statements of Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc.
Report of Independent Auditors F-2
Combined Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 F-3
Combined Statements of Operations and Comprehensive (Loss) Income for each of the three years in the
period ended June 30, 2013 F-4
Combined Statements of Equity for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2013 F-5
Combined Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2013 F-6
Notes to Combined Financial Statements F-7

Consolidated Financial Statements of The Providence Journal Company:
Independent Auditors� Report F-24
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2014 (unaudited) and as of December  31, 2013 and 2012
(audited) F-25
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the sixth month periods ended June  30, 2014 and 2013
(unaudited) and for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2013 (audited) F-26
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the sixth month period ended June  30, 2014 (unaudited) and for each
of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2013 (audited) F-27
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the sixth month periods ended June  30, 2014 and 2013
(unaudited) and for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2013 (audited) F-28
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-29

Consolidated Financial Statements of Halifax Media Group, LLC
Independent Auditors� Report F-39
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2013 and 2012 (audited) F-40
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 (audited) F-41
Consolidated Statements of Members� Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 (audited) F-42
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 (audited) F-43
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements F-44

Consolidated Financial Statements of Halifax Media Group, LLC
Independent Auditors� Report F-64
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2014 (audited) F-65
Consolidated Statement of Operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 (audited) F-66
Consolidated Statement of Members� Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 (audited) F-67
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 (audited) F-68
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements F-69

F-1

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 182



Table of Contents

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc., which
comprise the combined balance sheets as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related combined statements of
operations and comprehensive (loss) income, equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the combined financial statements.

Management�s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor�s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor�s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity�s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity�s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the combined financial
position of Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc. at June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the combined results of its operations
and it cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2013, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
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Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc.

Combined Balance Sheets

(In Thousands)

June 30
2013 2012

Assets
Current assets:
Cash $ 567 $ 1,878
Accounts receivable, net 13,984 14,130
Inventory 1,657 1,579
Deferred income taxes 848 949
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,247 2,580

Total current assets 20,303 21,116

Property and equipment, net 64,299 70,644
Deferred income taxes 38,408 34,508
Intangible assets, net 4,426 46,714

Total assets $ 127,436 $ 172,982

Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,320 $ 1,235
Accrued wages 5,259 4,929
Deferred revenue 7,706 7,967
Pension and postretirement benefits 1,417 1,672
Income taxes payable 34 �  
Other current liabilities 5,606 5,574

Total current liabilities 21,342 21,377
Pension and postretirement benefits 53,265 73,772
Other noncurrent liabilities 12,191 12,050

Total liabilities 86,798 107,199

Commitments and contingencies

Total equity 40,638 65,783

Total liabilities and equity $ 127,436 $ 172,982

See accompanying notes to the combined financial statements.
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Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc.

Combined Statements of Operations and Comprehensive (Loss) Income

(In Thousands)

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30
2013 2012 2011

Revenues:
Advertising $ 83,096 $ 92,502 $ 106,381
Circulation and subscription 51,192 52,493 52,332
Other 24,271 24,275 23,131

Total revenues 158,559 169,270 181,844

Operating expenses 136,340 142,281 154,026
Depreciation and amortization 7,858 8,500 9,601
Impairments and restructuring 42,268 197,869 247

Total expenses 186,466 348,650 163,874

Operating (loss) income (27,907) (179,380) 17,970
Income tax benefit (expense) 10,242 34,682 (8,504) 

Net (loss) income (17,665) (144,698) 9,466

Other comprehensive income (loss):
Pension and postretirement plans adjustment 11,578 (29,955) 6,114

Total comprehensive (loss) income $ (6,087) $ (174,653) $ 15,580

See accompanying notes to the combined financial statements.
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Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc.

Combined Statements of Equity

(In Thousands)

Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011

Parent
Company
Investment

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
(Loss)
Income Total

Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 295,273 $ (30,740) $ 264,533
Net income 9,466 �  9,466
Comprehensive income �  6,114 6,114
Net decrease in parent company investment (23,962) �  (23,962) 

Balance, June 30, 2011 280,777 (24,626) 256,151
Net loss (144,698) �  (144,698) 
Comprehensive loss �  (29,955) (29,955) 
Net decrease in parent company investment (15,715) �  (15,715) 

Balance, June 30, 2012 120,364 (54,581) 65,783
Net loss (17,665) �  (17,665) 
Comprehensive income �  11,578 11,578
Net decrease in parent company investment (19,058) �  (19,058) 

Balance, June 30, 2013 $ 83,641 $ (43,003) $ 40,638

See accompanying notes to the combined financial statements.
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Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc.

Combined Statements of Cash Flows

(In Thousands)

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30
2013 2012 2011

Operating activities
Net (loss) income $ (17,665) $ (144,698) $ 9,466
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 7,858 8,500 9,601
Impairments 42,268 197,869 �  
Provision for doubtful accounts 802 478 1,170
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment (81) (1,458) 1,371
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net (656) 1,510 (198) 
Inventory (78) (716) (1,534) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (666) 1,293 (390) 
Accounts payable and accrued wages 449 (465) 590
Deferred income taxes, net (11,635) (36,695) 5,119
Pension and postretirement benefits (1,349) (10,082) 1,467
Deferred revenue (261) 121 (317) 
Other liabilities 173 (18) (1,763) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 19,159 15,639 24,582

Investing activities
Capital expenditures (1,938) (2,180) (3,758) 
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 526 2,036 3,569

Net cash used in investing activities (1,412) (144) (189) 

Financing activities
Net transfers to Parent and affiliates (19,058) (15,715) (23,962) 

Net cash used in financing activities (19,058) (15,715) (23,962) 

Net change in cash (1,311) (220) 431
Cash, beginning of year 1,878 2,098 1,667

Cash, end of year $ 567 $ 1,878 $ 2,098

See accompanying notes to the combined financial statements.
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Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc.

Notes to Combined Financial Statements

(In Thousands)

June 30, 2013

1. Organization

Overview

Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc. (LMG or the Company) operates as a business unit of Dow Jones & Company,
Inc. (Parent), a wholly-owned subsidiary of News Corporation. The Company operates print and online community
media franchises, Internet sites, digital services, magazines, other news, and advertising niche publications and
commercial print and household distribution services. These combined financial statements were prepared on a
stand-alone basis derived from the financial statements and accounting records of the Company and Parent, and reflect
the combined historical financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the Company�s businesses in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Certain costs that were incurred centrally by
Parent for functions such as corporate overhead for services and administrative functions have been allocated to the
Company and included in the combined financial statements. We believe the assumptions underlying such allocations
were made on a reasonable basis.

On June 28, 2013, the Company and Parent entered into a stock purchase agreement with Newcastle Investment
Corp., whereby Newcastle Investment Corp. would acquire the Company for $82 million. The transaction received
regulatory approvals and closed on September 3, 2013. These combined financial statements have been prepared in
contemplation of this transaction.

Basis of Presentation

These financial statements are presented as if the businesses of the Company had been combined for all periods
presented. All intracompany transactions and accounts within LMG have been eliminated in combination. The assets
and liabilities in the combined financial statements have been reflected on an historical cost basis as adjusted for the
acquisition of Parent by News Corporation in December 2007. Cash is managed centrally, with net earnings
reinvested locally and working capital requirements met from existing liquid funds. LMG reflects transfers of cash to
and from Parent�s cash management system as a component of parent company investment.

Income tax benefit (expense) in the combined statements of operations and comprehensive (loss) income has been
calculated as if LMG filed a separate tax return and was operating as a stand-alone business. Therefore, cash tax
payments and items of current and deferred taxes may not be reflective of LMG�s actual tax balances had it been a
stand-alone business.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Combination

The combined financial statements include certain assets and liabilities that have historically been held at Parent�s
corporate level, but are specifically identifiable or otherwise attributable to LMG. All significant intercompany
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transactions between Parent and LMG have been included within parent company investment in these combined
financial statements.

LMG�s fiscal year ends on the Sunday closest to June 30. Fiscal 2013 and 2012 included 52 weeks, while fiscal 2011
included 53 weeks with the 53rd week falling in the fourth fiscal quarter. All references to June 30, 2013, June 30,
2012, and June 30, 2011 relate to the twelve month periods ended June 30, 2013, July 1, 2012, and July 3, 2011,
respectively. For convenience purposes, LMG continues to date its combined financial statements as of June 30.
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Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc.

Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued)

(In Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of LMG�s combined financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts that are reported in the combined financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Accounts Receivable, Net

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to estimated uncollectible amounts. The Company�s
estimate is based on historical collection experience and a review of the current status of such accounts receivable. It
is reasonably possible that the Company�s estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts will change. Accounts
receivable are presented net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,450 and $1,572 at June 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Advertising Expenses

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Included in operating expenses are advertising expenses of
$22,521, $23,553, and $22,760 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively.

Shipping and Handling

Costs incurred for shipping and handling are reflected in operating expenses in the combined statements of operations.

Concentrations of Credit and Other Risks

Advertising spending, which drives a significant portion of LMG�s revenues, is sensitive to economic conditions.
Local economic conditions affect the levels of advertising revenues. Economic factors that have adversely affected
advertising revenues include lower consumer and business spending, high unemployment and depressed home sales.
Advertising revenues are particularly adversely affected if advertisers respond to weak and uneven economic
conditions by reducing their budgets or shifting spending patterns or priorities, or if they are forced to consolidate or
cease operations. Continuing weak and uncertain economic conditions and outlook could adversely affect the level of
advertising revenues and combined financial condition and results of operations.

Contingencies

Certain conditions may exist which may result in a loss to the Company, but which will only be resolved when one or
more future events occur or fail to occur. The Company�s management, insurance advisers and legal counsel assess
such contingent liabilities, and such assessment inherently involves an exercise of judgment. In assessing loss
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contingencies related to legal proceedings that are pending against the Company, or unasserted claims that may result
in such proceedings, the Company�s legal counsel evaluates the perceived merits of any legal proceedings or
unasserted claims, as well as the perceived merits of the amount of relief sought or expected to be sought therein.

If the assessment of a contingency indicates that it is probable that a material loss has been incurred and the amount of
the liability can be estimated, the estimated liability would be accrued in the Company�s combined
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Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc.

Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued)

(In Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

financial statements. If the assessment indicates that a potentially material loss contingency is not probable but is
reasonably possible, or is probable but cannot be estimated, the nature of the contingent liability, together with an
estimate of the range of possible loss if determinable and material, would be disclosed.

Loss contingencies considered remote are generally not disclosed unless they arise from guarantees, in which case the
guarantees would be disclosed.

Income Taxes

LMG accounts for income taxes in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Income Taxes
(ASC 740). ASC 740 requires an asset and liability approach for financial accounting and reporting for income taxes.
Under the asset and liability approach, deferred taxes are provided for the net tax effects of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
income tax purposes. Valuation allowances are established where management determines that it is more likely than
not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Inventory

Inventory is comprised of newsprint and is valued using weighted average cost.

Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over an estimated
useful life of 3 to 25 years for equipment and 10 to 40 years for buildings and improvements. Leasehold
improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the life of
the lease. Costs associated with the repair and maintenance of property are expensed as incurred. Changes in
circumstances, such as technological advances or changes to LMG�s business model or capital strategy could result in
the actual useful lives differing from LMG�s estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Advertising revenues from the publication of newspapers are recognized when advertisements are published in
newspapers or placed on digital platforms or, with respect to certain digital advertising, each time a user either clicks
on or views certain ads, net of commissions and provisions for estimated sales incentives including rebates, rate
adjustments, and discounts.

Circulation revenues include single-copy and subscription revenues. Circulation revenues are based on the number of
copies of the printed newspaper (through home-delivery subscriptions and single-copy sales) and digital subscriptions
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sold and the rates charged to the respective customers. Single-copy revenue is recognized based on date of
publication, net of provisions for related returns. Proceeds from subscription revenues are deferred at the time of sale
and are recognized in earnings on a pro rata basis over the terms of the subscriptions. Several factors are considered to
determine whether the Company is a principal, most notably whether the Company is primary obligor to the customer
and has determined the selling price and product specifications.

Other revenues are recognized when the related service or product has been delivered.
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Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc.

Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued)

(In Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Billings to clients and payments received in advance of the performance of services or delivery of products are
recorded as deferred revenue until the services are performed or the product is delivered.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

LMG has intangible assets, including goodwill, trade names, and advertising and subscriber relationships. Goodwill is
recorded as the difference between the cost of acquired entities and amounts assigned to their tangible and identifiable
intangible net assets. In accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles�Goodwill and Other (ASC 350), LMG�s indefinite-lived
intangible assets are tested annually for impairment or earlier if events occur or circumstances change that would more
likely than not reduce the fair value below its carrying amount. Intangible assets with finite lives are generally
amortized over their estimated useful lives. The impairment assessment of indefinite-lived intangibles compares the
fair value of these intangible assets to their carrying value.

LMG�s goodwill impairment reviews are performed using a two-step process. The first step of the process is to
compare the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill. If the fair value of a reporting
unit exceeds its carrying amount, the goodwill of the reporting unit is not impaired and the second step of the
impairment review is not necessary. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the second step of
the goodwill impairment review is required to be performed to estimate the implied fair value of the reporting unit�s
goodwill. The implied fair value of the reporting unit�s goodwill is compared with the carrying amount of that
goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit�s goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an
impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess.

Long-lived Assets

ASC 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment, and ASC 350 require that LMG periodically reviews the carrying amounts
of its long-lived assets, including property and equipment and finite-lived intangible assets, to determine whether
current events or circumstances indicate that such carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If the carrying amount of
the asset is greater than the expected undiscounted cash flows to be generated by such asset, an impairment adjustment
is recognized if the carrying value of such asset exceeds its fair value. LMG generally measures fair value by
considering sale prices for similar assets or by discounting estimated future cash flows using an appropriate discount
rate. Considerable management judgment is necessary to estimate the fair value of assets; accordingly, actual results
could vary significantly from such estimates.

Self-Insurance Plans

The Company has self-insured health plans for all its employees. The Company has purchased stop-loss insurance in
order to limit its exposure, which will reimburse the Company for individual claims in excess of $450 annually.
Self-insurance losses are accrued based on the Company�s estimates of the aggregate liability for uninsured claims
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incurred using certain actuarial assumptions followed in the insurance industry. Included in accrued wages is an
estimate for self-insured health plan expenses of $850 and $950 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Company is self-insured for property and casualty losses, and included in other current liabilities is an accrual for
losses of $3,622 and $3,755 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc.

Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued)

(In Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements, LMG measures assets and liabilities using inputs from the
following three levels of the fair value hierarchy: (i) inputs that are quoted prices in active markets (Level 1);
(ii) inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable, including quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities (Level 2); and (iii) inputs that require the entity to use its own assumptions about market
participant assumptions (Level 3).

The fair values of the Company�s financial instruments, such as accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate
their carrying values due to the short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities. The Company�s assets measured at
fair value on a nonrecurring basis include long-lived assets, indefinite-lived intangible assets and goodwill. The
Company reviews the carrying amounts of such assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable or at least annually as of June 30 for indefinite-lived intangible assets and
goodwill. Any resulting asset impairment would require that the asset be recorded at its fair value. The resulting fair
value measurements of the assets are considered to be Level 3 measurements.

During fiscal 2012, the Company recorded non-cash impairment charges of $152,842 relating to Goodwill, $44,335
relating to Trade Names and $692 relating to long-lived assets as a result of a potential sale of the Company below its
carrying value. The Company recorded an additional impairment in fiscal 2013 for $42,268 to further reduce the
carrying value as a result of the pending sale that subsequently closed on September 3, 2013.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the FASB) issued ASU 2012-02, Intangibles� Goodwill and
Other (Topic 350): Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment (ASU 2012-02), which permits an entity
to make a qualitative assessment of whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit�s
indefinite-lived intangible asset is less than the asset�s carrying value before applying a quantitative impairment
assessment. If it is determined through the qualitative assessment that the fair value of a reporting unit�s
indefinite-lived intangible asset is more likely than not greater than the asset�s carrying value, the remaining
impairment steps would be unnecessary. The qualitative assessment is optional, allowing companies to go directly to
the quantitative assessment. ASU 2012-02 is effective for the Company for annual and interim indefinite-lived
intangible asset impairment tests performed beginning July 1, 2013. The Company does not expect the adoption of
ASU 2012-02 will have a significant impact on its combined financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of Amounts
Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (ASU 2013-02), which requires the Company to
provide information about the amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income by component. In
addition, it requires the Company to present, either on the face of the statement where net income is presented or in
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the notes, significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income by the respective line
items of net income, but only if the amount reclassified is required under GAAP to be reclassified to net income in its
entirety in the same reporting period. For other amounts that are not required under GAAP to be reclassified in their
entirety to net income, the Company is required to cross-reference to other disclosures required under GAAP that
provide additional detail about those amounts. ASU 2013-02 is effective for the Company for interim reporting
periods beginning July 1, 2013. The Company does not expect the adoption of ASU 2012-02 will have a significant
impact on its combined financial statements, as it relates to disclosures only.
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Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc.

Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued)

(In Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-11, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating
Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists (ASU 2013-11). ASU 2013-11 clarifies
guidance and eliminates diversity in practice on the presentation of unrecognized tax benefits when a net operating
loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward exists at the reporting date. This new guidance is
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after December 15, 2013 and subsequent interim periods. The
Company does not expect the adoption of ASU 2013-11 will have a significant impact on its combined financial
statements.

3. Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net was comprised of the following:

As of June 30
2013 2012

Property and equipment:
Land $ 11,252 $ 11,334
Buildings and leasehold improvements 38,604 39,207
Machinery and equipment 61,435 57,953
Construction-in-progress 60 1,699

111,351 110,193
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (47,052) (39,549) 

Property and equipment, net $ 64,299 $ 70,644

Depreciation expense for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 was $7,838, $8,431, and $8,995,
respectively. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Company recorded impairment to property and
equipment of $692.

4. Intangible Assets, Net and Goodwill

The changes in the carrying values of LMG�s intangible assets, goodwill and related accumulated amortization for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:
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Goodwill(a)
Trade
Names(a)

Subscriber
Relationships(b)

Advertising
Relationships(c)

Total
Intangible
Assets, Net

Balance, June 30, 2011 $ 152,842 $ 66,300 $ 3,010 $ 21,808 $ 91,118
Amortization �  �  (69) �  (69) 
Impairments (152,842) (44,335) �  �  (44,335) 

Balance, June 30, 2012 �  21,965 2,941 21,808 46,714
Amortization �  �  (20) �  (20) 
Impairments �  (21,965) (2,399) (17,904) (42,268) 

Balance, June 30, 2013 $ �  $ �  $ 522 $ 3,904 $ 4,426

(a) Goodwill and Trade Names are not subject to amortization.

F-12

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 202



Table of Contents

Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc.

Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued)

(In Thousands)

4. Intangible Assets, Net and Goodwill (continued)

(b) Net of accumulated amortization of $2,379 and $2,359 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The useful life
of Subscriber Relationships is ten years, primarily based on historical attrition rates of subscribers.

(c) Net of accumulated amortization of $7,292 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012. The useful life of Advertising
Relationships is 25 years, primarily based on historical attrition rates of advertisers.

Aggregate amortization expense for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 was $20, $69, and $606,
respectively.

Based on the current amount of amortizable intangible assets, net, the estimated amortization expense for each of the
succeeding five fiscal years is less than $1.

The Company evaluates the recoverability of identifiable intangible assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that an intangible asset�s carrying amount may not be recoverable. Such circumstances could
include, but are not limited to: (1) a significant decrease in the market value of an asset, (2) a significant adverse
change in the extent or manner in which an asset is used, or (3) an accumulation of costs significantly in excess of the
amount originally expected for the acquisition of an asset. The Company measures the carrying amount of the asset
against the estimated undiscounted future cash flows associated with it. Should the sum of the expected future net cash
flows be less than the carrying value of the asset being evaluated, an impairment loss would be recognized. The
impairment loss would be calculated as the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds its fair value. The
fair value is measured based on quoted market prices, if available. If quoted market prices are not available, the
estimate of fair value is based on various valuation techniques, including the discounted value of estimated future cash
flows. The evaluation of asset impairment requires the Company to make assumptions about future cash flows over
the life of the asset being evaluated. These assumptions require significant judgment and actual results may differ
from assumed and estimated amounts.

During fiscal 2012, LMG received an offer to sell its business for an amount that was less than the carrying amount of
its net assets, excluding goodwill. As of result, this indicator led the Company to record an impairment charge to
Goodwill of $152,842 and Trade Names of $44,335 during the year ended June 30, 2012. On June 28, 2013, Parent
entered into an agreement to sell the Company for $82,000 and due to the net proceeds being less than previously
estimated, the Company recorded an additional impairment to Trade Names, Advertising Relationships and Subscriber
Relationships totaling $42,268. Impairment charges of $42,268 and $197,177 for fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively, are included in impairment and restructuring in the accompanying combined statements of
operations and comprehensive (loss) income.

5. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Certain of LMG�s U.S. employees participate in defined benefit pension plans sponsored by the Company (Direct
Plans), of which certain plans are frozen. Accordingly, the funded and unfunded position of each Direct Plan is
recorded in LMG�s combined balance sheets. Actuarial gains and losses that have not yet been recognized through
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income are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income net of taxes, until they are amortized as a
component of net periodic benefit cost. The determination of benefit obligations and the recognition of expenses
related to Direct Plans are dependent on various assumptions. The major assumptions primarily relate to discount
rates, long-term expected rates of return on plan assets, and future compensation increases. Management develops
each assumption using relevant company experience in conjunction with market-related data. The funded status of the
Direct Plans can change from year to year, but the assets of the funded plans have been sufficient to pay all benefits
that came due in each of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011.
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(In Thousands)

5. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits (continued)

The Company uses a June 30 measurement date for all direct pension and postretirement benefit plans. The following
table sets forth the change in the projected benefit obligation, change in the fair value of Direct Plans plan assets and
funded status:

Pension Benefits
Postretirement

Benefits
As of June 30

2013 2012 2013 2012
Projected benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 254,431 $ 223,237 $ 7,854 $ 7,628
Service cost 51 45 162 124
Interest cost 10,551 12,436 277 371
Benefits paid (13,868) (13,674) (913) (1,158) 
Settlements (10,238) (8,896) �  �  
Actuarial (gain) loss (16,549) 41,283 (970) 889

Projected benefit obligation, end of year 224,378 254,431 6,410 7,854

Change in the fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year 186,842 195,662 �  �  
Actual return on plan assets 12,649 3,248 �  �  
Employer contributions 721 10,501 913 1,158
Benefits paid (13,868) (13,674) (913) (1,158) 
Settlements (10,238) (8,895) �  �  

Fair value of plan assets, end of year 176,106 186,842 �  �  

Funded status $ (48,272) $ (67,589) $ (6,410) $ (7,854) 

Amounts recognized in the balance sheets consist of:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
As of June 30

2013 2012 2013 2012
Pension and postretirement benefits $ (48,272) $ (67,590) $ (6,410) $ (7,854) 
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Net amount recognized $ (48,272) $ (67,590) $ (6,410) $ (7,854) 

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income consist of:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
As of June 30

2013 2012 2013 2012
Actuarial loses (gains) $ 79,933 $ 99,510 $ (1,895) $ (937) 
Prior service benefit �  �  (5,544) (6,666) 

Net amount recognized $ 79,933 $ 99,510 $ (7,439) $ (7,603) 

F-14
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(In Thousands)

5. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits (continued)

Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income expected to be recognized as a component of net periodic
pension cost in fiscal 2014:

Pension Benefits
Postretirement

Benefits
As of June 30

2013 2012
Actuarial loses (gains) $ 2,336 $ (111) 
Prior service benefit �  (1,122) 

Net amount recognized $ 2,336 $ (1,233) 

Accumulated pension benefit obligations as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $224,378 and $254,432, respectively.
The accumulated benefit obligation exceeds the fair value of the plan assets for all of the Company�s plans. Below is
information about funded and unfunded pension plans:

Funded Plans Unfunded Plans
As of June 30

2013 2012 2013 2012
Projected benefit obligation $ 216,734 $ 246,036 $ 7,644 $ 8,395
Accumulated benefit obligation 216,672 245,968 7,644 8,395
Fair value of plan assets 176,106 186,842 �  �  

The components of net periodic pension and postretirement expense (benefit) were as follows:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011 2013     2012        2011    
Service cost benefits earned during
the period $ 51 $ 45 $ 197 $ 162 $ 124 $ 113
Interest cost on projected benefit
obligations 10,551 12,436 12,406 277 371 416
Expected return on plan assets (12,615) (13,235) (12,622) �  �  �  
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Amortization of deferred losses 2,993 3,025 4,176 (12) (87) (104) 
Amortization of prior service benefit �  �  �  (1,122) (1,122) (1,122) 

Net pension and postretirement
expense (benefit) $ 980 $ 2,271 $ 4,157 $ (695) $ (714) $ (697) 

F-15

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 208



Table of Contents

Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc.

Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued)

(In Thousands)

5. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits (continued)

Assumptions

The following are weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at year end:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
For the Years Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
Additional information
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine
benefit obligations:
Discount rate 5.00% 4.25% 5.75% 4.75% 3.75% 5.25% 
Rate of increase in future compensation N/A 3.25% 3.25% N/A N/A N/A

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine
net periodic benefit cost:
Discount rate 4.25% 5.75% 5.75% 3.75% 5.25% 5.50% 
Expected return on plan assets 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% N/A N/A N/A
Rate of increase in future compensation N/A 3.25% 3.25% N/A N/A N/A
The following assumed health care trend rates as of June 30 were also used in accounting for postretirement benefits:

Postretirement Benefits
2013 2012

Health care cost trend rate 6.8% 7.2% 
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate trend
rate) 5.0% 5.0% 
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 2019 2019

Assumed health care cost trend rates could have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the postretirement
health care plan. The effect of a one percentage point increase and one percentage point decrease in the assumed
health care cost trend rate would have the following effects on the results for fiscal 2013:

Service and
Interest Cost

Benefit
Obligation
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One percentage point increase $ 46,874 $ 385,456
One percentage point decrease (38,895) (334,384) 

The following table sets forth the estimated benefit payments for the next five fiscal years, and in the aggregate for the
five fiscal years thereafter. The expected benefits are estimated based on the same assumptions used to measure LMG�s
benefit obligation at the end of the fiscal year and include benefits attributable to estimated future employee service:

Pension
Benefits

Postretirement
Benefits

2014 $ 14,119 $ 716
2015 14,261 603
2016 14,391 539
2017 14,479 486
2018 14,559 435
2019�2023 74,323 2,333

$ 146,132 $ 5,112
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5. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits (continued)

The Company does not expect to receive U.S. Medicare subsidy receipts.

Plan Assets

LMG applies the provisions of ASC 715 Compensation�Retirement Plans, which required disclosures include:
(i) investment policies and strategies; (ii) the major categories of plan assets; (iii) the inputs and valuation techniques
used to measure plan assets; (iv) the effect of fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs on
changes in plan assets for the period; and (v) significant concentrations of risk within plan assets.

The table below presents LMG�s plan assets by level within the fair value hierarchy, as described in Note 2 as of
June 30, 2013 and 2012.

The fair values of the Company�s pension plan assets as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, by asset category, are as follows:

As of June 30, 2013 As of June 30, 2012
Fair Value Measurements
at Reporting Date Using

Fair Value Measurements
at Reporting Date Using

Description Total
Level
1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets
Short-term investments $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  $   �  
Pooled funds(a):
Money market funds 142 �  142 �  24,175 �  24,175 �  
Domestic equity funds 46,552 �  46,552 �  13,514 13,514 �  �  
International equity funds 43,227 �  43,227 �  27,219 19,148 8,071 �  
Domestic fixed income
funds 76,479 �  76,479 �  33,584 33,584 �  �  
Balanced funds 28,490 15,773 12,717
Common stocks(b)
U.S. common stocks �  �  �  �  27,847 27,760 87 �  
Government and agency
obligations(c):
Domestic government
obligations �  �  �  �  2,767 �  2,767 �  
International government
obligations �  �  �  �  8,029 �  8,029 �  
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Corporate obligations(c) �  �  �  �  2,720 �  2,720 �  
Partnership interests(d) �  �  �  �  4,067 �  4,067 �  
Other 9,706 9,706 �  �  14,430 (359) 14,726 63

Total $ 176,106 $ 9,706 $ 166,400 $   �  $ 186,842 $ 109,420 $ 77,359 $ 63

(a) Open-ended pooled funds that are registered and/or available to the general public are valued at the daily
published net asset value (NAV). Other pooled funds are valued at the NAV provided by the fund issuer.
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5. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits (continued)

(b) Common stocks that are publicly traded are valued at the closing price reported on active markets in which the
individual securities are traded.

(c) The fair value of corporate, government, and agency obligations are valued based on a compilation of primary
observable market information or a broker quote in a non-active market.

(d) The fair values of partnerships that are not publicly traded are based on fair value obtained from the general
partner.

The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of investments reflected as Level 3 assets as of
June 30, 2013 and 2012:

Partnership
Interests Other Total

Beginning balance at June 30, 2011 $     �  $ 2 $ 2
Actual return on plan assets:
Relating to assets still held at end of year �  42 42
Purchases, sales, settlements, and issuances �  19 19

Balance at June 30, 2012 �  63 63
Purchases, sales, settlements, and issuances �  (63) (63) 

Ending balance at June 30, 2013 $ �  $     �  $     �  

The Company�s investment policy includes various guidelines and procedures designed to ensure assets are invested in
a manner necessary to meet expected future benefits earned by participants. The investment guidelines consider a
broad range of economic conditions. Central to the policy are target allocation ranges by asset class.

The objectives of the target allocations are to maintain investment portfolios that diversify risk through prudent asset
allocation parameters, achieve asset returns that meet or exceed the plans� actuarial assumptions, and achieve asset
returns that are competitive with like institutions employing similar investment strategies.

The investment policy is periodically reviewed by the Company and a designated third-party fiduciary for investment
matters. The policy is established and administered in a manner that is compliant at all times with applicable
government regulations.

LMG pension assets are managed by News Corporation. News Corporation�s investment strategy for its pension plans
is to maximize the long-term rate of return on plan assets within an acceptable level of risk in order to minimize the
cost of providing pension benefits, while maintaining adequate funding levels. News Corporation�s practice is to
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conduct a periodic strategic review of its asset allocation. News Corporation�s current broad strategic targets are to
have a pension asset portfolio comprising of 54% equity securities and 46% fixed income securities. News
Corporation�s equity portfolios are managed in such a way as to achieve optimal diversity. News Corporation�s fixed
income portfolio is investment grade in the aggregate. News Corporation does not manage any assets internally.
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5. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits (continued)

LMG�s benefit plan weighted-average asset allocations, by asset category, are as follows:

Pension Benefits
As of June 30

2013 2012
Asset category:
Equity securities 50% 37% 
Debt securities 42 35
Cash and other 8 28

Total 100% 100% 

Required pension plan contributions for the next fiscal year are expected to be approximately $701; however, actual
contributions may be affected by pension asset and liability valuation changes during the year.

Defined Contribution Plan

LMG has a defined contribution plan for the benefit of substantially all employees meeting certain eligibility
requirements. The Company has limited contribution requirements for this plan.

6. Income Taxes

The income tax (benefit) expense in the combined statements of operations has been calculated as if LMG filed a
separate tax return and was operating as a stand-alone business. Therefore, cash tax payments and items of current and
deferred taxes may not be reflective of LMG�s actual tax balances had it been a standalone business.

(Loss) income before income tax benefit (expense) was attributable to the following jurisdiction:

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30
2013 2012 2011

U.S. $ (27,907) $ (179,380) $ 17,970

(Loss) income before income tax benefit (expense) $ (27,907) $ (179,380) $ 17,970
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Significant components of LMG�s (benefit) provision for income taxes were as follows:

For the Fiscal Years Ended
June 30

2013 2012 2011
Current:
Federal $ (18) $ 456 $ 2,115
State and local 1,410 1,556 2,038

Total current 1,392 2,012 4,153

Deferred:
Federal (9,426) (29,061) 3,676
State and local (2,208) (7,633) 675

Total deferred (11,634) (36,694) 4,351

Total (benefit) provision for income taxes $ (10,242) $ (34,682) $ 8,504
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6. Income Taxes (continued)

The reconciliation between the effective tax rate and the U.S. statutory rate was as follow:

For the Fiscal Years Ended
June 30

2013 2012 2011
U.S. federal income tax rate 35.00% 35.00% 35.00% 
Non-deductible goodwill on asset impairment(a) �  (17.82) �  
State and local taxes, net of federal benefit 2.40 2.22 10.04
Other (0.70) (0.06) 2.28

Effective tax rate 36.70% 19.34% 47.32% 

(a) See Note 4
The following is a summary of the components of the deferred tax accounts:

As of June 30
2013 2012

Deferred tax assets:
Pension and postretirement benefits $ 22,069 $ 30,554
Amortization of goodwill and intangibles 16,365 3,483
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 11,295 11,098
Other 1,616 3,205

Total deferred tax assets 51,345 48,340

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment (11,638) (12,432) 

Total deferred tax liabilities (11,638) (12,432) 

Net deferred tax asset 39,707 35,908
Less: valuation allowance (451) (451) 
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Net deferred tax asset $ 39,256 $ 35,457

LMG had net current deferred tax assets of $848 and $949 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and noncurrent
deferred tax assets of $38,408 and $34,508 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. LMG had no current and
non-current deferred tax liabilities as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

We have recorded a deferred tax asset of $1,404 and $2,982 associated with our net operating loss carryforwards as of
June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. In accordance with the Company�s accounting policy, valuation allowances of
$451 and $451 have been established to reduce the deferred tax asset associated with our net operating losses to an
amount that will more likely than not be realized as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

As of June 30, 2013, LMG had $15,824 net operating loss or capital loss carryforwards available to offset future
taxable income.
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6. Income Taxes (continued)

The following table sets forth the change in the accrual for uncertain tax positions, excluding interest and penalties:

For the Fiscal Years Ended
June 30

2013 2012 2011
Balance, beginning of year $ 12,606 $ 12,107 $ 12,347
Adjustment for current year tax positions 1,560 2,438 1,939
Reductions for prior year tax position (1,617) (1,939) (2,179) 

Balance, end of year $ 12,549 $ 12,606 $ 12,107

LMG recognizes interest and penalty charges related to unrecognized tax benefits as income tax expense, which is
consistent with the recognition in prior reporting periods. LMG recognized interest charges of $911, $895 and $855
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. LMG recorded liabilities for accrued interest
of approximately $5,614 and $4,703 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

LMG is subject to tax in various domestic jurisdictions and, as a matter of ordinary course, LMG is regularly audited
by federal and state tax authorities. LMG believes it has appropriately accrued for the expected outcome of all other
pending tax matters and does not currently anticipate that the ultimate resolution of other pending tax matters will
have a material adverse effect on its combined financial condition, future results of operations or liquidity. LMG�s
income tax returns for 2006 and later are subject to examination in various jurisdictions. As of June 30, 2013 and
2012, approximately $11,171 would affect LMG�s effective income tax rate, if and when recognized in future fiscal
years. The Company believes that it is reasonably possible that a decrease of up to $11,728 in unrecognized tax
benefits related to state exposures may occur within the next twelve months.

LMG paid $70, $163 and $143 for income taxes during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011,
respectively.

7. Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income is related to the actuarial gains and losses related to the pension and
postretirement benefit plans. The balance of $43,003 and $54,581 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, is net of
tax of $29,491 and $37,326 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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8. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Operating Leases

Operating lease commitments are primarily for office space and equipment. Certain office space leases provide for
rent adjustments relating to changes in real estate taxes and other operating costs. Rental expense amounted to $437 in
2013, $467 in 2012, and $397 in 2011. The minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable leases, net of
subleases, as of June 30, 2013 were as follows:

2014 $ 274
2015 69
2016 28
2017 5
Thereafter �  

Total minimum lease payments $ 376

9. Related Parties

Parent and News Corporation provide various cash management, human resources, financial, tax, legal, insurance, and
other services to LMG. These services include processing certain cash activity; cash is generally maintained by News
Corporation. Costs of these services are allocated to LMG based upon established criteria, primarily determined by the
associated cash outflows of the business or the specific amount of services provided. The total costs allocated to LMG
for these services were $2,254, $2,200, and $1,496 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011,
respectively. In addition, News Corporation billed LMG for insurance related to certain specified events of $2,769,
$4,468, and $2,723 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively. Management believes that
the allocations are reasonable. Settlement of amounts owed to and by the Parent are generally cleared through equity.

LMG purchases content for its newspapers from Parent and in certain geographic area purchases and/or delivers
Parent�s and News Corporation�s newspapers for agreed-upon fees. Under these agreements, total purchases were
$2,880, $2,933, and $2,891 and fees received were $271, $299, and $303 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013,
2012, and 2011, respectively.

LMG�s arrangements with Parent and News Corporation have been entered into in the context of a parent-subsidiary
relationship; therefore, these arrangements are not the result of arm�s-length negotiations between independent parties.
There can be no assurance that any of such arrangements has been effected on terms more or less as favorable to LMG
as could have been obtained from unaffiliated third parties.
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10. Subsequent Events

In accordance with ASC 855, Subsequent Events, the Company evaluated subsequent events through September 10,
2013, the date these combined financial statements were available to be issued.

On September 3, 2013, Parent sold the Company to a subsidiary of Fortress Investment Group LLC. As a result, the
Company�s operations are now managed by GateHouse Media, Inc.
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10. Subsequent Events (continued)

On September 3, 2013, the Company along with other specified related parties entered into a credit agreement (the
�Credit Agreement�). The Credit Agreement consists of a $33.0 million senior secured term loan, which was funded on
September 3, 2013, and a senior secured asset-based revolving credit facility of up to $10 million, but which will not
be funded until certain conditions precedent have been met under the Credit Agreement. The Credit Agreement
expires on September 4, 2018 or earlier in the case of an Event of Default as defined per the Credit Agreement.
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Independent Auditors� Report

The Board of Directors

The Providence Journal Company:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Providence Journal Company, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements
of operations, equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2013.

Management�s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors� Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors� judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity�s preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity�s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The Providence Journal Company as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

/s/ KPMG LLP
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Dallas, Texas

August 21, 2014
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THE PROVIDENCE JOURNAL COMPANY

AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands)

June 30, December 31
2014 2013 2012

(unaudited)
Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 213 237 295
Accounts receivable, net 7,423 8,904 8,651
Deferred tax assets, net 466 477 �  
Inventories 2,657 2,613 1,867
Prepaids and other current assets 2,054 1,826 1,279

Total current assets 12,813 14,057 12,092
Property, plant and equipment, net 30,539 31,313 32,696
Intangible assets, net 2,915 5,101 9,473
Other assets 36 389 1,046

Total assets $ 46,303 50,860 55,307

Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,914 1,771 1,923
Accrued expenses 3,169 3,334 3,379
Deferred tax liabilities, net �  �  47
Deferred revenue 4,337 4,342 4,011
Other current liabilities 68 31 34

Total current liabilities 9,488 9,478 9,394
Deferred tax liabilities, net 5,181 6,090 7,948
Other long-term liabilities 30 32 17

Total liabilities 14,699 15,600 17,359
Total equity 31,604 35,260 37,948

Total liabilities and equity $ 46,303 50,860 55,307

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE PROVIDENCE JOURNAL COMPANY

AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in thousands)

Six months ended June 30 Years ended December 31
2014 2013 2013 2012 2011

(unaudited) (unaudited)
Net operating revenue:
Advertising $ 18,975 19,890 41,015 45,995 52,886
Circulation 16,844 16,437 34,042 34,562 33,797
Other revenue 7,693 6,379 15,012 13,209 8,382

Total net operating revenue 43,512 42,706 90,069 93,766 95,065

Operating costs and expense:
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 15,740 17,521 37,619 43,814 46,649
Other production, distribution and operating costs 14,373 15,020 26,441 24,377 25,065
Newsprint, ink and other supplies 7,822 7,215 15,964 15,328 12,523
Depreciation 1,413 2,035 3,500 5,243 5,152
Amortization 2,186 2,186 4,372 4,372 4,372

Total operating costs and expenses 41,534 43,977 87,896 93,134 93,761

Other income (expense), net (55) 1 256 (15) 4

Income (loss) from operations 1,923 (1,270) 2,429 617 1,308
Income tax provision (benefit) 827 (488) 1,269 479 526

Net income (loss) $ 1,096 (782) 1,160 138 782

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE PROVIDENCE JOURNAL COMPANY

AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Total
      equity      

Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 46,378
Net income 782
Net distribution to Parent (3,748)

Balance at December 31, 2011 43,412
Net income 138
Net distribution to Parent (5,602)

Balance at December 31, 2012 37,948
Net income 1,160
Net distribution to Parent (3,848)

Balance at December 31, 2013 35,260
Net income 1,096
Net distribution to Parent (4,752)

Balance at June 30, 2014 (unaudited) $ 31,604

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Six months ended June 30 Years ended December 31
2014 2013 2013 2012 2011

(unaudited) (unaudited)
Operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 1,096 (782) 1,160 138 782
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
and cash equivalents provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,599 4,221 7,872 9,615 9,524
Bad debt expense 128 171 315 188 181
(Gain) loss on disposal of fixed assets �  (1) (254) 15 (4)
Deferred income taxes (900) (1,307) (2,381) (1,450) (2,317)
Changes in working capital and other operating assets
and liabilities, net:
Accounts receivable 1,353 1,006 (569) 147 (135)
Inventories (44) (165) (746) (208) (252)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 127 (31) 109 (1,898) (130)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (22) (335) (197) 119 (3,299)
Deferred revenue (5) (238) 331 1,446 (114)
Other liabilities 35 42 13 (8) 17

Net cash and cash equivalents provided by operating
activities 5,367 2,581 5,653 8,104 4,253

Investing activities:
Capital expenditures (639) (1,360) (1,863) (2,417) (676)

Net cash and cash equivalents used for investing
activities (639) (1,360) (1,863) (2,417) (676)

Financing activities:
Net distribution to Parent (4,752) (1,176) (3,848) (5,602) (3,748)

Net cash and cash equivalents used for financing
activities (4,752) (1,176) (3,848) (5,602) (3,748)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (24) 45 (58) 85 (171)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 237 295 295 210 381
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Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 213 340 237 295 210

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(1) Organization

(a) Description of Business
The Providence Journal Company (the Company) headquartered in Providence, Rhode Island, is a wholly owned
subsidiary of A.H. Belo Corporation (the Parent). The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of Providence Holdings, Inc., its wholly owned subsidiary. The Company produces the oldest continuously
published daily newspaper in the United States and has won four Pulitzer Prizes. The Company also operates print and
online community media franchises, internet sites, digital services, magazines, and advertising niche publications.

(b) Basis of Presentation
These consolidated financial statements were prepared on a stand-alone basis derived from the financial statements
and accounting records of the Company and Parent, and reflect the consolidated historical financial position, results of
operations and cash flows of the Company�s business in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP).

All intercompany transactions and accounts within the Company have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain
operating functions are primarily or fully managed by the Parent, including cash, treasury, IT services, taxation,
annual audit, and employee benefits including share-based compensation, insurance coverage, and the pension plan.
The Company�s share of expenses related to these functions and the other overhead expenses incurred by the Parent
were charged to the Company where identifiable, or allocated on a rational basis such as employee headcount.

The balance sheet accruals for certain such items, including employee medical insurance, share-based compensation,
workers compensation, auto and general liability insurance, income taxes, and unfunded pension liability are
specifically recorded by the Parent. The Company�s portion of such accruals are effectively recorded by the Company
via expenses charged through the intercompany account except for the other comprehensive income component of the
pension liability. Additionally, the Company�s primary cash accounts are swept to the Parent on a daily basis and
accounts payable and payroll disbursements are funded by the Parent. The cash flows swept to the Parent are used to
first satisfy intercompany liabilities with excess cash transfers being recorded as a distribution to the Parent.
Intercompany operating charges are reflected in the consolidated statements of cash flows as cash used in operating
activities.
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(c) Unaudited Interim Financial Data
The accompanying unaudited consolidated interim financial statements as of June 30, 2014 and for the six-months
period ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 have been prepared in accordance with GAAP for interim financial information
and in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commission�s (SEC) instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of
Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and notes required by GAAP for complete
financial statements. The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. In the opinion of management,
all adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation were included. Operating results for the six months ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013, may not be necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013.
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All dollar amounts are presented in thousands, except for the shares amount, unless the context requires otherwise.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid instruments purchased with a remaining maturity of three months or less to
be cash equivalents.

(b) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are net of a valuation reserve that represents an estimate of amounts considered uncollectible.
The Company estimates the allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical write-off experience and the
Company�s knowledge of the customers� ability to pay amounts due. The Company�s policy is to write-off accounts
after all collection efforts fail; generally, amounts past due by more than four months are written-off. Expense for such
uncollectible amounts is included in other production, distribution, and operating costs. Bad debt expense for the years
ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 was $315, $188, and $181, respectively, and $128 and $171 for the six
months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Write-offs, net of recoveries for 2013, 2012, and 2011 were
$331, $269, and $273, respectively, and $140 and $150 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

(c) Risk Concentration
A significant portion of the Company�s customer base is concentrated within the local geographical area of the
newspaper. The Company generally extends credit to customers, and the ultimate collection of accounts receivable
could be affected by the national and local economy. Management continually performs credit evaluations of its
customers and may require cash in advance or other special arrangements from certain customers. The Company
maintains an allowance for losses based upon the collectibility of accounts receivable. Management does not believe
significant credit risk exists that could have a material adverse effect on the Company�s consolidated financial
condition, liquidity, or results of operations.
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(d) Inventories
Inventories consist primarily of newsprint, ink, and other supplies used in printing newspapers. Newsprint is recorded
at actual cost of each roll as specifically identified and all other inventories are recorded at cost determined using the
first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The Company reviews its inventories for obsolescence and records an expense for
any items that no longer have future value.
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(e) Property, Plant, and Equipment
The Company records property, plant, and equipment at cost or its fair value if acquired through a business acquisition
or nonmonetary exchange. Depreciable assets are reviewed to ensure the remaining useful life of the assets continue to
be appropriate and the Company records any resulting adjustments to depreciation expense on a prospective basis.
Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Estimated
useful lives

Buildings and improvements 5�30 years
Newspaper publishing equipment 2�20 years
Other 2�10 years

(f) Long-Lived Assets
The Company evaluates its ability to recover the carrying value of property, plant, and equipment and finite-lived
intangible assets, using the lowest level of cash flows associated with the assets, which are grouped based on the
Company�s intended use of these assets. This evaluation is performed whenever a change in circumstances indicates
that the carrying value of the asset groups may not be recoverable from future undiscounted cash flows. If the analysis
of future cash flows indicates the carrying value of the long-lived assets cannot be recovered, the assets are adjusted to
the lower of its carrying value or fair value.

(g) Self-Insured Risks
The Parent self-insures certain risks for employee medical costs, workers� compensation, general liability, commercial
automotive claims, and records a liability for such risks. The Company is charged by the Parent through the
intercompany account for its share of these costs. The Parent purchases stop-loss insurance and/or high deductible
policies with third-party insurance carriers to limit these risks, and third-party administrators are used to process
claims. At the end of each fiscal year, the Parent estimates, utilizing third-party experts, the undiscounted liability
associated with its uninsured risks based on historical claim patterns, employee demographic data, assets insured, and
the insurance policy. Allocation of expenses to the Company from the Parent are primarily determined based on
claims and cost incurred related to the Company�s employees or operations. The estimates associated with these
uninsured liabilities are monitored by the Parent�s management for adequacy based on information currently available.
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However, actual amounts could vary significantly from such estimates if actual trends, including the severity or
frequency of claims and/or medical cost inflation, were to change. The expenses related to employee medical costs,
workers� compensation, general liability, and commercial automotive claims for the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012, and 2011 were $308, $151, and $383, respectively, and $166 and $194 for the six months ended June 30, 2014
and 2013, respectively.

(h) Equity
Total equity includes the Parent�s investment in the Company net of distributions paid to the Parent. The Company has
1,000 shares of common stock authorized, issued, and outstanding as of June 30, 2014, December 31, 2013 and 2012
and all such shares are owned by the Parent.
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(i) Contingencies
The Company is involved in certain claims and litigation related to its operations and is required to assess the
likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes to these matters as well as potential ranges of probable losses. A
determination of the amount of reserves required, if any, for these contingencies is made after careful analysis of each
individual matter. Such amounts may change in future periods due to new developments in each matter or changes in
approach, such as a change in settlement strategy in dealing with these matters.

The Company�s facilities are subject to environmental laws and regulations imposed by federal, state and local
authorities. The Company believes that its policies and procedures with regard to environmental matters are adequate
to prevent significant risk of environmental damage and related financial liability. While the Company�s policy is to
accrue for losses associated with environmental remediation obligations when such losses are probable and reasonably
estimable, the Company is not aware of any environmental matters that could have a significant effect on the
Company�s operations.

(j) Revenue Recognition
The Company�s principal sources of revenue are the advertising space in published issues of its newspapers and on the
Company�s Web sites, the sale of newspapers to distributors and individual subscribers, as well as amounts charged to
customers for commercial printing, and distribution. Advertising revenue is recorded at the time the advertisements
are published in the newspaper and ratably over the period of time the advertisement is placed on the Web sites.
Proceeds from subscriptions are deferred and included in revenue ratably over the term of the subscriptions.
Subscription revenue under buy-sell arrangements with distributors is recorded based on the net amount received from
the distributor, whereas subscription revenue under fee-based delivery arrangements with distributors is recorded
based on the amount received from the subscriber. Commercial printing and distribution revenue is recorded when the
product is distributed or shipped.

(k) Stock-Based Compensation
The Company�s employees participate in the Parent�s long-term incentive plan. Stock-based compensation represents
the cost related to stock-based awards granted to Company employees and is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period. The Parent grants Company employees Restricted Stock Units (RSUs). RSUs entitle the holder to
shares of the Parent�s common stock as the award vests, typically over a period of up to three years. The fair value of
the awards is determined and fixed on the grant date based on the Parent�s common stock price. Expense charged to the
Company is calculated for each individual award granted to Company employees. Stock-based compensation expense
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for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 was $490, $445, and $211, respectively, and $416 and $355
for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(l) Income Taxes
The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes and recognizes deferred tax assets
and liabilities based on the difference between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using
enacted tax rates. The Company establishes a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that the deferred tax
assets will not be realized. The factors used to assess the likelihood of realization of the deferred tax asset include
reversal of future deferred tax liabilities,
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available tax planning strategies and future taxable income. The Company participates in the consolidated return of
the Parent. Income taxes are reflected in these consolidated financial statements as if the Company filed tax returns on
a stand-alone basis. All tax activities are recorded through the intercompany account with the Parent.

The Company also evaluates any uncertain tax positions and recognizes a liability for the tax benefit associated with
an uncertain tax position if it is more likely than not that the tax position will not be sustained on examination by the
taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements
from such positions are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized
upon ultimate settlement. The Company records a liability for uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in
a tax return. Any change in judgment related to the expected ultimate resolution of uncertain tax positions is
recognized in earnings in the period in which such change occurs. Interest and penalties, if any, related to
unrecognized tax benefits are recorded in interest expense.

(m) Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying
notes and include valuation allowances for doubtful accounts, self-insured liabilities, uncertain tax positions and
deferred tax assets, and assumptions related to impairment and recovery of long-lived assets. Estimates are based on
past experience and other considerations reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation are included.

(n) Fair Value Measurements
The Company�s financial instruments, including cash, cash equivalents, accounts receivable, interest receivable,
accounts payable, and amounts due to customers are carried at cost, which approximates its fair value because of the
short-term nature of these instruments.

(o) New Accounting Standards
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). This guidance
generally clarifies the principles for recognizing revenue and develops a common revenue standard for GAAP and
International Financial Reporting Standards. The standard outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
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accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes the most current revenue recognition
guidance. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The update is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning
after December 15, 2016, and interim periods in those years. The Company is evaluating the impact of adoption and
has not yet selected a transition method, but does not anticipate this update to have a material impact on its recognition
and presentation of revenue within the consolidated statements of operations.
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(3) Intangible Assets, Net
Intangible assets, net consist of the following:

June 30, December 31
2014 2013 2012

(unaudited)
Gross asset value:
Subscriber list $ 78,698 78,698 78,698
Less accumulated amortization (75,783) (73,597) (69,225) 

Total intangible assets, net $ 2,915 5,101 9,473

Amortization expense for each of the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 was $4,372 and was $2,186 for
each of the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Subscriber lists are amortized over 18 years, and have a remaining life of one year, five months as of December 31,
2013. As of December 31, 2013, future intangible assets amortization by year and in the aggregate consisted of the
following:

Year:
2014 $ 4,372
2015 729

Total future intangible assets amortization expense $ 5,101

No impairments were recognized for intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 and six
months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013.

(4) Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net
Property, plant, and equipment, net consist of the following:
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June 30, December 31
2014 2013 2012

(unaudited)
Land $ 13,560 13,560 13,685
Buildings 33,604 33,412 32,516
Newspaper publishing equipment 35,704 35,638 35,389
Other property, plant, and equipment 4,646 4,614 4,615

87,514 87,224 86,205
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (56,975) (55,911) (53,509)

$ 30,539 31,313 32,696

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 was $3,500, $5,243, and $5,152,
respectively, and $1,413 and $2,035 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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As indicated in note 10 � Subsequent Events, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement to sell
substantially all of the operations of the Company, excluding certain assets and liabilities. Certain land and building
assets will be retained by the Parent as part of the agreement.

(5) Pension And Post Retirement Benefits

(a) Defined-Benefit Plans
On January 1, 2011, the Parent established and sponsored the A. H. Belo Pension Plan II (the Plan), which provides
benefits to certain current and former employees of the Company. The Parent maintains the liability for the unfunded
balance of the Plan and allocates the related net periodic pension (benefit) expense to the Company. For the years
ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, and for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 net periodic pension
(benefit) expense attributable to the employees of the Company and allocated to the Company was $(1,461), $(1,000),
$153, $(955), and $(730), respectively. The unfunded balance of the Plan, which is evaluated on an annual basis and
recorded by the Parent was $15,343 and $44,038 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. No contributions
were required by the Parent to the Plan for fiscal year 2013, although the Parent made a voluntary contribution of
$1,651. The Parent made required and voluntary contributions to the Plan in fiscal year 2012 of $8,465 and $3,448,
respectively, and $6,324 and $15,510, respectively, in fiscal year 2011. No contributions were required or made to the
plan during the six months ended June 30, 2014.

As indicated in note 10, Subsequent Events, on July 22, 2014, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement
to sell substantially all the operations of the Company, excluding certain assets and liabilities. The Plan is an excluded
liability and will be retained by the Parent. Accordingly, the Company will not receive an allocation of net periodic
pension (benefit) expense subsequent to the sale and the Parent will be solely responsible for the pension liability.

(b) Other Postemployment Benefits
Included in allocated expenses from the Parent are approximately $31, $39, and $39, of other postretirement benefits
expense attributable to the Company for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively, and $12
and $16 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which has been reflected within salaries,
wages, and employee benefits expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.
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(c) Defined-Contribution Plans
The A. H. Belo Savings Plan, a defined contribution 401(k) plan, sponsored by the Parent, covers substantially all
employees of the Company. Participants may elect to contribute a portion of their pretax compensation, as provided
by the plan and the Internal Revenue Code. Employees can contribute up to 100% of their annual eligible
compensation (less required withholdings and deductions) up to statutory limits. The Parent provides an ongoing
dollar-for-dollar match of eligible employee contributions, up to 1.5% of the employees� compensation on a
per-pay-period basis. The Company recorded expense of $348, $364, and $207 for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively, and $171 and $181 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, for matching contributions to these plans.
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The Parent sponsored the A. H. Belo Pension Transition Supplement Plan (PTS Plan), a defined contribution plan,
which covered certain employees affected by the curtailment of a defined benefit plan sponsored by the former parent
company. The Parent was obligated to make contributions to this plan based on the earnings of actively employed
participants for a period of five years, which concluded on March 31, 2013. The Company recorded expense for the
PTS Plan of $486, $1,900, and $2,192 for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively, and $0
and $486 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Contributions, generally paid in the first
quarter following each plan year, were $2,380, $2,192, and $2,492 for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and
2011, respectively, and $0 and $2,380 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. As a result of
fulfilling its obligations to the PTS Plan and in order to achieve efficient administration of the Parent�s defined
contribution plans, the PTS Plan was merged into the A. H. Belo Savings Plan on July 1, 2013. Accordingly,
individual participant account balances within the PTS Plan were transferred to their respective accounts of the A. H.
Belo Savings Plan and the PTS Plan has ceased to exist as a stand-alone benefit plan of the Parent.

(6) Income Taxes
The table below sets forth income tax provision (benefit) related to the Company�s operations.

June 30 December 31
2014 2013     2013        2012        2011    

(unaudited) (unaudited)
Current:
Federal $ 1,347 639 2,862 1,637 2,297
State 379 180 789 292 547

Total current 1,726 819 3,651 1,929 2,844

Deferred:
Federal (707) (1,019) (1,874) (1,102) (1,811)
State (192) (288) (508) (348) (507)

Total deferred (899) (1,307) (2,382) (1,450) (2,318)

Total income tax provision (benefit) $ 827 (488) 1,269 479 526
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The table below sets forth income tax provision computed by applying the applicable United States federal income tax
rate and is reconciled to the tax provision computed at the effective income tax rate.

June 30 December 31
2014 2013     2013        2012        2011    

(unaudited) (unaudited)
Computed expected income tax provision (benefit) $ 673 (445) 850 216 457
State income tax (net of federal taxes) 121 (70) 183 (37) 26
Other 33 27 236 299 42

Income tax provision (benefit) $ 827 (488) 1,269 478 525
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The table below sets forth the significant components of the Company�s deferred tax assets and liabilities.

June 30, December 31
2014     2013        2012    

(unaudited)
Deferred tax assets
Accrued expenses $ 966 1,035 803
Other 260 265 598

Total deferred tax assets 1,226 1,300 1,401

Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation and amortization 5,297 6,138 8,222
Prepaid expenses 455 454 838
Other 188 322 336

Total deferred tax liabilities 5,940 6,914 9,396

Deferred tax liabilities, net $ 4,714 5,614 7,995

Deferred taxes are classified as current and long-term deferred assets or liabilities based on the classification of the
related assets or liabilities in the Parent�s consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2014, December 31, 2013 and
2012. The Parent places a threshold for recognition of deferred tax assets based on whether it is more likely than not
that these assets will be realized. In making this determination, all positive and negative evidence is considered,
including future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, tax planning strategies, future taxable income,
and taxable income in prior carryback years.

During 2013, the Parent effectively completed the U.S. federal audit for tax years 2008 and 2009 and the Parent is not
currently under examination by federal or state jurisdictions for income tax purposes.

The Parent follows accounting guidance under ASC 740-10 � Income Taxes � Overall, related to uncertainty in income
tax positions, which clarifies the accounting and disclosure requirements for uncertainty in tax positions. The Parent
assessed its filing positions in all significant jurisdictions where it is required to file income tax returns for all open tax
years. The Company�s portion of the Parent�s reserve for uncertain tax positions was insignificant for all periods
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presented.

(7) Commitments
As of December 31, 2013, the Company had contractual obligations for leases and capital expenditures that primarily
related to newspaper production equipment. The table below sets forth the summarized commitments of the Company
as of December 31, 2013.

    Operating    
lease

Years ending December 31:
2014 $ 143
2015 42

$ 185
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Total lease expense for rental of property and equipment was $509, $645, and $674 for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively, and $259 and $255 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

(8) Contingencies
In June 2013, the Company executed an agreement allowing it to effectively assume the distribution of various
national and regional newspapers and magazines previously managed by a third-party distributor. The agreement also
settled claims and disputes between the Company and the third-party distributor (the Settlement). Under the
agreement, the Company is required to pay the third-party distributor approximately $1,330 over a two-year period for
the acquisition of business and settlement of claims. The Company anticipates profits from the distribution contracts
to exceed the amounts paid under the agreement. The Company allocated approximately one-half of the cost of the
agreement as a loss on the settlement of claims and, accordingly, a loss of $665 was recognized in the second quarter
of 2013. The remaining amounts to be paid will be treated as contract acquisition costs and are being expensed as
incurred over three years starting in July 2013, consistent with the contract terms between the Company and the
newspaper and magazine publishers.

In addition to the matter above, a number of legal proceedings are pending against the Company. In the opinion of
management, liabilities, if any, arising from these legal proceedings would not have a material adverse effect on the
Company�s results of operations, liquidity, or financial condition.

(9) Related-Party Transactions
In addition to self-insurance, pension expense, defined-contribution plan expense, stock-based compensation and
income taxes, the Company has been allocated expenses from the Parent of $6,939, $7,776, and $9,017 for the years
ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively, and $3,430 and $3,470 for the six months ended June 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively. These allocated costs are primarily related to corporate administrative expenses, rental
and usage fees for shared assets for the following functional groups: information technology, legal services,
accounting and finance services, human resources, marketing and contract support, customer support, treasury,
facility, and other corporate and infrastructural services. The costs associated with these services and support
functions have been allocated to the Company using allocation methodologies based primarily on proportional
revenue and headcount.
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(10) Subsequent Events
In accordance with ASC 855, Subsequent Events, the Company evaluated subsequent events through August 21, 2014,
the date these consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

On July 22, 2014, the Parent entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement for the sale of substantially all assets
comprising the newspaper operations of The Providence Journal and related real property, and the assumption of
certain liabilities of the Company to LMG Rhode Island Holdings, Inc., a subsidiary of New Media Investment Group
Inc., for $46 million in cash. The final purchase price is subject to adjustment either upward or downward based upon
the net current assets being sold at the closing of the sale. Certain assets will be retained by the Parent, which include
all cash, the 75 Fountain Street headquarters building, downtown parking lots, and the former Rhode Island
Monthly/Sunday inserting building. The Parent will also retain the obligation for the Plan as well as certain
personnel-related and tax-related liabilities.
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Independent Auditors� Report

To the Members of

Halifax Media Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Daytona Beach, Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Halifax Media Group, LLC and Subsidiaries
(�Halifax� or the �Company�), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and
the related consolidated statements of operations, members� equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management�s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors� Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors� judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity�s preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity�s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Halifax Media Group, LLC and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
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Tysons Corner, Virginia

April 14, 2014, except as it relates to goodwill disclosed in Note 2, as to which the date is October 27, 2014.
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,985,001 $ 841,273
Restricted cash �  12,599,648
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately
$2,064,000 and $2,449,000, respectively 34,000,215 35,767,992
Inventories 4,894,715 5,497,205
Prepaid expenses and other 3,637,452 2,873,153

Total current assets 45,517,383 57,579,271
Property, Plant, and Equipment, net 90,316,723 109,213,057

Other Assets
Intangible assets, net 17,747,008 20,641,203
Goodwill 9,085,145 8,794,000
Deferred financing costs, net 1,235,586 4,654,762
Assets held for sale 6,300,000 9,725,628

Total other assets 34,367,739 43,815,593

Total Assets $ 170,201,845 $ 210,607,921

Liabilities and Members� Equity

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (includes bank overdrafts of
approximately $0 and $1,300,000, respectively) $ 20,604,603 $ 24,374,501
Due to Freedom Communications Group �  8,000,000
Unearned subscription revenue 15,437,820 15,321,561
Current portion of long-term debt 7,000,000 23,331,112

Total current liabilities 43,042,423 71,027,174

Other Liabilities
Due to affiliate 331,924 426,861
Other liabilities 2,628,780 1,690,962
Long-term debt, net of current portion 44,833,333 74,701,816

Total other liabilities 47,794,037 76,819,639
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Total Liabilities 90,836,460 147,846,813

Members� Equity 79,365,385 62,761,108

Total Liabilities and Members� Equity $ 170,201,845 $ 210,607,921

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Revenues
Advertising $ 209,139,521 $ 192,394,241
Circulation 94,359,344 85,464,501
Other operating 24,822,560 23,704,750

Total revenues 328,321,425 301,563,492

Expenses
Headcount expenses 129,701,561 118,882,091
Distribution costs 37,051,492 34,228,858
Newsprint, ink, and production supplies 33,995,639 33,471,455
Outside services 12,993,051 13,884,710
News and content 7,342,426 7,261,927
Outside printing 7,086,258 6,552,584
Promotions 5,633,456 4,931,680
Asset impairments 1,704,000 237,000
Depreciation and amortization 10,048,866 7,143,105
Transaction costs 108,543 1,679,260
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets 184,598 (9,634) 
Other operating expenses 39,921,684 33,433,634

Total expenses 285,771,574 261,696,670

Operating Income 42,549,851 39,866,822
Interest Expense (12,479,059) (11,051,225) 

Net Income from Continuing Operations 30,070,792 28,815,597

Discontinued Operations
Net loss from discontinued operations (3,271,382) (1,167,736) 

Net Income $ 26,799,410 $ 27,647,861

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Members� Equity

For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Balance, January 1, 2012 $ 15,086,193
Contributions from Members 32,279,913
Net Income 27,647,861
Distributions to Members (12,252,859) 

Balance, December 31, 2012 62,761,108
Net Income 26,799,410
Distributions to Members (10,195,133) 

Balance, December 31, 2013 $ 79,365,385

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income $ 26,799,410 $ 27,647,861
Reconciliation adjustments
Change in allowance for doubtful accounts (385,382) 1,896,744
Depreciation and amortization 10,048,866 7,143,105
Amortization of deferred financing costs 4,697,513 1,080,445
Asset impairments 5,129,628 237,000
Loss on sales of assets 146,615 209,863
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 2,960,847 (189,606) 
Inventories 726,252 761,146
Prepaid expenses and other (730,418) (217,507) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (4,584,608) 8,739,932
Unearned subscription revenue (339,591) (1,570,338) 
Due to affiliates (94,937) 426,861
Other liabilities 937,818 1,690,962

Net cash provided by operating activities 45,312,013 47,856,468

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of Regional Media Group �  (130,043,000) 
Purchase of Freedom Communications Group (8,000,000) (49,812,000) 
Purchase of Harbor Point Media (3,281,707) �  
Proceeds from sale leaseback transactions 18,108,166 30,764,522
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 11,261 �  
Proceeds from sale of California operations �  17,392,272
Change in restricted cash 12,599,648 (12,599,648) 
Purchases of property and equipment (4,932,588) (6,450,362) 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 14,504,780 (150,748,216) 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from notes payable 43,000,000 120,908,333
Payments on notes payable (79,640,423) (42,434,577) 
(Payments on) Proceeds from Revolving Line of Credit, net (9,559,172) 9,559,172
Payments for deferred financing costs (1,278,337) (5,682,756) 
Member capital contributions �  32,279,913
Member capital distributions (10,195,133) (12,252,859) 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (57,673,065) 102,377,226
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Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,143,728 (514,522) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 841,273 1,355,795

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year $ 2,985,001 $ 841,273

Supplemental Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid $ 7,981,604 $ 10,703,037

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION

Halifax Media Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries (collectively called �Holdings�) was organized as a limited liability
company under the laws of the state of Delaware on October 9, 2009. On April 1, 2010, Holdings purchased the
operating assets of the News-Journal Corporation and Subsidiary (�News-Journal Corporation�) for cash of
$18,128,493.

As discussed in Note 3, on January 6, 2012, Holdings was reorganized to become the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
newly-created entity, Halifax Media Group, LLC and Subsidiaries (collectively called �the Company� or �Halifax�). The
Company was organized as a limited liability company under the laws of the state of Florida on January 6, 2012 in
connection with the purchase of the operating assets of the New York Times Company�s Regional Media Group (the
�Regional Media Group�), which included 16 regional newspapers and other publications in six states for $130,043,000.
Two wholly-owned subsidiaries of Holdings were also formed, Halifax RPS, LLC (�Halifax RPS�) and Halifax Media
Acquisition II, LLC (�Acquisition II�) to hold the real estate and newspaper operations, respectively, of the assets
purchased from the Regional Media Group. Both Halifax RPS and Acquisition II have multiple subsidiaries.

As discussed in Note 3, on June 27, 2012, Holdings purchased 8 daily and 11 weekly publications from Freedom
Communications Group (�Freedom�) for $59,250,000. In connection with the purchase, Halifax Media Acquisition III,
LLC (�Acquisition III�) was created to hold the newspaper operations of the assets purchased from Freedom.
Acquisition III has multiple subsidiaries.

As discussed in Note 12, the Company sold the Santa Rosa Press Democrat and its affiliated publications, including
the Petaluma Argus-Courier and North Bay Business Journal (�California operations�) in November 2012 for
$17,875,000. As of December 31, 2012, $12,599,648 in proceeds from the sale was held as restricted cash related to
debt curtailment. During 2013, the Company had made the required debt curtailment.

As discussed in Note 3, on September 30, 2013, Holdings purchased three daily publications from HarborPoint Media
(�HPM�) for $3,500,000. In connection with the purchase, two subsidiaries were created to hold the real estate and
newspaper operations of the assets purchased. These subsidiaries are consolidated into Halifax RPS and Acquisition
II, respectively.

The Company publishes 36 various newspaper publications, local advertising shoppers, telephone books, and other
advertising related ventures in five states located in the southeastern portion of the United States.

The Company�s operating agreement details the required initial capital contributions and the method in which all items
of income, profit and loss, and distributions shall be allocated.

The Company and its results of operations are subject to certain risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond the
control of the Company. Those risks and uncertainties include general economic conditions and commodity prices,
dependence on key personnel and editorial contributors, competition from alternative news media products, and
services from larger competitors, among other factors. Negative trends in some or all of these factors could adversely
affect the Company�s results of operations, profitability, and financial position.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Halifax
and its wholly owned subsidiaries, which include Holdings, Halifax RPS, Acquisition II, and

F-44

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 261



Table of Contents

HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Acquisition III. All intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. The Company
consolidates the financial statements of all entities in which it has a controlling financial interest. The Company
determines whether it must apply the Voting Interest Model or the Variable Interest Model when evaluating if it has a
controlling financial interest. Under the Voting Interest Model, a controlling financial interest is defined by the direct
or indirect holding of more than 50 percent of the rights necessary to control an entity. Under the Variable Interest
Model, a controlling financial interest is defined by whether or not the Company is considered to be the primary
beneficiary of a variable interest entity (�VIE�). All subsidiaries of the Company are consolidated under the Voting
Interest Model. The Company has concluded that it does not have any variable interests with any VIEs.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (�U.S. GAAP�) requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Elements
of the Company�s consolidated financial statements subject to significant estimates include the estimated impairment
of long-lived intangible assets, assumptions used in recording losses related to self-insured risks, the allowance for
doubtful accounts, and useful lives of depreciable and amortizable assets, among others. Such estimates and
assumptions involve complexity and actual results could vary significantly, which could impact the amounts reported
and disclosures herein.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The term cash and cash equivalents, as used in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, includes currency on hand and short-term investments with a maturity of three months or less.
The Company maintains its cash in accounts, which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. Interest bearing
accounts were guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the �FDIC�) up to $250,000 and non-interest
bearing accounts were guaranteed by the FDIC up to the total account balance through December 31, 2012. As of
December 31, 2013, interest bearing and non-interest bearing accounts held in an insured institution are aggregated
and guaranteed by the FDIC up to $250,000. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
believes that no significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to cash.

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and are typically due within 30 days.
The allowance for doubtful accounts is the Company�s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in the
Company�s existing accounts receivable. The Company periodically evaluates customer credit worthiness and current
economic events and determines when balances are charged-off against the allowance after all means of collection
have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is remote. The Company does not have any off-balance sheet
credit exposure related to its customers. The allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 was
approximately $2,064,000 and $2,449,000, respectively.

Inventories - Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the specific identification
method for newsprint inventory and production and other supplies.
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Revenue Recognition - Circulation revenue is recognized when newspapers are delivered to customers. Unearned
subscription revenue represents payments received from customers related to future deliveries. Advertising revenue is
recognized as services are delivered and advertisements are displayed in the various newspapers and other
publications. Revenues are recorded net of estimated incentives, including special pricing

F-45

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 263



Table of Contents

HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

agreements, promotions, and other volume-based incentives, and net of sales tax collected from the customer. Other
operating revenue is recognized when the related product or service has been delivered.

Phonebook Revenue Recognition, Prepaid Expenses, and Unbilled Receivables - Advertising revenue on the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations includes revenues from phonebook advertising. The Company
publishes two telephone directories, The Complete Phonebook and the St. Augustine Directory. Phonebook revenues
and related expenses are recorded, in total, in the month in which the directories are published, which occurs in March
(St. Augustine Directory) and September (The Complete Phonebook). Customers are contractually obligated for the
full amount of their advertising contract at the time the directory is published, but some customers are billed in the
months subsequent to publication.

The Company has outsourced the selling and production activities of the directories to a third party directory
publication service. Costs for these services are paid in the form of a base fee and commissions. Commissions are
calculated based on a formula of collected revenues, ultimately to be finalized 14 months following the publication of
the directory. For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, management has estimated that approximately
$654,000 and $607,000, respectively, was obligated to this third party directory publication service for the
phonebooks and is included in other operating expenses on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, $181,000 and $564,000, respectively, is included in accounts payable and
accrued expenses on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Unbilled receivables represent contractual amounts owed for published directories that have yet to be billed to
customers. The Company records an allowance for doubtful accounts when the unbilled receivables are deemed to be
uncollectible. The Company periodically evaluates customer credit worthiness and current economic events and
determines when balances are charged-off against the allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and
the potential for recovery is remote. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, unbilled receivables of approximately
$764,000 and $951,000, respectively, are included in accounts receivable, net on the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets.

Deferred Financing Costs - Deferred financing costs represent fees and other related costs incurred in obtaining debt.
Deferred financing costs are amortized using the effective interest method over the terms of the respective loans. For
the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company incurred and capitalized approximately $1,279,000 and
$5,683,000, respectively. As further discussed in Note 9, the Company refinanced all outstanding debt on October 10,
2013. During the refinancing, existing debt was repaid in full with available cash on hand and new debt under
different terms. Deferred financing costs net of accumulated amortization of approximately $3,546,000 related to the
refinanced debt, were expensed and included in interest expense on the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2013. Amortization of approximately $1,152,000 and $1,080,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, is included in interest expense on the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, total capitalized deferred financing costs
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were approximately $1,466,000 and $5,766,000, respectively, of which approximately $230,000 and $1,111,000,
respectively, had been amortized.

Property, Plant, and Equipment - Property, plant, and equipment include amounts related to land and
improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery, equipment, furniture, and fixtures. Property, plant, and
equipment purchased upon acquisition have been recorded at fair value with subsequent purchases recorded at
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

cost. Property, plant, and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives or lease
terms, where applicable, ranging from 3 to 40 years as follows:

Useful Life
Land and improvements 8 to 20 years
Building and improvements 7 to 40 years
Machinery, equipment, furniture, and fixtures 3 to 10 years

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs and minor renewals, which do not improve or extend the life of the
respective assets, are expensed. All other expenditures for renewals are capitalized. The assets and related depreciation
are adjusted for property retirements and disposals with the resulting gain or loss included in operating income. Fully
depreciated assets remain in the accounts until retired from service.

Assets Held for Sale - The Company owns commercial real estate formerly associated with the California operations.
The Company has entered into a purchase and sale agreement to sell this property during February 2014 (Note 13) and
expects the transaction to close during 2014. The assets held for sale are recorded at the lower of their carrying
amount or fair value (less costs to sell) which was approximately $6,300,000 and $9,726,000 as of December 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively. During 2013, based on the current market conditions and selling prices, the carrying value of
the commercial real estate was reduced to its estimated fair value less selling costs and as a result an impairment
charge of approximately $3,400,000 was recorded for the year ending December 31, 2013 and is included in
discontinued operations on the consolidated statements of operations.

Shipping and Handling - Shipping and handling costs are included in distribution costs on the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations, which consist of home delivery expense, subcontracted distribution, and
postage totaling approximately $11,874,000 and $11,926,000 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Advertising - Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are included in other operating expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Advertising expenses for the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012 were approximately $2,084,000 and $1,848,000, respectively.

Fair Value Measurements - Under U.S. GAAP, certain assets and liabilities are required to be recorded in the
consolidated balance sheets on a recurring basis, or measured on a non-recurring basis under certain circumstances at
fair value. Measuring fair value generally requires the use of one or more valuation approaches that includes the
market, income, or cost approaches.
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U.S. GAAP also establishes market based observable data as the preferred source of inputs when using such valuation
techniques, followed in preference by unobservable inputs. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from
independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect management assumptions about market conditions in
hypothetical transactions. Inputs used in the required valuation techniques are classified according to the following
hierarchy:

� Level 1 - Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

� Level 2 - Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations whose inputs are observable or
whose significant value drivers are observable.

� Level 3 - Significant inputs to the valuation model are unobservable.
The Company has applied these provisions when measuring impairment of long-lived assets, intangible assets, and
goodwill, if present, and when preparing fair value disclosures of its long-term debt.

The Company utilizes the best available information in measuring fair value. Financial assets and liabilities are
classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurements. As of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company has no assets or liabilities that are required to be recorded at fair value in
the Company�s consolidated balance sheets on a recurring basis. The Company�s assets and liabilities that were
measured and recorded on a non-recurring basis at December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs (Level 3)

Nonrecurring Basis
Assets held for sale $ 6,300,000
Trade names 10,259,000

The Company�s assets and liabilities that were measured and recorded on a non-recurring basis at December 31, 2012
are as follows:

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs (Level 3)

Nonrecurring Basis
Trade names $ 593,000

For any financial instruments not recorded in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value, the Company must provide
disclosure of the fair value in the footnotes to its consolidated financial statements. As of December 31, 2013 and
2012, the fair value of all current assets and liabilities approximate their carrying value due to the short-term nature of
these instruments. In the absence of a ready market for the Company�s long-term debt, the Company obtains quotes as
to current borrowing rates for the same or similar instruments and estimates the value of its long-term debt using
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present value techniques. Quotes for the same or similar instruments normally consider current interest rate data,
including forward interest rate curves, referenced credit spreads, among others, adjusted for non-performance risk. As
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the estimated fair value of the Company�s long-term debt approximated the carrying
value.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets - For the purpose of evaluating potential impairment, the Company classifies its
long-lived assets in three categories: (1) tangible and intangible long-lived assets with definite lives subject to
depreciation and amortization, (2) intangible assets with indefinite lives not subject to amortization, and (3) goodwill.

Tangible and Intangible Assets Subject to Depreciation and Amortization - This category includes the carrying value
of property, plant, and equipment and the carrying value of amounts assigned to building naming rights,
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

subscriber relationships, and advertiser relationships. The Company evaluates such assets for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of such assets may not be recoverable. The carrying value of
such assets is deemed recoverable if the sum of the future undiscounted cash flows associated with such assets
(individually or in related groups) exceeds the carrying value. If the sum of the future undiscounted cash flows is less
than the carrying value, impairment is then deemed present. Impairment, if any, is then measured based on fair value.
The Company has considered whether there were any impairment indicators at December 31, 2013 and 2012 related to
the tangible and intangible long-lived assets with definite lives and concluded there were no such indicators of
impairment.

Indefinite Lived Intangible Assets - This category includes the carrying value of the amounts assigned to the trade
names. The Company evaluates the carrying value of identifiable intangible assets with indefinite lives at least once
annually for impairment. Impairment is also assessed more frequently when circumstances indicate that impairment
may be present. The Company estimated the fair value of its trade names using an income approach by applying a
relief from royalty technique. The Company used inputs and assumptions in applying this technique that it believes a
market participant would use in a hypothetical transaction and that management has determined are Level 3 inputs.
The Company has determined that impairment existed at December 31, 2013 for the trade names associated with the
purchase of Freedom and the accounting units known as the News Journal, Pennysaver, and Phonebook, which were
recorded in connection with the purchase of the News-Journal Corporation. Accordingly, the Company has recorded
an impairment charge of $1,704,000, which is included in asset impairments on the accompanying consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2013. As of December 31, 2012, the Company determined
impairment existed for the trade names associated with the Pennysaver and Phonebook. Accordingly, the Company
recorded an impairment charge of $237,000, which is included in asset impairments on the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Goodwill - Effective January 1, 2013, the Company initially adopted the accounting alternative to change its method
of accounting for the subsequent measurement of goodwill through the election of a new accounting alternative
recently issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�). The election allows entities to amortize all
existing and additions to goodwill on a straight-line basis over a period of ten years or less. Additionally, the
alternative permits the Company to perform a one-step impairment test at the entity level, only when events or
circumstances indicate that the fair value of the entity may be less than its carrying amount. As a result of the initially
elected accounting alternative, the Company reported amortization expense related to goodwill in the consolidated
financial statements issued and reported on April 14, 2014, totaling $1,266,684. Additionally, the Company
considered whether there were any impairment indicators at December 31, 2013 related to the goodwill and concluded
there were no such indicators of impairment.

During the period after April 14, 2014, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, the
Company determined the election is no longer preferable to the users of the consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, the Company made the decision to reverse the initially adopted accounting alternative and revise the
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previously issued consolidated financial statements. This resulted in the increase to total assets and net income of
$1,266,684.

In connection with the decision to reverse the initially adopted accounting alternative, the Company is required to
evaluate goodwill for impairment at least once annually or more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that
impairment may be present. The recoverability of goodwill is measured at the reporting unit level, which
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constitutes a business component for which discrete financial information is available and management regularly
reviews the operating results of the component. The evaluation of goodwill impairment consists of two steps. The first
step compares the estimated fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying value. If a reporting unit�s estimated fair value
exceeds its carrying value, no impairment is deemed present. However, if a reporting unit�s estimated fair value is less
than its carrying value, a second step is performed whereby the estimated fair value of all of a reporting unit�s assets
and liabilities is determined in order to assess the current implied fair value of goodwill. If the carrying value of
goodwill exceeds the implied fair value, an impairment charge is recognized for that excess.

For the purposes of evaluating goodwill for impairment, management has determined that the Company has multiple
reporting units. In performing the first step of the goodwill impairment test, management estimated the enterprise
value of the reporting unit for which goodwill was evaluated, using both a market based approach including the
implied values indicated by comparisons to similar publicly traded companies and the income approach by applying
the discounted cash flow technique. When using the discounted cash flow technique, the Company used inputs and
assumptions about revenues, expenses, and the cost of capital that it believed a market participant would use in a
hypothetical transaction. When using market based approaches, the Company used inputs and indicators that are
observable, but which required adjustment based upon management�s judgment to reflect circumstances specific to the
reporting unit. Management classified the inputs to its use of the market based and income based approaches as Level
3 inputs.

The Company�s step one analysis for 2013 and 2012 indicated that no impairment of goodwill was present.

In evaluating impairment for all tangible and intangible long-lived assets and goodwill, the Company uses methods
and techniques that include significant judgment and assumptions about future performance of the Company and
overall conditions of the economy and the financial markets. Revenues and expenses included in cash flow projections
are impacted significantly by the level of new circulation and advertising customers, the level of customer attrition,
subscription prices, and the direct and indirect cost of fulfillment, among others. Assumptions made by management
about these and other factors could vary significantly from actual results and such variances could result in additional
future impairment charges or indicate future impairment where previously no impairment was present.

Self-Insured Risks - The Company self-insures up to certain limits for workers� compensation claims and automobile
risks. Estimated liabilities for unpaid claims are included in other liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets totaling approximately $1,305,000 and $704,000 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The
Company accrues for unpaid claims using an estimate of the ultimate cost of claims which includes claims filed, an
estimate for claims incurred but not reported, and historical claims experience.

Reclassifications - Certain amounts in the 2012 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform
with the 2013 presentation.
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Sale and Leaseback Transactions - The Company accounts for the sale and leaseback of real estate assets in
accordance with accounting guidance for leases as established under U.S. GAAP. The Company evaluates sale and
leaseback transactions involving real estate assets for whether the transaction qualifies as a sale in addition to
examining any commitments, obligations, provisions, or circumstances that require or result in the Company having
continuing involvement. If the transaction qualifies as a sale and the Company concludes it has no
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continuing involvement with the real estate asset, losses on sale and leaseback transactions are recognized at the time
of sale if the fair value of the property sold is less than the undepreciated cost of the property. Gains on sale and
leaseback transactions are deferred and amortized over the remaining base term of the lease. During the year ended
December 31, 2013, the Company completed sale and leaseback transactions for eight properties generating
approximately $18,108,000 of gross proceeds which primarily were used to pay principal curtailment on the
Company�s outstanding long-term debt. The Company concluded that the sale and leaseback transactions qualified for
sale accounting and would not require or result in the Company having continuing involvement with the real estate
assets. In 2013, no sales and leaseback transactions resulted in a gain. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the
Company completed the sale and leaseback transaction for six properties generating approximately $41,700,000 of
gross proceeds (including $10,000,000 commensurate with the purchase of Regional Media Group as discussed in
Note 3), which primarily were used to pay principal curtailment on the Company�s outstanding long-term debt. The
Company concluded that the sale and leaseback transactions qualified for sale accounting and would not require or
result in the Company having continuing involvement with the real estate assets. The Company�s sale and leaseback
transaction related to real estate in Daytona Beach, Florida during 2012 resulted in a gain of approximately
$1,169,000, which has been deferred and included in other liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets and will be amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining base term of the lease through 2032. The
Company recognized approximately $50,000 and $15,000 of the gain for the years ending December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively, which is included in gain on disposal of assets in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations.

Income Taxes - The Company is a limited liability company treated as a partnership for income tax purposes. As
such, the members are taxed on their share of the Company�s taxable income or loss, whether or not distributed.
Accordingly, no provision or benefit has been made for income taxes in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

The Company has adopted the authoritative guidance related to accounting for and disclosure of uncertain tax
positions. The guidance requires the Company to determine whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will
be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority. The Company has determined that there are no
uncertain tax positions as defined. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as
a component of other expenses. No interest or penalties have been recognized for the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012. The Company�s tax returns are subject to examination for all periods beginning with the period ending
December 31, 2010 (initial return for Holdings). Currently, no income tax returns for the Company are under
examination.

Subsequent Events - In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Company has evaluated events and
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through the original issuance date of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Purchase of Regional Media Group

On January 6, 2012, Holdings acquired the assets of the Regional Media Group for $140,043,000. Concurrently with
the acquisition, legal title to certain real estate assets totaling $10,000,000 was transferred to and a leaseback
transaction was entered into with an unrelated third party. Accordingly, Holdings net purchase price for the assets of
Regional Media Group totaled $130,043,000. The purchase of the Regional Media Group was considered a
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business combination and solely included identifiable tangible and intangible assets and assumption of liabilities of 16
regional newspapers and other publications. The Company assigned the estimated fair value to all tangible and
intangible assets and assumed liabilities. The estimates of fair values for tangible and intangibles assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are determined by management based on various market and income analyses and recent asset
appraisals.

The Company estimated the fair value of these assets using commonly applied methods including the income
approach of applying discounted cash flow techniques and using inputs and assumptions it believes a market
participant would use in a hypothetical transaction and references to market prices or replacement costs of similar
assets. Significant judgment is required to arrive at these estimates of fair value and changes to underlying
assumptions used could lead to materially different results.

The Company paid at closing approximately $6,440,000 of acquisition, financing, and other expenses in connection
with the January 6, 2012 transaction. Of this amount, approximately $878,000 was capitalized with the real estate
acquired and approximately $3,743,000 was capitalized as deferred financing costs. The remaining transaction costs
consisting primarily of broker fees and taxes of approximately $1,819,000 were expensed. Subsequent to closing, the
Company entered into a transition services agreement with the seller. Under the terms of this agreement, the Company
paid approximately $1,189,000, which is included in other operating expenses on the accompanying consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2012.

The acquisition was financed with long-term debt of approximately $102,275,000, proceeds from a real estate
leaseback transaction totaling $10,000,000 related to the Spartanburg, South Carolina and Sarasota, Florida properties,
member contributions in cash totaling approximately $32,276,000, and available cash from the Company of
approximately $1,932,000.

The composition of purchase price and fair value of net assets acquired is summarized as follows:

Total Purchase Price, net of sale and leaseback transaction $ 130,043,000

Tangible Assets Acquired
Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 26,131,000
Inventories 3,867,000
Property, plant, and equipment 116,118,000

Total tangible assets acquired 146,116,000

Liabilities Acquired

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 276



Accounts payable and accrued expenses 7,173,000
Unearned subscription revenue, net of current portion 11,000,000

Total liabilities acquired 18,173,000

Net tangible assets acquired, at fair value 127,943,000

Total Remaining Purchase Price, net of tangible assets acquired at fair value 2,100,000

Intangible Assets
Trade names 2,100,000

Total intangible assets $ 2,100,000
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Purchase of Freedom

On June 27, 2012, the Company acquired 8 daily and 11 weekly publications from Freedom for $59,250,000, less a
working capital adjustment of approximately $1,438,000. Accordingly, the Company�s net purchase price for the assets
of Freedom totaled $57,812,000. The purchase included approximately $49,018,000 of identifiable tangible and
intangible assets and assumption of liabilities of the publications. In addition, the Company recorded, at closing,
goodwill totaling $8,794,000. The estimates of fair values for tangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
determined by management based on various market and income analyses and recent asset appraisals.

The Company estimated the fair value of these assets using commonly applied methods including the income
approach of applying discounted cash flow techniques and using inputs and assumptions it believes a market
participant would use in a hypothetical transaction and references to market prices or replacement costs of similar
assets. Significant judgment is required to arrive at these estimates of fair value and changes to assumptions used
could lead to materially different results.

The Company incurred $2,520,000 of transactions costs in connection with the June 27, 2012 acquisition. The
Company capitalized $379,000 with the assets acquired and $1,925,000 was capitalized as deferred financing costs.
The remaining transaction costs consisting of broker fees and taxes of $216,000 were expensed.

The acquisition was financed with long-term debt totaling $56,250,000, and available cash from the Company totaling
approximately $1,562,000. As part of the Freedom purchase transaction, the Company had a holdback of $8,000,000
to be payable to the seller of Freedom on June 26, 2013 and accordingly was recorded as a current obligation as �Due
to Freedom Communications Group� on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2012. This
obligation was repaid in full during the year ended December 31, 2013.

The composition of purchase price, fair value of net assets acquired, and remaining unidentified purchase price or
goodwill is summarized as follows:

Total Purchase Price, net of working capital adjustment $ 57,812,000

Tangible Assets Acquired
Cash 10,000
Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 6,619,000
Inventories 1,522,000
Property, plant, and equipment 39,397,000
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Total tangible assets acquired 47,548,000

Liabilities Acquired
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,430,000
Unearned subscription revenue 4,200,000

Total liabilities acquired 8,630,000

Net tangible assets acquired, at fair value 38,918,000

Total Remaining Purchase Price, net of tangible assets acquired at fair value 18,894,000
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Intangible Assets
Trade names 6,500,000
Subscriber relationships 200,000
Advertiser relationships 3,400,000

Total intangible assets 10,100,000

Goodwill $ 8,794,000

Purchase of HarborPoint Media

On September 30, 2013, the Company acquired three daily publications from HPM for $3,500,000, less a working
capital adjustment of approximately $218,000. Accordingly, the Company�s net purchase price for the assets of HPM
totaled $3,282,000. The purchase included approximately $2,991,000 of identifiable tangible and intangible assets net
of the assumption of liabilities of the publications. In addition, the Company recorded, at closing, goodwill totaling
approximately $291,000, primarily related to expected synergies to be obtained from combining operations. The
estimates of fair values for tangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed are determined by management based on
various market and income analyses. Significant judgment is required to arrive at these estimates of fair value and
changes to assumptions used could lead to materially different results.

The Company estimated the fair value of these assets using commonly applied methods including the income
approach of applying discounted cash flow techniques and using inputs and assumptions it believes a market
participant would use in a hypothetical transaction and references to market prices or replacement costs of similar
assets.

The acquisition was financed with available cash from the Company totaling approximately $3,282,000. The
Company incurred approximately $109,000 of transactions costs in connection with the September 30, 2013
acquisition which were expensed.

The composition of purchase price, fair value of net assets acquired, and remaining unidentified purchase price or
goodwill is summarized as follows:

Total Purchase Price, net of working capital adjustment $ 3,281,707

Tangible Assets Acquired
Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 841,569
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Inventories 123,762
Property, plant, and equipment 2,345,794

Total tangible assets acquired 3,311,125

Liabilities Acquired
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 814,710
Unearned subscription revenue 455,850

Total liabilities acquired 1,270,560

Net tangible assets acquired, at fair value 2,040,565

Total Remaining Purchase Price, net of tangible assets acquired at fair value 1,241,142

F-54

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 281



Table of Contents

HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 3 - ACQUISITION ACCOUNTING - CONTINUED

Intangible Assets
Trade names 200,000
Subscriber relationships 80,000
Advertiser relationships 670,000

Total intangible assets 950,000

Goodwill $ 291,142

NOTE 4 - INVENTORY

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, inventories consisted of the following:

2013 2012
Newsprint $ 2,910,973 $ 3,163,580
Newsprint in transit 440,033 909,359
Production and other supplies 1,543,709 1,424,266

$ 4,894,715 $ 5,497,205

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, property, plant, and equipment consisted of the following:

2013 2012
Land and improvements $ 12,639,929 $ 17,163,232
Building and improvements 31,989,012 43,389,674
Machinery, equipment, furniture, and fixtures 58,559,841 51,679,205
Construction in progress 1,251,951 3,534,900

104,440,733 115,767,011
Less accumulated depreciation (14,124,010) (6,553,954) 

$ 90,316,723 $ 109,213,057
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Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was approximately $7,909,000 and
$5,642,000, respectively.
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Intangible assets consist of the following as of December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Estimated
Useful Life 2013 2012

Trade names Indefinite $ 14,395,000 $ 14,195,000
Less accumulated impairment (1,941,000) (237,000) 

Trade names, net of accumulated impairment 12,454,000 13,958,000
Advertiser relationships 3 to 6 years 8,690,000 8,020,000
Less accumulated amortization (4,654,970) (2,700,975) 

Advertiser relationships, net of accumulated
amortization 4,035,030 5,319,025
Building naming rights 19 years 1,000,000 1,000,000
Less accumulated amortization (197,370) (144,738) 

Building naming rights, net of accumulated
amortization 802,630 855,262
Subscriber relationships 4 to 7 years 830,000 750,000
Less accumulated amortization (374,652) (241,084) 

Subscriber relationships, net of accumulated
amortization 455,348 508,916

Intangible Assets, net $ 17,747,008 $ 20,641,203

The useful lives of intangible assets are based upon the period over which the Company expects to benefit from their
use. The Company evaluates the appropriateness of its useful lives at each reporting date or more frequently if
circumstances warrant.

Amortization expense related to intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was approximately
$2,140,000 and $1,501,000, respectively. Future amortization expense for these intangible assets as of
December 31, 2013, is as follows:
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Year ending December 31, 2014 $ 2,327,870
2015 1,761,203
2016 536,203
2017 87,274
2018 52,631
Thereafter 527,827

$ 5,293,008
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Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following as of December 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Accounts payable $ 10,497,117 $ 12,354,729
Accrued headcount and benefits expenses 5,931,831 6,098,253
Accrued payroll taxes and withholdings 509,363 613,860
Accrued newsprint payable 293,083 918,278
Accrued vacation 355,223 791,317
Accrued self insurance reserve 1,305,346 703,984
Other payables and accrued expenses 1,712,640 2,894,080

$ 20,604,603 $ 24,374,501

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, long-term debt consists of the following:

2013 2012
2013 Term Loan, original amount of $35,000,000, requires monthly
principal payments of $583,333 through maturity and the remaining unpaid
balance upon maturity, if any, on the earlier of October 10, 2018 or 120
days prior to the earliest scheduled maturity of the Subordinated Credit
Agreement (currently expected to be September 30, 2016). Interest on the
loan varies and is subject, at the Company�s discretion, to the commercial
lender�s base rate or an elected LIBOR, plus an applicable base spread
which varies from 2.0 to 3.0 percent (3.17 percent as of December 31,
2013). $ 33,833,333 $ �  

Subordinated Credit Agreement, original amount of $10,000,000 requires
quarterly interest payments at 7.5 percent through maturity at
December 31, 2016. Additional Borrowing of $8,000,000 requires monthly
interest payments at 7.5 percent through maturity at March 31, 2019. 18,000,000 10,000,000

Term Loan, original amount of $104,200,000, required monthly principal
payments of $1,287,287 through maturity on June 30, 2016. Interest on

�  63,756,786
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loan was accrued and payable monthly based on 30-Day LIBOR plus 10.5
percent. Term Loan was paid in full as of December 31, 2013.

Revolving Line of Credit, original draw of $16,887,495 and aggregate
availability of $32,500,000. The outstanding amount was due on maturity
on June 30, 2016. Interest on the facility varied and was subject, at the
Company�s discretion, to the commercial lender�s base rate or an elected
LIBOR, plus an availability weighted based spread which varied from 1.0
percent to 2.5 percent. Revolving Line of Credit was paid in full, and
closed, as of December 31, 2013. �  9,559,172
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2013 2012
Machinery and Equipment Loan, original amount of $10,000,000, required
annual principal payments of $2,000,000 through maturity and the remaining
balance upon maturity, if any, on June 30, 2016. Interest on the loan varied and
was subject, at the Company�s discretion, to the commercial lender�s base rate or
30-Day LIBOR, plus 3.5 percent. Machinery and Equipment Loan was paid in
full as of December 31, 2013. �  8,833,333

Mortgage Loan, original amount of $6,187,500, required monthly principal and
interest payments of $46,740 at 4.25 percent through December 6, 2017. A
balloon payment and all remaining accrued interest was due at maturity on
January 6, 2017 or on demand at the discretion of the lender. Mortgage Loan
was paid in full as of December 31, 2013. �  5,883,637

Current portion of long-term debt (7,000,000) (23,331,112) 

$ 44,833,333 $ 74,701,816

On October 10, 2013, the Company refinanced their outstanding debt. The Company entered into a new revolving
credit and term loan agreement with a syndicate of commercial lenders and repaid, in full, all other outstanding
principal balances as of October 10, 2013, with the exception of the Subordinated Credit Agreement discussed below.
In connection with the refinancing, the Company borrowed $35,000,000 under the term loan clause of the agreement
(�2013 Term Loan�) and, in addition, has availability of $20,000,000 in a revolving line of credit facility (�2013
Revolving Line of Credit�). The 2013 Term Loan facility requires monthly principal payments of $583,333 through
maturity and any remaining unpaid principal balance due on maturity. The maturity date is defined as the earlier of
October 10, 2018 or 120 days prior to the earliest scheduled maturity of the Subordinated Credit Agreement, which
currently would be September 30, 2016. The principal balance of the 2013 Term Loan as of December 31, 2013 was
approximately $33,833,000. The Company made various draws on the 2013 Revolving Line of Credit but as of
December 31, 2013 there was no outstanding balance. The contractual interest due for the 2013 Term Loan and 2013
Revolving Line of Credit varies and is subject, at the Company�s discretion, to the commercial lender�s base rate or an
elected 30-Day London Interbank Offering Rate (�LIBOR�) plus an applicable base spread. Interest expense for the
2013 Term Loan for the year ended December 31, 2013 was approximately $251,000. Interest expense for the 2013
Revolving Line of Credit for the year ended December 31, 2013 was approximately $32,000.

On January 6, 2012, the Company had restated and consolidated previous amounts borrowed into a single
subordinated credit agreement (�Subordinated Credit Agreement�) with a separate commercial lender in the amount of
$10,000,000. On June 18, 2013, the Company entered into an amendment to the Subordinated Credit Agreement
which provided an additional borrowing of $8,000,000 (�Additional Borrowing�). The Subordinated Credit Agreement
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has a maturity date of December 31, 2016 and originally bore interest at 15 percent per annum, of which 2 percent was
deferred until maturity. As part of the amendment, deferred interest was due on June 20, 2013 and the Subordinated
Credit Agreement now bears interest at 7.5 percent per annum. Interest payments are required to be paid quarterly.
The Additional Borrowing has a maturity date of March 31, 2019 and bears interest at 7.5 percent per annum. Interest
payments are required to be paid monthly. The balance of the long-term debt outstanding as of December 31, 2013
and 2012 is $18,000,000 and $10,000,000, respectively, and is due in full
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on maturity. Interest expense for the Subordinated Credit Agreement for the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
was approximately $1,650,000 and $1,512,000, respectively.

On December 27, 2011, in connection with the business acquisition and reorganization described in Note 1, Holdings
entered into a term loan facility (�Term Loan�) with a syndicate of commercial lenders in the amount of $74,200,000.
The term loan facility required monthly payments generally ranging from $916,667 to $1,000,000, through maturity
on June 30, 2016. The contractual interest rate due on the term loan facility was equal to the sum of 30-Day LIBOR
plus the LIBOR margin of 10.5 percent per annum. On June 27, 2012, to assist with the purchase of Freedom, the
Company entered into a first amendment to the Term Loan (�First Amendment�), which increased the facility to
$104,200,000. In addition to the schedule maturity payments, on September 30, 2012, the Company made a principal
curtailment payment of approximately $26,432,000. The entire outstanding balance of the Term Loan was repaid
during the year ended December 31, 2013. Interest expense for the Term Loan for the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012 was approximately $5,268,000 and $9,100,000, respectively, which includes approximately $1,561,000 and
$529,000 of prepayment penalties, respectively. The outstanding principal balance as of December 31, 2013 and 2012
was approximately $0 and $63,757,000, respectively.

On December 21, 2011, Holdings entered into a mortgage loan (�Mortgage Loan�) with a commercial lender for
$6,187,500. The Mortgage Loan required monthly principal and interest payments of $46,740 with a contractual
interest rate of 4.25 percent annum through a maturity of January 6, 2017. The entire outstanding balance of the
Mortgage Loan was repaid during the year ended December 31, 2013. The amount was due in full on demand at the
sole discretion of the lender and, accordingly, the outstanding principal balance as of December 31, 2012 of
approximately $5,884,000 is included in current portion of long-term debt in the accompanying consolidated 2012
balance sheet. Interest expense for the Mortgage Loan for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was
approximately $193,000 and $257,000, respectively.

On December 27, 2011, also in connection with the business acquisition and reorganization described in Note 1,
Holdings entered into a revolving credit and term loan agreement with a syndicate of commercial lenders. Holdings
initially borrowed $16,887,495 under the revolving line of credit facility (�Revolving Line of Credit�) and $5,000,000
under the term loan clause of the agreement (�Machinery and Equipment Loan�). The contractual interest due for both
the Revolving Line of Credit and the Machinery and Equipment Loan varied and both were subject, at the Company�s
discretion, to the commercial lender�s base rate or 30-Day LIBOR. On June 27, 2012, as part of the First Amendment,
the aggregate availability of the Revolving Line of Credit was increased from $25,000,000 to $32,500,000 and an
additional draw was advanced on the Machinery and Equipment Loan to increase the facility to $10,000,000. Interest
expense for the Revolving Line of Credit and the Machinery and Equipment Loan for the year ended December 31,
2012 was approximately $287,000 and $267,000, respectively. The principal balances of the Revolving Line of Credit
and the Machinery and Equipment Loan as of December 31, 2012 were approximately $9,559,000 and $8,833,000,
respectively. The entire outstanding balances of the Revolving Line of Credit and the Machinery and Equipment Loan
were repaid during the year ended December 31, 2013. The Revolving Line of Credit was closed upon repayment of
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the Machinery and Equipment Loan. Interest expense for the Revolving Line of Credit and the Machinery and
Equipment Loan for the year ended December 31, 2013 was approximately $181,000 and $207,000, respectively.

Substantially all of the Company�s assets, including accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant, and equipment,
and other assets, are pledged as collateral under the credit agreements. In addition, the above credit
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

agreements include covenants that restrict capital expenditures, the transfer of assets, the issuance and transfers of
stock, mergers and acquisition activity, the incurrence of additional debt, and certain subjective covenants. The
agreements collectively also require the Company to maintain certain financial ratios including a fixed charge ratio
and funded debt to Earnings Before Income, Taxes, Depreciation, and Amortization (�EBITDA�), as defined, and
leverage and senior leverage ratios.

The maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Year ending December 31, 2014 $ 7,000,000
2015 7,000,000
2016 29,833,333
2017 �  
2018 �  
Thereafter 8,000,000

$ 51,833,333

The Company had outstanding letters of credit of $1,464,700 and $1,062,500 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 consists of the following:

2013 2012
Interest expense from continuing operations $ 7,781,546 $ 9,970,780
Amortization of deferred financing costs 4,697,513 1,080,445

Total interest expense from continuing operations 12,479,059 11,051,225
Allocated interest expense to discontinued
operations �  1,452,000

$ 12,479,059 $ 12,503,225

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND CONCENTRATIONS
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Legal - The Company is involved in various legal actions from time to time arising in the normal course of business.
After review, including consultation with legal counsel, management evaluates the probability of losses under any
such matters and considers the need for loss accruals. Management believes any ultimate liability that could arise from
these actions not accrued in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets would not materially affect the Company�s
financial position or results of future operations.

Operating Leases - The Company leases certain facilities, including certain newspaper operation locations, as well as
warehouses, office space, and equipment under noncancelable operating leases that expire at various times through
December 31, 2032. The Company is recognizing the impact of fixed annual increases in
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND CONCENTRATIONS - CONTINUED

minimum rental payments on a straight-line basis over the term of the leases. Future minimum lease payments under
noncancelable lease agreements in excess of one year as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Year ending December 31, 2014 $ 7,367,247
2015 7,135,371
2016 6,950,752
2017 6,828,035
2018 6,887,543
Thereafter 107,635,699

$ 142,804,647

Total rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $8,451,000 and $4,351,000, respectively,
and is included in other operating expenses on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Union Employees - Certain production employees were covered by a union contract that expired October 31, 2013,
which was extended one year through October 31, 2014. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, less than 1 percent of
employees were represented by a labor union with a collective bargaining agreement.

Significant Vendors - During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company purchased approximately 16 percent
and 54 percent of its inventory from two vendors. These purchases primarily consisted of newsprint which is included
as newsprint, ink, and production supplies in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year
ending December 31, 2013.

NOTE 10 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Insurance - The Company has entered into an insurance services agreement with a related party, due to common
ownership of a member of the Company, to serve as the Company�s exclusive broker for insurance products. In
connection with this agreement, the Company pays all insurance premiums to the broker and a broker services fee,
which totaled approximately $3,877,000 and $400,000, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2013 and
approximately $4,028,000 and $436,000, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Accounting Services - The Company has engaged with a related party, due to common ownership of a member of the
Company, to provide dedicated and shared accounting personnel and systems services. These personnel and systems
are primarily used to manage certain accounting functions. In connection with these services, the Company paid
approximately $1,463,000 and $1,208,000 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
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respectively. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company has a due to affiliate of approximately $332,000 and
$427,000, respectively, recorded on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, which primarily relates to
amounts unpaid in connection with these services.

NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

Eligible employees of the Company may participate in the 401(k) defined contribution plan. Employees can contribute
up to 100 percent of their annual pay, up to the annual maximum allowed by the Internal Revenue

F-61

Edgar Filing: New Media Investment Group Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents 295



Table of Contents

HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN - CONTINUED

Service. Employees at least 21 years old, who expect to work 1,000 hours or more during the year, are eligible to
participate on the first day of the month following their start date. The Company provides a discretionary match equal
to 50 percent of an employee�s contribution, up to a maximum match of 3 percent of the employee�s annual salary. The
Company made no discretionary contributions for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

NOTE 12 - DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On November 8, 2012, the Company sold its California operations (Note 1), to Sonoma Media Investments, LLC for
$17,875,000. The Company will have no continuing involvement in the operation of these publications. The Company
has determined that the activities related to the California operations should be classified as discontinued operations.
As a result, the related results of operations have been classified outside of net income from continuing operations in
the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. The net loss from discontinued operations included in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2012 totaled approximately
$1,168,000 and primarily consisted of the following items:

Loss from discontinued operations attributable to:
Income from California operations (January 6, 2012
through November 7, 2012) $ 1,672,744
Allocated interest expense (1,452,000) 
Loss on sale of California operations (1,388,480) 

Net loss from discontinued operations $ (1,167,736) 

Revenues attributable to the California operations included in discontinued operations totaled approximately
$31,404,000 for the period from January 6, 2012 through November 8, 2012. As provided under the accounting
standards, the Company has allocated interest expense to discontinued operations related to the debt required to be
repaid to commercial lenders upon conclusion of the disposal.

The Company remitted approximately $12,600,000 of net proceeds from the sale into a cash escrow account for
repayment of debt principal. As of December 31, 2012, this amount been classified as restricted cash on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet with payment occurring to the commercial lenders in February 2013. As a
result of the 2013 principal curtailment, approximately $242,000 was incurred as a prepayment penalty, which has
been included in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year ending
December 31, 2013.
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As discussed in Note 2, the Company has classified certain assets as held for sale as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.
These assets consist of commercial real estate which is currently being rented to Sonoma Media Investments, LLC
during the holding period of sale. Net rental income of $154,246 related to these activities has been reported as
discontinued operations on the accompanying consolidated statement of operations, along with asset impairment of
$3,425,628 (Note 2) for the year ending December 31, 2013. These cash flows are expected to continue until sale of
the property in 2014.
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As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 13 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The following subsequent events, as of the original issuance date of these consolidated financial statements, exist and
require disclosure:

Letter of Intent to Sell - The Company has entered into a non-binding letter of intent to sell the assets of one of the
Company�s publications for a purchase price of approximately $300,000, less certain working capital adjustments. The
transaction was completed on March 31, 2014.

Assets Held for Sale Transaction - The Company has entered into a purchase and sale agreement, pending closing,
to sell the commercial real property associated with California operations and classified as assets held for sale in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The sale of the property is expected to generate approximately $6,300,000
of gross proceeds.

Letter of Intent to Purchase - The Company has entered into a non-binding letter of intent to purchase the assets of a
newspaper company for a purchase price of approximately $17,500,000, less certain working capital adjustments. The
transaction remains subject to due diligence prior to the negotiation and execution of an asset purchase agreement.
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Independent Auditors� Report

To the Members of

Halifax Media Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Daytona Beach, Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Halifax Media Group, LLC and Subsidiaries
(�Halifax� or the �Company�), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2014, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, members� equity, and cash flows for the nine months then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management�s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors� Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors� judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity�s preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity�s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Halifax Media Group, LLC and Subsidiaries as of September 30, 2014, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the nine months then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Subsequent Event
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As discussed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements, on November 20, 2014, the Company entered into a
purchase and sale agreement to sell substantially all of its assets to an unrelated third party for a sales price of
approximately $280,000,000, less certain working capital adjustments. The transaction is expected to be completed in
January 2015. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

/s/ Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
Tysons Corner, Virginia

December 10, 2014
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheet

As of September 30, 2014

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,260,509
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately $2,105,000 29,725,015
Inventories 5,516,165
Prepaid expenses and other assets 3,997,553

Total current assets 40,499,242
Property, Plant, and Equipment, net 73,934,755

Other Assets
Intangible assets, net 26,865,336
Goodwill 13,817,214
Deferred financing costs, net 1,263,698
Assets held for sale 16,685,112
Other non-current assets 275,994

Total other assets 58,907,354

Total Assets $ 173,341,351

Liabilities and Members� Equity

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (includes bank overdrafts of approximately $2,700,000) $ 25,705,753
Unearned subscription revenue 18,113,334
Current portion of long-term debt 10,000,000

Total current liabilities 53,819,087

Other Liabilities
Due to affiliate 307,145
Other liabilities 4,165,195
Long-term debt, net of current portion 47,466,818

Total other liabilities 51,939,158

Total Liabilities 105,758,245

Members� Equity 67,583,106
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Total Liabilities and Members� Equity $ 173,341,351

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

Revenues
Advertising $ 153,796,158
Circulation 76,391,526
Other operating 19,970,490

Total revenues 250,158,174

Expenses
Headcount expenses 102,439,161
Distribution costs 29,925,979
Newsprint, ink, and production supplies 25,738,491
Outside services 10,047,274
News and content 5,558,268
Outside printing 6,442,042
Promotions 4,726,655
Depreciation and amortization 8,684,080
Transaction costs 216,890
Loss on disposal of assets, net 18,107
Other operating expenses 32,131,963

Total expenses 225,928,910

Operating Income 24,229,264
Interest Expense (2,404,029) 

Net Income from Continuing Operations 21,825,235

Discontinued Operations
Net loss from discontinued operations (61,942) 

Net Income $ 21,763,293

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Members� Equity

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

Balance, January 1, 2014 $ 79,365,385
Net Income 21,763,293
Distributions to Members (33,545,572) 

Balance, September 30, 2014 $ 67,583,106

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income $ 21,763,293
Reconciliation adjustments
Change in allowance for doubtful accounts 41,597
Depreciation and amortization 8,699,883
Amortization of deferred financing costs 399,215
Loss on sales of assets 90,431
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 7,742,015
Inventories (621,450) 
Prepaid expenses and other (151,742) 
Other non-current assets (275,994) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,046,082
Unearned subscription revenue (340,644) 
Due to affiliates (24,779) 
Other liabilities 1,536,415

Net cash provided by operating activities 42,904,322

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of Worcester (17,435,796) 
Proceeds from sale of Mendocino Building 6,100,000
Proceeds from sale of Phonebooks 129,792
Proceeds from sale of Sebring 325,000
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 3,450
Purchases of property and equipment (5,411,846) 

Net cash used in investing activities (16,289,400) 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from notes payable 15,000,000
Payments on notes payable (9,679,791) 
Proceeds from Revolving Line of Credit, net 313,276
Payments for deferred financing costs (427,327) 
Distributions to Members (33,545,572) 

Net cash used in financing activities (28,339,414) 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,724,492) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of period 2,985,001
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Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of period $ 1,260,509

Supplemental Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid $ 2,004,815
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION

Halifax Media Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries (collectively called �Holdings�) was organized as a limited liability
company under the laws of the state of Delaware on October 9, 2009. On April 1, 2010, Holdings purchased the
operating assets of the News-Journal Corporation and Subsidiary (�News-Journal Corporation�).

On January 6, 2012, Holdings was reorganized to become the wholly-owned subsidiary of the newly-created entity,
Halifax Media Group, LLC and Subsidiaries (collectively called �the Company� or �Halifax�). The Company was
organized as a limited liability company under the laws of the state of Florida on January 6, 2012 in connection with
the purchase of the operating assets of the New York Times Company�s Regional Media Group (the �Regional Media
Group�), which included 16 regional newspapers and other publications in six states. Two wholly-owned subsidiaries
of Holdings were also formed, Halifax RPS, LLC (�Halifax RPS�) and Halifax Media Acquisition II, LLC (�Acquisition
II�) to hold the real estate and newspaper operations, respectively, of the assets purchased from the Regional Media
Group. Both Halifax RPS and Acquisition II have multiple subsidiaries.

On June 27, 2012, Holdings purchased 8 daily and 11 weekly publications from Freedom Communications Group
(�Freedom�). In connection with the purchase, Halifax Media Acquisition III, LLC (�Acquisition III�) was created to hold
the newspaper operations of the assets purchased from Freedom. Acquisition III has multiple subsidiaries.

On September 30, 2013, Holdings purchased three daily publications from HarborPoint Media (�HPM�). In connection
with the purchase, two new subsidiaries were created under Halifax RPS and Acquisition II to hold the real estate and
newspaper operations of the assets purchased from HPM.

As discussed in Note 3, on June 2, 2014, Holdings purchased the operating assets of the Worcester Telegram &
Gazette (�Worcester�), a daily and two non-daily newspaper publications, from Boston Globe Media Partners, LLC
(�Boston Globe�). In connection with the purchase, two new subsidiaries were created under Halifax RPS and
Acquisition III to hold the real estate and newspaper operations, respectively, of the assets purchased from the Boston
Globe.

As discussed in Note 12, the Company sold the Sebring News-Sun (�Sebring�) in April 2014. All proceeds from the sale
were used in 2014 to make the required debt curtailment.

As discussed in Note 12, the Company sold its two phonebook directory publications in May 2014.

The Company publishes various newspaper publications, local advertising shoppers, and other advertising related
ventures in six states located primarily in the southeastern portion of the United States.

The Company�s operating agreement details the required initial capital contributions and the method in which all items
of income, profit and loss, and distributions shall be allocated.

The Company and its results of operations are subject to certain risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond the
control of the Company. Those risks and uncertainties include general economic conditions and commodity prices,
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dependence on key personnel and editorial contributors, competition from alternative news media products, and other
services, among other factors. Negative trends in some or all of these factors could adversely affect the Company�s
results of operations, profitability, and financial position.
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Halifax
and its wholly owned subsidiaries, which include Holdings, Halifax RPS, Acquisition II, and Acquisition III. All
intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. The Company consolidates the financial
statements of all entities in which it has a controlling financial interest. The Company determines whether it must
apply the Voting Interest Model or the Variable Interest Model when evaluating if it has a controlling financial
interest. Under the Voting Interest Model, a controlling financial interest is defined by the direct or indirect holding of
more than 50 percent of the rights necessary to control an entity. Under the Variable Interest Model, a controlling
financial interest is defined by whether or not the Company is considered to be the primary beneficiary of a variable
interest entity (�VIE�). All subsidiaries of the Company are consolidated under the Voting Interest Model. The
Company has concluded that it does not have any variable interests with any VIEs.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (�U.S. GAAP�) requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Elements
of the Company�s consolidated financial statements subject to significant estimates include the estimated impairment
of long-lived intangible assets, assumptions used in recording losses related to self-insured risks, the allowance for
doubtful accounts, and useful lives of depreciable and amortizable assets, among others. Such estimates and
assumptions involve complexity and actual results could vary significantly, which could impact the amounts reported
and disclosures herein.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The term cash and cash equivalents, as used in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, includes currency on hand and short-term investments with a maturity of three months or less.
The Company maintains its cash in accounts, which at times, may exceed federally insured limits. As of
September 30, 2014, interest bearing and non-interest bearing accounts held in an insured institution are aggregated
and guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. The Company has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and believes that no significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to cash and cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and are typically due within 30 days.
The allowance for doubtful accounts is management�s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in the
Company�s existing accounts receivable. The Company periodically evaluates customer credit worthiness and current
economic events and determines when balances are charged-off against the allowance, after all means of collection
have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is remote. The Company does not have any off-balance sheet
credit exposure related to its customers. The allowance for doubtful accounts as of September 30, 2014 was
approximately $2,105,000.

Inventories - Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the specific identification
method for newsprint, production, and other supplies inventories.
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Revenue Recognition - Circulation revenue is recognized when newspapers are delivered to customers. Unearned
subscription revenue represents payments received from customers related to future deliveries. Advertising revenue is
recognized as services are delivered and advertisements are displayed in the newspapers and other publications.
Revenues are recorded net of estimated incentives, including special pricing agreements, promotions, and other
volume-based incentives, and net of sales tax collected from the customer. Other operating revenue is recognized
when the related product or service has been delivered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Phonebook Revenue Recognition, Prepaid Expenses, and Unbilled Receivables - The Company published two
telephone directories, The Complete Phonebook and The St. Augustine Directory (collectively the �Phonebooks�). As
further discussed in Note 12, in May 2014, the Company sold both directories. As a result of such sale, during the nine
months ended September 30, 2014, only The St. Augustine Directory was published by the Company. Phonebook
revenues and related expenses are recorded, in total, in the month in which the directories are published. The St.
Augustine Directory was published in March 2014, and related revenues and expenses have been included in
discontinued operations as discussed in Note 12. Customers are contractually obligated for the full amount of their
advertising contract at the time the directory is published, but some customers are billed in the months subsequent to
publication.

The Company outsourced the selling and production activities of the directories to a third party directory publication
service. Costs for these services were paid in the form of a base fee and commissions. Commissions were calculated
based on a formula of collected revenues, ultimately to be finalized 14 months following the publication of the
directory. For the nine months ended September 30, 2014, management has estimated that approximately $206,000
was obligated to this third party directory publication service for The St. Augustine Directory and is included in
discontinued operations on the accompanying consolidated statement of operations, of which $100,000 is included in
accounts payable and accrued expenses on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2014.

Unbilled receivables represent contractual amounts owed for published directories that have yet to be billed to
customers. The Company records an allowance for doubtful accounts when the unbilled receivables are deemed to be
uncollectible. The Company periodically evaluates customer credit worthiness and current economic events and
determines when balances are charged-off against the allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and
the potential for recovery is remote. As of September 30, 2014, unbilled receivables related to published directories of
approximately $202,000 are included in accounts receivable, net on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Deferred Financing Costs - Deferred financing costs represent fees and other related costs incurred in obtaining debt
financing. Deferred financing costs are amortized using the effective interest method over the terms of the respective
loans. As further discussed in Note 8, in connection with the purchase of Worcester, the Company amended its 2013
Term Loan and obtained additional funding on June 2, 2014. As a result, the Company incurred deferred financing
costs of approximately $427,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2014, primarily consisting of creditor
fees, which have been capitalized. Amortization of deferred financing costs was approximately $399,000 for the nine
months ended September 30, 2014 and is included in interest expense on the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations. As of September 30, 2014, total capitalized deferred financing costs were approximately $1,893,000, of
which approximately $629,000 had been amortized.
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Property, Plant, and Equipment - Property, plant, and equipment include amounts related to land and
improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery, equipment, furniture, and fixtures. Property, plant, and
equipment purchased upon acquisition have been recorded at fair value with subsequent purchases recorded at cost.
Property, plant, and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives or lease
terms, where applicable, ranging from 3 to 40 years as follows:

Useful Life
Land improvements 8 to 20 years
Buildings and improvements 7 to 40 years
Machinery, equipment, furniture, and fixtures 3 to 10 years

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs and minor renewals, which do not improve or extend the life of the
respective assets, are expensed. All other expenditures for renewals are capitalized. The assets and related depreciation
are adjusted for property retirements and disposals with the resulting gain or loss included in operating income. Fully
depreciated assets remain in the accounts until retired from service.

Assets Held for Sale - The Company considers assets to be held for sale when management commits to a plan to
actively market the asset for sale at a price reasonable in relation to its fair value; the asset is available for immediate
sale in its present condition; the sale of the asset is probable and expected to be completed within one year and it is
unlikely that significant changes will be made to the plan. Upon designation as held for sale, the carrying value of the
asset is recorded at the lower of its carrying value or its estimated fair value, less costs to sell. Liabilities related to
assets held for sale, if any, are separately stated in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and represent
liabilities that will be repaid upon the sale of the asset. The Company ceases to record depreciation at the time of
designation as held for sale.

The Company is actively marketing the commercial real estate located in Sarasota, Florida (the �Sarasota Property�) for
sale. The real estate is used in connection with the Company�s newspaper operations in Sarasota. The Company has
ceased recording depreciation on the property and the asset is reported as held for sale, recorded in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet at the lower of its carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, which is approximately
$16,685,000 as of September 30, 2014.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company reported as assets held for sale commercial real estate (the �Mendocino
Building�), which was associated with its California operations, that were previously sold. During 2013, the carrying
value of the Mendocino Building was reduced to its estimated fair value less selling costs of approximately
$6,300,000, based on existing market conditions and proposed selling prices. The sale of the Mendocino Building
closed in April 2014 (Note 12). The property was sold for $6,100,000, resulting in an additional loss of $200,000,
which was recorded and included in net loss from discontinued operations on the consolidated statement of operations
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for the nine months ended September 30, 2014.

Discontinued Operations - As further discussed in Note 12, results of operations related to assets classified as held
for sale and assets previously sold, are recorded as discontinued operations when a) the operations and cash flows
related to the asset will be eliminated from ongoing operations as a result of the sale and b) the Company will not have
any significant continuing involvement in their operations after the sale. In addition to the Mendocino Building, the
Company has classified operations related to Sebring and its Phonebooks as discontinued operations for the nine
months ended September 30, 2014.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Distribution Costs - Distribution costs on the accompanying consolidated statement of operations, consist of home
delivery expense, subcontracted distribution, and postage totaling approximately $10,951,000 for the nine months
ended September 30, 2014.

Advertising - Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are included in other operating expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations. Advertising expense for the nine months ended September 30,
2014 was approximately $1,748,000.

Fair Value Measurements - Under U.S. GAAP, certain assets and liabilities are required to be recorded in the
consolidated balance sheet on a recurring basis or measured on a non-recurring basis under certain circumstances at
fair value. Measuring fair value generally requires the use of one or more valuation approaches that includes the
market, income, or cost approaches.

U.S. GAAP also establishes market based observable data as the preferred source of inputs when using such valuation
techniques, followed in preference by unobservable inputs. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from
independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect management assumptions about market conditions in
hypothetical transactions. Inputs used in the required valuation techniques are classified according to the following
hierarchy:

� Level 1 - Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.

� Level 2 - Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations whose inputs are observable or
whose significant value drivers are observable.

� Level 3 - Significant inputs to the valuation model are unobservable.
The Company has applied these provisions when measuring impairment of long-lived assets, intangible assets, and
goodwill, if present, and when preparing fair value disclosures of its long-term debt.

The Company utilizes the best available information in measuring fair value. Financial assets and liabilities are
classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurements. As of
September 30, 2014, the Company has no assets or liabilities that are required to be recorded at fair value in the
Company�s consolidated balance sheet on a recurring or nonrecurring basis.
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For any financial instruments not recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value, the Company must provide
disclosure of the fair value in the footnotes to its consolidated financial statements. As of September 30, 2014, the fair
value of all current assets and liabilities approximate their carrying value due to the short-term nature of these
instruments. In the absence of a ready market for the Company�s long-term debt, the Company evaluates its current
borrowing rates for the same or similar instruments in order to estimate the value of its long-term debt. Such
evaluation includes consideration of current interest rates, including forward interest rate curves, referenced credit
spreads, among others, adjusted for non-performance risk. As of September 30, 2014, the estimated fair value of the
Company�s long-term debt approximated the carrying value.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets - For the purpose of evaluating potential impairment, the Company classifies its
long-lived assets in three categories: (1) tangible and intangible long-lived assets with definite lives subject to
depreciation and amortization, (2) intangible assets with indefinite lives not subject to amortization, and (3) goodwill.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Tangible and Intangible Assets Subject to Depreciation and Amortization - This category includes the carrying value
of property, plant, and equipment and the carrying value of amounts assigned to building naming rights, subscriber
relationships, and advertiser relationships. The Company evaluates such assets for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying value of such assets may not be recoverable. The carrying value of such assets
is deemed recoverable if the sum of the future undiscounted cash flows associated with such assets (individually or in
related groups) exceeds the carrying value. If the sum of the future undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying
value, impairment is then deemed present. Impairment, if any, is then measured based on fair value. The Company has
considered whether there were any impairment indicators at September 30, 2014 related to the tangible and intangible
long-lived assets with definite lives and concluded there were no such indicators of impairment.

Indefinite Lived Intangible Assets - This category includes the carrying value of the amounts assigned to the trade
names. The Company evaluates the carrying value of identifiable intangible assets with indefinite lives at least once
annually for impairment. Impairment is also assessed more frequently when circumstances indicate that impairment
may be present. The Company estimated the fair value of its trade names using an income approach by applying a
relief from royalty technique. The Company used inputs and assumptions in applying this technique that it believes a
market participant would use in a hypothetical transaction and that management has determined are Level 3 inputs.
The Company has determined that no impairment existed at September 30, 2014.

Goodwill - The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment at least once annually or more frequently if events and
circumstances indicate that impairment may be present. The recoverability of goodwill is measured at the reporting
unit level, which constitutes a business component for which discrete financial information is available and
management regularly reviews the operating results of the component. The evaluation of goodwill impairment
consists of two steps. The first step compares the estimated fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying value. If a
reporting unit�s estimated fair value exceeds its carrying value, no impairment is deemed present. However, if a
reporting unit�s estimated fair value is less than its carrying value, a second step is performed whereby the estimated
fair value of all of a reporting unit�s assets and liabilities is determined in order to assess the current implied fair value
of goodwill. If the carrying value of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value, an impairment charge is recognized for
that excess.

For the purposes of evaluating goodwill for impairment, management has determined that the Company has multiple
reporting units. In performing the first step of the goodwill impairment test, management estimated the enterprise
value of the reporting unit for which goodwill was evaluated, using both a market based approach including the
implied values indicated by comparisons to similar publicly traded companies and the income approach by applying
the discounted cash flow technique. When using the discounted cash flow technique, the Company used inputs and
assumptions about revenues, expenses, and the cost of capital that it believed a market participant would use in a
hypothetical transaction. When using market based approaches, the Company used inputs and indicators that are
observable, but which required adjustment based upon management�s judgment to reflect circumstances specific to the
reporting unit. Management classified the inputs to its use of the market based and income based approaches as Level
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The Company�s step one analysis as of September 30, 2014 indicated that no impairment of goodwill was present.

In evaluating impairment for all tangible and intangible long-lived assets and goodwill, the Company uses methods
and techniques that include significant judgment and assumptions about future performance of the
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Company and overall conditions of the economy and the financial markets. Revenues and expenses included in cash
flow projections are impacted significantly by the level of new circulation and advertising customers, the level of
customer attrition, subscription prices, and the direct and indirect cost of fulfillment, among others. Assumptions
made by management about these and other factors could vary significantly from actual results and such variances
could result in additional future impairment charges or indicate future impairment where previously no impairment
was present.

Self-Insured Risks - The Company self-insures up to certain limits for workers� compensation claims and automobile
risks. Estimated liabilities for unpaid claims are included in other liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet totaling approximately $1,306,000 as of September 30, 2014. The Company accrues for unpaid claims using an
estimate of the ultimate cost of claims, which includes claims filed, an estimate for claims incurred but not reported,
and historical claims experience.

Sale and Leaseback Transactions - The Company accounts for the sale and leaseback of real estate assets in
accordance with accounting guidance for leases as established under U.S. GAAP. The Company evaluates sale and
leaseback transactions involving real estate assets for whether the transaction qualifies as a sale in addition to
examining any commitments, obligations, provisions, or circumstances that require or result in the Company having
continuing involvement. If the transaction qualifies as a sale and the Company concludes it has no continuing
involvement with the real estate asset, losses on sale and leaseback transactions are recognized at the time of sale if
the fair value of the property sold is less than the undepreciated cost of the property. Gains on sale and leaseback
transactions are deferred and amortized over the remaining base term of the lease. Prior to 2014, the Company
completed sale and leaseback transactions resulting in a gain of approximately $1,169,000, which has been deferred
and included in other liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and is being amortized on a
straight-line basis over the remaining base term of the lease through 2032. The Company recognized approximately
$38,000 of the gain for the nine months ending September 30, 2014, which is included in loss on disposal of assets,
net, in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

Income Taxes - The Company is a limited liability company treated as a partnership for income tax purposes. As
such, the members are taxed on their share of the Company�s taxable income or loss, whether or not distributed.
Accordingly, no provision or benefit has been made for income taxes in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

The Company has adopted the authoritative guidance related to accounting for and disclosure of uncertain tax
positions. The guidance requires the Company to determine whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will
be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority. The Company has determined that there are no
uncertain tax positions as defined. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as
a component of other expenses. No interest or penalties have been recognized for the nine months ended
September 30, 2014. The Company�s tax returns are subject to examination for all tax years beginning with the year
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ending December 31, 2011. No income tax returns for the Company are currently under examination.

Subsequent Events - In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Company has evaluated events and
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through the date the accompanying consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued.
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NOTE 3 - ACQUISITION ACCOUNTING

Purchase of Worcester Telegram and Gazette

On June 2, 2014, the Company purchased newspapers distributed in and around Worcester, Massachusetts from the
Boston Globe for approximately $17,436,000, net of a working capital adjustment. The purchase included
approximately $13,012,000 of identifiable tangible and intangible assets, plus working capital. In addition, the
Company recorded, at closing, goodwill totaling approximately $4,778,000, primarily related to expected synergies to
be obtained from combining operations. The estimates of fair values for tangible assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are determined by management based on various market analyses. Significant judgment is required to arrive
at these estimates of fair value and changes to assumptions used could lead to materially different results. For income
tax purposes, the amount of goodwill that is expected to be deductible is approximately $4,778,000.

The Company estimated the fair value of these assets using commonly applied methods including the income
approach of applying discounted cash flow techniques and using inputs and assumptions it believes a market
participant would use in a hypothetical transaction and references to market prices or replacement costs of similar
assets.

The acquisition was financed with long-term debt totaling $15,000,000 and a $3,000,000 draw on a revolving line of
credit (Note 8). The Company incurred approximately $628,000 of transaction costs in connection with the June 2,
2014 acquisition. The Company capitalized $407,000 as deferred financing costs and $4,000 with the real estate
acquired. The remaining transaction costs consisting of legal costs and other transaction related costs of $217,000
were expensed.

The composition of purchase price, fair value of net assets acquired, and remaining unidentified purchase price or
goodwill is summarized as follows:

Total Purchase Price, net of working capital adjustment $ 17,435,796

Tangible Assets Acquired
Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 3,716,771
Property, plant, and equipment 1,565,754

Total tangible assets acquired 5,282,525

Liabilities Assumed
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,055,068
Unearned subscription revenue 3,016,158
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Total liabilities assumed 4,071,226

Net tangible assets acquired, at fair value 1,211,299

Total Remaining Purchase Price, net of tangible assets acquired
at fair value 16,224,497

Intangible Assets
Trade names 2,597,865
Subscriber relationships 2,773,129
Advertiser relationships 6,075,065

Total intangible assets 11,446,059

Goodwill $ 4,778,438
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NOTE 4 - INVENTORY

As of September 30, 2014, inventories consisted of the following:

Newsprint $ 3,142,782
Newsprint in transit 954,485
Production and other supplies 1,418,898

$ 5,516,165

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

As of September 30, 2014, property, plant, and equipment consisted of the following:

Land and improvements $ 8,214,341
Buildings and improvements 20,003,849
Machinery, equipment, furniture, and fixtures 61,732,369
Construction in progress 3,743,435

93,693,994
Less accumulated depreciation (19,759,239) 

$ 73,934,755

Depreciation expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 was approximately $6,572,000.

NOTE 6 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of the following as of September 30, 2014:

Estimated
Useful Life

Trade names Indefinite $ 16,890,012
Less accumulated impairment (1,941,000) 
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Trade names, net of accumulated impairment 14,949,012
Advertiser relationships 3 to 11 years 14,658,357
Less accumulated amortization (6,453,182) 

Advertiser relationships, net of accumulated
amortization 8,205,175
Building naming rights 19 years 1,000,000
Less accumulated amortization (236,843) 

Building naming rights, net of accumulated
amortization 763,157
Subscriber relationships 4 to 7 years 3,590,388
Less accumulated amortization (642,396) 

Subscriber relationships, net of accumulated
amortization 2,947,992

Intangible Assets, net $ 26,865,336
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NOTE 6 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS - CONTINUED

The useful lives of amortizable intangible assets are based upon the period over which the Company expects to benefit
from their use. The Company evaluates the appropriateness of its useful lives at each reporting date or more frequently
if circumstances warrant.

Amortization expense related to amortizable intangible assets for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 was
approximately $2,128,000. Future amortization expense for these intangible assets as of September 30, 2014, is as
follows:

Year ending September 30, 2015 $ 3,150,057
2016 1,769,239
2017 1,114,142
2018 1,031,550
2019 1,031,550
Thereafter 3,819,786

$ 11,916,324

NOTE 7 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following as of September 30, 2014:

Accounts payable $ 12,103,147
Accrued headcount and related expenses 7,437,753
Accrued newsprint payable 809,153
Accrued vacation 1,304,824
Accrued self insurance reserve 1,306,360
Other payables and accrued expenses 2,744,516

$ 25,705,753
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NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT

As of September 30, 2014, long-term debt consists of the following:

2013 Term Loan, original amount of $35,000,000 with an additional borrowing of $15,000,000 on
June 2, 2014, requires monthly principal payments of $583,333 through May 30, 2014 and
monthly principal payments of $833,333 beginning June 30, 2014 through maturity, with the
remaining unpaid balance, if any, due upon maturity which is the earlier of October 10, 2018 or
120 days prior to the earliest scheduled maturity of the Subordinated Credit Agreement. Interest
on the loan varies and is subject, at the Company�s discretion, to the commercial lender�s base rate
or an elected LIBOR, plus an applicable base spread which varies from 2.0 to 3.0 percent (3.16
percent as of September 30, 2014). $ 39,153,542

2013 Revolving Line of Credit, with availability of $20,000,000. The remaining unpaid balance, if
any, is due upon maturity, which is either October 10, 2018 or 120 days prior to the earliest
scheduled maturity of the Subordinated Credit Agreement. Interest on the loan varies and is
subject, at the Company�s discretion, to the commercial lender�s base rate or an elected LIBOR,
plus an applicable base spread which varies from 2.0 to 3.0 percent (5.25 percent as of
September 30, 2014). 313,276

Subordinated Credit Agreement, original amount of $10,000,000 requires quarterly interest
payments at 7.5 percent through maturity at December 31, 2016. Additional Borrowing of
$8,000,000 requires monthly interest payments at 7.5 percent through maturity at March 31, 2019. 18,000,000

Current portion of long-term debt (10,000,000) 

$ 47,466,818

On October 10, 2013, the Company refinanced their outstanding debt and entered into a new revolving credit and term
loan agreement with a syndicate of commercial lenders and repaid, in full, all other outstanding principal balances as
of October 10, 2013, with the exception of the Subordinated Credit Agreement discussed below. In connection with
the refinancing, the Company borrowed $35,000,000 under the term loan portion of the agreement (�2013 Term Loan�)
and, in addition, had availability of $20,000,000 in a revolving line of credit facility for borrowings (�2013 Revolving
Line of Credit�) and letter of credit capacity of up to $5,000,000. On June 2, 2014, the Company amended the 2013
Term Loan, to obtain an additional borrowing of $15,000,000. These proceeds were used exclusively to fund the
Worcester asset purchase in June 2014 (Note 3). No other terms of the loan were amended, with the exception that the
loan provided for repayment in equal monthly installments of $583,333 through May 2014 and equal monthly
installments of $833,333 beginning in June 2014 through maturity, with any remaining unpaid principal due on
maturity. The maturity date is defined as the earlier of October 10, 2018 or 120 days prior to the earliest scheduled
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maturity of the Subordinated Credit Agreement, which currently would be September 2, 2016. The principal balance
of the 2013 Term Loan as of September 30, 2014 was approximately $39,154,000. The Company made various draws
and repayments on the 2013 Revolving Line of Credit during the nine months ended September 30, 2014. Net
borrowings as of September 30, 2014 were approximately $313,000 under the 2013 Revolving Line of Credit and
outstanding letters of credit were approximately $1,436,000. The contractual interest due for the 2013 Term Loan and
2013 Revolving Line of Credit varies and is subject, at the Company�s discretion, to the commercial lender�s base rate
or an elected 30-Day London Interbank Offering Rate (�LIBOR�) plus an applicable base spread. Interest
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NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

expense for the 2013 Term Loan was approximately $841,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2014. Interest
expense for the 2013 Revolving Line of Credit was approximately $138,000 for the nine months ended September 30,
2014.

On January 6, 2012, the Company had restated and consolidated previous amounts borrowed into a single
subordinated credit agreement (�Subordinated Credit Agreement�) with a separate commercial lender in the amount of
$10,000,000. On June 18, 2013, the Company entered into an amendment to the Subordinated Credit Agreement
which provided an additional borrowing of $8,000,000 (�Additional Borrowing�). The Subordinated Credit Agreement
has a maturity date of December 31, 2016 and originally bore interest at 15 percent per annum, of which 2 percent was
deferred until maturity. As part of the amendment, the Subordinated Credit Agreement interest rate was reduced to 7.5
percent per annum effective June 18, 2013. Interest payments are required to be paid quarterly. The Additional
Borrowing has a maturity date of March 31, 2019 and bears interest at 7.5 percent per annum. Interest payments are
required to be paid monthly. The balance of the long-term debt outstanding was $18,000,000 as of September 30,
2014, and is due in full on their respective maturity dates. Interest expense for the Subordinated Credit Agreement for
the nine months ended September 30, 2014 was approximately $1,024,000.

Substantially all of the Company�s assets, including accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant, and equipment,
and other assets, are pledged as collateral under the credit agreements. In addition, the above credit agreements
include covenants that restrict capital expenditures, the transfer of assets, the issuance and transfers of stock, mergers
and acquisition activity, the incurrence of additional debt, and certain subjective covenants. The agreements
collectively also require the Company to maintain certain financial ratios including a fixed charge ratio and total
leverage and senior leverage ratios based upon the funded debt to Earnings Before Income, Taxes, Depreciation, and
Amortization (�EBITDA�), as defined. As of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, the Company was in
compliance with all covenants.

The maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Year ending September 30, 2015 $ 10,000,000
2016 29,466,818
2017 10,000,000
2018 �  
2019 8,000,000

$ 57,466,818

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND CONCENTRATIONS
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Legal - The Company is involved in various legal actions from time to time arising in the normal course of business.
After review, including consultation with legal counsel, management evaluates the probability of losses under any
such matters and considers the need for loss accruals. Management believes any ultimate liability that could arise from
these actions not accrued in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet would not materially affect the Company�s
financial position or results of future operations.
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NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND CONCENTRATIONS - CONTINUED

Union Employees - Certain employees are covered by a union contract that expires on October 31, 2015. In addition,
the Company is currently negotiating a collective bargaining agreement with a group of employees at one of its other
newspapers. As of September 30, 2014, less than 1 percent of employees were represented by a labor union with a
collective bargaining agreement.

Significant Vendors - During the nine months ended September 30, 2014, the Company purchased approximately
15 percent and 53 percent of its inventory from two vendors. These purchases primarily consisted of newsprint, which
is included as newsprint, ink, and production supplies in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for
the nine months ended September 30, 2014.

Operating Leases - The Company leases certain facilities, including certain newspaper operation locations, as well as
warehouses, office space, and equipment under noncancelable operating leases that expire at various times through
December 31, 2033. The Company is recognizing the impact of fixed annual increases in minimum rental payments
on a straight-line basis over the term of the leases. Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable lease
agreements in excess of one year as of September 30, 2014 are as follows:

Year ending September 30, 2015 $ 7,396,155
2016 7,303,572
2017 6,950,213
2018 6,867,812
2019 6,890,495
Thereafter 95,916,480

$ 131,324,727

Total rental expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 was approximately $7,225,000, and is included in
other operating expenses on the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

NOTE 10 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Insurance - The Company has entered into an insurance services agreement with a related party, due to common
ownership of a member of the Company, to serve as the Company�s exclusive broker for property, casualty, and certain
employee benefits insurance products. In connection with this agreement, the Company pays a portion of the property
and casualty insurance premiums to the broker and also pays a brokerage fee, which totaled approximately $3,583,000
and $400,000, respectively, for the nine months ended September 30, 2014. Additional brokerage fees earned by the
related party, associated with placing the employee benefits insurance, are paid by the insurance carrier.
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Accounting Services - The Company has engaged with a related party, due to common ownership of a member of the
Company, to provide dedicated and shared finance and accounting personnel as well as financial systems support and
services. These personnel and financial systems are primarily used to manage certain accounting and treasury
functions. In connection with these services, the Company paid approximately $1,127,000 for the nine months ended
September 30, 2014. As of September 30, 2014, the Company has a due to affiliate of approximately $307,000,
recorded on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, which primarily relates to amounts unpaid in connection
with these services.
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NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

Eligible employees of the Company may participate in the 401(k) defined contribution plan. Employees can contribute
up to 100 percent of their annual pay, up to the annual maximum allowed by the Internal Revenue Service. Employees
at least 21 years old, who expect to work 1,000 hours or more during the year, are eligible to participate on the first
day of the month following their start date. The Plan�s provisions include a discretionary match by the Company, equal
to 50 percent of an employee�s contribution, up to a maximum match of 3 percent of the employee�s annual salary. The
Company made no discretionary contributions for the nine months ended September 30, 2014.

NOTE 12 - DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Sebring

On April 1, 2014, the Company sold Sebring (Note 1) to an unrelated third party for $325,000. The Company will
have no continuing involvement in the operation of this publication. The Company has determined that the activities
related to the Sebring operations should be classified as discontinued operations. As a result, the related results of
operations have been classified outside of net income from continuing operations in the accompanying consolidated
statement of operations. The Company used approximately $300,000 of net proceeds from the sale to repay debt
principal.

Phonebooks

On May 27, 2014, the Company sold its Phonebooks (Note 1) to Directory Publishing Solutions, Inc. for $700,000.
The proceeds consisted of $105,000 in cash and a note receivable from the purchaser for $595,000. The note
receivable is due in 24 monthly installments, maturing on September 15, 2016. The sale agreement contains certain
provisions that require payment of the note receivable in full, at which time legal title to the assets transfer to the
purchaser. Accordingly, the Company will defer the gain on the sale until amounts are received from the purchaser.
The Company will continue to be obligated for commissions due on all publications released prior to the sale of these
directories (Note 2) but will otherwise have no continuing involvement in the operation of these publications. As a
result, the related results of operations have been classified outside of net income from continuing operations in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations. The Company used approximately $130,000 of net proceeds
from the sale to repay debt principal.

Mendocino Building

On April 15, 2014, the Company finalized the sale of the Mendocino Building for a selling price of $6,100,000. The
Mendocino Building was classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2013. During the period the property was held
for sale, the Company operated the building as a rental property and collected rents from tenants and incurred
operating expenses related to the rental of the property. As a result, the related results of operations have been
classified outside of net income from continuing operations in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.
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HALIFAX MEDIA GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

NOTE 12 - DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - CONTINUED

Summary of Net Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

The net income (loss) from discontinued operations and attributable revenues from the respective operating units
included as discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the nine months
ended September 30, 2014 consisted of the following:

Sebring Phonebooks
Mendocino
Building Total

Loss from discontinued operations attributable
to:
Income (Loss) from operations $ (132,400) $ 248,548 $ (145,591) $ (29,443) 
Gain (Loss) on sale 108,709 58,792 (200,000) (32,499) 

Net income (loss) from discontinued operations $ (23,691) $ 307,340 $ (345,591) $ (61,942) 

Revenues attributable to discontinued operations
included in income (loss) from operations above $ 294,692 $ 625,799 $ 189,245 $ 1,109,736

NOTE 13 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On November 20, 2014, the Company entered into a purchase and sale agreement to sell substantially all of its assets,
with the exception of the Sarasota Property and certain real property in Daytona Beach, Florida, to an unrelated third
party for a cash sales price of approximately $280,000,000, less certain working capital adjustments. The transaction
is expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2015.

The closing of this transaction is subject to conditions to closing being met. Upon closing of the transaction, all of the
Company�s long term debt will be due and payable. Additionally, upon closing of the transaction, the Company will
have certain transaction related obligations due to its employees, which management has determined are not material
to the transaction.
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PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 13. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution.
The following table sets forth an itemization of all estimated expenses in connection with the issuance and distribution
of the securities to be registered:

Item Amount
SEC Registration Fee $ 20,933.12
FINRA filing fee 27,523
Printing fee 50,000
NYSE Listing fee 35,000
Accounting fees and expenses 175,000
Transfer Agent fee 10,000
Legal fees and expenses 425,000
Miscellaneous 10,000

Total $ 753,456.12

Item 14. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.
Section 102 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, as amended (the �DGCL�), allows a corporation to eliminate the
personal liability of directors to a corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for a breach of a fiduciary
duty as a director, except where the director breached his duty of loyalty, failed to act in good faith, engaged in
intentional misconduct or knowingly violated a law, authorized the payment of a dividend or approved a stock
repurchase or redemption in violation of Delaware corporate law or obtained an improper personal benefit.

Section 145 of the DGCL provides, among other things, that a corporation may indemnify any person who was or is a
party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding (other than
an action by or in the right of the corporation) by reason of the fact that the person is or was a director, officer,
employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the corporation�s request as a director, officer, employee
or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses, including
attorneys� fees, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by the person in
connection with the action, suit or proceeding. The power to indemnify applies if (i) such person is successful on the
merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit or proceeding or (ii) such person acted in good faith and in a manner
he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and with respect to any
criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful. The power to indemnify
applies to actions brought by or in the right of the corporation as well, but only to the extent of defense expenses
(including attorneys� fees but excluding amounts paid in settlement) actually and reasonably incurred and not to any
satisfaction of judgment or settlement of the claim itself, and with the further limitation that in such actions no
indemnification shall be made in the event of any adjudication of negligence or misconduct in the performance of his
duties to the corporation, unless a court believes that in light of all the circumstances indemnification should apply.
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Section 174 of the DGCL provides, among other things, that a director who willfully and negligently approves of an
unlawful payment of dividends or an unlawful stock purchase or redemption may be held liable for such actions. A
director who was either absent when the unlawful actions were approved or dissented at the time, may avoid liability
by causing his or her dissent to such actions to be entered in the books containing the minutes of the meetings of the
board of directors at the time the action occurred or immediately after the absent director receives notice of the
unlawful acts.

The Company�s amended and restated certificate of incorporation states that no director shall be personally liable to us
or any of our stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except to
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the extent such exemption from liability or limitation thereof is not permitted under the DGCL as it exists or may be
amended. A director is also not exempt from liability for any transaction from which he or she derived an improper
personal benefit, or for violations of Section 174 of the DGCL. To the maximum extent permitted under Section 145
of the DGCL, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation authorizes us to indemnify any and all persons
whom we have the power to indemnify under the law.

Our amended and restated bylaws provide that the Company will indemnify, to the fullest extent permitted by the
DGCL, each person who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party in any legal proceeding by reason
of the fact that he or she is or was a director or officer of the Company or is or was a director or officer of the
Company serving at the request of the Company as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise. However, such indemnification is permitted only if such person
acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the
Company, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe such person�s
conduct was unlawful. Indemnification is authorized on a case-by-case basis by (1) our board of directors by a
majority vote of disinterested directors, (2) a committee of the disinterested directors, (3) independent legal counsel in
a written opinion if (1) and (2) are not available, or if disinterested directors so direct, or (4) the stockholders.
Indemnification of former directors or officers shall be determined by any person authorized to act on the matter on
our behalf. Expenses incurred by a director or officer in defending against such legal proceedings are payable before
the final disposition of the action, provided that the director or officer undertakes to repay us if it is later determined
that he or she is not entitled to indemnification.

The Company has entered into separate indemnification agreements with its directors and officers, substantially in the
form of the indemnification agreement filed as Exhibit 10.4 to our registration statement on Form S-1. Each
indemnification agreement provides, among other things, for indemnification to the fullest extent permitted by law
and our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws against any and all
expenses, judgments, fines, penalties and amounts paid in settlement of any claim. The indemnification agreements
provide for the advancement or payment of all expenses to the indemnitee and for reimbursement to us if it is found
that such indemnitee is not entitled to such indemnification under applicable law and our amended and restated
certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers or
persons controlling the Company pursuant to the foregoing provisions, the Company has been informed that, in the
opinion of the SEC, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore
unenforceable.

Item 15. Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities.
In connection with the restructuring of GateHouse Media Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries (�GateHouse�), on
November 26, 2013, the effective date of the restructuring (the �Effective Date�), New Media Investment Group Inc.
(�New Media�) issued 30,000,000 shares of common stock, par value, $0.01 per share, of New Media (the �Common
Stock�) pursuant to its Joint Prepackaged Chapter 11 Plan (as modified, amended or supplemented from time to time,
the �Plan�) in accordance with Section 1145(a)(1) of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (the �Bankruptcy Code�).

Additionally, on the Effective Date, New Media issued 1,362,479 10-year warrants at a strike price of $46.35 per
share to the former equity holders of GateHouse pursuant to the Plan in accordance with Section 1145(a)(2) of the
Bankruptcy Code.
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Item 16. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) Exhibits: The list of Exhibits is set forth beginning on page II-6 of this Registration Statement and is incorporated
herein by reference.

(b) Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule II�Valuation and Qualifying Accounts.
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New Media Investment Group Inc.

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(In Thousands)

Description

Balance at
Beginning
of Period

Charges to
Earnings

Charges
to Other
Accounts Deductions

Balance
at

End of
Period

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Two months ended December 29,
2013 $ �  $ 349 $ �  $ �  $ 349
Ten months ended November 6, 2013 $ 2,456 $ 1,635 $ �  $ (186)(1) $ 3,905
Year ended December 30, 2012 $ 2,976 $ 2,304 $ �  $ (2,824)(1) $ 2,456
Year ended January 1, 2012 $ 3,260 $ 3,093 $ �  $ (3,377)(1) $ 2,976

Deferred tax valuation allowance
Two months ended December 29,
2013 $ 166,911 $ (2,142) $ �  $ �  $ 164,769
Ten months ended November 6, 2013 $ 444,590 $ (59,839) $ (20,412)(2) $ (197,428)(3) $ 166,911
Year ended December 30, 2012 $ 432,954 $ 11,795 $ (159)(2) $ �  $ 444,590
Year ended January 1, 2012 $ 430,247 $ 6,551 $ (3,844)(2) $ �  $ 432,954

(1) Amounts are primarily related to the write off of fully reserved accounts receivable.
(2) Amount is primarily related to the tax effects of the change in derivative value and is recorded in accumulated

other comprehensive income (loss).
(3) Amount primarily relates to the reduction of tax attributes related to the cancellation of indebtedness and other

fresh start adjustments.
All other schedules are omitted because the conditions requiring their filing do not exist, or because the required
information is provided in the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the notes thereto.

Item 17. Undertakings.
(a) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors,
officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has
been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public
policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for
indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a
director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is
asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant
will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of
appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the
Securities Act of 1933 and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
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(b) The undersigned registrant hereby further undertakes that:

(1) For purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act, the information omitted from the form of
prospectus filed as part of this registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in a form of
prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(1) or (4), or 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed
to be part of this registration statement as of the time it was declared effective.

(2) For the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act, each post-effective amendment that contains
a form of prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and
the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, New Media Investment Group Inc. has duly caused this
registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the city of New
York, State of New York, on January 13, 2015.

NEW MEDIA INVESTMENT GROUP INC.

By: /s/ Michael E. Reed
Name:   Michael E. Reed
Title:   Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each officer and director of New Media Investment Group Inc.
whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Cameron D. MacDougall and Michael E. Reed, and each of
them, his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution and revocation, for him or
her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to execute any or all amendments including any
post-effective amendments and supplements to this Registration Statement, and any additional Registration Statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b), and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorney-in-fact and agent full power and
authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done, as fully to all intents and
purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact and
agent, or his or her substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

* * * *

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by the
following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Michael E. Reed

Michael E. Reed

Chief Executive Officer

and Director

(principal executive officer)

January 13, 2015

*

Gregory Freiberg

Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Accounting Officer (principal financial
officer and principal accounting officer)

January 13, 2015

*

Wesley R. Edens

Chairman and Director January 13, 2015
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Kevin M. Sheehan

Director January 13, 2015

*

Theodore P. Janulis

Director January 13, 2015

*

Laurence Tarica

Director January 13, 2015

* By: /s/ Michael E. Reed
Michael E. Reed
As Attorney-in-fact
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Description

1.1# Form of Underwriting Agreement.

2.1 Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 28, 2007, by and among SureWest
Communications, as Seller, SureWest Directories and GateHouse Media, Inc., as Purchaser
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to GateHouse Media, Inc.�s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed March 1, 2007).

2.2 Amended and Restated Asset Purchase Agreement, dated April 12, 2007, by and among Gannett
Satellite Information Network, Inc., Gannett River States Publishing Corporation, Pacific and
Southern Company, Inc., Federated Publications, Inc., Media West�GSI, Inc., Media West�GRS,
Inc., as Sellers, and GateHouse Media Illinois Holdings, Inc., as Buyer, and GateHouse Media,
Inc., as Buyer guarantor (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to GateHouse Media,
Inc�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 8, 2007).

2.3 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated April 12, 2007, by and among Gannett Satellite Information
Network, Inc., Media West�GSI, Inc., as Sellers, GateHouse Media Illinois Holdings, Inc., as
Buyer, and GateHouse Media, Inc., as Buyer guarantor (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 2.2 to GateHouse Media, Inc�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 8, 2007).

2.4 Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of June 28, 2013 by and among Dow Jones Ventures VII,
Inc., Dow Jones Local Media Group, Inc., Newcastle Investment Corp. and Dow Jones &
Company, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.7 to New Media Investment Group
Inc.�s Registration Statement on Form 10/A (File No. 001-36097), filed November 8, 2013).

2.5 Debtors� Joint Prepackaged Chapter 11 Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.8 to
New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Registration Statement on Form 10/A (File No. 001-36097),
filed November 8, 2013).

2.6 Debtors� Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Order Approving Debtors� Disclosure
Statement For, and Confirming, Debtors� Joint Prepackaged Chapter 11 Plan (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 2.9 to New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Registration Statement on
Form 10/A (File No. 001-36097), filed November 8, 2013).

2.7 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 22, 2014, among The Providence Journal Company,
as Seller, and LMG Rhode Island Holdings, Inc., as Buyer (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
September 3, 2014).

2.8 Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of November 20, 2014, by and among Cummings
Acquisition, Inc. and the sellers party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to New
Media Investment Group Inc.�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed November 28, 2014).

2.9 Amendment to the Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 9, 2015, by and among
Cummings Acquisition, Inc. and the sellers party thereto (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 2.2 to New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed January 12,
2015).
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Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of New Media Investment Group Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to New Media Investment Group Inc.�s
Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (Registration No. 333-192736), filed January 15, 2014).

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of New Media Investment Group Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Registration Statement on
Form S-1/A (Registration No. 333-192736), filed January 15, 2014).
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Exhibit No. Description

    4.1 Form of Registration Rights Agreement between New Media Investment Group Inc. and Omega
Advisors, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to New Media Investment Group
Inc.�s Registration Statement on Form 10/A (File No. 001-36097), filed November 8, 2013).

    4.2 Global Warrant Certificate of New Media Investment Group Inc. (included in Exhibit 10.15).

    4.3 Global Warrant Certificate of New Media Investment Group Inc. (amended) (included in
Exhibit 10.23).

    5.1# Opinion of Cleary Gottlieb Steen & Hamilton LLP.

*10.1 Liberty Group Publishing, Inc. Publisher�s Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to GateHouse Media, Inc�s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Registration No. 333-135944), filed July 21, 2006).

*10.2 Liberty Group Publishing, Inc. Executive Benefit Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to GateHouse Media, Inc�s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration
No. 333-135944), filed July 21, 2006).

*10.3 Liberty Group Publishing, Inc. Executive Deferral Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to GateHouse Media, Inc�s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration
No. 333-135944), filed July 21, 2006).

  10.4 Form of Indemnification Agreement to be entered into by New Media Investment Group Inc. with
each of its executive officers and directors (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to
New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Registration Statement on Form 10/A (File No. 001-36097),
filed November 8, 2013).

  10.5 License Agreement, dated as of February 28, 2007, by and between SureWest Communications
and GateHouse Media, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to GateHouse Media,
Inc.�s Current Report on Form 8-K (Items 1.01, 2.01, and 9.01), filed March 1, 2007).

  10.6 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of February 27, 2007, among GateHouse
Media Holdco, Inc., as Holdco, GateHouse Media Operating, Inc., as the Company, GateHouse
Media Massachusetts I, Inc., GateHouse Media Massachusetts II, Inc., and ENHE Acquisition,
LLC, as Subsidiary Borrowers, the Domestic Subsidiaries of Holdco from time to time Parties
thereto, as Guarantors, the Lenders Parties thereto, Goldman Sachs Credit Partners L.P., as
Syndication Agent, Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., and BMO Capital Markets Financing,
Inc., as co-documentation Agents and Cortland Products Corp., as successor to Wells Fargo Bank,
as Administrative Agent, Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC, as Goldman Sachs Credit Partners,
L.P., General Electric Capital Corporation and Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., as Joint Lead
Arrangers and Joint Book Runners (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to GateHouse
Media, Inc.�s Current Report on Form 8-K (Items 1.01, 2.03, and 9.01), filed March 1, 2007).

  10.7 Amended and Restated Security Agreement, dated as of February 28, 2007, among GateHouse
Media Holdco, Inc., as Holdco, GateHouse Media Operating, Inc., as the Company, GateHouse
Media Massachusetts I, Inc., GateHouse Media Massachusetts II, Inc., and ENHE Acquisition,
LLC, as Subsidiary Borrowers, the Domestic Subsidiaries of Holdco from time to time Parties
thereto, as Guarantors, and Wells Fargo Bank, as Administrative Agent, Wachovia Capital
Markets, LLC, as Goldman Sachs Credit Partners, L.P., General Electric Capital Corporation and
Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Book Runners
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to GateHouse Media, Inc.�s Current Report on
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Exhibit No. Description

  10.8 Amended and Restated Pledge Agreement, dated as of February 28, 2007, among GateHouse
Media Holdco, Inc., as Holdco, GateHouse Media Operating, Inc., as the Company, GateHouse
Media Massachusetts I, Inc., GateHouse Media Massachusetts II, Inc., and ENHE Acquisition,
LLC, as Subsidiary Borrowers, the Domestic Subsidiaries of Holdco from time to time Parties
thereto, as Guarantors, and Wells Fargo Bank, as Administrative Agent, for the several banks and
other financial institutions as may from time to time becomes parties to such Credit Agreement
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to GateHouse Media, Inc.�s Current Report on
Form 8-K (Items 1.01, 2.03, and 9.01), filed March 1, 2007).

  10.9 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of May 7, 2007, by and
among GateHouse Media Holdco, Inc., as Holdco, GateHouse Media Operating, Inc., as the
Company, GateHouse Media Massachusetts I, Inc., GateHouse Media Massachusetts II, Inc. and
ENHE Acquisition, LLC, as Subsidiary Borrowers, the Domestic Subsidiaries of Holdco from time
to time Parties thereto, as Guarantors, the Lenders Parties thereto, and Wells Fargo Bank, as
Administrative Agent (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to GateHouse Media, Inc.�s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 11, 2007).

  10.10 Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of February 3, 2009, by
and among GateHouse Media Holdco, Inc., as Holdco, GateHouse Media Operating, Inc., as the
Company, GateHouse Media Massachusetts I, Inc., GateHouse Media Massachusetts II, Inc. and
ENHE Acquisition, LLC, as Subsidiary Borrowers, the Domestic Subsidiaries of Holdco from time
to time Parties thereto, as Guarantors, the Lenders Parties thereto, and Wells Fargo Bank, as
Administrative Agent (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to GateHouse Media, Inc.�s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed February 5, 2009).

*10.11 Employment Agreement dated as of January 9, 2009, by and among GateHouse Media, Inc.,
GateHouse Media Operating Inc., and Kirk Davis (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to GateHouse Media, Inc.�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed January 9, 2009).

*10.12 Form of amendment to Employment Agreement for Kirk Davis (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.23 to GateHouse Media, Inc.�s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed March 8, 2012).

  10.13 Agency Succession and Amendment Agreement, dated as of March 30, 2011 by and among
GateHouse Media Holdco, Inc., GateHouse Media Operating, Inc., GateHouse Media
Massachusetts I, Inc., GateHouse Media Massachusetts II, Inc., ENHE Acquisition, LLC, each of
those domestic subsidiaries of Holdco identified as a �Guarantor� on the signature pages of the
Credit Agreement, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., successor-by-merger to Wachovia Bank, National
Association, as the resigning Administrative Agent, and the Successor Agent (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to GateHouse Media, Inc.�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April 7,
2011).

  10.14 Credit Amendment, dated as of September 3, 2013, by and among GateHouse Media Holdco, Inc.
(�Holdco�), GateHouse Media Operating, Inc., GateHouse Media Massachusetts I, Inc., GateHouse
Media Massachusetts II, Inc. and ENHE Acquisition, LLC, those subsidiaries of Holdco party
hereto as Guarantors and the Required Lenders party hereto (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.3 to GateHouse Media, Inc�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed September 11, 2013).

  10.15 Warrant Agreement dated as of November 26, 2013 between New Media Investment Group Inc.
and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.27 to New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No.
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Exhibit No. Description

  10.16 Form of Management Agreement between New Media Investment Group Inc. and FIG LLC
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to New Media Investment Group Inc.�s
Registration Statement on Form 10 (File No. 001-36097), filed September 27, 2013).

  10.17 Contribution Agreement dated November 26, 2013 between Newcastle Investment Corp. and New
Media Investment Group Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to New Media
Investment Group Inc.�s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-192736), filed
December 10, 2013).

  10.18 Form of Cooperation Agreement between Newcastle Investment Corp. and New Media Investment
Group Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to New Media Investment Group
Inc.�s Registration Statement on Form 10/A (File No. 001-36097), filed November 8, 2013).

  10.19 Form of Assignment Agreement between Newcastle Investment Corp. and New Media Investment
Group Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to New Media Investment Group
Inc.�s Registration Statement on Form 10/A (File No. 001-36097), filed November 8, 2013).

  10.20 Revolving Credit, Term Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of November 26, 2013 by and
among GateHouse Media, Inc., GateHouse Media Intermediate Holdco, Inc., certain wholly-owned
subsidiaries of GateHouse Media Intermediate Holdco, Inc., PNC Bank, National Association, as
the administrative agent, Crystal Financial LLC, as term loan B agent, and each of the lenders
party thereto (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to New Media Investment Group
Inc.�s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-192736), filed December 10,
2013).

  10.21 Term Loan and Security Agreement dated November 26, 2013 by and among GateHouse Media,
Inc., GateHouse Media Intermediate Holdco Inc., certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of GateHouse
Media Intermediate Holdco, Inc., Mutual Quest Fund and each of the lenders party thereto
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to New Media Investment Group Inc.�s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-192736), filed December 10, 2013).

*10.22 New Media Investment Group Inc. Nonqualified Stock Option and Incentive Award Plan
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed February 7, 2014).

  10.23 Amended and Restated Warrant Agreement dated January 15, 2014 between New Media
Investment Group Inc. and American Stock & Transfer Company, LLC (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.37 to New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Registration Statement on Form
S-1/A (Registration No. 333-192736), filed January 28, 2014).

*10.24 Form of New Media Investment Group Inc. Non-Officer Director Restricted Stock Grant
Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to New Media Investment Group
Inc.�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed February 7, 2014).

  10.25 Amended and Restated Management Agreement, dated as of February 14, 2014, between New
Media Investment Group Inc. and FIG LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 of New
Media Investment Group Inc.�s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed March 19, 2014).

*10.26 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement between New Media Investment Group Inc. and
Fortress Operating Entity I LP (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 of New Media
Investment Group Inc.�s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed March 19, 2014)
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*10.27 Form of Tandem Award Agreement between New Media Investment Group Inc. and FIG LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 of New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Annual Report
on Form 10-K, filed March 19, 2014)
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  10.28 Credit Agreement, dated as of June 4, 2014 among New Media Holdings I LLC, New Media
Holdings II LLC, the several banks and other financial institutions or entities from time to time
parties to this Agreement, as the Lenders, RBS Citizens, N.A. and Credit Suisse Securities (USA)
LLC, as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners, Credit Suisse AG, Cayman Islands Branch,
as Syndication Agent, and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania, together with any successor appointed
in accordance with Section 8.9 of the Credit Agreement, as Administrative Agent (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.40 to New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the period ended June 29, 2014, filed July 31, 2014).

  10.29 Pledge Agreement, dated as of June 4, 2014 among New Media Holdings II LLC, New Media
Holdings I LLC, each of the subsidiary guarantors from time to time party thereto and Citizens
Bank of Pennsylvania, in its capacity as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.41 to New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended June 29, 2014, filed July 31, 2014).

  10.30 Guarantee Agreement, dated as of June 4, 2014 made by New Media Holdings I LLC, each of the
other guarantors party thereto in favor of Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania, as Administrative Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42 to New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 29, 2014, filed July 31, 2014).

  10.31 Security Agreement, dated as of June 4, 2014 among New Media Holdings I LLC, New Media
Holdings II LLC, each of the subsidiary guarantors from time to time party thereto and Citizens
Bank of Pennsylvania, in its capacity as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.43 to New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended June 29, 2014, filed July 31, 2014).

  10.32 Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of July 17, 2014 between Citizens Bank of
Pennsylvania, New Media Holdings II LLC and New Media Holdings I LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.44 to New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the period ended June 29, 2014, filed July 31, 2014).

  10.33 First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of September 3, 2014, among New Media
Holdings I LLC, New Media Holdings II LLC, the loan parties party thereto, the several banks and
other financial institutions or entities party thereto as incremental term lenders, and Citizens Bank
of Pennsylvania, as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to New Media
Investment Group Inc.�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed September 3, 2014).

  10.34 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of November 20, 2014, among New Media
Holdings I LLC, New Media Holdings II LLC, the loan parties party thereto, the lenders party
thereto, and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania, as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
November 28, 2014).

  10.35 Parent Guaranty, dated as of November 20, 2014, among New Media Investment Group Inc., New
Media Holdings I LLC and the sellers party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed November 28, 2014).

  10.36 Third Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of January 9, 2015, among New Media Holdings
I LLC, New Media Holdings II LLC, the loan parties party thereto, the several banks and other
financial institutions or entities party thereto as incremental term lenders, the revolving credit
lenders and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania, as administrative agent (incorporated herein by
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reference to Exhibit 10.1 to New Media Investment Group Inc.�s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
January 12, 2015).

  21.1# Subsidiaries of New Media Investment Group LLP Inc.
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  23.1 Consent of Cleary Gottlieb Steen & Hamilton (included in Exhibit 5.1).

  23.2 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP relating to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of
New Media Investment Group Inc. (included herewith).

  23.3 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP relating to the combined financial statements of Dow Jones Local
Media Group, Inc. (included herewith).

  23.4 Consent of KPMG LLP relating to the consolidated financial statements of The Providence Journal
Company (included herewith).

  23.5 Consent of Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP relating to the consolidated financial statements of
Halifax Media Group, LLC (included herewith).

  24.1# Powers of Attorney (included on signature page).

# Previously filed
* Management contracts and compensatory plans or arrangements.
** Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the information in this exhibit shall not be deemed to be �filed� for

purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or otherwise subject to the liability of that
section, and shall not be incorporated by reference into any registration statement, prospectus or other document
filed under the Securities Act of 1933, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except as shall be expressly set
forth by specific reference in such filings.
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